NTP TECHNICAL REPORT

ON THE

TOXICOLOGY AND CARCINOGENESIS

STUDIES OF MALACHITE GREEN CHLORIDE AND LEUCOMALACHITE GREEN

(CAS NOS. 569-64-2 AND 129-73-7)

IN F344/N RATS AND B6C3F₁ MICE

(FEED STUDIES)

NATIONAL TOXICOLOGY PROGRAM P.O. Box 12233 Research Triangle Park, NC 27709

February 2005

NTP TR 527

NIH Publication No. 05-4463

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Public Health Service National Institutes of Health

FOREWORD

The National Toxicology Program (NTP) is made up of four charter agencies of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS): the National Cancer Institute (NCI), National Institutes of Health; the National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences (NIEHS), National Institutes of Health; the National Center for Toxicological Research (NCTR), Food and Drug Administration; and the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH), Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. In July 1981, the Carcinogenesis Bioassay Testing Program, NCI, was transferred to the NIEHS. The NTP coordinates the relevant programs, staff, and resources from these Public Health Service agencies relating to basic and applied research and to biological assay development and validation.

The NTP develops, evaluates, and disseminates scientific information about potentially toxic and hazardous chemicals. This knowledge is used for protecting the health of the American people and for the primary prevention of disease.

The studies described in this Technical Report were performed under the direction of the NIEHS and NCTR and were conducted in compliance with NTP laboratory health and safety requirements and must meet or exceed all applicable federal, state, and local health and safety regulations. Animal care and use were in accordance with the Public Health Service Policy on Humane Care and Use of Animals. The prechronic and chronic studies were conducted in compliance with Food and Drug Administration (FDA) Good Laboratory Practice Regulations, and all aspects of the chronic studies were subjected to retrospective quality assurance audits before being presented for public review.

These studies are designed and conducted to characterize and evaluate the toxicologic potential, including carcinogenic activity, of selected chemicals in laboratory animals (usually two species, rats and mice). Chemicals selected for NTP toxicology and carcinogenesis studies are chosen primarily on the bases of human exposure, level of production, and chemical structure. The interpretive conclusions presented in this Technical Report are based only on the results of these NTP studies. Extrapolation of these results to other species and quantitative risk analyses for humans require wider analyses beyond the purview of these studies. Selection *per se* is not an indicator of a chemical's carcinogenic potential.

Details about ongoing and completed NTP studies, abstracts of all NTP Technical Reports, and full versions of the completed reports are available at the NTP's World Wide Web site: http://ntp.niehs.nih.gov. In addition, printed copies of these reports are available from NTP as supplies last by contacting (919) 541-1371.

NTP TECHNICAL REPORT

ON THE

TOXICOLOGY AND CARCINOGENESIS

STUDIES OF MALACHITE GREEN CHLORIDE AND LEUCOMALACHITE GREEN

(CAS NOS. 569-64-2 AND 129-73-7)

IN F344/N RATS AND B6C3F₁ MICE

(FEED STUDIES)



NATIONAL TOXICOLOGY PROGRAM P.O. Box 12233 Research Triangle Park, NC 27709

February 2005

NTP TR 527

NIH Publication No. 05-4463

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Public Health Service National Institutes of Health

CONTRIBUTORS

The studies on malachite green chloride and leucomalachite green were conducted at the FDA's National Center for Toxicological Research under an interagency agreement between the FDA and the NIEHS. The studies were designed and monitored by a Toxicology Study Selection and Review Committee composed of representatives from the NCTR and other FDA product centers, NIEHS, and other *ad hoc* members from other government agencies and academia. The interagency agreement was designed to use the staff and facilities of the NCTR in the testing of FDA priority chemicals and to provide FDA scientists and regulatory policymakers information for hazard identification and risk assessment.

Toxicology Study Selection and Review Committee

D.A. Casciano, Ph.D., Chairperson National Center for Toxicological Research W.T. Allaben, Ph.D. National Center for Toxicological Research F.A. Beland, Ph.D. National Center for Toxicological Research J.R. Bucher, Ph.D. National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences K.J. Greenlees, Ph.D. Center for Veterinary Medicine, Food and Drug Administration R.J. Lorentzen, Ph.D. Center for Food Safety and Applied Nutrition, Food and Drug Administration F.D. Sistare, Ph.D. Center for Drug Evaluation and Research,

Food and Drug Administration

Bionetics

Prepared animal feed and cared for rats and mice

J. Carson, B.S. A. Matson, B.S. M. Vanlandingham, B.S.

National Center for Toxicological Research, Food and Drug Administration

Conducted studies, evaluated and interpreted results and pathology findings, and reported findings

S.J. Culp, Ph.D., Study Scientist F.A. Beland, Ph.D., Co-Study Scientist K.J. Greenlees, Ph.D., Co-Study Scientist, Center for Veterinary Medicine, Food and Drug Administration W.T. Allaben, Ph.D. J.R. Appleget, B.S. R.W. Benson, B.S. L.R. Blankenship, B.S. R.H. Heflich, Ph.D. R.L. Kodell, Ph.D. M.G. Manjanatha, Ph.D. D.D. Paine, B.S. L.G. Rushing, M.S. P.H. Siitonen, B.S. P.J. Webb, B.S. W.M. Witt, D.V.M., Ph.D.

Conducted quality assurance audits

J.E. Partridge, B.S. R.D. Smith, B.S. Y.E. Whiteside, B.S.

Pathology Associates International A Charles River Company

Evaluated pathology findings

P.W. Mellick, D.V.M., Ph.D. R.W. Trotter, D.V.M.

NTP Pathology Working Group

Evaluated slides and prepared pathology reports (November 6 and 7, 2002)

C.H. Frith, D.V.M., Ph.D. Tox-Path Associates
J.R. Hailey, D.V.M. National Toxicology Program
J.F. Hardisty, D.V.M. Experimental Pathology Laboratories, Inc.
P.W. Mellick, D.V.M., Ph.D. Pathology Associates International A Charles River Company
D.M. Sells, D.V.M., Ph.D. Battelle Memorial Institute
R.W. Trotter, D.V.M. Pathology Associates International A Charles River Company
C.C. Shackelford, D.V.M., M.S., Ph.D.

Experimental Pathology Laboratories, Inc.

Experimental Pathology Laboratories, Inc.

Provided pathology review

M.H. Hamlin, II, D.V.M., Principal Investigator J.F. Hardisty, D.V.M. C.C. Shackelford, D.V.M., M.S., Ph.D.

Northrop Grumman Information Technology

Provided experimental support, IN-LIFE statistical analyses, and NCTR historical control data

K. Carroll S. Ding, M.S. D. Hussen, M.S. C.C. McCarty, M.S. W.A. McCracken, M.S. B. Spadoni B.T. Thorn, M.S.

Biotechnical Services, Inc.

Prepared Technical Report

S.R. Gunnels, M.A., Principal Investigator P.H. Carver, B.A. L.M. Harper, B.S. D.C. Serbus, Ph.D.

CONTENTS

ABSTRACT		7
EXPLANATIO	N OF LEVELS OF EVIDENCE OF CARCINOGENIC ACTIVITY	12
TECHNICAL F	REPORTS REVIEW SUBCOMMITTEE	13
SUMMARY OF	TECHNICAL REPORTS REVIEW SUBCOMMITTEE COMMENTS	14
INTRODUCTI	ON	17
MATERIALS A	AND METHODS	25
RESULTS		33
DISCUSSION A	AND CONCLUSIONS	63
REFERENCES		69
Appendix A	Summary of Lesions in Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	73
Appendix B	Summary of Lesions in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Studies of Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green	113
Appendix C	Summary of Lesions in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Studies of Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green	189
Appendix D	Organ Weights and Organ-Weight-to-Body-Weight Ratios	261
Appendix E	Chemical Characterization and Dose Formulation Studies	265
Appendix F	Feed and Compound Consumption in the 2-Year Feed Studies of Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green	285
Appendix G	Ingredients, Nutrient Composition, and Contaminant Levels in NIH-31 Rat and Mouse Ration	291
Appendix H	Sentinel Animal Program	295
Appendix I	Genotoxicity of Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green in Female Big Blue B6C3F ₁ Mice	299

SUMMARY

Background

Malachite green chloride is a dye used to prevent fungus infections in commercial fisheries. Leucomalachite green is formed from malachite green and remains in the tissues of exposed fish. We studied the effects of malachite green on female rats and female mice, and the effects of leucomalachite green on male and female rats and female mice, to identify potential toxic or cancer-related hazards to humans.

Methods

For each study we mixed the dye into the feed of rats and mice. The doses of malachite green chloride given were 100, 300, or 600 parts per million (ppm) for female rats and 100, 225, or 450 ppm for female mice. Doses of leucomalachite green were 91, 272, or 543 ppm for male and female rats and 91, 204, or 408 ppm for female mice. There were 48 animals in each dose group. Control animals received the same feed with no chemical added. The study lasted for two years. Tissues from more than 40 sites were examined for every animal.

Results

Rats, but not mice, exposed to malachite green chloride or leucomalachite green weighed less on average than the control animals. In rats exposed to the dyes, there were very slight increases in a few types of tumors: cancers of the thyroid gland, liver, and mammary gland in females exposed to malachite green chloride; of the thyroid gland and testes in males exposed to leucomalachite green; and of the thyroid gland and liver of females exposed to leucomalachite green in cancers in female mice given malachite green chloride, but there was in increase in liver tumors in female mice given leucomalachite green.

Conclusions

We conclude that tumors of the thyroid gland, liver, or mammary gland in female rats might have been caused by malachite green chloride, but that malachite green chloride did not cause cancer in female mice. We conclude that leucomalachite green might have caused cancers of the thyroid gland in male and female rats, and of the testes in male rats and liver in female rats. Leucomalachite green caused an increase in cancer of the liver in female mice.

ABSTRACT





MALACHITE GREEN CHLORIDE

CAS No. 569-64-2

Chemical Formula: C₂₃H₂₅ClN₂ Molecular Weight: 364.92

LEUCOMALACHITE GREEN

CAS No. 129-73-7

Chemical Formula: C₂₃H₂₆N₂ Molecular Weight: 330.48

Malachite Green Chloride

Synonyms:bis[p-(Dimethylamino)phenyl]phenylmethylium chloride; N-[4-[[4-(dimethylamino)phenyl]phenylmethylene]-2,5-
cyclohexadien-1-ylidene]-N-methylmethanaminium chlorideTrade names:Aniline Green; Benzal Green; Benzaldehyde Green; China Green; C.I. Basic Green 4; C.I. 42000; Diamond Green B;
Diamond Green Bx; Diamond Green P Extra; Fast Green; Light Green N; New Victoria Green Extra I; New Victoria
Green Extra I; New Victoria Green Extra O; Solid Green O; Victoria Green B; Victoria Green WB

Leucomalachite Green

Synonym: p,p'-Benzylidenebis-*N*,*N*-dimethylaniline

Malachite green chloride is a triphenylmethane dye used in the fish industry as an antifungal agent. Leucomalachite green is formed by the reduction of malachite green chloride and persists in the tissues of exposed fish. These compounds were nominated for study by the United States Food and Drug Administration because of the potential for significant worker and consumer exposure, structural similarity to gentian violet, and lack of carcinogenicity data. After consideration of data obtained from a 28-day feeding study (NTP, 2004), female F344/N Nctr BR rats and B6C3F₁/Nctr BR mice were exposed to malachite green chloride (approximately 87% pure) in feed for 2 years. Male and female F344/N Nctr BR rats and female $B6C3F_1$ /Nctr BR mice were exposed to leucomalachite green (99% pure) in feed for 2 years.

2-YEAR STUDY IN RATS

Malachite Green Chloride

Groups of 48 female rats were fed diets containing 0, 100, 300, or 600 ppm malachite green chloride for 2 years (equivalent to average daily doses of approximately 0, 7, 21, and 43 mg malachite green chloride/kg body weight). Survival of exposed groups was similar to that of the control group. Mean body weights of the 300 and 600 ppm females were generally less than those of

the controls. Feed consumption by exposed groups of rats was generally similar to that by the control group. The relative liver weight was significantly increased in the 600 ppm females.

Thyroid follicular cell adenomas and carcinomas occurred in female rats receiving 300 or 600 ppm malachite green chloride, and the combined incidence of adenomas and carcinomas exceeded the historical control range. A low incidence of cystic follicles was observed in the thyroid gland of exposed females. The increases were minimal and not statistically significant; however, due to the rarity of the tumor and related nonneoplastic changes, these increases may be biologically significant. Hepatocellular adenomas were minimally increased (not statistically significant) in the female rats exposed to 300 and 600 ppm malachite green and the incidence in all the exposed and control groups exceeded the historical control range. The incidence of eosinophilic foci in the liver was increased in the exposed groups of rats. The incidence of mononuclear cell leukemia decreased with an exposure-related trend in females; the incidences were significantly decreased in the 300 and 600 ppm females. Mammary gland carcinomas were increased (not statistically significant) in the female rats receiving 600 ppm and the incidence exceeded the historical control range. The reduction in body weight of the treated rats may have reduced the statistical power to demonstrate a more robust effect.

Leucomalachite Green

Groups of 48 male and female rats were fed diets containing 0, 91, 272, or 543 ppm leucomalachite green in feed for 2 years (equivalent to average daily doses of approximately 0, 5, 15, and 30 mg leucomalachite green/kg body weight to males and 0, 6, 17, and 35 mg/kg body weight to females). Survival of 272 ppm males was greater than that of the controls. Mean body weights of 543 ppm males and females and 272 ppm females were less than those of the controls throughout the study; mean body weights of 272 ppm males and 91 ppm females were less than those of the controls during year 2 of the study. Feed consumption by 543 ppm males and females was intermittently less than that by the controls throughout the study; feed consumption by 272 ppm females was intermittently less during year 2 of the study. Liver weights were significantly increased for 272 and 543 ppm males; relative liver weights were significantly increased for 272 and 543 ppm females. Relative thyroid gland weights of 543 ppm males and females were significantly increased.

Hepatocellular adenomas were minimally increased (not statistically significant) in female rats exposed to 91 or 543 ppm leucomalachite green, with the incidence exceeding the historical control range. Nonneoplastic liver lesions including eosinophilic focus, cystic degeneration, and cytoplasmic vacuolization were generally significantly increased in the exposed groups of male and female rats. Thyroid gland follicular cell adenomas or carcinomas (combined) and cysts were observed in exposed males and females. The increases were minimal and not statistically significant; however, the increases may be biologically significant due to the rarity of the neoplasm and related nonneoplastic changes. Testicular interstitial cell adenoma occurred with a positive trend in male rats, and the incidence was significantly increased in the 543 ppm group. The broad range of incidences in the historical control data and the uncertainty of the relationship between pituitary gland neoplasms and testicular adenomas may confound this result. The incidences of mononuclear cell leukemia were significantly decreased in exposed rats. The incidences of pituitary gland adenoma were significantly decreased in exposed male rats.

2-YEAR STUDY IN MICE

Malachite Green Chloride

Groups of 48 female mice were fed diets containing 0, 100, 225, or 450 ppm malachite green chloride for 2 years (equivalent to average daily doses of approximately 0, 15, 33, and 67 mg malachite green chloride/kg body weight). Survival of exposed groups was similar to that of the controls. Mean body weights of exposed mice were generally similar to the control group throughout most of the study. Feed consumption by exposed groups was generally similar to that by the controls. Relative kidney weights of exposed groups of mice were generally less than those of the controls.

There were no increased incidences of neoplasms in exposed mice. Incidences of intracytoplasmic inclusions of the urinary bladder were significantly increased in exposed mice.

Leucomalachite Green

Groups of 48 female mice were fed diets containing 0, 91, 204, or 408 ppm leucomalachite green for 2 years (equivalent to average daily doses of approximately 0, 13, 31, and 63 mg leucomalachite green/kg body weight). Survival of exposed groups was similar to that of the controls. Mean body weights were generally similar to those of the controls. Feed consumption by exposed groups was generally similar to that by the controls. Relative kidney weights were significantly decreased in all dose groups.

The incidences of hepatocellular adenoma or carcinoma (combined) occurred with a positive trend and the incidence was significantly increased in 408 ppm mice. The incidences of hepatocellular adenoma were increased (not statistically significant) in exposed mice.

CONCLUSIONS

Under the conditions of these 2-year feed studies, there was *equivocal evidence of carcinogenic activity** of malachite green chloride in female F344/N rats based on the occurrence of thyroid gland follicular cell adenoma

or carcinoma (combined) and marginal increases in hepatocellular adenoma and mammary gland carcinoma in exposed rats. There was *no evidence of carcinogenic activity* of malachite green chloride in female $B6C3F_1$ mice exposed to 100, 225, or 450 ppm.

Under the conditions of these 2-year feed studies, there was *equivocal evidence of carcinogenic activity* of leucomalachite green in male F344/N rats based on an increase in interstitial cell adenoma of the testes and the occurrence of thyroid gland follicular cell adenoma or carcinoma (combined) in exposed rats. There was *equivocal evidence of carcinogenic activity* of leucomalachite green in female F344/N rats based on a marginally increased incidence of hepatocellular adenoma and the occurrence of thyroid gland follicular cell adenoma and the occurrence of thyroid gland follicular cell adenoma and the occurrence of thyroid gland follicular cell adenoma increase *evidence of carcinogenic activity* of leucomalachite green in female B6C3F₁ mice based on an increase in hepatocellular adenoma or carcinoma (combined).

Exposure to malachite green chloride in feed resulted in nonneoplastic lesions in the thyroid gland and liver of female rats and the urinary bladder of female mice. Exposure to leucomalachite green in feed resulted in nonneoplastic lesions in the thyroid gland and liver of male and female rats and the urinary bladder of female mice.

^{*} Explanation of Levels of Evidence of Carcinogenic Activity is on page 12. A summary of the Technical Reports Review Subcommittee comments and the public discussion on this Technical Report appears on page 14.

	Malachite Green Chloride		
	Female F344/N Rats	Female B6C3F ₁ Mice	
Concentrations in feed	0, 100, 300, 600 ppm	0, 100, 225, 450 ppm	
Body weights	300 and 600 ppm groups less than the control group	Exposed groups generally similar to the control group	
Survival rates	29/48, 23/48, 32/48, 25/48	40/48, 44/48, 40/48, 41/48	
Nonneoplastic effects	<u>Thyroid gland</u> : follicle, cyst (0/46, 1/48, 1/47, 3/46)	Urinary bladder: inclusion body cytoplasmic (7/47, 15/46, 34/45, 39/48)	
	Liver: eosinophilic focus (5/48, 10/48, 13/48, 14/48)		
Neoplastic effects	None	None	
Equivocal findings	<u>Thyroid gland</u> : follicular cell, adenoma or carcinoma (0/46, 0/48, 3/47, 2/46)	None	
	<u>Liver</u> : hepatocellular adenoma (1/48, 1/48, 3/48, 4/48)		
	Mammary gland: carcinoma (2/48, 2/48, 1/48, 5/48)		
Decreased incidences	<u>Mononuclear cell leukemia</u> : (19/48, 17/48, 10/48, 1/48)	None	
Level of evidence of carcinogenic activity	Equivocal	No evidence	

Summary of the 2-Year Carcinogenesis Studies of Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green

	Leucomalachite Green			
	Male F344/N Rats	Female F344/N Rats	Female B6C3F ₁ Mice	
Concentrations in feed	0, 91, 272, or 543 ppm	0, 91, 272, or 543 ppm	0, 91, 204, or 408 ppm	
Body weights	272 and 543 ppm groups less than the control group	Exposed groups less than the control group	Exposed groups generally similar to the control group	
Survival rates	23/48, 29/47, 34/48, 30/47	33/48, 36/48, 35/48, 33/48	37/48, 41/48, 39/48, 39/48	
Nonneoplastic effects	<u>Thyroid gland</u> : follicle cyst (0/47, 0/47, 0/48, 3/46)	<u>Thyroid gland</u> : follicle cyst (0/46, 1/46, 0/47, 2/48)	<u>Urinary bladder</u> : inclusion body intracytoplasmic (14/46, 33/48, 44/47, 44/44)	
	Liver: eosinophilic focus (3/48, 14/47, 19/48, 33/47); cystic degeneration (4/48, 18/47, 13/48, 19/47)	Liver: eosinophilic focus (3/48, 12/48, 20/48, 16/48); vacuolization cytoplasmic (5/48, 5/48, 17/48, 22/48)		
Neoplastic effects	None	None	Liver: hepatocellular adenoma or carcinoma (3/47, 6/48, 6/47, 11/47)	
Equivocal findings	<u>Thyroid gland</u> : follicular cell adenoma or carcinoma (0/47, 2/47, 1/48, 3/46)	<u>Thyroid gland</u> : follicular cell carcinoma or adenoma (0/46, 1/46, 2/47, 1/48)	None	
	<u>Testes</u> : interstitial cell, adenoma (37/48, 42/47, 43/48, 45/47); bilateral, interstitial cell adenoma (22/48, 30/47, 38/48, 39/47)	Liver: hepatocellular adenoma (1/48, 3/48, 0/48, 3/48)		
Decreased incidences	Mononuclear cell leukemia: (29/48, 16/47, 19/48, 7/47)	Mononuclear cell leukemia: (17/48, 8/48, 5/48, 8/48)	None	
	<u>Pituitary gland</u> : adenoma (30/45, 19/46, 21/48, 13/45)			
Level of evidence of carcinogenic activity	Equivocal	Equivocal	Some evidence	

Summary of the 2-Year Carcinogenesis Studies of Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green

EXPLANATION OF LEVELS OF EVIDENCE OF CARCINOGENIC ACTIVITY

The National Toxicology Program describes the results of individual experiments on a chemical agent and notes the strength of the evidence for conclusions regarding each study. Negative results, in which the study animals do not have a greater incidence of neoplasia than control animals, do not necessarily mean that a chemical is not a carcinogen, inasmuch as the experiments are conducted under a limited set of conditions. Positive results demonstrate that a chemical is carcinogenic for laboratory animals under the conditions of the study and indicate that exposure to the chemical has the potential for hazard to humans. Other organizations, such as the International Agency for Research on Cancer, assign a strength of evidence for conclusions based on an examination of all available evidence, including animal studies such as those conducted by the NTP, epidemiologic studies, and estimates of exposure. Thus, the actual determination of risk to humans from chemicals found to be carcinogenic in laboratory animals requires a wider analysis that extends beyond the purview of these studies.

Five categories of evidence of carcinogenic activity are used in the Technical Report series to summarize the strength of the evidence observed in each experiment: two categories for positive results (clear evidence and some evidence); one category for uncertain findings (equivocal evidence); one category for no observable effects (no evidence); and one category for experiments that cannot be evaluated because of major flaws (inadequate study). These categories of interpretative conclusions were first adopted in June 1983 and then revised in March 1986 for use in the Technical Report series to incorporate more specifically the concept of actual weight of evidence of carcinogenic activity. For each separate experiment (male rats, female rats, male mice, female mice), one of the following five categories is selected to describe the findings. These categories refer to the strength of the experimental evidence and not to potency or mechanism.

- Clear evidence of carcinogenic activity is demonstrated by studies that are interpreted as showing a dose-related (i) increase of malignant neoplasms, (ii) increase of a combination of malignant and benign neoplasms, or (iii) marked increase of benign neoplasms if there is an indication from this or other studies of the ability of such tumors to progress to malignancy.
- Some evidence of carcinogenic activity is demonstrated by studies that are interpreted as showing a chemical-related increased incidence of neoplasms (malignant, benign, or combined) in which the strength of the response is less than that required for clear evidence.
- Equivocal evidence of carcinogenic activity is demonstrated by studies that are interpreted as showing a marginal increase of neoplasms that may be chemical related.
- No evidence of carcinogenic activity is demonstrated by studies that are interpreted as showing no chemical-related increases in malignant or benign neoplasms.
- **Inadequate study** of carcinogenic activity is demonstrated by studies that, because of major qualitative or quantitative limitations, cannot be interpreted as valid for showing either the presence or absence of carcinogenic activity.

For studies showing multiple chemical-related neoplastic effects that if considered individually would be assigned to different levels of evidence categories, the following convention has been adopted to convey completely the study results. In a study with clear evidence of carcinogenic activity at some tissue sites, other responses that alone might be deemed some evidence are indicated as "were also related" to chemical exposure. In studies with clear or some evidence of carcinogenic activity, other responses that alone might be termed equivocal evidence are indicated as "may have been" related to chemical exposure.

When a conclusion statement for a particular experiment is selected, consideration must be given to key factors that would extend the actual boundary of an individual category of evidence. Such consideration should allow for incorporation of scientific experience and current understanding of long-term carcinogenesis studies in laboratory animals, especially for those evaluations that may be on the borderline between two adjacent levels. These considerations should include:

- adequacy of the experimental design and conduct;
- · occurrence of common versus uncommon neoplasia;
- progression (or lack thereof) from benign to malignant neoplasia as well as from preneoplastic to neoplastic lesions;
- some benign neoplasms have the capacity to regress but others (of the same morphologic type) progress. At present, it is impossible to
 identify the difference. Therefore, where progression is known to be a possibility, the most prudent course is to assume that benign
 neoplasms of those types have the potential to become malignant;
- · combining benign and malignant tumor incidence known or thought to represent stages of progression in the same organ or tissue;
- latency in tumor induction;
- multiplicity in site-specific neoplasia;
- · metastases;
- supporting information from proliferative lesions (hyperplasia) in the same site of neoplasia or in other experiments (same lesion in another sex or species);
- presence or absence of dose relationships;
- · statistical significance of the observed tumor increase;
- · concurrent control tumor incidence as well as the historical control rate and variability for a specific neoplasm;
- · survival-adjusted analyses and false positive or false negative concerns;
- · structure-activity correlations; and
- in some cases, genetic toxicology.

NATIONAL TOXICOLOGY PROGRAM BOARD OF SCIENTIFIC COUNSELORS TECHNICAL REPORTS REVIEW SUBCOMMITTEE

The members of the Technical Reports Review Subcommittee who evaluated the draft NTP Technical Report on malachite green chloride and leucomalachite green on February 17, 2004, are listed below. Subcommittee members serve as independent scientists, not as representatives of any institution, company, or governmental agency. In this capacity, subcommittee members have five major responsibilities in reviewing the NTP studies:

- · to ascertain that all relevant literature data have been adequately cited and interpreted,
- · to determine if the design and conditions of the NTP studies were appropriate,
- · to ensure that the Technical Report presents the experimental results and conclusions fully and clearly,
- to judge the significance of the experimental results by scientific criteria, and
- · to assess the evaluation of the evidence of carcinogenic activity and other observed toxic responses.

Mary Anna Thrall, D.V.M., Chairperson Department of Pathology Colorado State University Fort Collins, CO

Larry S. Andrews, Ph.D. Toxicology Department Rohm and Haas Company Spring House, PA

Diane F. Birt, Ph.D. Department of Food Science & Human Nutrition Iowa State University Ames, IA

Kim Boekelheide, M.D., Ph.D. Division of Biology and Medicine Department of Pathology and Laboratory Medicine Brown University Providence, RI

Michael R. Elwell, D.V.M., Ph.D., Principal Reviewer Pathology, Drug Safety Evaluation Pfizer Global Research and Development Groton, CT

Thomas A. Gasiewicz, Ph.D Department of Environmental Medicine Environmental Health Sciences Center University of Rochester School of Medicine Rochester, NY

Shuk-Mei Ho, Ph.D. Department of Surgery, Division of Urology University of Massachusetts Medical School Worcester, MA James E. Klaunig, Ph.D. Division of Toxicology Indiana University School of Medicine Indianapolis, IN

Charlene A. McQueen, Ph.D. Department of Pharmacology and Toxicology, College of Pharmacy University of Arizona Tucson, AZ

Walter W. Piegorsch, Ph.D. Department of Statistics University of South Carolina Columbia, SC

Stephen M. Roberts, Ph.D., Principal Reviewer Center for Environmental & Human Toxicology University of Florida Gainesville, FL

Richard D. Storer, M.P.H., Ph.D., Principal Reviewer Department of Genetic and Cellular Toxicology Merck Research Laboratories West Point, PA

Mary Vore, Ph.D. Graduate Center for Toxicology University of Kentucky Lexington, KY

Cheryl Lyn Walker, Ph.D.* Department of Carcinogenesis M.D. Anderson Cancer Center The University of Texas Smithville, TX

* Did not attend

SUMMARY OF TECHNICAL REPORTS REVIEW SUBCOMMITTEE COMMENTS

On February 17, 2004, the draft Technical Report on the toxicology and carcinogenesis studies of malachite green chloride and leucomalachite green received public review by the National Toxicology Program's Board of Scientific Counselor's Technical Reports Review Subcommittee. The review meeting was held at the National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences, Research Triangle Park, NC.

Dr. S.J. Culp, NCTR, introduced the toxicology and carcinogenesis studies of malachite green chloride and leucomalachite green by describing the use of the chemicals as an antifungal agent in fisheries, the study design and dose setting, and the data on body weight, blood parameters, and lesions of the liver, mammary gland, thyroid gland, and testes. The proposed conclusions were *equivocal evidence of carcinogenic activity* of malachite green chloride in female F344/N rats, *no evidence of carcinogenic activity* of malachite green chloride in female B6C3F₁ mice exposed to 100, 225, or 450 ppm, *equivocal evidence of carcinogenic activity* of leucomalachite green in male and female F344/N rats, and *some evidence of carcinogenic activity* of leucomalachite green in female B6C3F₁ mice.

Dr. Storer, the first principal reviewer, felt the genotoxicity, DNA adduct, and transgenic mouse results should be presented more prominently. He also requested more discussion of the alteration in thyroid hormone levels.

Dr. Elwell, the second principal reviewer, thought the dose selection rationale could be clarified. He questioned the justification for combining mammary gland adenomas and carcinomas, while omitting fibroadenomas, to obtain a combination for equivocal evidence. He also thought the lymphocytic infiltrate noted in the malachite green study was a common background lesion. He asked for more explanation of the interpretation of retinal degeneration and also for some discussion comparing these compounds and gentian violet. Regarding the conclusions, he suggested deleting mention of lymphocytic infiltration in mice in the malachite green study and the mammary gland neoplasms in female rats in the leucomalachite green study.

Dr. Roberts, the third principal reviewer, also felt more justification was needed for the dose selection. He thought the retinal degeneration was potentially compound related. He also questioned the study design that focused mainly on female animals, based on 4-week study results.

Dr. Culp agreed to expand the study design and dose selection rationales and the genetic toxicology section.

Dr. P.W. Mellick, Pathology Associates International, agreed that combining fibroadenomas with the other mammary gland tumors would eliminate any effect. Dr. J.R. Bucher, NIEHS, offered that the link between carcinomas and adenomas may be more persuasive than the link between carcinomas and fibroadenomas and noted that these neoplasms occurred despite lower body weights.

Dr. Culp said the retinal degeneration was central rather than peripheral and was not likely due to fluorescent lighting because the cage placements were rotated. She defended the decision to use primarily female animals, noting the females had more severe effects in the rangefinding studies. Dr. F.A. Beland, NCTR, added that the lower background rates for liver tumors in females enhanced the ability to discern small increases.

Dr. Klaunig inquired about the liver adenomas in female rats for both chemicals. Dr. Culp said that while the marginal increases were not statistically significant, the incidences were outside the historical control ranges. Dr. Beland added that the genotoxicity data supported a genotoxic mechanism in the mouse liver while the response in the rat liver was equivocal.

Dr. Storer moved that the conclusions for the malachite green study be accepted as written except that lymphocytic infiltration of the liver be removed from the list of nonneoplastic lesions for female mice. Dr. Elwell seconded the motion. Dr. Piegorsch asked for the reasons supporting the inclusion of thyroid, liver, and mammary gland neoplasms as equivocal responses for female rats. Dr. Elwell explained that for each site there was an occurrence of a few neoplasms; these marginal increases did not achieve statistical significance but did exceed the observed historical control ranges. Dr. Andrews added that noting these equivocal responses was appropriate because the animals might have been able to tolerate even higher doses. The motion was approved with ten members in favor and two opposing. Dr. Elwell suggested that the conclusions for the leucomalachite green study be accepted as written except that mammary gland neoplasms be removed from the list of lesions supporting equivocal evidence in female rats. There was discussion about which types of mammary gland neoplasms could most appropriately be combined for statistical analyses. Dr. J.R. Hailey, NIEHS, said progression from benign to malignant tumors was less common in the mammary gland than at some other sites. Dr. Storer moved to accept the conclusions as written, including the mammary gland neoplasms. The motion failed for lack of a second. Dr. Storer then moved to accept the conclusion as written with the mammary gland neoplasms for female rats deleted. Dr. Elwell seconded the motion. Dr. Piegorsch inquired whether the thyroid gland neoplasms should also be removed from the conclusion. Dr. Storer replied that these were very uncommon tumors and there was supporting biologic plausibility based on the disturbance of thyroid hormone homeostasis. Dr. Storer also noted that, in support of retaining the liver lesions in the conclusion, only one adenoma had been seen in the control groups for six other studies. The motion was approved with eleven members in favor and one opposing.

INTRODUCTION





LEUCOMALACHITE GREEN

CAS No. 129-73-7

Chemical Formula: C₂₃H₂₆N₂ Molecular Weight: 330.48

MALACHITE GREEN CHLORIDE

CAS No. 569-64-2

Chemical Formula: C23H25CIN2 Molecular Weight: 364.92

Malachite Green Chloride

Synonyms:bis[p-(Dimethylamino)phenyl]phenylmethylium chloride; N-[4-[[4-(dimethylamino)phenyl]phenylmethylene]-2,5-
cyclohexadien-1-ylidene]-N-methylmethanaminium chlorideTrade names:Aniline Green; Benzal Green; Benzaldehyde Green; China Green; C.I. Basic Green 4; C.I. 42000; Diamond Green B;
Diamond Green Bx; Diamond Green P Extra; Fast Green; Light Green N; New Victoria Green Extra I; New Victoria
Green Extra I; New Victoria Green Extra O; Solid Green O; Victoria Green B; Victoria Green WB

Leucomalachite Green

Synonym: p,p'-Benzylidenebis-*N*,*N*-dimethylaniline

CHEMICAL AND PHYSICAL PROPERTIES

Malachite green chloride is a green crystal with a metallic luster; it is soluble in ethanol, methanol, and amyl alcohol and is very soluble in water. Neutral water solutions are blue-green with an absorption maximum of 616.9 nm; aqueous solutions are yellow below pH 2 (*Merck Index*, 1996). Leucomalachite green is a faint green solid, with an absorption maximum of 266 nm in tetrahydrofuran and an extinction coefficient of 3.34×10^4 M⁻¹ (Chemsyn Science Laboratories, unpublished data).

PRODUCTION, USE, AND HUMAN EXPOSURE

Malachite green chloride, a triphenylmethane dye, is prepared as a double salt with zinc chloride for use as a dye. It is synthesized in a stepwise reaction that involves the condensation of benzaldehyde with *N*,*N*-dimethylaniline and oxidation of the resulting *bis*(p-dimethylaminophenyl)phenylmethane, followed by reaction of the product with hydrochloric acid (Nelson, 1974). Leucomalachite green is prepared by the reduction of malachite green.

The production and uses of malachite green chloride have been reviewed by Culp and Beland (1996). Malachite green is widely used in the dye industry and as an antifungal agent in fish hatcheries. Malachite green is not approved by the FDA or the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency for use on any aquatic species. However, it is relatively inexpensive, readily available, and highly efficacious; therefore, its continued use in some United States fisheries is likely. The chemical has been used routinely in aquaculture since the early 1930s and is considered by many in the fish industry as the most effective antifungal agent (Schnick, 1988). In a study of over 180 compounds tested for antifungal activity, none equaled malachite green for efficacy and low toxicity (Meyer and Schnick, 1989). A broad range of malachite green concentrations has been used to treat fungal and parasitic infections, with doses of 100 ppm for a few seconds of dip (Nelson, 1974) to a prolonged treatment of 0.1 ppm in ponds (Stoskopf, 1993). Because of its use in commercial fish hatcheries and the dye industry, workers may be exposed to the chemical. The National Occupational Exposure Survey, conducted by the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health between 1981 and 1983, estimated that more than 180,000 workers are potentially exposed to malachite green annually (NIOSH, 1990). The general public in the United States may become exposed to malachite green through the consumption of treated fish. Additional consumer exposure can occur via fish imported from Europe (Alabaster, 1982; Solbé, 1982; Schlotfeldt, 1992) and Canada (Thorburn and Moccia, 1993), where the use of malachite green has been documented. Random sampling from markets in the United Kingdom indicates the continued use of malachite green in aquaculture (VRC, 2002). Concern about the use of malachite green has also been raised in the United Kingdom. A report prepared by the Water Research Centre for the Department of the Environment, Transport, and the Regions of the United Kingdom recommended an annual average environmental quality standard of 500 ng/L malachite green for the protection of freshwater aquatic life, although no standards were recommended for drinking water due to a lack of data (Burchmore and Wilkinson, 1993).

Human exposure to leucomalachite green has also been documented (Doerge *et al.*, 1998a; VRC, 2002). Doerge *et al.* (1998) analyzed edible flesh from trout purchased from retail outlets in the United Kingdom during 1994 and 1995 as part of a nonregulatory food surveillance program. Eight of the 12 samples were positive for malachite green (0.4 to 3.4 ppb) and leucomalachite green (9.0 to 96 ppb). Most noteworthy, the concentration of leucomalachite green in the samples was 12 to 37 times higher than that of malachite green.

ABSORPTION, DISTRIBUTION, METABOLISM, AND EXCRETION Experimental Animals

Until the early 1990s little was known about the metabolism of malachite green. Most studies have focused on the metabolism of malachite green in fish. Retention of malachite green in fish was demonstrated by Alderman and Clifton-Hadley (1993) when they exposed trout to a 1.6 ppm malachite green bath treatment for 40 minutes to examine the uptake, distribution, and elimination of the dye. Maximum concentrations of malachite green in serum, liver, and kidney were detected immediately after exposure, and levels ranged from 7.8 to 34.0 ppm; a peak concentration of 10.8 ppm was reached in muscle 90 to 120 minutes after exposure.

The reduction of malachite green to leucomalachite green and the persistence of the dye in this form were demonstrated in the 1960s. Werth and Boiteux (1968) reported the detection of leucomalachite green in liver, kidney, heart, lung, and muscle of rats 2 hours after an intravenous injection of malachite green and in Ehrlich's ascitic tumor cells 3 hours after intraperitoneal injection of malachite green. Evidence of the absorption of malachite green in fish was first reported by Poe and Wilson (1983), who found that frozen fillets of channel catfish treated with malachite green developed a marked green color over a period of weeks after slaughter. They deduced that malachite green was transformed to leucomalachite green upon absorption in fish tissue. Leucomalachite green was oxidized back to malachite green during freezer storage. This was confirmed by the observations of Bauer et al. (1988) of the rapid excretion of malachite green in trout, while leucomalachite green was stored in muscle tissue for a relatively long time with a half-life of about 40 days. In another study, Law (1994) demonstrated a rapid absorption of malachite green in fingerling trout exposed to 2 ppm malachite green for 1 hour. The amount of malachite green measured in whole tissue homogenates decreased with time, ranging from approximately 1 ppm 2 hours after treatment to 0.2 ppm 169 hours after treatment. However, the levels of leucomalachite green increased to 3.5 ppm 24 hours after treatment and remained steady

for the remainder of the 7-day study. Analysis of methylene chloride extracts of liver, muscle, and skin 73 hours or more after treatment showed the presence of leucomalachite green but little or no malachite green. Likewise, Plakas et al. (1996) measured leucomalachite green levels in the muscle and plasma of channel catfish after exposure to 0.8 ppm malachite green for 1 hour. In the plasma, malachite green levels were less than 0.03 ppm within 10 hours, while leucomalachite green residues were detected for up to 4 weeks. In the muscle, malachite green levels were found for up to 2 weeks and leucomalachite green persisted for 6 weeks. The calculated half-lives in catfish muscle were 2.8 and 10 days for malachite green and leucomalachite green, respectively.

More recently, Doerge *et al.* (1998a), using liquid chromatography/mass spectrometry, identified demethylated derivatives of leucomalachite green and an oxidation product of malachite green in malachite green-treated catfish. The presence of *N*-demethylated and *N*-oxide malachite green and leucomalachite green metabolites, including primary arylamines, was detected in the liver of rats fed 100 or 600 ppm malachite green or similar concentrations of leucomalachite green for 28 days (Culp *et al.*, 1999). This may indicate that these compounds are metabolized in a manner similar to carcinogenic aromatic amines.

Humans

No studies on the absorption, distribution, metabolism, or excretion of malachite green chloride or leucomalachite green in humans were found in a review of the literature.

Τοχιςιτή

Experimental Animals

A number of studies on the toxicity of malachite green reported in the early literature did not adequately identify the purity of the malachite green used or the counterion (e.g., malachite green chloride, malachite green oxalate) with which the dye was associated and should be reviewed with caution. Due to extensive use of malachite green in aquaculture, the majority of toxicity studies have been conducted with fish. Results from a number of these studies are summarized below. More extensive listings can be found in Nelson (1974), Bills *et al.* (1977), and Burchmore and Wilkinson (1993). Bills *et al.* (1977) determined the acute toxicity of malachite green chloride to fingerling fish and nontarget aquatic organisms. After 96 hours of exposure, the LC₅₀ values in fish ranged from 30.5 to 383 μ g/L, with bluegills being the most sensitive and Coho salmon being the most resistant. Asiatic clams tolerated more than 100 mg/L, with a 96-hour LC₅₀ value of 122 mg/L. The toxicity in all species increased with lengthening exposures. With a 3-hour or 6-hour treatment, the toxicity in some of the species was greater in warm water (17° or 22° C) than in cool water (7° or 12° C). Only channel catfish were more sensitive to increased water temperatures during 96 hours of exposure.

Biological effects, rather than mortality, have been the focus of many studies. Gerundo *et al.* (1991) treated rainbow trout with 1.6 ppm malachite green for 40 minutes once every 7 days for 7 weeks. After the third exposure, a fairly consistent pattern of increasing pathological changes was observed in most livers. This included sinusoidal congestion, focal coagulative necrosis, diffuse degenerative changes, and cytoplasmic vacuolation. Similar tissue changes have been reported in fish exposed to other toxins. At the ultrastructural level, mitochondrial damage was evident and was thought to be due to the dye's action as a respiratory enzyme poison. The gills generally demonstrated lesions and necrosis; the latter was more evident following longer periods of exposure.

Physiological changes in fish blood have been reported by a number of investigators. Grizzle (1977) continuously exposed fingerling channel catfish to 100 µg/L malachite green for up to 28 days and assayed blood samples at various times. Compared to the controls, a large increase in neutrophils was measured in exposed catfish 1 and 3 days after treatment and was thought to be indicative of an inflammatory response. Increases were also observed in erythrocyte counts and hemoglobin concentrations. The latter effect was attributed to impairment of gas exchange by the gills due to a thickening of the lamellar epithelium. In an earlier study, Glagoleva and Malikova (1968) found extensive leukopenia and slight erythropenia in Baltic salmon exposed to 1.33 mg/L malachite green for 20 minutes. After 6 days, the number of erythrocytes returned to normal levels, but the number of leukocytes remained low. Hlavek and Bulkley (1980) repeated the experiments and did not observe a difference in the number of leukocytes in exposed fish when compared to controls. Leukocyte counts in both groups declined during the 24-hour period following treatment and recovered within the next 4 days. These researchers concluded that the leukocyte changes were due to nonspecific vertebrate stress syndrome as opposed to toxicity from exposure to malachite green chloride. Other blood chemistry parameters, including potassium, glucose, sodium, calcium, magnesium, and chloride concentrations, were measured in Coho salmon 28 days after exposure to 100 μ g/L malachite green chloride (Bills and Hunn, 1976). An increase was found in potassium concentrations after exposure, while the other constituents remained unchanged.

The therapeutic use of malachite green is not restricted to freshwater species and has been extended to control fungal and epibiotic growth on eggs and larvae of cultured American lobsters. Fisher *et al.* (1976) noted that American lobster larvae exhibited decreased survival when treated with concentrations of malachite green greater than 8 ppm for 16 minutes every other day during their larval rearing period. Brief exposures to 20 ppm resulted in a delay in molting and a decrease in survival, with the majority of the dead animals showing the absence of one or more appendages.

In one of the first mammalian studies with malachite green, Lavender and Pullman (1964) infused malachite green into the renal arteries of dogs and found marked increases in the urinary excretion of water, sodium, potassium, chloride, calcium, and phosphate. The dye was localized primarily in the renal cortex, indicating proximal or distal tubular uptake. In addition, it appeared to cause a direct vasoconstriction of the renal arterioles.

In rabbit studies, Meyer and Jorgenson (1983) reported that nonpregnant New Zealand white rabbits were able to tolerate 13 consecutive daily gavage doses of 50 mg malachite green oxalate/kg body weight. Pregnant rabbits were also dosed with 5, 10, or 20 mg malachite green/kg body weight by gavage on days 6 through 18 of gestation and observed daily for external signs of toxicity. Feed consumption was reduced in treated animals and the average total body weight was consistently lower after 29 days, although there were no overt signs of toxicity. Females in the untreated group gained an average of 230 g. The animals given 5 mg/kg malachite green gained an average of 60 g, while those given 10 or 20 mg/kg lost 30 g and 60 g, respectively. The instillation of an aqueous solution of 8% malachite green oxalate into the eyes of rabbits resulted in marked edema, substantial discharge, and slight hyperemia of the conjunctiva (Clemmensen *et al.*, 1984). Treatment with fine crystals of malachite green oxalate caused total opacification and bright red and edematous conjunctivae that lasted for 2 weeks. Clemmensen *et al.* (1984) also treated the skin of guinea pigs and rats with 400 μ L of a 20% suspension of malachite green oxalate and found no visible erythema or edema.

In rodent studies, male and female Wistar rats were administered aqueous solutions of malachite green oxalate by gavage; the animals were observed over a 14-day period (Clemmensen et al., 1984). Acute effects included reduced motor activity on the first day and hyperemia and atonia of the intestinal walls where the dye had reached before the death of the animal. Survivors were free of symptoms after 2 days. The oral LD₅₀ was calculated to be 275 mg/kg body weight. These investigators also reported an LD_{50} of 50 mg/kg body weight for NMRI mice. The acute oral toxicity of malachite green has also been determined in female Sprague-Dawley rats. Meyer and Jorgenson (1983) administered 300, 450, 600, or 750 mg malachite green oxalate/kg body weight, presumably by gavage. The 24-hour LD₅₀ value for malachite green was determined to be 520 mg/kg. Effects observed included depression, prostration, emaciation, coma, and death.

In a 28-day study, Wistar rats were exposed to 0, 10, 100, or 1,000 ppm malachite green oxalate in feed (Clemmensen *et al.*, 1984). The animals exposed to 1,000 ppm showed significant decreases in feed consumption and weight gain and increased hyperactivity. In addition, females exposed to 1,000 ppm showed an increase in lymphocytes and decreases in neutrophils and packed cell volume. Males exposed to 1,000 ppm showed a significant increase in plasma urea.

Culp *et al.* (1998a,b; 1999) Fed male and female F344 rats and B6C3F₁ mice diets containing 0, 25, 100, 300, 600, or 1,200 ppm malachite green chloride for 28 days. Groups of male F344 rats and female B6C3F₁ mice were fed similar levels of leuco-malachite green (0, 290, 580, or 1,160 ppm) for 28 days. In the malachite green chloride study, male and female rats and female mice in the 1,200 ppm groups gained significantly less weight compared to the controls. In the leucomalachite green study,

male rats and female mice in the 580 and 1,160 ppm groups gained significantly less weight. Significant increases in gamma-glutamyltransferase activities were observed in the 600 and 1,200 ppm groups of female rats exposed to 1,200 ppm malachite green chloride. Blood hematology measurements in female rats exposed to 1,200 ppm malachite green chloride showed slight (<7%), but significant, decreases in erythrocyte count, hemoglobin, hematocrit, mean erythrocyte hemoglobin, and mean erythrocyte concentration. In male rats, slight (<3%), but significant, decreases in mean erythrocyte hemoglo-

fed malachite green chloride. Blood hematology measurements in female rats exposed to 1,200 ppm malachite green chloride showed slight (<7%), but significant, decreases in erythrocyte count, hemoglobin, hematocrit, mean erythrocyte hemoglobin, and mean erythrocyte concentration. In male rats, slight (<3%), but significant, decreases in mean erythrocyte hemoglobin occurred in the 300, 600, and 1,200 ppm groups. In male and female mice fed malachite green chloride, there were significant decreases in erythrocyte count, hematocrit values, and hemoglobin concentrations. In the leucomalachite green studies, 1,160 ppm male rats had significantly lower erythrocyte counts, hematocrit values, and hemoglobin concentra-tions compared to the control group. Microscopically, the incidences of hepatocyte cytoplasmic vacuolization were significantly increased in male and female rats exposed to 1,200 ppm malachite green chloride and in male rats exposed to 580 or 1,160 ppm leucomalachite green. The incidence of multifocal apoptosis in transitional epithelium of the urinary bladder was significantly increased in female mice exposed to 1,160 ppm leucomalachite green. Additional groups of rats were fed control diet and the highest doses of malachite green chloride (male and female rats) or leucomalachite green (male rats) for 4 or 21 days and blood was collected for determination of thyroid stimulating hormone, triiodothyronine, and thyroxine concentrations. There were significant decreases in thyroxine concentrations and significant increases in thyroid stimulating hormone concentrations in the male rats fed 1,160 ppm leucomalachite green at both time points.

Humans

Malachite green has been reported to be injurious to the human eye (Grant, 1974). In addition, six of 11 eczema patients were found to be sensitized to patch tests using a 2% aqueous solution of malachite green (Bielicky and Novák, 1969). No toxicity studies or reports of health effects related to exposure to leucomalachite green in humans were found in the literature.

Reproductive

AND DEVELOPMENTAL TOXICITY

Experimental Animals

Meyer and Jorgenson (1983) observed significant teratologic effects in New Zealand white rabbits administered plantation losses, primarily due to early resorption of fetuses and decreases in the number of living fetuses. The body weights of the progeny were less than those in the controls, with the differences being significant in the 5 and 20 mg/kg groups. Developmental anomalies were observed in all treated groups. Skeletal deviations were the most common abnormality and included incomplete ossification of vertebrae and phalanges and malformed skulls. Enlargement of the liver, heart, and abdominal cavity was also observed. The abnormalities did not increase as a function of dose, with 18.5%, 38.0%, 33.9%, and 47.0% of the progeny showing deviations in the 0, 5, 10, and 20 mg treatment groups, respectively. Thalidomide (150 mg/kg body weight), which was used as a positive control, caused similar types of changes in 94% of the progeny.

Damage can also occur to rainbow trout eggs upon exposure to malachite green. Using treatment regimens similar to those used in fisheries, Meyer and Jorgenson (1983) reported a delay in hatching, reduction in the average size of fry, and a significant increase in the percentage of fry with deformities. The abnormalities included head and jaw deformities, curvatures of the spine, missing fins, and a bobtailed condition. On the other hand, the percentage of eggs that hatched was increased in the treated groups compared to the untreated groups.

Humans

No studies of reproductive or developmental effects of malachite green chloride or leucomalachite green in humans were found in a review of the literature.

CARCINOGENICITY

Experimental Animals

The data relating to the carcinogenicity of malachite green are extremely limited. In a study by Fernandes *et al.* (1991), malachite green enhanced the formation of preneoplastic hepatic lesions in rats initiated with diethylnitrosamine. There is also suggestive evidence of carcinogenicity based on comparisons to gentian violet (reviewed in Culp and Beland, 1996). Gentian violet is a mixture of crystal violet (96%) and methyl violet. Crystal violet differs from malachite green only by the addition of a trimethylamine group. In a 2-year study, B6C3F₁ mice were administered 0, 100, 300, or 600 ppm

gentian violet in the diet (Littlefield et al., 1985). Doserelated lesions were observed in the liver and harderian gland of both sexes. A dose-related occurrence of reticulum cell sarcoma was also noted in the vagina, uterus, ovaries, and bladder of female mice. A 2-year feed study was also conducted with male and female Fisher 344 rats (Littlefield, 1988). The parents of these rats were exposed to 0, 100, 300, or 600 ppm gentian violet for at least 80 days, including during mating, and the offspring were continued on the same doses for 24 months. A treatment-related increase of follicular cell adenocarcinomas of the thyroid gland was observed in females, resulting in incidences of 1%, 1%, 5%, and 8% after exposure to 0, 100, 300, or 600 ppm gentian violet for 24 months; in the males, the incidences were 1%, 5%, 3%, and 6% in the four dose groups. Adenoma and adenocarcinoma of the clitoral gland were also observed grossly and confirmed microscopically after 24 months, at incidences of 12%, 6%, 18%, and 33% in the 0, 100, 300, and 600 ppm groups.

No data were found in the literature on the carcinogenicity of leucomalachite green.

Humans

No epidemiology studies of malachite green chloride or leucomalachite green have been reported.

GENETIC TOXICITY, DNA ADDUCT FORMATION, AND MUTATIONAL ANALYSES

Published data provide little evidence for mutagenicity of malachite green or the metabolite leucomalachite green. Clemmensen et al. (1984) reported that malachite green oxalate was mutagenic in Salmonella typhimurium strain TA98 in the presence of S9 activation enzymes, but they observed no mutagenicity in TA100, TA1535, or TA1537, with or without S9. Another investigation of malachite green-induced mutagenicity in Salmonella found negative results in TA98, TA100, and TA1537, but these investigations were conducted only in the absence of S9 (Ferguson and Baguley, 1988). Fessard et al. (1999) reported an absence of mutagenicity for malachite green and leucomalachite green tested in concentrations up to 10 or 2,000 µg/plate, respectively, with and without S9 in Salmonella strains TA97a, TA98, TA100, and TA102. Assessment of mutagenicity of malachite

green or leucomalachite green in the Chinese hamster ovary (CHO)/HGRT mammalian cell mutagenicity assay yielded negative results, with and without S9 activation (Fessard *et al.*, 1999)

An earlier study by Wolfe (1977) reported that malachite green inhibited DNA replication processes in *Escherichia coli* that were catalyzed by polymerase I, and more recently, Panandiker *et al.* (1994) reported induction of DNA single-strand breaks in Syrian hamster embryo cells exposed *in vitro* to 1 μ g/mL malachite green.

Au and Hsu (1979) found no evidence of induced chromosomal aberrations in cultured CHO cells incubated for 5 hours with 20 µM malachite green. Furthermore, no increase in micronucleated erythrocytes was observed in bone marrow of mice administered a single dose of 37.5 mg/kg malachite green oxalate by gavage; the frequency of micronucleated erythrocytes was measured 24, 42, or 66 hours posttreatment (Clemmensen et al., 1984). The testing protocol used in this in vivo assay is not the currently accepted standard; nonetheless, the results of this investigation were clearly negative. Finally, in an abstract, negative results were reported in a mammalian spot test (in vivo mammalian mutation assay) conducted in mice treated with 10 to 40 mg/kg malachite green by gavage on days 8, 9, and 10 of pregnancy (Jensen, 1984); no increase in the number of recessive coat color spots was observed in the offspring of treated females.

In more recent studies (NTP, 2004), malachite green chloride was tested at concentrations of 0.1 to 10 µg/plate and was not mutagenic in any of several strains of Salmonella typhimurium, with or without S9 metabolic activation. Negative results for malachite green chloride were also obtained in two in vivo micronucleus tests; one assessed the induction of micronuclei in male rat bone marrow erythrocytes after three intraperitoneal injections of malachite green chloride and the second determined the level of micronuclei in circulating erythrocytes of male and female B6C3F, mice following 28-day exposures to malachite green chloride in feed. A weak increase in the frequency of micronucleated normochromatic erythrocytes in peripheral blood was observed in female mice exposed to leucomalachite green in feed for 28 days. Bone marrow was also examined for the induction of micronuclei in female Big Blue rats after 4, 16, and 32 weeks of

exposure to 0, 9, 27, 91, 272, or 543 ppm leucomalachite green in the feed (Manjanatha *et al.*, 2004). No significant increase in the frequency of micronuclei was observed for any of the doses or time points assayed.

In a 28-day feeding study, male F344 rats and female B6C3F₁ mice were fed 0, 100, or 600 ppm malachite green or similar doses of leucomalachite green (0, 96, or 580 ppm; Culp et al., 1999). ³²P-Postlabeling analyses of liver DNA indicated a single adduct or co-eluting adducts with both compounds, with the adduct levels increasing significantly (P<0.05) as a function of the dose. With the rats, the hepatic DNA adduct levels did not differ between animals administered malachite green or leucomalachite green. In the mice, however, the highest dose of malachite green (600 ppm) gave a significantly (P<0.001) higher adduct level than observed with a similar dose (580 ppm) of leucomalachite green. Likewise, ³²P-postlabeling analyses of liver DNA from female Big Blue rats fed 0, 9, 27, 91, 272, or 543 ppm leucomalachite green for 4 weeks resulted in a doserelated increase in DNA adduct levels (Culp et al., 2002; Manjanatha et al., 2004). In these studies, analysis of the livers of female Big Blue rats for lacI mutations 4, 16, and 32 weeks after exposure revealed that 21% (17/80) were clonal in origin and that the majority (55/63) of the independent mutations were basepair substitutions involving GC to AT transitions similar to those found for control rats. These data suggest that leucomalachite green is not a mutagen in the livers of female rats and that the DNA adduct formed in the livers of rats fed leucomalachite green does not have a mutagenic consequence.

STUDY RATIONALE

The FDA's Center for Veterinary Medicine nominated malachite green for study because of the potential for occupational and consumer exposure, its structural similarity to gentian violet, and a lack of adequate carcinogenicity data. To assist in selecting doses for the 2-year bioassay, a 28-day range-finding study was conducted in which male and female $B6C3F_1$ mice and male and female F344 rats were fed malachite green chloride (0, 25, 100, 300, 600, or 1,200 ppm) in feed. Additional

female $B6C3F_1$ mice and male F344 rats were fed leucomalachite green (0, 290, 580, or 1,160 ppm) because it is the major persistent residue of malachite green in edible tissues.

In the range-finding study, the highest doses of malachite green chloride and leucomalachite green caused body weight reductions of approximately 10% to 20% in rats (Culp et al., 1998a,b; 1999); thus, these doses were deemed unacceptable for the 2-year bioassay. Liver-tobody weight ratios were significantly elevated in female rats administered 300 ppm or greater malachite green chloride and in male rats fed 600 ppm or greater. Female rats fed malachite green chloride also had significant alterations in T₃ and T₄ levels and in serum gammaglutamyltransferase, changes that did not occur in male rats fed malachite green. Since limitations were placed on the number of groups that could be included in the study and the data indicated that female rats were more sensitive than male rats to the toxic effects of malachite green chloride, the 2-year bioassay was restricted to female rats, with doses of 100, 300, and 600 ppm. A primary objective of the study was to compare the carcinogenic responses of malachite green chloride and leucomalachite green; thus, equimolar doses were administered in the 2-year bioassay. For rats, the 28-day range-finding study with leucomalachite green was conducted using only males; however, because females appeared to be more susceptible than males to the toxicities of malachite green chloride, both sexes were included in the 2-year bioassay with leucomalachite green. Female mice also appeared to be more sensitive than male mice to malachite green chloride, as indicated by changes in body weight and blood chemistry data. The effects were significantly altered in the 300, 600, and 1,200 ppm groups. Female mice fed leucomalachite green exhibited decreased body weight changes at 580 ppm and above and increased relative liver weight and apoptosis of the bladder at 1,160 ppm. As the number of groups in the study were limited and NTP bioassays have shown female mice to be more predictive of toxicity, the 2-year bioassay in mice was limited to female mice. After reviewing the data, the Toxicology Study Selection and Review Committee, which helped design and monitor the studies, recommended doses of 100, 225, and 450 ppm malachite green chloride and equimolar doses of leucomalachite green.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

PROCUREMENT

AND CHARACTERIZATION

Malachite green chloride (lot CSL-98-808-08-04) and leucomalachite green (lot CSL-97-718-77-10) were obtained from Chemsyn Science Laboratories (Lenexa, KS). Identity, purity, and stability analyses were conducted by the study laboratory (Appendix E). Reports on analyses performed in support of the malachite green chloride studies are on file at the National Center for Toxicological Research (NCTR).

Malachite Green Chloride

Lot CSL-98-808-08-04, a dark solid, was identified as malachite green chloride by ¹H- and ¹³C-nuclear magnetic resonance (NMR) spectroscopy, direct exposure probe electron impact mass spectrometry (DEP/EI/MS), and high-performance liquid chromatography (HPLC). The purity of malachite green chloride was determined by the study laboratory using HPLC, gas chromatography (GC), and inductively coupled plasma (ICP) spectrometry. HPLC using a post column derivatization with lead dioxide to oxidize leuco-compounds to compounds with spectra similar to that of malachite green chloride, indicated a purity of approximately 88%. Impurities were identified as leucomalachite green (7.5%), *N*-desmethyl malachite green (3.8%), and *N*-desmethyl leucomalachite green (0.5%). GC indicated that malachite green chloride contained 1.4% methanol by weight. ICP spectrometry indicated the presence of less than 4 ppm lead. The overall purity was determined to be approximately 87%.

The bulk chemical was stored in the original container at -70° C. Stability was monitored during the studies with HPLC. Analysis indicated a 3.1% degradation of the compound during the course of the 2-year studies.

Leucomalachite Green

Lot CSL-97-718-77-10, a faint green solid, was identified as leucomalachite green by the supplier using ¹H-NMR and infrared spectroscopy and by the study laboratory using DEP/EI/MS and ¹H- and ¹³C-NMR. The purity of leucomalachite green was determined by elemental and heavy metal analysis (performed by Galbraith Laboratories, Inc., Knoxville, TN), HPLC performed by the chemical supplier and the study laboratory, and by the study laboratory using ¹H- and ¹³C-NMR. The overall purity was approximately 99%.

The bulk chemical was stored in the original container at -70° C. Stability was monitored during the studies with HPLC. Analysis indicated a 0.6% degradation of the compound during the course of the 2-year studies. The impurity was identified as malachite green.

PREPARATION AND ANALYSIS OF DOSE FORMULATIONS

For malachite green chloride, the dose formulations were prepared approximately every 2 months by dissolving the chemical in water and then mixing it with feed (Table E2). The solution was blended with feed in a Patterson-Kelly V-shell blender using an intensifier bar and a heater under a vacuum of at least 15 mm mercury for approximately 20 minutes. For leucomalachite green, dose formulations were prepared approximately every 2 months by mixing the chemical with feed (Table E2). A premix was prepared by hand, then blended with additional feed in a Patterson-Kelly V-shell blender using an intensifier bar for approximately 20 minutes. Dose formulations were stored in stainless steel feed cans at $4^{\circ} \pm 2^{\circ}$ C for up to 92 days (malachite green chloride) or 95 days (leucomalachite green).

For malachite green chloride, a homogeneity study of a 100 ppm dose formulation and a stability study of a 25 ppm dose formulation were performed by the study laboratory using HPLC. Homogeneity was confirmed, and stability was confirmed for at least 10 days for dose formulations stored at room temperature exposed to light and for at least 92 days for formulations stored at up to 6° C protected from light. For leucomalachite green, homogeneity studies of 96 and 91 ppm dose formulations were performed by the study laboratory using HPLC. Stability studies of a 96 ppm dose formulation were also performed by the study laboratory with HPLC. Homogeneity was confirmed, and stability was confirmed for at least 32 days for dose formulations stored

at room temperature exposed to light and for at least 95 days for formulations stored at up to 6° C protected from light.

For both chemicals, periodic analyses of the dose formulations were conducted by the study laboratory using HPLC. The dose formulations were analyzed approximately every 7 weeks (Tables E3 and E4). Of the malachite green chloride dose formulations analyzed and used, 96% (65/68) of the dose formulations for rats and 97% (33/34) of the dose formulations for mice were within 10% of the target concentrations. All of the leucomalachite green dose formulations analyzed and used for rats and mice were within 10% of the target concentrations.

2-YEAR STUDIES

Study Design

Groups of 48 female mice were fed diets containing 0, 100, 225, or 450 ppm malachite green chloride or 0, 91, 204, or 408 ppm leucomalachite green for 104 weeks. Groups of 48 female rats were fed diets containing 0, 100, 300, or 600 ppm malachite green chloride for 104 weeks. Groups of 48 male and 48 female rats were fed diets containing 0, 91, 272, or 543 ppm leucomalachite green for 104 weeks.

Source and Specification of Animals

Male and female F344/N Nctr BR rats and female B6C3F₁/Nctr BR (C57BL/6N × C3H/HeN MTV⁻) mice were obtained from the National Center for Toxicological Research (NCTR) breeding colony for use in the 2-year studies. Rats and mice were acclimated in the study rooms for 2 weeks and were approximately 6 weeks old at the beginning of the studies. The health of the animals was monitored during the studies according to the protocols of the Study Laboratory's Sentinel Animal Program (Appendix H).

Animal Maintenance

Rats were housed two per cage and mice were housed four per cage. Feed and water were available *ad libitum* until the day before sacrifice when feed was withheld overnight. Feed consumption was measured weekly for the first 12 weeks and approximately every 4 weeks thereafter. Cages were changed once a week and rotated every 3 weeks. Further details of animal maintenance are given in Table 1. Information on food composition and contaminants is provided in Appendix G.

Clinical Examinations and Pathology

All animals were observed twice daily and clinical findings were recorded weekly. Body weights were recorded initially, weekly for the first 12 weeks, approximately every 4 weeks until week 92, weekly for the last 12 weeks, and at the end of the studies.

Complete necropsies and microscopic evaluations were performed on all rats and mice. The kidneys and liver of rats and mice and the thyroid gland of rats were weighed. All organs and tissues were examined for grossly visible lesions, and all major tissues were fixed and preserved in 10% neutral buffered formalin, processed and trimmed, embedded in Tissue Prep II, sectioned to a thickness of approximately 5 μ m, and stained with hematoxylin and eosin for microscopic examination. Tissues examined microscopically are listed in Table 1.

Microscopic evaluations were completed by the study laboratory pathologist and the pathology data for the malachite green chloride studies were entered into the NTP's Toxicology Data Management System (TDMS); the pathology data for the leucomalachite green studies were entered into the study laboratory's Micropath Data Management System, extracted and transferred to the TDMS. The slides, paraffin blocks, and residual wet tissues were sent to the study laboratory's Block and Slide Laboratory for inventory, slide/block match, and wet tissue audit. The slides, individual animal data records, and pathology tables were evaluated by an independent quality assessment group. The individual animal records and tables were compared for accuracy, the slide and tissue counts were verified, and the histotechnique was evaluated. A quality assessment pathologist evaluated slides from all tumors and all potential target organs, which included the liver of rats and mice, the thyroid gland of rats, the urinary bladder of mice, the lungs of rats exposed to leucomalachite green, and the forestomach of mice exposed to leucomalachite green.

Differences of opinion were reconciled between the study and quality assessment pathologists. The quality assessment pathologist served as chairperson of the Pathology Working Group (PWG) and presented histopathology slides containing the diagnoses made by the laboratory and quality assessment pathologists. Representative histopathology slides containing

examples of lesions related to chemical administration, examples of disagreements in diagnoses between the laboratory and quality assessment pathologists, or lesions of general interest were presented by the chairperson to the PWG for review. The PWG consisted of the quality assessment pathologist, the study pathologists, and other pathologists experienced in rodent toxicologic pathology. This group examined the tissues without any knowledge of dose groups or previously rendered diagnoses. When the PWG consensus differed from the opinion of the laboratory pathologist, the diagnosis was changed. Final diagnoses for reviewed lesions represent a consensus between the laboratory pathologist, reviewing pathologist(s), and the PWG. Details of these review procedures have been described, in part, by Maronpot and Boorman (1982) and Boorman *et al.* (1985). For subsequent analyses of the pathology data, the decision of whether to evaluate the diagnosed lesions for each tissue type separately or combined was generally based on the guidelines of McConnell *et al.* (1986).

Malachite Green Chloride	Leucomalachite Green
Study Laboratory National Center for Toxicological Research (Jefferson, AR)	Same as malachite green chloride study.
Strain and Species F344/N Nctr BR rats B6C3F ₁ /F344/Nctr BR (C57BL/6N × C3H/HeN MTV ⁻) mice	Same as malachite green chloride study
Animal Source National Center for Toxicological Research (Jefferson, AR)	Same as malachite green chloride study.
Acclimation Time 2 weeks	Same as malachite green chloride study.
Average Age When Studies Began 6 weeks	Same as malachite green chloride study.
Dates of First Exposure April 13-May 11, 1999	Rats: November 26-December 24, 1998 Mice: October 19-November 16, 1998
Duration of Exposure 104 weeks	Same as malachite green chloride study.
Dates of Last ExposureRats:April 9-May 7, 2001Mice:April 8-May 6, 2001	Rats: November 19-December 18, 2000 Mice: October 15-November 12, 2000
Necropsy Dates Rats: April 10-May 8, 2001 Mice: April 9-May 7, 2001	Rats: November 20-December 19, 2000 Mice: October 16-November 13, 2000
Average Age at Necropsy 109 weeks	Same as malachite green chloride study.
Size of Study Groups 48 females	Rats: 48 males and 48 females Mice: 48 females
Method of Distribution Animals were distributed randomly into groups of approximately equal initial mean body weights.	Same as malachite green chloride study.
Animals per Cage Rats: 2 Mice: 4	Same as malachite green chloride study.
Method of Animal Identification Ear clip	Ear clip

TABLE 1 Experimental Design and Materials and Methods in the 2-Year Feed Studies of Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green

(rats).

Malachite Green Chloride Leucomalachite Green			
Diet NIH-31 open formula meal pellets were autoclaved then ground to powder (Purina Mills, Richmond, IN), available <i>ad libitum</i> until the day before sacrifice	Same as malachite green chloride study.		
Water Millipore-filtered water (Jefferson municipal supply) via 480 mL water bottles, available <i>ad libitum</i>	Same as malachite green chloride study.		
Cages Polycarbonate cages (Allentown Caging Equipment Co., Allentown, NJ), changed weekly and rotated every 3 weeks	Same as malachite green chloride study.		
Bedding Hardwood chips (Northeastern Products, Inc., Warrensburg, NY), changed weekly	Same as malachite green chloride study.		
Cage Bonnets Microisolator tops (Lab Products, Inc., Maywood, NJ)	Same as malachite green chloride study.		
Racks Metal animal cage racks (Allentown Caging Equipment Co., Allentown, NJ), changed weekly	Same as malachite green chloride study.		
Animal Room Environment Average temperature: Rats: 73.3° F Mice: 72.9° F Average relative humidity: Rats 49.4% Mice: 51.5% Room fluorescent light: 12 hours/day Room air changes: at least 10/hour Exposure Concentrations Rats: 0, 100, 300, or 600 ppm in feed, available <i>ad libitum</i> Mice: 0, 100, 225, or 450 ppm in feed, available <i>ad libitum</i> Type and Frequency of Observation	Average temperature: Rats: 73.8° F Mice: 73.5° F Average relative humidity: Rats 50.9% Mice: 50.8% Room fluorescent light: 12 hours/day Room air changes: at least 10/hour Rats: 0, 91, 272, or 543 ppm in feed, available <i>ad libitum</i> Mice: 0, 91, 204, or 408 ppm in feed, available <i>ad libitum</i>		
Observed twice daily and clinical findings recorded weekly. Animals were weighed initially, weekly for the first 12 weeks, approximately every 4 weeks until week 92, weekly for the last 12 weeks, and at the end of the studies. Feed consumption was recorded weekly for the first 12 weeks and approximately every 4 weeks thereafter.	Same as malachite green chloride study		
Method of Sacrifice Carbon dioxide asphyxiation	Same as malachite green chloride study		
Necropsy Necropsies were performed on all rats and mice. Organs weighed were the kidneys and liver (rats and mice) and the thyroid gland	Same as malachite green chloride study		

TABLE 1Experimental Design and Materials and Methods in the 2-Year Feed Studiesof Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green

TABLE 1 Experimental Design and Materials and Methods in the 2-Year Feed Studies of Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green

Malachite Green Chloride	Leucomalachite Green
Histopathology	
Complete histopathology was performed on all rats and mice. In addition to gross lesions and tissue masses, the following tissues were examined: adrenal gland, bone marrow (femur, sternum), brain (cerebellum, cerebrum, stem), clitoral gland, esophagus, eye, gallbladder (mice), harderian gland, heart with aorta, large intestine (cecum, colon, rectum), small intestine (duodenum, jejunum, ileum), kidney, liver, lung, lymph nodes (mandibular and mesenteric), mammary gland, muscle (thigh), nerve (sciatic), nose, ovaries, pancreas, parathyroid gland, pituitary gland, salivary gland, skin, spinal cord (thoracic), spleen, stomach (forestomach and glandular), thymus, thyroid gland, tongue, trachea, urinary bladder, uterus, vagina, and Zymbal's gland.	Same as malachite green chloride study. In addition, the coagulating gland, epididymis, preputial gland, prostate gland, seminal vesicle, and testes were examined in male rats.

STATISTICAL METHODS

Survival Analyses

The probability of survival was estimated by the product-limited procedure of Kaplan and Meier (1958) and is presented in the form of graphs. Animals found dead of other than natural causes or removed from the study for reasons other than morbidity were censored from the survival analyses; animals dying from natural causes were not censored. Statistical analyses for possible dose-related effects on survival used Cox's (1972) and Tarone's (1975) life table test to identify doserelated trends. All P values for the survival analyses are two sided.

Calculation of Incidence

The incidences of neoplasms or nonneoplastic lesions are presented in Tables A1, A5, B1, B5, C1, and C5 as the numbers of animals bearing such lesions at a specific anatomic site and the numbers of animals with that site examined microscopically. For calculation of statistical significance, the incidences of most neoplasms (Tables A3, B3, and C3) and all nonneoplastic lesions are given as the numbers of animals affected at each site examined microscopically. However, when macroscopic examination was required to detect neoplasms in certain tissues (e.g., harderian gland, intestine, mammary gland, and skin) before microscopic evaluation, or

when neoplasms had multiple potential sites of occurrence (e.g., leukemia or lymphoma), the denominators consist of the number of animals on which a necropsy was performed. Tables A3, B3, and C3 also give the survival-adjusted neoplasm rate for each group and each site-specific neoplasm. This survival-adjusted rate (based on the Poly-3 method described below) accounts for differential mortality by assigning a reduced risk of neoplasm, proportional to the third power of the fraction of time on study, to animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice.

Analysis of Neoplasm

and Nonneoplastic Lesion Incidences

The Poly-k test (Bailer and Portier, 1988; Portier and Bailer, 1989; Piegorsch and Bailer, 1997) was used to assess neoplasm and nonneoplastic lesion prevalence. This test is a survival-adjusted quantal-response procedure that modifies the Cochran-Armitage linear trend test to take survival differences into account. More specifically, this method modifies the denominator in the quantal estimate of lesion incidence to approximate more closely the total number of animal years at risk. For analysis of a given site, each animal is assigned a risk weight. This value is one if the animal had a lesion at that site or if it survived until terminal sacrifice; if the animal died prior to terminal sacrifice and did not have a lesion at that site, its risk weight is the fraction of the entire study time that it survived, raised to the kth power.

This method yields a lesion prevalence rate that depends only upon the choice of a shape parameter for a Weibull hazard function describing cumulative lesion incidence over time (Bailer and Portier, 1988). A value of k=3 was used in the analysis of site-specific lesions. This value was recommended by Bailer and Portier (1988) following an evaluation of neoplasm onset time distributions for a variety of site-specific neoplasms in control F344 rats and B6C3F, mice (Portier et al., 1986). Bailer and Portier (1988) showed that the Poly-3 test gave valid results if the true value of k was anywhere in the range from 1 to 5. A further advantage of the Poly-3 method is that it does not require lesion lethality assumptions. Variation introduced by the use of risk weights, which reflect differential mortality, was accommodated by adjusting the variance of the Poly-3 statistic as recommended by Bieler and Williams (1993).

Tests of significance included pairwise comparisons of each exposed group with controls and a test for an overall exposure-related trend. Continuity-corrected Poly-3 tests were used in the analysis of lesion incidence, and reported P values are one sided. The significance of lower incidences or decreasing trends in lesions is represented as 1-P with the letter N added (e.g., P=0.99 is presented as P=0.01N).

Analysis of Continuous Variables

For both body weights and food consumption, the mixed models approach to repeated measures ANOVA was used. Testing for linear and quadratic dose trends was conducted at each time interval. Organ weights, terminal body weights, and the ratios of organ weight to terminal body weight for terminally sacrificed animals were analyzed using ANOVA procedures. Terminal body weights were also used as a covariant in an ANA-COVA procedure. For each end point analyzed, Dunnett's two-sided test (Dunnett, 1955) was used to compare the control group mean to each treatment group mean, either overall or at each point of time, whichever was appropriate.

Historical Control Data

The concurrent control group represents the most valid comparison to the treated groups and is the only control group analyzed statistically in NTP bioassays. However, historical control data are often helpful in interpreting potential treatment-related effects, particularly for uncommon or rare neoplasm types. For meaningful comparisons, the conditions for studies in the historical database must be generally similar. The historical database for these studies included studies conducted by the NCTR using dietary or drinking water exposure.

QUALITY ASSURANCE METHODS

The studies were conducted in compliance with Food and Drug Administration Good Laboratory Practice Regulations (21 CFR, Part 58). The Quality Assurance Unit of the NCTR performed audits and inspections of protocols, procedures, data, and reports throughout the course of the studies. Separate audits covering completeness and accuracy of the pathology data, pathology specimens, final pathology tables, and a draft of this NTP Technical Report were conducted. Audit procedures and findings are presented in the reports and are on file at the NCTR. The audit findings were reviewed and assessed by NCTR staff, and all comments were resolved or otherwise addressed during the preparation of this Technical Report.

RESULTS

Rats 2-Year Studies

Survival

Malachite Green Chloride

Estimates of 2-year survival probabilities for female rats exposed to malachite green chloride are shown in Table 2 and in the Kaplan-Meier survival curves (Figure 1). Survival of all exposed groups was similar to that of the control group.

Leucomalachite Green

Estimates of 2-year survival probabilities for male and female rats exposed to leucomalachite green are shown in Table 3 and in the Kaplan-Meier survival curves (Figure 2). Survival of males in the 272 ppm group was greater than that of the control group; survival of all other exposed groups of males and all exposed groups of females was similar to that of the control group.

TABLE 2 Survival of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

	0 ppm	100 ppm	300 ppm	600 ppm
Animals initially in study	48	48	48	48
Moribund	18	22	15	17
Natural deaths	1	3	1	6
Animals surviving to study termination	29	23	32	25
Percent probability of survival at end of study ^a	60	48	67	52
Mean survival (days) ^b	675	665	700	647
Survival analysis ^c	P=0.739N	P=0.252	P=0.399N	P=0.369

^a Kaplan-Meier determinations

^b Mean of all deaths (uncensored, censored, and terminal sacrifice)

The result of the life table trend test (Tarone, 1975) is in the control column, and the results of the life table pairwise comparisons (Cox, 1972) with the controls are in the exposed group columns. A negative trend or lower mortality in an exposed group is indicated by **N**.



Kaplan-Meier Survival Curves for Female Rats Exposed to Malachite Green Chloride in Feed for 2 Years
	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Male				
Animals initially in study	48	48	48	48
Missexed ^a	0	1	0	1
Moribund	20	12	11	10
Natural deaths	5	6	3	7
Animals surviving to study termination	23	29	34	30
Percent probability of survival at end of study ^b	48	62	71	64
Mean survival (days) ^c	683	692	690	695
Survival analysis ^d	P=0.163	P=0.185N	P=0.037N	P=0.133N
Female				
Animals initially in study	48	48	48	48
Moribund	12	11	12	11
Natural deaths	3	1	1	4
Animals surviving to study termination	33	36	35	33
Percent probability of survival at end of study	69	75	73	69
Mean survival (days)	698	697	690	689
Survival analysis	P=0.749N	P=0.462N	P=0.646N	P=0.946

TABLE 3 Survival of Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

а Censored from survival analyses Kaplan-Meier determinations

b с

Mean of all deaths (uncensored, censored, and terminal sacrifice) d

The result of the life table trend test (Tarone, 1975) is in the control column, and the results of the life table pairwise comparisons (Cox, 1972) with the controls are in the exposed group columns. A negative trend or lower mortality in an exposed group is indicated by N.



FIGURE 2 Kaplan-Meier Survival Curves for Male and Female Rats Exposed to Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 2 Years

Body Weights, Feed and Compound Consumption, and Clinical Findings Malachite Green Chloride

Mean body weights of female rats exposed to 300 or 600 ppm malachite green chloride were generally less than those of the controls during most of the study (Figure 3 and Table 4). Feed consumption by exposed rats was generally similar to that by controls throughout the study (Table F1). Dietary concentrations of 100, 300, or 600 ppm resulted in average daily doses of approximately 7, 21, or 43 mg malachite green chloride/kg body weight. No clinical findings were attributed to malachite green chloride exposure.

Leucomalachite Green

Mean body weights of 543 ppm males and females and 272 ppm females were less than those of the controls

throughout the study (Figure 4; Tables 5 and 6). Mean body weights of 272 ppm males and 91 ppm females were less than those of the controls during year 2 of the study (Figure 4; Tables 5 and 6). Feed consumption by males and females exposed to 543 ppm leucomalachite green was intermittently less than that by the controls throughout the study; feed consumption by 272 ppm females was intermittently less than that by controls during year 2 of the study (Tables F2 and F3). Dietary concentrations of 91, 272, or 543 ppm resulted in average daily doses of approximately 5, 15, or 30 mg leucomalachite green/kg body weight to males and 6, 17, or 35 mg/kg body weight to females. No clinical findings were attributed to leucomalachite green exposure.



FIGURE 3 Growth Curves for Female Rats Exposed to Malachite Green Chloride in Feed for 2 Years

Mean Body Weights and Survival of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

Weeks	0 1	opm		100 ppm			300 ppm			600 ppm	
on	Av. Wt.	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of
Study	(g)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors
1	105	48	105	100	48	103	98	48	103	98	48
2	123	48	122	99	48	121	98	48	121	98	48
3	138	48	137	99	48	135	98	48	135	98	48
4	149	48	148	99	48	144	97	48	145	97	48
5	157	48	154	99	48	152	97	48	152	97	48
6	163	48	163	100	48	159	97	48	158	97	48
7	170	48	170	100	48	165	97	48	163	96	48
8	175	48	175	100	48	170	97	48	168	96	48
9	180	48	179	100	48	175	97	48	172	96	48
10	184	48	184	100	48	179	97	48	176	95	48
11	189	48	188	100	48	183	97	48	179	95	48
12	193	48	192	99	48	187	97	48	182	94	48
16	206	48	203	98	48	196	95	48	191	92	47
20	217	48	211	97	48	203	94	48	199	92	47
24	224	48	219	98	48	213	95	48	205	91	47
28	230	48	225	98	48	218	95	48	211	92	47
32	233	48	233	100	48	225	96	48	216	92	47
36	241	48	240	99	48	230	95	48	222	92	47
40	249	48	248	100	48	237	95	48	226	91	47
44	261	48	258	99	48	244	94	48	231	89	47
48	272	48	269	99	48	250	92	48	238	87	46
52	282	48	277	98	48	260	92	48	244	86	46
56	292	48	284	97	48	267	91	48	251	86	45
60	305	47	292	96	48	276	91	48	259	85	45
64	315	46	302	96	47	283	90	48	266	84	44
68	320	46	310	97	47	288	90	48	276	86	43
72	325	46	315	97	45	295	91	47	279	86	43
76	330	44	317	96	44	301	91	46	281	85	42
80	335	41	326	97	41	303	90	46	281	84	41
84	337	41	322	95	39	301	89	46	288	85	38
88	335	39	328	98	33	302	90	45	291	87	36
92	340	34	326	96	31	298	88	42	295	87	31
96	343	32	327	95	30	297	86	38	298	87	29
100	335	32	322	96	29	298	89	36	295	88	25
103	332	30	326	98	24	300	90	32	293	88	25
Mean for	weeks										
1-13	160		160	100		156	97		155	96	
14-52	242		238	99		228	94		218	90	
53-103	325		313	96		293	90		279	86	





FIGURE 4 Growth Curves for Male and Female Rats Exposed to Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 2 Years

Mean Body Weights and Survival of Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

Weeks 0 ppm		opm		91 ppm			272 ppm			543 ppm		
on	Av. Wt.	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of	
Study	(g)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors	
1	131	48	127	97	47	129	99	48	126	96	47	
2	162	48	153	95	47	156	97	48	152	94	47	
3	190	48	182	96	47	186	97	48	180	95	47	
4	214	48	208	97	47	211	98	48	205	96	47	
5	235	48	228	97	47	231	98	48	223	95	47	
6	253	48	246	97	47	248	98	48	241	95	47	
7	268	48	260	97	47	261	98	48	254	95	47	
8	282	48	275	97	47	273	97	48	267	94	47	
9	296	48	287	97	47	287	97	48	280	95	47	
10	305	48	298	98	47	297	97	48	288	94	47	
11	316	48	309	98	47	307	97	48	299	95	47	
12	343	48	333	97	47	312	91	48	316	92	47	
16	362	48	351	97	47	348	96	48	339	94	47	
20	386	48	376	97	47	371	96	48	360	93	47	
24	408	48	400	98	47	392	96	48	378	93	47	
28	423	48	413	97	47	405	96	48	389	92	47	
32	433	48	425	98	47	417	96	48	397	92	47	
36	440	48	436	99	47	422	96	48	404	92	47	
40	452	48	446	99	47	432	96	48	412	91	47	
44	458	48	446	97	47	439	96	48	417	91	47	
48	462	48	454	98	47	443	96	48	422	91	47	
52	467	48	456	98	47	449	96	48	424	91	47	
56	476	48	462	97	47	452	95	48	432	91	47	
60	476	48	472	99	47	449	94	48	430	90	47	
64	476	48	475	100	47	453	95	46	428	90	47	
68	485	48	477	98	47	453	94	45	428	88	46	
72	489	48	478	98	46	452	92	45	431	88	45	
76	486	47	474	98	46	447	92	45	428	88	45	
80	488	45	475	97	45	446	91	44	425	87	45	
84	479	44	465	97	44	440	92	44	422	88	45	
88	479	40	462	97	40	436	91	43	419	87	44	
92	475	37	458	96	38	434	91	41	411	86	42	
96	475	33	453	96	36	431	91	39	403	85	36	
100	459	29	445	97	34	427	93	36	399	87	33	
103	446	26	440	99	31	416	93	34	395	89	30	
Mean for	·weeks											
1-13	243		235	97		236	97		229	94		
14-52	429		420	98		412	96		394	92		
53-103	478		466	97		443	93		421	88		

Mean Body Weights and Survival of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

Weeks	0 1	opm		91 ppm			272 ppm			543 ppm	
on	Av. Wt.	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of
Study	(g)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors
1	110	48	107	98	48	106	96	48	107	98	48
2	124	48	121	97	48	122	98	48	119	96	48
3	136	48	133	98	48	134	98	48	130	95	48
4	145	48	142	98	48	142	98	48	137	94	48
5	155	48	151	98	48	151	97	48	143	93	48
6	161	48	156	97	48	156	97	48	148	92	48
7	167	48	162	97	48	160	96	48	152	92	48
8	171	48	168	98	47	164	96	48	156	91	48
9	176	48	172	98	47	167	95	48	159	90	48
10	179	48	175	98	47	170	95	48	161	90	48
11	182	48	179	98	47	172	95	48	164	90	48
12	186	48	178	95	47	173	93	48	164	88	48
16	196	48	189	96	47	183	93	47	173	88	48
20	205	48	198	97	47	190	93	47	178	87	48
24	214	48	207	97	47	198	93	47	185	87	48
28	220	48	212	96	47	202	92	47	190	86	48
32	227	48	219	96	47	208	92	47	192	85	48
36	234	48	225	96	47	212	91	47	197	84	48
40	242	48	233	96	47	218	90	47	201	83	48
44	250	48	241	96	47	223	89	47	205	82	48
48	257	48	245	95	47	229	89	47	208	81	48
52	268	48	253	94	47	234	87	47	214	80	48
56	277	48	258	93	47	240	87	47	217	78	48
60	284	48	271	95	47	244	86	47	219	77	47
64	291	48	278	95	47	250	86	47	223	77	47
68	302	48	287	95	47	259	86	45	230	76	46
72	311	48	294	95	47	264	85	45	235	76	46
76	319	48	299	93	47	269	84	45	239	75	45
80	326	47	306	94	46	276	85	45	243	75	45
84	328	44	308	94	46	279	85	45	244	74	43
88	327	44	312	95	45	281	86	44	247	76	43
92	334	41	314	94	44	284	85	43	252	75	39
96	332	37	312	94	43	286	86	41	249	75	36
100	326	37	312	96	41	288	88	40	251	77	36
103	326	33	310	95	37	294	90	35	251	77	35
Mean for	weeks										
1-13	156		152	97		150	96		144	92	
14-52	231		222	96		210	91		194	84	
53-103	313		296	95		269	86		237	76	

Organ Weights

Malachite Green Chloride

The relative liver weight was significantly increased in females exposed to 600 ppm malachite green chloride (Table D1).

Leucomalachite Green

Relative liver weights were significantly increased in females exposed to 272 or 543 ppm leucomalachite

green (Tables 7 and D2). Absolute and relative liver weights were significantly increased in male rats exposed to 272 or 543 ppm leucomalachite green. Relative thyroid gland weights were significantly increased in males and females exposed to 543 ppm leucomalachite green.

TABLE 7Organ Weights and Organ-Weight-to-Body-Weight Ratios for Ratsin the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green^a

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Male				
n	23	29	34	29
Necropsy body wt	432 ± 8	424 ± 10	397 ± 10 **	$377 \pm 10^{***}$
Liver Absolute Relative Thyroid gland Absolute Relative	$\begin{array}{c} 14.7 \pm 0.523 \\ 34.3 \pm 1.38 \\ 0.038 \pm 0.002 \\ 0.09 \pm 0.00 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 14.8 \pm 0.691 \\ 35.0 \pm 1.86 \end{array} \\ 0.042 \pm 0.003 \\ 0.10 \pm 0.01 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 17.2 \pm 0.668^{**} \\ 43.6 \pm 1.80^{***} \\ 0.036 \pm 0.002^{b} \\ 0.09 \pm 0.01^{b} \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 19.3 \pm 0.691^{***} \\ 51.7 \pm 1.86^{***} \\ 0.042 \pm 0.003^{c} \\ 0.11 \pm 0.01^{**c} \end{array}$
Female				
n	33	36	35	33
Necropsy body wt	312 ± 7	299 ± 7	277 ± 7***	$240\pm7^{\boldsymbol{***}}$
Liver Absolute Relative Thyroid gland Absolute Relative	$\begin{array}{c} 10.3 \pm 0.368 \\ 33.8 \pm 1.58 \\ 0.033 \pm 0.002 \\ 0.11 \pm 0.01 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 9.87 \pm 0.37 \\ 33.1 \pm 1.45 \\ 0.032 \pm 0.002^{d} \\ 0.11 \pm 0.01^{d} \end{array}$	$10.4 \pm 0.367 \\ 37.9 \pm 1.46* \\ 0.032 \pm 0.002^{e} \\ 0.12 \pm 0.01^{e}$	$11.2 \pm 0.373 \\ 46.6 \pm 1.48^{***} \\ 0.033 \pm 0.002^{e} \\ 0.14 \pm 0.01^{***e}$

* Significantly different (P≤0.05) from the control group by Dunnett's test

** P≤0.01

*** P≤0.001

Organ weights (absolute weights) and body weights are given in grams; organ-weight-to-body-weight ratios (relative weights) are given as
 mg organ weight/g body weight (mean ± standard error). Statistical tests were performed on unrounded data.

d n=28

e n=35

e n=32

c n=33

Pathology and Statistical Analyses

This section describes the statistically significant or biologically noteworthy changes in the incidences of neoplasms and nonneoplastic lesions of the thyroid gland, liver, and other organs. Summaries of the incidences of neoplasms and nonneoplastic lesions, individual animal tumor diagnoses, statistical analyses of primary neoplasms that occurred with an incidence of at least 5% in at least one animal group, and NCTR historical incidences for the neoplasms mentioned in this section are presented in Appendix A for male rats and Appendix B for female rats.

Malachite Green Chloride

Thyroid Gland: Follicular cell adenomas and carcinomas were observed in female rats exposed to 300 or 600 ppm malachite green chloride, and the incidences of adenoma or carcinoma (combined) in these groups exceeded the historical control range (Tables 8, B1a, B3a, and B4a). A dose-related increasing trend (P=0.049) in the incidence of cystic follicles was observed in exposed rats (Tables 8 and B5a). Cystic follicles consisted of very large thyroid follicles that were distended with colloid and lined by flattened follicular epithelial cells. Lesions diagnosed as follicular cell hyperplasia were also cystic, but there were small fronds and foci of follicular epithelial cells protruding into distended follicles. Although the increases were not statistically significant, thyroid follicular cell hyperplasia was only observed in rats exposed to malachite green chloride.

TABLE 8

Incidences of Neoplasms and Nonneoplastic Lesions of the Thyroid Gland in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

	0 ppm	100 ppm	300 ppm	600 ppm
Number Examined Microscopically	46	48	47	46
Follicular Cell Cyst ^a	0	$1 (3.0)^{b}$	1 (3.0)	3 (2.0)
Follicular Cell Hyperplasia	0	0	1 (1.0)	2 (1.0)
Follicular Cell Adenoma	0	0	1	1
Follicular Cell Carcinoma	0	0	2	1
Follicular Cell Adenoma or Carcinoma ^c				
Overall rate ^d	0/46 (0%)	0/48 (0%)	3/47 (6%)	2/46 (4%)
Adjusted rate ^e	0.0%	0.0%	7.1%	5.7%
Terminal rate	0/29 (0%)	0/23 (0%)	3/31 (10%)	2/24 (8%)
First incidence (days)	h	—.	728 (T)	728 (T)
Poly-3 test ^g	P=0.064	1	P=0.137	P=0.218

(T)Terminal sacrifice

^a Number of animals with lesion

Average severity grade of lesions in affected animals: 1=minimal, 2=mild, 3=moderate, 4=marked

Historical incidence for 2-year studies with controls given NIH-31 diet: 7/517 (1.4%), range 0%-3%

Number of animals with neoplasm per number of animals with thyroid gland examined microscopically

Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

¹ Observed incidence at terminal kill

^g Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice.

h Not applicable; no neoplasms in animal group

¹ Value of statistic cannot be computed.

Liver: There were modest, but not statistically significant, increases in the incidences of hepatocellular adenoma in female rats exposed to malachite green chloride (Tables 9, B1a, and B3a). However, the incidences in all groups, including the controls, exceeded the historical control range (Tables 9 and B4b). Hepatocellular adenomas consisted of well-demarcated lesions that occupied an area greater in size than one hepatic lobule with distinct compression of adjacent parenchyma. A single hepatocellular carcinoma was found in one 300 ppm female and was a large well-demarcated lesion that

consisted of anaplastic hepatocytes arranged in a trabecular pattern in some areas. Corresponding increases in the incidences of eosinophilic foci and centrilobular necrosis were observed in female rats exposed to malachite green chloride (Tables 9 and B5a). Eosinophilic foci were characterized by distinct, variably sized foci in which hepatocytes were larger than normal due to increased amounts of eosinophilic cytoplasm. The incidence of centrilobular necrosis, in which the necrotic cells were oriented around central veins in the hepatic lobule, exhibited an increasing trend (P=0.002).

TABLE 9				
Incidences of Neoplasn	is and Nonneoplastic Le	sions of the L	iver in Fema	le Rats
in the 2-Year Feed Stu	dy of Malachite Green C	Chloride		

	0 ppm	100 ppm	300 ppm	600 ppm
Number Examined Microsconically	48	48	48	48
Eosinophilic Focus (includes multiple) ^a	5	10	13	14*
Centrilobular, Necrosis	0	0	0	$4 (2.5)^{b}$
Hepatocellular Adenoma, Multiple	1	0	0	1
Hepatocellular Adenoma (includes multiple) ^c				
Overall rate ^d	1/48 (2%)	1/48 (2%)	$3/48 (6\%)^{h}$	4/48 (8%)
Adjusted rate ^e	2.5%	2.6%	6.9%	10.8%
Terminal rate ^t	1/29 (3%)	1/23 (4%)	2/32 (6%)	4/25 (16%)
First incidence (days)	728 (T)	728 (T)	652	728 (T)
Poly-3 test ^g	P=0.059	P=0.751	P=0.336	P=0.155

* Significantly different (P≤0.05) from the control group by the Poly-3 test

(T)Terminal sacrifice

^a Number of animals with lesion

Average severity grade of lesions in affected animals: 1=minimal, 2=mild, 3=moderate, 4=marked

Historical incidence for 2-year studies with controls given NIH-31 diet: 1/541 (0.2%), range 0%-0.6%

^d Number of animals with neoplasm per number of animals with liver examined microscopically

e Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

¹ Observed incidence at terminal kill

^g Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice.

¹ A single incidence of carcinoma occurred in an animal that also had an adenoma.

Mammary Gland: The incidence of mammary gland carcinoma in female rats exposed to 600 ppm malachite green chloride exceeded the historical control range (Tables 10, B3a, and B4c).

Pituitary Gland: There was a statistically significant increase in the incidence of adenoma of the pituitary gland (pars distalis) in female rats exposed to 100 ppm malachite green chloride (Tables 11 and B3a). Incidences of pars distalis adenoma in 100 and 300 ppm

females exceeded the historical control range for pars distalis adenoma or carcinoma (combined) (Tables 11 and B4d).

Mononuclear Cell Leukemia: A dose-related decreasing trend in the incidences of mononuclear cell leukemia occurred in female rats exposed to malachite green chloride, with statistically significant decreased incidences in the 300 and 600 ppm groups (Tables 12 and B3a).

TABLE 10 Incidences of Mammary Gland Carcinoma in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

	0 ppm	100 ppm	300 ppm	600 ppm
Carcinoma ^a				
Overall rate ^b	2/48 (4%)	2/48 (4%)	1/48 (2%)	5/48 (10%)
Adjusted rate	5.0%	5.2%	2.3%	13.0%
Terminal rate ^d	1/29 (3%)	1/23 (4%)	1/32 (3%)	2/25 (8%)
First incidence (days)	704	686	728 (T)	508
Poly-3 test ^e	P=0.113	P=0.679	P=0.473N	P=0.197

(T)Terminal sacrifice

^a Historical incidence for 2-year studies with controls given NIH-31 diet: 4/534 (0.7%), range 0%-4%

Number of animals with neoplasm per number of animals necropsied.

Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

^d Observed incidence at terminal kill

^e Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice. A lower incidence in an exposure group is indicated by N.

	0 ppm	100 ppm	300 ppm	600 ppm
Pituitary Gland (Pars Distalis): Adenoma				
Overall rate	26/48(54%)	36/47 (77%)	32/46 (70%)	29/45 (64%)
Adjusted rate	60.7%	82 7%	71.6%	76.2%
Terminal rate ^C	16/29 (55%)	21/23 (91%)	22/32 (69%)	21/25 (84%)
First incidence (days)	552	485	603	570
Poly-3 test	P=0.233	P=0.014	P=0.193	P=0.092
Pituitary Gland (Pars Distalis): Adenoma or C	Carcinoma			
Overall rate	26/48 (54%)	36/47 (77%)	32/46 (70%)	30/45 (67%)
Adjusted rate	60.7%	82.7%	71.6%	78.5%
Terminal rate	16/29 (55%)	21/23 (91%)	22/32 (69%)	21/25 (84%)
First incidence (days)	552	485	603	570
Poly-3 test	P=0.162	P=0.014	P=0.193	P=0.056

TABLE 11 Incidences of Pituitary Gland (Pars Distalis) Adenoma in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

^a Number of animals with neoplasm per number of animals with pituitary gland examined microscopically.

Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

d Observed incidence at terminal kill

^d Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice.

Historical incidence for 2-year studies with controls given NIH-31 diet: 306/528 (58.0%), range 51%-68%

TABLE 12 Incidences of Mononuclear Cell Leukemia in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

	0 ppm	100 ppm	300 ppm	600 ppm
Mononuclear Cell Leukemia ^a Overall rate Adjusted rate	19/48 (40%) 43.7%	17/48 (35%) 40.0%	10/48 (21%) 22.5%	1/48 (2%) 2.7%
Terminal rate ^d	9/29 (31%)	4/23 (17%)	4/32 (13%)	0/25 (0%)
First incidence (days)	526	443	619	546
Poly-3 test ^e	P<0.001N	P=0.447N	P=0.026N	P<0.001N

^a Historical incidence for 2-year studies with controls given NIH-31 diet: 188/542 (34.7%), range 13%-45%; includes lymphocytic, monocytic, mononuclear, or undifferentiated leukemia

Number of animals with neoplasm per number of animals necropsied

c Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

d Observed incidence at terminal kill

e Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice. A negative trend or a lower incidence in an exposed group is indicated by N.

Leucomalachite Green

Thyroid Gland: Follicular cell adenomas and carcinomas and follicle cell cysts were observed in male and female rats exposed to leucomalachite green (Tables 13, A1, A3, B1b, and B3b). These lesions were not observed in control rats. The incidences of follicular cell adenoma or carcinoma (combined) in 543 ppm males and in 272 ppm females exceeded the historical control range.

TABLE 13 Incidences of Neoplasms and Nonneoplastic Lesions of the Thyroid Gland in Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Male				
Number Examined Microscopically	47	47	48	46
Follicle Cyst ^a	0	0	0	$3 (1.3)^{D}$
Follicular Cell Hyperplasia	2 (1.0)	1 (4.0)	3 (2.3)	3 (2.0)
Follicular Cell Adenoma	0	2	0	1
Follicular Cell Carcinoma (includes bilateral)	0	0	1	2
Follicular Cell Adenoma or Carcinoma ^c				
Overall rate	0/47 (0%)	2/47 (4%)	1/48 (2%)	3/46 (7%)
Adjusted rate ^e	0.0%	4.8%	2.3%	7.2%
Terminal rate	0/24 (0%)	2/30 (7%)	0/34 (0%)	3/30 (10%)
First incidence (days)	h	733 (T)	662	733 (T)
Poly-3 test ^g	P=0.122	P=0.244	P=0.512	P=0.121
Female				
Number Examined Microscopically	46	46	47	48
Follicle Cyst	0	1 (2.0)	0	2 (1.0)
Follicular Cell Hyperplasia	1 (2.0)	0	0	3 (1.3)
Follicular Cell Adenoma	0	0	0	1
Follicular Cell Carcinoma	0	1	2	0
Follicular Cell Adenoma or Carcinoma				
Overall rate	0/46 (0%)	1/46 (2%)	2/47 (4%)	1/48 (2%)
Adjusted rate	0.0%	2.3%	4.7%	2.4%
Terminal rate	0/33 (0%)	0/35 (0%)	2/34 (6%)	1/34 (3%)
First incidence (days)	_ ` ´	732	734 (T)	734 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.367	P=0.506	P=0.241	P=0.503
Overall rate Adjusted rate Terminal rate First incidence (days) Poly-3 test	0/46 (0%) 0.0% 0/33 (0%) — P=0.367	1/46 (2%) 2.3% 0/35 (0%) 732 P=0.506	2/47 (4%) 4.7% 2/34 (6%) 734 (T) P=0.241	1/48 (2%) 2.4% 1/34 (3%) 734 (T) P=0.503

(T)Terminal sacrifice

b Number of animals with lesion

Average severity grade of lesions in affected animals: 1=minimal, 2=mild, 3=moderate, 4=marked

Historical incidence for 2-year studies with controls given NIH-31 diet: 2/511 (0.4%), range 0%-2%

Number of animals with neoplasm per number of animals with thyroid gland examined microscopically

Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

¹ Observed incidence at terminal kill

^g Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice.

h Not applicable; no neoplasms in animal group

ⁱ Historical incidence: 7/517 (1.4%), range 0%-3%

Mammary Gland: A dose-related increase in the combined incidences of adenoma and carcinoma occurred in the mammary gland of female rats exposed to leucomalachite green (Tables 14, B1b, and B3b). The incidence in the 543 ppm group exceeded the historical control incidence (Tables 14 and B4c). These neoplasms were not observed in the control group.

Liver: Hepatocellular adenomas were observed in all groups of male rats exposed to leucomalachite green and in female rats exposed to 91 and 543 ppm leucomalachite green. The incidence of adenoma in the leucomalachite green-exposed rats and in the control rats exceeded the historical control range (Tables 15, A1, A3, B1b, B3b, and B4b). Nonneoplastic lesions in the liver of rats exposed to leucomalachite green included eosinophilic foci, cystic degeneration, and cytoplasmic vacuolization of hepatocytes (Tables 15, A5, and B5b). The incidences of eosinophilic foci were significantly

increased in all groups of rats exposed to leucomalachite green. Eosinophilic foci were characterized by distinct, variably sized foci in which hepatocytes were larger than normal due to increased amounts of eosinophilic cytoplasm. The incidences of cystic degeneration of the liver were treatment-related in male rats, but not in female rats. Cystic degeneration was a multilocular cystic lesion containing finely granular or flocculent eosinophilic material. The cyst-like structures were not lined by epithelial or endothelial cells. Occasionally, cells at the periphery of the cystic spaces contained clear cytoplasmic vacuoles. Severity grades assigned were based on the number and size of the cystic lesions. The incidences of cytoplasmic vacuolization of hepatocytes were increased in female rats exposed to 272 or 543 ppm leucomalachite green. The clear cytoplasmic vacuoles (probably intracellular lipid accumulation) were of variable size and the location of vacuolated cells within the liver lobules varied considerably.

TABLE 14 Incidences of Mammary Gland Neoplasms in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Number Necropsied	48	48	48	48
Adenoma	0	1	1	2
Carcinoma	0	1	2	2
Adenoma or Carcinoma ^b				
Overall rate ^c ,	0/48 (0%)	2/48 (4%)	3/48 (6%)	4/48 (8%)
Adjusted rate ^d	0.0%	4.5%	6.8%	9.3%
Terminal rate ^e	0/33 (0%)	0/36 (0%)	1/35 (3%)	3/34 (9%)
First incidence (days)	g	690	657	585
Poly-3 test ^f	P=0.047	P=0.244	P=0.120	P=0.058

^a Number of animals with lesion

^b Historical incidence for 2-year studies with controls given NIH-31 diet: 9/534 (1.7%), range 0%-6%

Number of animals with neoplasm per number of animals necropsied

^d Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

^e Observed incidence at terminal kill

^g Not applicable; no neoplasms in animal group

¹ Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice.

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Male				
Number Examined Microscopically	48	47	48	47
Eosinophilic Focus (includes multiple) ^a	3	14**	19**	33**
Degeneration, Cystic	4 $(2.0)^{D}$	18**(1.3)	13* (1.5)	19**(1.4)
Vacuolization Cytoplasmic	9 (2.0)	21**(1.9)	10 (1.9)	13 (1.8)
Hepatocellular, Adenoma ^c				
Overall rate ^d	2/48 (4%)	2/47 (4%)	3/48 (6%)	2/47 (4%)
Adjusted rate	4.8%	4.8%	7.0%	4.7%
Terminal rate ^f	0/24 (0%)	2/30 (7%)	3/34 (9%)	2/30 (7%)
First incidence (days)	639	733 (T)	733 (T)	733 (T)
Poly-3 test ^g	P=0.568	P=0.692N	P=0.512	P=0.690N
Female				
Number Examined Microscopically	48	48	48	48
Eosinophilic Focus (includes multiple)	3	12*	20**	16**
Degeneration, Cystic	3 (2.0)	2 (1.0)	5 (1.6)	3 (2.0)
Vacuolization Cytoplasmic	5 (2.0)	5 (1.4)	17**(1.7)	22**(1.8)
Hepatocellular Adenoma ^h				
Overall rate	1/48 (2%)	3/48 (6%)	0/48 (0%)	3/48 (6%)
Adjusted rate	2.3%	6.7%	0.0%	7.0%
Terminal rate	1/33 (3%)	3/36 (8%)	0/35 (0%)	3/34 (9%)
First incidence (days)	734 (T)	734 (T)	1	734 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.360	P=0.314	P=0.500N	P=0.297

TABLE 15 Incidences of Neoplasms and Nonneoplastic Lesions of the Liver in Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

* Significantly different (P≤0.05) from the control group by the Poly-3 test

** P≤0.01

(T)Terminal sacrifice

a Number of animals with lesion

^b Average severity grade of lesions in affected animals: 1=minimal, 2=mild, 3=moderate, 4=marked

Historical incidence for 2-year studies with controls given NIH-31 diet: 4/548 (0.7%), range 0%-2%

Number of animals with neoplasms per number of animals with liver examined microscopically

Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

¹ Observed incidence at terminal kill

^g Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice. A lower incidence in an exposed group is indicated by N.

h Historical incidence: 1/541 (0.2%), range 0%-1%

ⁱ Not applicable; no neoplasms in animal group

Testis: A positive trend was observed in the incidences of testicular interstitial cell adenoma in male rats exposed to leucomalachite green, and the incidence in the 543 ppm group was significantly increased and exceeded the historical control range (Tables 16, A1, A3, and A4b). High incidences of bilateral interstitial cell adenoma were observed in male rats examined at study termination and in male rats that were removed early from study due to death or morbidity (Table 17).

Eye: Female rats administered leucomalachite green exhibited an increasing trend (P<0.001) in the incidence of central retinal degeneration and the incidence was significantly (P=0.002) increased in the 543 ppm group (0 ppm, 4/48; 91 ppm, 7/48; 272 ppm, 11/48; 543 ppm, 16/48; Table B5b). A corresponding increase in central retinal degeneration was not observed in male rats (Table A5).

TABLE 16

Incidences of Neoplasms of the Testis in Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Number Examined Microsconically	48	47	48	47
Interstitial Cell Adenoma, Bilateral ^a	22	30	38	39*
Interstitial Cell Adenoma (includes bilatera)	$\mathbf{D}_{\mathbf{p}}$			
Overall rate ^c .	37/48 (77%)	42/47 (89%)	43/48 (90%)	45/47 (96%)
Adjusted rate ^d	82.5%	93.3%	92.2%	95.7%
Terminal rate ^e	23/24 (96%)	29/30 (97%)	32/34 (94%)	28/30 (93%)
First incidence (days)	564	579	435	475
Poly-3 test ¹	P=0.036	P=0.078	P=0.115	P=0.029

* Significantly different ($P \le 0.05$) from the control group by the Poly-3 test

b Number of animals with lesion

⁶ Historical incidence for 2-year studies with controls given NIH-31 diet: 469/547 (85.7%), range 69%-90%

Number of animals with neoplasm per number of animals with testis examined microscopically

Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

f Observed incidence at terminal kill

¹ Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice.

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Days 401-600 ^b				
Unilateral	0/5 (0%)	1/5 (20%)	1/5 (20%)	1/3 (33%)
Bilateral	2/5 (40%)	2/5 (40%)	2/5 (40%)	2/3 (67%)
Combined	2/5 (40%)	3/5 (60%)	3/5 (60%)	3/3 (100%)
Days 601-723				
Unilateral	9/20 (45%)	4/13 (31%)	0/9 (0%)	3/14 (21%)
Bilateral	4/20 (20%)	7/13 (54%)	8/9 (89%)	11/14 (79%)
Combined	13/20 (65%)	11/13 (85%)	8/9 (89%)	14/14 (100%)
Terminal Sacrifice				
Unilateral	6/23 (26%)	7/29 (24%)	4/34 (12%)	2/30 (7%)
Bilateral	16/23 (70%)	21/29 (72%)	28/34 (82%)	26/30 (87%)
Combined	22/23 (96%)	28/29 (97%)	32/34 (94%)	28/30 (93%)
Total				
Unilateral	15/48 (31%)	12/47 (26%)	5/48 (10%)	6/47 (13%)
Bilateral	22/48 (46%)	30/47 (64%)	38/48 (79%)	39/47 (83%)
Combined	37/48 (77%)	42/47 (89%)	43/48 (90%)	45/47 (96%)

TABLE 17 Incidences of Unilateral and Bilateral Interstitial Cell Adenoma of the Testis in Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green^a

^a Number of animals with neoplasm per number of animals removed during the indicated study interval
 ^b Study interval (no rats were removed before day 400).

Mononuclear Cell Leukemia: The incidences of mononuclear cell leukemia were significantly decreased in all groups of rats exposed to leucomalachite green (Tables 18, A3, and B3b).

Pituitary Gland (Pars Distalis): The incidences of pituitary gland pars distalis adenoma were significantly decreased in all groups of male rats exposed to leucomalachite green; there were no significant changes in this lesion in female rats exposed to leucomalachite green (Tables 19, A3, and B3b).

TABLE 18

Incidences of Mononuclear Cell Leukemia in Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Male				
Mononuclear Cell Leukemia ^a	20/40 (200/)	16/47 (240/)	10/48 (400/)	7/47 (150/)
Overall rate $\Delta dijusted rate^{C}$	29/48 (60%)	16/4 / (34%) 36.6%	19/48 (40%)	16.0%
Terminal rate ^d	12/24 (50%)	9/30 (30%)	9/34 (27%)	2/30 (7%)
First incidence (days)	564	579	435	601
Poly-3 test ^e	P<0.001N	P=0.007N	P=0.026N	P<0.001N
Female				
Mononuclear Cell Leukemia ^f				
Overall rate	17/48 (35%)	8/48 (17%)	5/48 (10%)	8/48 (17%)
Adjusted rate	37.0%	17.8%	11.0%	18.2%
Terminal rate	8/33 (24%)	6/36 (17%)	1/35 (3%)	3/34 (9%)
First incidence (days)	552	683	482	484
Poly-3 test	P=0.038N	P=0.033N	P=0.003N	P=0.037N

^a Historical incidence for 2-year studies with controls given NIH-31 diet: 240/550 (43.6%), range 31%-58%; includes lymphocytic, monocytic, m

b Number of animals with neoplasm-per number of animals necropsied

c Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

Observed incidence at terminal kill

^e Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality
 c in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice. A negative trend or a lower incidence in an exposed group is indicated by N.

f Historical incidence: 188/543 (34.6%), range 13%-45%; includes lymphocytic, monocytic, mononuclear, or undifferentiated leukemia

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Male				
Adenoma				
Overall rate ^a	30/45 (67%)	19/46 (41%)	21/48 (44%)	13/45 (29%)
Adjusted rate	69.6%	43.0%	47.5%	31.3%
Terminal rate	15/23 (65%)	10/30 (33%)	16/34 (47%)	11/30 (37%)
First incidence (days)	541	487	599	645
Poly-3 test ^u	P<0.001N	P=0.008N	P=0.026N	P<0.001N
Female				
Adenoma				
Overall rate	26/47 (55%)	23/47 (49%)	17/45 (38%)	20/46 (43%)
Adjusted rate	58.6%	51.1%	39.7%	48.1%
Terminal rate	19/33 (58%)	18/35 (51%)	12/35 (34%)	17/32 (53%)
First incidence (days)	627	561	599	632
Poly-3 test	P=0.170N	P=0.306N	P=0.056N	P=0.218N

TABLE 19 Incidences of Pituitary Gland (Pars Distalis) Adenoma in Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

а Number of animals with neoplasm per number of animals with pituitary gland (pars distalis) examined microscopically b

Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

c Observed incidence at terminal kill d

Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice. A negative trend or a lower incidence in an exposed group is indicated by N.

MICE

2-YEAR STUDIES

Survival

Estimates of 2-year survival probabilities for female mice exposed to malachite green chloride and leucomalachite green are shown in Tables 20 and 21 and in the Kaplan-Meier survival curves (Figures 5 and 6). Survival of the exposed and control groups was similar in both studies.

TABLE 20

Surviv	al o	of F	Tema	le	Mice	in	the	2-	-Year	Feed	Stud	y of	f M	ala	chite	Green	Chlo	ride

	0 ppm	100 ppm	225 ppm	450 ppm
Animals initially in study	48	48	48	48
Accidental Death ^a	0	0	1	0
Moribund	4	3	3	4
Natural deaths	4	1	4	3
Animals surviving to study termination	40	44	40	41
Percent probability of survival at end of study ^b	83	92	85	85
Mean survival (days) ^c	706	720	698	700
Survival analysis ^d	P=0.900N	P=0.229N	P=0.834N	P=0.788N

a Censored from survival analyses

b Kaplan-Meier determinations

Mean of all deaths (uncensored, censored, and terminal sacrifice)

d The result of the life table trend test (Tarone, 1975) is in the control column, and the results of the life table pairwise comparisons (Cox, 1972) with the controls are in the exposed group columns. A negative trend or lower mortality in an exposed group is indicated by N.

TABLE 21
Survival of Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

	0 ppm	91 ppm	204 ppm	408 ppm
Animals initially in study	48	48	48	48
Moribund	4	5	7	4
Natural deaths	7	2	2	5
Animals surviving to study termination	37	41	39	39
Percent probability of survival at end of study ^a	77	85	81	81
Mean survival (days) ^b	688	716	699	708
Survival analysis ^c	P=0.803	P=0.279N	P=0.627N	P=0.584N

^a Kaplan-Meier determinations

^b Mean of all deaths (uncensored, censored, and terminal sacrifice) ^c The world of the life table trend test (Tensor 1076) is in the control

^c The result of the life table trend test (Tarone, 1975) is in the control column, and the results of the life table pairwise comparisons (Cox, 1972) with the controls are in the exposed group columns. A lower mortality in an exposed group is indicated by **N**.



Kaplan-Meier Survival Curves for Female Mice Exposed to Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 2 Years

Body Weights, Feed and Compound Consumption, and Clinical Findings Malachite Green Chloride

Mean body weights of exposed female mice were generally similar to those of the controls throughout most of the study (Figure 7 and Table 22). Feed consumption by exposed groups of females was similar to that by the controls (Table F4). Dietary concentrations of 100, 225, or 450 ppm malachite green chloride resulted in average daily doses of approximately 15, 33, or 67 mg malachite green chloride/kg body weight. No clinical findings were attributed to malachite green chloride exposure.

Leucomalachite Green

Mean body weights of female mice exposed to leucomalachite green were generally similar to controls throughout the study (Figure 8 and Table 23). Feed consumption by female mice exposed to leucomalachite green was similar to that by the controls (Table F5). Dietary concentrations of 91, 204, or 408 ppm leucomalachite green resulted in average daily doses of approximately 15, 31, or 63 mg leucomalachite green/kg body weight. No clinical findings were attributed to leucomalachite green exposure.



Growth Curves for Female Mice Exposed to Malachite Green Chloride in Feed for 2 Years

Mean Body Weights and Survival of Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

Weeks	0	opm		100 ppm			225 ppm		450 ppm			
on	Av. Wt.	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of	
Study	(g)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors	
1	16.3	48	16.0	99	48	16.2	100	48	16.1	99	48	
2	17.2	48	17.3	101	48	17.1	100	48	16.9	98	48	
3	18.0	48	17.6	98	48	17.8	99	48	17.5	97	48	
4	18.5	48	18.3	99	48	18.3	99	48	18.0	97	48	
5	19.1	48	18.6	97	48	19.0	99	48	18.4	96	48	
6	19.5	48	19.0	97	48	19.3	99	48	19.0	97	48	
7	19.8	48	19.7	100	48	20.2	102	48	19.5	98	48	
8	20.8	48	20.3	98	48	20.5	99	48	20.0	96	48	
9	20.9	48	20.9	100	48	21.0	101	48	20.6	98	48	
10	21.1	48	21.1	100	48	21.3	101	48	21.0	100	48	
11	21.6	48	21.5	100	48	21.6	100	48	21.4	99	48	
12	22.1	48	21.5	97	48	21.7	98	48	21.7	98	48	
13	22.4	48	21.9	98	48	22.3	100	48	22.2	99	48	
17	24.6	48	24.1	98	48	23.6	96	48	23.2	94	48	
21	25.4	48	24.6	97	48	24.4	96	48	23.5	93	48	
25	27.6	48	26.0	94	48	26.2	95	48	25.9	94	47	
29	28.0	48	26.6	95	48	26.5	95	48	26.1	93	47	
33	28.4	48	26.5	93	48	27.3	96	47	26.4	93	47	
37	29.0	48	27.7	96	48	28.7	99	46	27.3	94	47	
41	29.9	48	28.8	96	48	29.8	100	46	28.5	95	47	
45	31.2	48	30.3	97	48	31.2	100	46	30.0	96	47	
49	32.2	48	31.0	96	48	32.3	100	46	31.1	97	46	
53	33.5	48	32.1	96	48	32.8	98	46	32.0	96	46	
57	34.3	47	32.6	95	48	33.7	98	46	33 3	97	46	
61	35.7	47	33.5	94	48	34.4	97	46	33.2	93	46	
65	37.1	47	35.2	95	48	36.6	99	44	32.8	88	46	
69	37.0	47	36.4	99	48	37.4	101	44	33.4	90	46	
73	36.5	47	36.6	100	48	37.3	102	44	33.7	92	46	
77	37.0	46	37.7	102	48	37.9	102	44	34 7	94	46	
81	37.7	46	37.4	99	48	38.2	101	43	35.0	93	46	
85	38.2	46	36.4	95	47	37.6	98	43	35.5	93	46	
89	37.1	45	35.7	96	47	37.9	102	43	34.9	94	46	
93	35.7	44	35.4	99	46	38.2	102	43	34.3	96	44	
97	35.3	41	35.7	101	45	38.8	110	42	34.1	96	43	
101	35.4	40	36.6	103	45	37.5	106	40	34.1	98	43	
104	36.1	a	37.7	104		37.1	100	-10	34.7	96	-12	
104	50.1		57.7	104		57.1	105		54.7	90		
Mean for	r weeks											
1-13	19.8		19.5	99		19.7	100		19.4	98		
14-52	28.5		27.3	96		27.8	98		26.9	94		
53-104	36.2		35.6	98		36.8	102		34.0	94		
53-104	36.2		35.6	98		36.8	102		34.0	94		

^a Terminal sacrifice occurred during week 104 after animals were weighed.



FIGURE 8 Growth Curves for Female Mice Exposed to Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 2 Years

Mean Body Weights and Survival of Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

Weeks	0	0 ppm		91 ppm			204 ppm		408 ppm			
on	Av. Wt.	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of	Av. Wt.	Wt. (% of	No. of	
Study	(g)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors	(g)	controls)	Survivors	
1	16.5	48	16.5	100	48	16.8	102	48	17.0	103	48	
2	16.9	48	17.0	100	48	17.3	102	48	17.3	102	48	
3	17.7	48	17.3	98	48	18.0	102	48	18.1	102	48	
4	18.2	48	17.7	97	48	18.3	101	48	18.4	101	48	
5	18.5	48	18.3	99	48	18.6	101	48	18.5	100	48	
6	18.7	48	18.7	101	48	18.8	101	48	19.1	103	48	
7	19.4	48	19.2	99	48	19.4	100	48	19.6	101	48	
8	19.8	48	19.4	98	48	19.7	99	48	19.4	98	48	
9	20.2	48	19.6	97	48	19.9	98	48	19.7	97	48	
10	20.2	48	20.1	100	48	20.0	99	48	19.9	99	48	
11	20.4	48	20.5	100	48	20.2	99	48	20.2	99	48	
16	22.0	48	21.5	98	48	21.5	98	48	21.4	97	48	
20	22.1	47	22.2	101	48	22.3	101	48	21.9	99	48	
24	23.8	47	23.1	97	48	23.2	98	48	23.3	98	48	
28	23.8	47	24.1	101	48	24.2	101	47	24.2	102	48	
32	25.4	46	25.4	100	48	25.0	98	47	25.7	101	48	
36	25.6	46	25.6	100	48	25.4	99	47	25.8	101	48	
40	26.5	46	26.5	100	48	26.2	99	47	26.6	100	48	
44	27.7	46	27.5	99	48	27.3	98	47	27.5	99	48	
48	28.6	46	28.8	101	48	28.0	98	47	27.8	97	48	
52	28.5	46	29.3	103	48	27.2	96	47	28.3	100	48	
56	28.8	46	28.6	99	48	29.0	101	47	29.6	103	48	
60	29.8	46	29.8	100	48	29.8	100	47	30.6	103	48	
64	30.9	46	30.6	99	48	30.7	99	47	30.6	99	47	
68	31.0	46	31.9	103	48	32.1	104	47	30.9	100	47	
72	32.2	45	33.4	104	47	33.6	104	46	31.5	98	47	
76	34.1	44	34.7	102	47	35.0	103	45	31.7	93	47	
80	34.4	44	34.7	101	47	34.9	101	45	32.2	94	45	
84	34.5	44	34.7	101	46	35.2	102	45	32.8	95	44	
88	35.2	44	35.4	101	46	35.9	102	44	33.0	94	44	
92	35.1	43	36.2	103	46	37.1	106	43	33.7	96	43	
96	34.6	43	35.3	102	45	37.5	109	42	34.2	99	43	
100	35.1	38 a	35.5	101	44	39.3	112	40	35.5	101	43	
104	34.3	_	35.6	104	_	39.4	115	_	36.2	106	_	
Mean for	weeks											
1-13	18.8		18.6	99		18.8	100		18.8	100		
14-52	25.4		25.4	100		25.0	99		25.3	100		
53-104	33.1		33.6	101		34.6	104		32.5	98		

^a Terminal sacrifice occurred during week 104 after animals were weighed.

Kidney Weights

Malachite Green Chloride

Kidney weights of female mice exposed to malachite green chloride were generally less than those of the controls (Tables 24 and D3). The absolute right kidney weights were significantly decreased in the 225 and 450 ppm groups as were the relative weights in the 100 and 225 ppm groups. The absolute left kidney weight was significantly decreased in the 450 ppm group, and the relative weight was decreased in the 225 ppm group.

Leucomalachite Green

Relative kidney weights were significantly decreased in all leucomalachite green exposure groups compared to the control group (Tables 25 and D4).

TABLE 24

17.1	**7 * 1 4	CT 1	A <i>T</i> [•] •	41 0 17		C N K 1 1 14	
Kidnev	Weights	of Female	Vlice in	the 2-Year	Reed Study	of Malachite	Green Chloride
istuncy	vi ergnes	of i cinuic	THE III	the m i cui	I ccu Study	of manachine	Green Chioriae

	0 ppm	100 ppm	225 ppm	450 ppm
n	40	44	40	41
Necropsy body wt	33.8 ± 0.9	35.8 ± 1.0	34.7 ± 1.0	32.4 ± 1.0
R. Kidney Absolute Relative L. Kidney Absolute Relative	$0.224 \pm 0.004 \\ 6.74 \pm 0.14 \\ 0.209 \pm 0.003 \\ 6.26 \pm 0.15 \\ b$	$\begin{array}{c} 0.217 \pm 0.005 \\ 6.12 \pm 0.18^{**} \\ 0.208 \pm 0.004 \\ 5.87 \pm 0.17 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 0.210 \pm 0.005^{**} \\ 6.08 \pm 0.18^{**} \\ 0.201 \pm 0.005 \\ 5.83 \pm 0.18^{*} \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 0.206 \pm 0.005^{***} \\ 6.42 \pm 0.18 \\ 0.188 \pm 0.005^{***} \\ 5.86 \pm 0.18 \end{array}$

* Significantly different (P≤0.05) from the control group by Dunnett's test

** P ≤ 0.01

*** P≤0.001

Organ weights (absolute weights) and body weights are given in grams; organ-weight-to-body-weight ratios (relative weights) are given as mg organ weight/g body weight (mean ± standard error). Statistical tests were performed on unrounded data.

b n=39

TABLE 25	
Kidney Weights of Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study	y of Leucomalachite Green ^a

	0 ppm	91 ppm	204 ppm	408 ppm
n	37	41	39	39
Necropsy body wt	32.7 ± 0.6	34.0 ± 1.0	37.6 ± 1.0 ***	34.5 ± 1.0
R. Kidney				
Absolute	0.227 ± 0.005	0.216 ± 0.005	0.227 ± 0.005	0.217 ± 0.005
Relative	7.03 ± 0.21	$6.43 \pm 0.20*$	6.12 ± 0.21 ***	6.34 ± 0.21 **
L. Kidney				
Absolute	0.216 ± 0.004	$0.202 \pm 0.005 *$	0.216 ± 0.005	0.204 ± 0.005
Relative	6.69 ± 0.20	6.00 ± 0.20 **	5.83 ± 0.20 ***	5.96 ± 0.20 **

* Significantly different (P≤0.05) from the control group by Dunnett's test

** P≤0.01

*** P≤0.001

Organ weights (absolute weights) and body weights are given in grams; organ-weight-to-body-weight ratios (relative weights) are given as mg organ weight/g body weight (mean ± standard error). Statistical tests were performed on unrounded data.

Pathology and Statistical Analyses

This section describes the statistically significant or biologically noteworthy changes in the incidences of nonneoplastic lesions of the liver and urinary bladder for female mice exposed to malachite green chloride and in the incidences of neoplasms and/or nonneoplastic lesions of the liver and urinary bladder for female mice exposed to leucomalachite green. Summaries of the incidences of neoplasms and nonneoplastic lesions, individual animal tumor diagnoses, and statistical analyses of primary neoplasms that occurred with an incidence of at least 5% in at least one animal group, and NCTR historical incidences for the neoplasms mentioned in this section are presented in Appendix C.

Malachite Green Chloride

Urinary Bladder: Significantly (P<0.05) increased incidences of intracytoplasmic inclusions were observed in all groups of female mice exposed to malachite green chloride (0 ppm, 7/47; 100 ppm, 15/46; 225 ppm, 34/45; 450 ppm, 39/48; Table C5a). Intracytoplasmic inclusions were found in the transitional epithelium of the urinary bladder. The inclusions were variable in size, yellow-orange, slightly refractile and generally found in the superficial epithelial cells. The inclusions were found in many mice exposed to malachite green chloride and the number of inclusions (severity) increased with increasing exposure concentration (1.1, 1.1, 1.4, 1.4). The inclusions were much less prominent than those observed in female mice exposed to leucomalachite green. The pathogenesis of the intracytoplasmic inclusions is unknown, but the inclusions are thought to represent degradation products. The presence of the inclusions did not have an apparent effect on the general health or mortality of the affected mice.

Leucomalachite Green

Liver: An increasing trend in the combined incidences of hepatocellular adenoma or carcinoma was observed in female mice exposed to leucomalachite green, and the incidence was significantly increased in the 408 ppm group; the historical control range was exceeded by all exposed groups (Tables 26, C3b, and C4). Female mice exposed to leucomalachite green also exhibited an increase in the incidences of hepatocellular adenoma. Although the increase was not statistically significant, the historical range in control animals was exceeded by the incidence in the 91 and 408 ppm groups. Histologically, the hepatocellular neoplasms were morphologically similar to those that occur spontaneously in the liver.

Urinary Bladder: Increased incidences (P<0.001) of intracytoplasmic inclusions occurred in all groups of female mice exposed to leucomalachite green [0 ppm, 14/46; 91 ppm, 33/48, 204 ppm, 44/47; 408 ppm, 44/44; Table C5b). Intracytoplasmic inclusions were found in the transitional epithelium of the urinary bladder. The inclusions were variable in size, yellow-orange, slightly refractile and generally found in the superficial epithelial cells. In control mice, the cytoplasm tended to be granular with only rare inclusions noted. Inclusions were more apparent with the periodic acid Schiff (PAS) reaction and were more prominent than those observed in mice fed malachite green. The inclusions were found in most mice exposed to leucomalachite green, and the number of inclusions (severity) increased with dose (1.0, 1.1, 1.9, 2.9). As observed in mice exposed to malachite green chloride, the pathogenesis of the intracytoplasmic inclusions is unknown, but the inclusions are thought to represent degradation products. The presence of the inclusions did not have an apparent effect on the general health or mortality of the affected mice.

	0 ppm	91 ppm	204 ppm	408 ppm
Number Examined Microscopically	47	48	47	47
Hepatocellular Adenoma, Multiple ^a	0	0	1	1
Henatocellular Adenoma (includes multin	e) ^b			
Overall rate	3/47 (6%)	6/48 (13%)	5/47 (11%)	9/47 (19%)
Adjusted rate ^d	6.9%	12.8%	11 4%	20.2%
Terminal rate	2/37 (5%)	5/41 (12%)	5/39 (13%)	9/39 (23%)
First incidence (days)	682	498	733 (T)	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.055	P=0.282	P=0.363	P=0.065
Hepatocellular Carcinoma	0	0	1	2
Hepatocellular Adenoma or Carcinoma ^g				
Overall rate	3/47 (6%)	6/48 (13%)	6/47 (13%)	11/47 (23%)
Adjusted rate	6.9%	12.8%	13.6%	24.6%
Terminal rate	2/37 (5%)	5/41 (12%)	6/39 (15%)	11/39 (28%)
First incidence (days)	682	498	733 (T)	733 (T)
Polv-3 test	P=0.013	P=0.282	P=0.248	P=0.022

Incidences of Neoplasms of the Liver in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

(T)Terminal sacrifice

^a Number of animals with lesion

^b Historical incidence for 2-year studies with controls given NIH-31 diet: 26/563 (4.6%), range 0%-11%

^c Number of animals with neoplasm per number of animals with liver examined microscopically

^a Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

^e Observed incidence at terminal kill

^I Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice.

^g Historical incidence: 34/563 (6.0%), range 0%-11%

DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSIONS

Malachite green is a triphenylmethane dye that has been used widely as an antifungal agent in the aquaculture industry. The compound was nominated by the FDA Center for Veterinary Medicine for toxicity and carcinogenicity studies due to the potential for consumer exposure through the consumption of treated fish, its structural similarity to the carcinogenic dye gentian violet, and a lack of carcinogenicity data in the literature. Malachite green is reduced to leucomalachite green in the tissues of treated fish and persists in this form. Accordingly, the toxicity and carcinogenicity of leucomalachite green was also assessed.

In the 2-year studies of malachite green chloride and leucomalachite green, survival of control and exposed groups of rats and mice was similar. Mean body weights of female rats exposed to 300 or 600 ppm malachite green chloride or equimolar doses of leucomalachite green (272 and 543 ppm) were less than the controls during most of the study, while females exposed to 91 ppm leucomalachite green weighed less than the controls during the second year of the study. Mean body weights of 543 ppm leucomalachite green-exposed male rats were less than those of the controls throughout the study, while the 272 ppm males were less than the controls during year 2 of the study. Mean body weights of mice exposed to malachite green chloride or leucomalachite green were generally similar to the control groups throughout most of the study.

In the 2-year study in mice, the incidence of combined hepatocellular adenomas and carcinomas in female mice fed 408 ppm leucomalachite green was significantly greater than in the controls. In addition, the increases observed in leucomalachite green-exposed female mice exceeded the historical range for NCTR historical control data. In an earlier 2-year feed study, Littlefield *et al.* (1985) observed increases in the incidence of hepatocellular carcinomas in both sexes of B6C3F₁ mice fed gentian violet, a structurally similar triphenylmethane dye [females: 0 ppm, 7/185 (4%); 100 ppm, 5/93 (5%); 300 ppm, 30/93 (32%); 600 ppm, 73/95 (77%); males: 0 ppm, 27/183 (15%); 100 ppm, 15/92 (17%); 300 ppm,

17/93 (18%); 600 ppm, 33/95 (35%)]. In contrast to leucomalachite green and gentian violet, no increase in the incidence of liver neoplasms was found in female mice fed malachite green. Analyses of gene mutations in transgenic mice provided mechanistic support for the increased incidences of liver neoplasms in leucomalachite green-exposed mice compared to those treated with malachite green in the 2-year studies. In the transgenic mouse study, female Big Blue mice were fed up to 408 ppm leucomalachite green or 450 ppm malachite green for 16 weeks and the livers were analyzed for mutations in the lambda cII gene (Appendix I). The cII mutant frequency was significantly increased in the livers of Big Blue mice exposed to leucomalachite green, but not malachite green, as compared to the controls. Furthermore, the spectrum of *cII* mutations in the mice fed leucomalachite green was significantly different from the control group, with a notable increase in G:C to T:A transversions. Mutagenic aromatic amines are known to produce predominantly G:C to T:A transversions in Big Blue rodents (Cunningham et al., 1996; Suter et al., 1996; Staedtler et al., 1999). N-Demethylated metabolites, including primary arylamines, have also been detected in liver extracts from mice exposed to leucomalachite green (Culp et al. Furthermore, B6C3F₁ mice treated with 1999). leucomalachite green, but not malachite green chloride, for 28 days exhibited an increase in the frequency of micronucleated erythrocytes in peripheral blood (NTP, 2004). An increase in the peripheral blood micronucleus frequency was not observed in transgenic mice fed malachite or leucomalachite green (Appendix I). These results suggest that the arylamine derivatives from leucomalachite green could undergo subsequent activation similar to carcinogenic arylamine metabolites that react with DNA either directly or after esterification. Misreplication of these lesions may result in mutations that lead to liver tumors. Indeed, ³²P-postlabeling analyses indicated a single DNA adduct or co-eluting adducts in the liver DNA of leucomalachite green-treated mice, with the adduct levels increasing as a function of dose (Culp et al., 1999); although adducts were not observed in the transgenic mice exposed to leucomalachite green

(Appendix I). Nevertheless, these data suggest that leucomalachite green can act as a genotoxic liver carcinogen in the female mouse. *N*-Demethylated metabolites and DNA adducts were also detected in malachite greenexposed mice, suggesting that DNA adducts formed in the livers of mice fed malachite green have little mutagenic or carcinogenic consequence.

In the 2-year study in rats, thyroid follicular cell adenomas or carcinomas were observed in malachite green chloride and leucomalachite green-treatment groups. Although there was not a statistically significant trend or increase in the incidence, the occurrence may be significant considering the low prevalence of these tumors in control groups in NCTR studies [female F344 rats: 1.4% (7/517), range 0%-3%; male F344 rats: 0.4% (2/511), range 0%-2%] and NTP oral studies [female F344 rats: 0.9% (8/898), range 0%-4%; male F344 rats: 2.0% (18/902), range 0%-8%, NIEHS, 1998]. Nonneoplastic lesions involving thyroid follicular cells, which included cystic follicles and thyroid follicular cell hyperplasia, were observed only in malachite green chloride or leucomalachite green-exposed rats. These findings support the possibility that thyroid follicular cells are a target for malachite green toxicity. In a 2-year feed study with the structurally related dye gentian violet, Littlefield (1988) administered 0, 100, 300, or 600 ppm gentian violet to male and female F344 rats in the diet for at least 80 days, including during mating, and the offspring were continued on the same doses for 24 months. Treatment-related increases in the incidences of follicular cell adenocarcinoma of the thyroid gland were observed in females, at incidences of 1%, 1%, 5%, and 8% for the four respective gentian violet dose groups after being fed for 24 months; in males, the incidences were 1%, 5%, 3%, and 6% for the four respective dose groups. Additionally, in short-term studies with leucomalachite green, male rats exhibited increased thyroid stimulating hormone (TSH) levels and decreased thyroxine (T_4) levels, indicative of hypothyroidism. The effects were less robust with malachite green in short-term studies, although significant increases in TSH were observed in male rats and decreases in T₄ were found in female rats. Doerge et al. (1998b) have demonstrated that leucomalachite green inhibits thyroid peroxidase-catalyzed formation of T₄ and tyrosine in vitro, which also results in the oxidative N-demethylation of leucomalachite green to a primary arylamine. These findings suggest that the anti-thyroid effects observed in rats treated with leucomalachite green result from blockade of hormone synthesis through alternate substrate inhibition and that chronic exposure could cause thyroid follicular cell

tumors through a hormonal mechanism. Moreover, the formation of a primary arylamine, that may be metabolically activated and bind to DNA, raises the possibility of a genotoxic mechanism for tumor formation.

In the female rats fed malachite green there was a small increase in the incidence of hepatocellular adenoma. Although the increase was not statistically significant, hepatocellular adenomas are very rare in female F344 rats at NCTR. The incidences of hepatocellular adenoma in female rats fed 91 or 543 ppm leucomalachite green also exceeded the NCTR historical control range. It is not clear if the increase is of biological significance, as the mechanism behind the induction of these tumors is uncertain. Dose-dependent formation of a DNA adduct has been demonstrated in the livers of F344 and Big Blue rats administered malachite green and leucomalachite green in the diet (Culp et al., 2002; Manjanatha et al., 2004). Nonetheless, analyses of liver lacI and cII mutants revealed that mutation frequencies in treated rats were similar to those of control rats, and that the majority of the independent mutations in treated Big Blue rats were base-pair substitutions, with mutation spectra similar to that found for control rats (R.H. Heflich, NCTR, unpublished observation). These data suggest that malachite green and leucomalachite green might be promoting spontaneous lesions, in a manner similar to that reported by Fernandes et al. (1991), who conducted an initiation/promotion experiment in Wistar rats, using diethylnitrosamine as an initiator and malachite green as a promoter.

A significant increasing trend was observed in the incidence of testicular interstitial cell adenoma in male rats exposed to leucomalachite green, and the incidence was increased in the 543 ppm group compared to the control. Examination of the data divided into unilateral and bilateral incidences of adenoma and segregated based on the number of days the rats were on study revealed a high incidence of bilateral tumors, even for the rats on study for a shorter period of time. The cause of death of all of the control male rats removed before terminal sacrifice (25 of 48) in the leucomalachite green study was attributed to mononuclear cell leukemia or pituitary gland Significantly lower incidences of both adenoma. mononuclear cell leukemia and pituitary gland adenoma were observed in leucomalachite green-exposed male rats compared to the control group. One may speculate that the decreased incidences of these lethal tumors in treated rats would result in increased survival compared to the control group. Since testes adenomas are common lesions in aged male F344 rats, this could enhance the statistical significance of the testicular cancer in the treated rats. However, with the exception of the 272 ppm group, survival of the leucomalachite greenexposed male rats was not statistically increased compared to the control group. Haseman et al. (1997) reported that decreases in interstitial cell tumors of the testes have been associated with elevated rates of pituitary gland tumors in male F344 rats. It is not clear if the opposite association observed in our study, of an increased incidence of testes adenoma and a decreased incidence of pituitary gland adenoma (or mononuclear cell leukemia), applies. Due to the high spontaneous incidence of testicular tumors in male F344 rats, it is not a target for statistical correlation studies (Haseman et al., 1997). The NCTR historical control range is 69%-90%, encompassing the data reported in this study. The NTP historical control incidence (oral studies) for testicular adenoma in control rats is 89% (802/903) with a range of 74%-96% (NIEHS, 1998). Based on the broad range of incidences in the historical control data and the uncertainty of the relationship between incidence of pituitary gland tumors and testes adenomas, it is not clear if the increased incidence of testicular adenomas in male rats exposed to leucomalachite green is treatment related.

The incidence of mammary gland carcinoma in female rats fed malachite green chloride was more than double the historical control range in F344 rats at NCTR, although the change was not statistically significant. In female rats exposed to leucomalachite green, a significant increasing trend in the combined incidence of mammary gland adenoma or carcinoma was observed. The incidences of adenoma or carcinoma in the highest exposure group slightly exceeded the historical range observed for control F344 female rats in NCTR 2-year studies. The effects of other aminotriphenylmethane dyes upon mammary gland tumorigenesis have varied, with increased incidences of mammary gland carcinomas in female Sprague-Dawley rats fed Benzyl Violet 4B for 1 year (Ikeda et al., 1974; IARC, 1978), but no effect in female F344 rats fed gentian violet for 2 years (Littlefield, 1988). The mammary gland tumor data are confounded by decreases in body weight associated with the administration of both malachite green chloride and leucomalachite green. Seilkop (1995) performed an analysis of 53 F344 rat studies conducted by the NTP and found that the statistical power to detect a treatmentrelated increase in the incidence of mammary gland tumors can be seriously diminished by a mean body weight depression of as little as 10%. In an evaluation of 84 2-year NTP studies, Haseman et al. (1997) showed a strong positive correlation between the incidence of mammary gland tumors and 12-month body weight in female F344 rats. Body weight decreases in the female rats fed malachite green chloride for 52 weeks were approximately 2%, 8%, and 14% for the 100, 300, and 600 ppm groups, respectively, compared to the control group. Female rats fed leucomalachite green for 52 weeks experienced body weight decreases of approximately 6%, 13%, and 20%, respectively, for the 91, 272, and 543 ppm groups compared to the control group. (Body weight reduction of this magnitude would be associated with approximately 15% decreases in the mammary gland tumor incidence.) Thus, the slight increase in mammary gland carcinomas in female rats exposed to malachite green chloride is probably biologically significant and the effects from exposure to malachite green chloride or leucomalachite green might have been more substantial without the decrease in body weight.

In the 2-year rat studies, the incidence of mononuclear cell leukemia was significantly decreased in female rats exposed to malachite green chloride and in male and female rats exposed to leucomalachite green, with decreases in all dose groups compared to the control groups. Mononuclear cell leukemia is one of the most common neoplasms in the F344 rat. Decreases in leukemia incidences have been associated with chemicals that cause splenic toxicity (Elwell et al., 1996; Haseman and Johnson, 1996). Spleen toxicity was not observed in the current studies. Higami et al. (1994, 1995) reported that dietary restriction reduces the incidence and delays the onset, but not the progression, of leukemia in male F344 rats and suggested that the incidence and age of onset of leukemia relate to the total cumulative energy intake of the rat (i.e., age multiplied by mean daily energy intake). During the last year of the 2-year study, body weight decreases of approximately 3%, 7%, and 12% were measured in male rats fed 91, 272, or 543 ppm leucomalachite green, respectively, compared to the control group. As reported earlier, body weight decreases were also observed in female rats exposed to malachite green chloride or leucomalachite green. However, there were no consistent trends in food consumption of female rats fed malachite green chloride and statistical decreases in food consumption in male and female rats fed leucomalachite green was intermittent throughout the study. The significance and mechanism of the relationship between the decreased incidence of mononuclear cell leukemia and the administration of malachite green chloride or leucomalachite green are not clear.

The incidences of adenoma of the pituitary gland pars distalis were significantly decreased in male rats exposed to leucomalachite green with decreases in all exposed groups compared to the control group. A number of studies have shown that decreased rates of pituitary gland adenoma and carcinoma in F344 rats are associated with reduced body weight often found in treated rats (Haseman and Johnson, 1996; Haseman et al., 1997; Seilkop, 1995). As mentioned earlier, female rats fed leucomalachite green for 52 weeks experienced considerable weight decreases compared to the control group. However, changes were less pronounced in the leucomalachite green-exposed male rats, with decreases of approximately 3%, 7%, and 12% for the 91, 272, and 543 ppm leucomalachite green dose groups, respectively, compared to the control group during the last year of the study. The incidences of pituitary gland pars distalis adenoma or carcinoma for control groups of F344 male rats in NCTR studies range from 31% to 70% and in NTP studies (all routes) ranged from 18% to 78% (NTP unpublished data). These data suggest that the decrease is treatment-related, although a mechanism for this effect is not readily apparent. This was not the case with female rats exposed to malachite green chloride. There was a statistically significant increase in the incidence of pituitary gland pars distalis adenoma in the female rats fed 100 ppm malachite green chloride compared to the control group.

Central retinal degeneration was observed in both malachite green- and leucomalachite green-exposed rats. Female rats administered leucomalachite green exhibited an increasing trend in central retinal degeneration and an increase in the 543 ppm group compared to the control group. Female rats administered malachite green did not exhibit statistical increases in central retinal degeneration, although the incidence in the control female rats in the malachite green study was five times greater than the incidence in the control female rats in the leucomalachite green study. F344 rats have a genetic predisposition to peripheral retinal degeneration, but central retinal degeneration is most likely due to exposure to fluorescent light of high intensity or exposure to test article (Yoshitomi and Boorman, 1990). In the malachite green and leucomalachite green studies, it was ascertained that light intensity in the animal cages on the top shelf did exceed the recommended 30 ft-candles (NRC, 1996). However, cages were rotated on a regular basis such that all cages received similar amounts of light intensity during the study period. Since previous NTP and NCTR studies do not report separately the incidences of peripheral and central retinal degeneration, information on control incidences is not available. As a

result, the effect of malachite green and leucomalachite green exposure on the retina remains uncertain.

During the conduct of these studies, the FDA was contacted by the United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention regarding a possible correlation between the formation of acoustic neuromas and malachite green exposure in USFWS hatchery workers (K. Rosa, USFWS; E. Page, CDC; personal communication). Acoustic neuromas are histologically benign tumors derived from the Schwann cells of the 8th cranial nerve, which can lead to hearing loss, imbalance, and brainstem compression (Kumazawa et al., 1994). Acoustic neuromas are rarely found in rodents (Fujii and Nomoto, 1983; Viala et al., 1986), although nude and severe combined immune deficiency mice have been used as hosts (i.e., tumors were grafted from humans to mice; Charabi et al., 1994; Kumazawa et al., 1994). Special consideration was taken in the 2-year chronic studies to allow for the examination of the 8th cranial nerve and the surrounding area. No acoustic neuromas were observed in any of the animals on the study.

CONCLUSIONS

Under the conditions of these 2-year feed studies, there was *equivocal evidence of carcinogenic activity*^{*} of malachite green chloride in female F344/N rats based on the occurrence of thyroid gland follicular cell adenoma or carcinoma (combined) and marginal increases in hepatocellular adenoma and mammary gland carcinoma in exposed rats. There was *no evidence of carcinogenic activity* of malachite green chloride in female B6C3F₁ mice exposed to 100, 225, or 450 ppm.

Under the conditions of these 2-year feed studies, there was *equivocal evidence of carcinogenic activity* of leucomalachite green in male F344/N rats based on an increase in interstitial cell adenoma of the testes and the occurrence of thyroid gland follicular cell adenoma or carcinoma (combined) in exposed rats. There was *equivocal evidence of carcinogenic activity* of leucomalachite green in female F344/N rats based on a marginally increased incidence of hepatocellular adenoma or carcinoma or carcinoma (combined) in exposed rats. There was some evidence of thyroid gland follicular cell adenoma or carcinoma increase in female B6C3F₁ mice based on an increase in hepatocellular adenoma or carcinoma (combined).

Exposure to malachite green chloride in feed resulted in nonneoplastic lesions in the thyroid gland and liver of female rats and the urinary bladder of female mice. Exposure to leucomalachite green in feed resulted in nonneoplastic lesions in the thyroid gland and liver of male and female rats and the urinary bladder of female mice. Decreased incidences of mononuclear cell leukemia in female F344/N rats were attributed to malachite green chloride exposure. Decreased incidences of mononuclear cell leukemia in male and female F344/N rats and pituitary gland adenomas in male rats were attributed to leucomalachite green exposure.

^{*} Explanation of Levels of Evidence of Carcinogenic Activity is on page 12. A summary of the Technical Reports Review Subcommittee comments and the public discussion on this Technical Report appears on page 14.

REFERENCES

Alabaster, J.S. (1982). Survey of Fish-farm Effluents in Some EIFAC Countries. European Inland Fisheries Advisory Commission Tech. Paper No. 41, pp. 5-20.

Alderman, D.J., and Clifton-Hadley, R.S. (1993). Malachite green: a pharmacokinetic study in rainbow trout, *Oncorhynchus mykiss* (Walbaum). *J. Fish Dis.* **16**, 297-311.

Au, W., and Hsu, T.C. (1979). Studies on the clastogenic effects of biologic stains and dyes. *Environ. Mutagen.* **1**, 27-35.

Bailer, A.J., and Portier, C.J. (1988). Effects of treatment-induced mortality and tumor-induced mortality on tests for carcinogenicity in small samples. *Biometrics* **44**, 417-431.

Bauer, V.K., Dangschat, H., Knöeppler, H.-O, and Neudegger, J. (1988). Aufnahme und Ausscheidung von Malachitgrün bei Regenbogenforellen. *Arch. Lebensmittelhyg.* **39**, 85-108.

Bieler, G.S., and Williams, R.L. (1993). Ratio estimates, the delta method, and quantal response tests for increased carcinogenicity. *Biometrics* **49**, 793-801.

Bielicky, T., and Novák, M. (1969). Contact-group sensitization to triphenylmethane dyes. *Arch. Derm.* **100**, 540-543.

Bills, T.D., and Hunn, J.B. (1976). Changes in the blood chemistry of Coho salmon exposed to malachite green. *Prog. Fish Cultur.* **38**, 214-216.

Bills, T.D., Marking, L.L., and Chandler, J.H. (1977). Malachite green: Its toxicity to aquatic organisms, persistence and removal with activated carbon. *Invest. Fish Control* **75**, 1-6.

Boorman, G.A., Montgomery, C.A., Jr., Eustis, S.L., Wolfe, M.J., McConnell, E.E., and Hardisty, J.F. (1985). Quality assurance in pathology for rodent carcinogenicity studies. In *Handbook of Carcinogen Testing* (H.A. Milman and E.K. Weisburger, Eds.), pp. 345-357. Noyes Publications, Park Ridge, NJ. Burchmore, S., and Wilkinson, M. (1993). Proposed Environmental Quality Standards for Malachite Green in Water (DWE 9026). UK Department of the Environment, Report No. 3167/2 (November 1993) prepared by the Water Research Center, Buckinghamshire, UK.

Charabi, S., Rygaard, J., Klinken, L., Tos, M., and Thomsen, J. (1994). Subcutaneous growth of human acoustic schwannomas in athymic nude mice. *Acta Otolaryngol.* **114**, 399-405.

Clemmensen, S., Jensen, J.C., Jensen, N.J., Meyer, O., Olsen, P., and Würtzen, G. (1984). Toxicological studies on malachite green: A triphenylmethane dye. *Arch. Toxicol.* **56**, 43-45.

Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 21, Part 58

Cox, D.R., (1972). Regression models and life-tables. *J. R. Stat. Soc.* **B34**, 187-220.

Culp, S.J., and Beland, F.A. (1996). Malachite green: A toxicological review. J. Am. Coll. Toxicol. 15, 219-238.

Culp, S.J., Mulligan, T.L., and Beland, F.A. (1998a). Twenty-eight Day Range Finding Study in Mice and Rats Administered Malachite Green and Leucomalachite Green in the Diet (2118.01/02 - Malachite Green). NCTR Technical Report for Experiment No. 2118.01/02. National Center for Toxicological Research, Jefferson, AR.

Culp, S.J., Mulligan, T.L., and Beland, F.A. (1998b). Twenty-eight Day Range Finding Study in Mice and Rats Administered Malachite Green and Leucomalachite Green in the Diet (2118.03/04 - Leucomalachite Green). NCTR Technical Report for Experiment No. 2118.03/04. National Center for Toxicological Research, Jefferson, AR.

Culp, S.J., Blankenship, L.R., Kusewitt, D.F., Doerge, D.R., Mulligan, L.T., and Beland, F.A. (1999). Toxicity and metabolism of malachite green and leucomalachite green during short-term feeding to Fischer 344 rats and B6C3F₁ mice. *Chem. Biol. Interact.* **122**, 153-170.

Culp, S.J., Beland, F.A., Heflich, R.H., Benson, R.W., Blankenship, L.R., Webb, P.J., Mellick, P.W., Trotter, R.W., Shelton, S.D., Greenlees, K.J., and Manjanatha, M.G. (2002). Mutagenicity and carcinogenicity in relation to DNA adduct formation in rats fed leucomalachite green. *Mutat. Res.* **506-507**, 55-63.

Cunningham, M.L., Hayward, J.J., Shane, B.S., and Tindal, K.R. (1996). Distinction of mutagenic carcinogens from a mutagenic noncarcinogen in the Big Blue transgenic mouse. *Environ. Health Perspect.* **104**, 683-686.

Doerge, D.R., Churchwell, M.I., Gehring, T.A., Pu, Y.M., and Plakas, S.M. (1998a). Analysis of malachite green and metabolites in fish using liquid chromatography atmospheric pressure chemical ionization mass spectrometry. *Rapid Commun. Mass Spectrom.* **12**, 1625-1634.

Doerge, D.R., Chang, H.C., Divi, R.L., and Churchwell, M.I. (1998b). Mechanism for inhibition of thyroid peroxidase by leucomalachite green. *Chem. Res. Toxicol.* **11**, 1098-1104.

Dunnett, C.W. (1955). A multiple comparison procedure for comparing several treatments with a control. *J. Am. Stat. Assoc.* **50**, 1096-1121.

Elwell, M.R., Dunnick, J.K, Hailey, J.R., and Haseman, J.K. (1996). Chemicals associated with decreases in the incidence of mononuclear cell leukemia in the Fischer rat. *Toxicol. Pathol.* **24**, 238-245. Ferguson, L.R., and Baguley, B.C. (1988). Verapamil as a co-mutagen in the Salmonella/mammalian microsome

mutagenicity test. *Mutat. Res.* **209**, 57-62.

Fernandes, C., Lalitha, V.S., and Rao, K.V.K. (1991). Enhancing effect of malachite green on the development of hepatic pre-neoplastic lesions induced by *N*-nitrosodiethylamine in rats. *Carcinogenesis* **12**, 839-845.

Fessard, V., Godard, T., Heut, S., Mourot, A., and Poul, J.M. (1999). Mutagenicity of malachite green and leucomalachite green in *in vitro* tests. *J. Appl. Toxicol.* **19**, 421-430.

Fisher, W.S., Rosemark, T.R., and Shleser, R.A. (1976). Toxicity of malachite green to cultured American lobster larvae. *Aquaculture* **8**, 151-156. Fujii, K., and Nomoto, K. (1983). Tumor induction by a single subcutaneous injection of 1-butyl-1-nitrosourea or 1-butylurea in newborn mice. *Cancer Lett.* **18**, 321-328.

Gerundo, N., Alderman, D.J., Clifton-Hadley, R.S., and Feist, S.W. (1991). Pathological effects of repeated doses of malachite green: A preliminary study. *J. Fish Dis.* **14**, 521-532.

Glagoleva, T.P., and Malikova, E.M. (1968). The effect of malachite green on the blood composition of young Baltic salmon [in Russian]. *Rybnoe Khozyaistvo.* **45**, 15-18.

Grant, W.M. (1974). *Toxicology of the Eye*. 2nd ed., pp. 430-431. Charles C. Thomas, Springfield, IL.

Grizzle, J.M. (1977). Hematological changes in fingerling channel catfish exposed to malachite green. *Prog. Fish Cultur.* **39**, 90-93.

Haseman, J.K., and Johnson, F.M. (1996). Analysis of National Toxicology Program rodent bioassay data for anticarcinogenic effects. *Mutat. Res.* **350**, 131-141.

Haseman, J.K., Young, E., Eustis, S.L., and Hailey, J.R. (1997). Body weight-tumor incidence correlations in long-term rodent carcinogenicity studies. *Toxicol. Pathol.* **25**, 256-263.

Higami, Y., Yu, B.P., Shimokawa, I., Masoro, E.J., and Ikeda, T. (1994). Duration of dietary restriction: An important determinant for the incidence and age of onset of leukemia in male F344 rats. *J. Gerontol.* **49**, B239-B244.

Higami, Y., Yu, B.P., Shimokawa, I., Bertrand, H., Hubbard G.B., and Masoro, E.J. (1995). Anti-tumor action of dietary restriction is lesion-dependent in male Fischer 344 rats. *J. Gerontol. A. Biol. Sci Med. Sci.* **50**, B72-B77.

Hlavek, R.R., and Bulkley, R.V. (1980). Effects of malachite green on leucocyte abundance in rainbow trout, *Salmo gairdneri* (Richardson). *J. Fish Biol.* **17**, 431-444.

Ikeda, Y., Horiuchi S., Imoto, A., Kodama, Y., Aida, Y., and Kobayashi, K. (1974). Induction of mammary gland and skin tumors in female rats by the feeding of benzyl violet 4B. *Toxicology* **2**, 275-284.
International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC) (1978). *IARC Monographs on the Evaluation of the Carcinogenic Risk of Chemicals to Man: Some Aromatic Amines and Related Nitro Compounds — Hair Dyes, Colouring Agents and Miscellaneous Industrial Chemicals*, Vol. 16. IARC, Lyon, France.

Jensen, N.J. (1984). Lack of mutagenic activity of malachite green in the mammalian spot test. *Mutat. Res.* **130**, 248.

Kaplan, E.L., and Meier, P. (1958). Nonparametric estimation from incomplete observations. *J. Am. Stat. Assoc.* **53**, 457-481.

Kumazawa, H., Kyoumoto, R., Matsumoto, A., Sai, S., Tomoda, K., Yamashita, T., and Tsubura, A. (1994). Growth of human acoustic neuroma in mice severe combined immune deficiency. *Proc. Annu. Meet. Jpn. Cancer Assoc.* **6**, 530.

Lavender, A.R., and Pullman, T.N. (1964). The renal actions of malachite green, a diuretic dye. *J. Pharmacol. Exp. Ther.* **146**, 87-91.

Law, F.C.P. (1994). Total residue depletion and metabolic profile of selected drugs in trout. U.S. Food and Drug Administration Contract No. #223-90-7016. Simon Fraser University, Burnaby, BC.

Littlefield, N.A. (1988). Chronic toxicity and carcinogenicity studies of gentian violet in Fischer 344 rats. NCTR Technical Report for Experiment No. 338, November 1988, National Center for Toxicological Research, Jefferson, AR.

Littlefield, N.A., Blackwell, B-N., Hewitt, C.C., and Gaylor, D.W. (1985). Chronic toxicity and carcinogenicity studies of gentian violet in mice. *Fundam. Appl. Toxicol.* **5**, 902-912.

Manjanatha, M.G., Shelton, S.D., Bishop, M., Shaddock, J.G., Dobrovolsky, V.N., Heflich, R.H., Webb, P.J., Blankenship, L.R., Beland, F.A., Greenlees, K.J., and Culp, S.J. (2004). Analysis of mutations and bone marrow micronuclei in Big Blue rats fed leucomalachite green. *Mutat. Res.* **547**, 5-18. Maronpot, R.R., and Boorman, G.A. (1982). Interpretation of rodent hepatocellular proliferative alterations and hepatocellular tumors in chemical safety assessment. *Toxicol. Pathol.* **10**, 71-80.

McConnell, E.E., Solleveld, H.A., Swenberg, J.A., and Boorman, G.A. (1986). Guidelines for combining neoplasms for evaluation of rodent carcinogenesis studies. *JNCI*. **76**, 283-289.

The Merck Index (1996). 12th ed. (S. Budavari, Ed.), p. 972. Merck & Company, Inc., Whitehouse Station, NJ.

Meyer, F.P., and Jorgenson, T.A. (1983). Teratological and other effects of malachite green on development of rainbow trout and rabbits. *Trans. Am. Fish. Soc.* **112**, 818-824.

Meyer, F.P., and Schnick, R.A. (1989). A review of chemicals used for the control of fish diseases. *Rev. Aquat. Sci.* **1**, 693-710.

National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences (1998). Tumor incidence in control animals by route and vehicle of administration: F344/N rats. NIEHS, Research Triangle Park, NC.

National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) (1990). National Occupational Exposure Survey (1981-1983), unpublished provisional data as of July 1, 1990. NIOSH, Cincinnati, OH.

National Research Council (NRC) Institute of Laboratory Animal Resources Commission on Life Sciences (1996). Animal environment, housing, and management. In *Guide for the Care and Use of Laboratory Animals*, pp. 21-55, National Academy Press, Washington, DC.

National Toxicology Program (NTP) (2004). Toxicity Studies of Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green (CAS Nos. 569-64-2 and 129-73-7) Administered in Feed to F344/N Rats and B6C3F₁ Mice. Toxicity Report Series No. 71. U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Public Health Service, National Institutes of Health, Research Triangle Park, NC.

Nelson, N.C. (1974). A review of the literature on the use of malachite green in fisheries. National Technical Information Service, Springfield, VA.

Panandiker, A., Maru, G.B., and Rao, K.V.K. (1994). Dose-response effects of malachite green on free radical formation, lipid peroxidation and DNA damage in Syrian hamster embryo cells and their modulation by antioxidants. *Carcinogenesis* **15**, 2445-2448.

Piegorsch, W.W., and Bailer, A.J., (1997). *Statistics for Environmental Biology and Toxicology*, Section 6.3.2. Chapman and Hall, London.

Plakas, S.M., El Said, K.R., Stehly, G.R., Gingerich, W.H., and Allen, J.L. (1996). Uptake, tissue distribution, and metabolism of malachite green in the channel catfish (*Ictalurus punctatus*). *Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci.* **53**, 1427-1433.

Poe, W.E., and Wilson, R.P. (1983). Absorption of malachite green by channel catfish. *Prog. Fish Cultur.* **45**, 228-229.

Portier, C.J., and Bailer, A.J. (1989). Testing for increased carcinogenicity using a survival-adjusted quantal response test. *Fundam. Appl. Toxicol.* **12**, 731-737.

Portier, C.J., Hedges, J.C., and Hoel, D.G. (1986). Agespecific models of mortality and tumor onset for historical control animals in the National Toxicology Program's carcinogenicity experiments. *Cancer Res.* **46**, 4372-4378.

Schlotfeldt, H.J. (1992). Current practices of chemotherapy in fish culture [in French, English summary]. In *Chemotheory in Aquaculture: From Theory to Reality* (C. Michel and D.J. Alderman, Eds.) pp. 25-38. Office International des Epizooti, Paris.

Schnick, R.A. (1988). The impetus to register new therapeutants for aquaculture. *Prog. Fish Cultur.* **50**, 190-196.

Seilkop, S.K. (1995). The effect of body weight on tumor incidence and carcinogenicity testing in $B6C3F_1$ mice and F344 rats. *Fundam. Appl. Toxicol.* **24**, 247-259.

Solbé, J.F. de L.G. (1982). Fish-farm effluents; a United Kingdom survey. European Inland Fisheries Advisory Commission Technical Paper No. 41, pp. 29-55.

Staedtler, F., Perez, J.C., Sagelsdorff, P., Steiner, S., Suter, W. (1999). 4-chloro-o-phenylenediamine induces a dose-related increase in GC-TA transversions and one major DNA adduct in the liver of Big Blue mice after 26 weeks in feed treatment. *Mutat. Res.* **430**, 121-130.

Stoskopf, M.K. (1993). *Fish Medicine*, pp. 316-317. W.B. Saunders, Philadelphia.

Suter, W., Ahiabor, R., Blanco, B., Locher, F., Mantovani, F., Robinson, M., Sreenan, G., Staedtler, F., Swingler, T., Vignutelli, A., and Perentes, E. (1996). Evaluation of the in vivo genotoxic potential of three carcinogenic aromatic amines using the Big Blue transgenic mouse mutation assay. *Environ. Mol. Mutagen.* **28**, 354-362.

Tarone, R.E. (1975). Tests for trend in life table analysis. *Biometrika* **62**, 679-682.

Thorburn, M.A., and Moccia, R.D. (1993). Use of chemotherapeutics on trout farms in Ontario. *J. Aquat. Anim. Health* **5**, 85-91.

Veterinary Residues Committee (VRC) (2002). Annual Report on Surveillance for Veterinary Residues in Food in the U.K. Surrey, UK.

Viala, P., Perre, J., Sterkers, J.M., and Foncin, J.F. (1986). Origin of acoustic neuroma. *Ann. Otolaryngol. Chir. Cervicofac.* **103**, 475-477.

Werth, V.G., and Boiteux A. (1968). Biological activity of malachite green. VI. Detoxification of malachite green by formation of leucomalachite green [in German]. *Arzneimittelforschung* **18**, 39-42.

Wolfe, A.D. (1977). Influence of cationic triphenylmethane dyes upon DNA polymerization and product hydrolysis by *Escherichia coli* polymerase I. *Biochemistry* **16**, 30-33.

Yoshitomi, K., and Boorman, G.A. (1990). Eye and Associated Glands. In *Pathology of the Fischer Rat* (G.A. Boorman, S.L. Eustis, M.R. Elwell, C.A. Montgomery, and W.F. MacKenzie, Eds.), pp. 239-247. Academic Press, Inc., San Diego, CA.

APPENDIX A SUMMARY OF LESIONS IN MALE RATS IN THE 2-YEAR FEED STUDY OF LEUCOMALACHITE GREEN

TABLE A1	Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Male Rats	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	74
TABLE A2	Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of Male Rats	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	78
TABLE A3	Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Male Rats	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	102
TABLE A4a	Historical Incidence of Thyroid Gland (Follicular Cell) Neoplasms	
	in Control Male F344 Rats	106
TABLE A4b	Historical Incidence of Testes Adenoma in Control Male F344 Rats	106
TABLE A5	Summary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Male Rats	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	107

TABLE	A1
-------	----

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Gr	reen ^a

	0	ppm	91	ppm	272	2 ppm	543	3 ppm
Disposition Summary								
Animals initially in study		48		48		48		48
Early deaths								
Moribund		20		12		11		10
Natural deaths		4		5		3		7
Survivors								
Died last week of study		1		1				•
Terminal sacrifice		23		29		34		30
Missexed				1				1
Animals examined microscopically		48		47		48		47
Alimentary System								
Intestine large	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Colon, adenoma					1	(2%)		
Rectum, sarcoma, metastatic, skin			1	(2%)				
Intestine small	(47)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Ileum, leiomyoma	1	(2%)	1	(2%)				
Jejunum, leiomyoma							1	(2%)
Liver	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Fibrous histiocytoma, metastatic, skin		(40/)	2	(40)	2	((0))	1	(2%)
Hepatocellular adenoma	2	(4%)	2	(4%)	3	(6%)	2	(4%)
Histiocytic sarcoma	1	(2%)	1	(20/)				
Salcolla, Inelastatic, skill	(5)		(3)	(2%)	(6)		(3)	
Pancreas	(3)		(47)		(0)		(47)	
Sarcoma metastatic skin	(40)		(47)	(2%)	(40)		(47)	
Acinar cell, adenocarcinoma			-	(270)			1	(2%)
Salivary glands	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Fibrous histiocytoma	~ /		~ /		~ /		1	(2%)
Histiocytic sarcoma			1	(2%)				
Stomach	(48)		(47)		(47)		(47)	
Cardiovascular System								
Blood vessel	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Heart	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Histiocytic sarcoma			1	(2%)				
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin							1	(2%)
Endocrine System								
Adrenal gland	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Bilateral, medulla, pheochromocytoma benign			1	(2%)				
Cortex, adenoma	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)		
Medulla, pheochromocytoma malignant			2	(4%)			3	(6%)
Medulla, pheochromocytoma complex	2	$\langle (0) \rangle$	-	(110/)	2	(40/)	1	(2%)
Iviedulla, pneochromocytoma benign	3	(0%)	5	(11%)	2	(4%)	3	(6%)
Adenoma	(48)	(10%)	(4/)	(4%)	(48)	(2%)	(47)	(0%)
Pitnitary gland) (45)	(1070)	(46)	(470)	(48)	(270)	4 (45)	(970)
Cranionharyngioma	(43)		(40)		(40)		(+3)	(2%)
Pars distalis, adenoma	30	(67%)	19	(41%)	21	(44%)	13	(29%)

Endocrine System (continued)				
Thyroid gland	(47)	(47)	(48)	(46)
Fibrous histiocytoma	(17)	(17)	(10)	1 (2%)
Bilateral follicular cell carcinoma				1 (2%)
C-cell adenoma	6 (13%)	7 (15%)	7 (15%)	4 (9%)
C-cell carcinoma	1 (2%)	2 (4%)	(10,0)	. (270)
Follicular cell adenoma	1 (270)	2 (1%)		1 (2%)
Follicular cell, carcinoma		2 (170)	1 (2%)	1 (2%)
General Body System				
Tissue NOS	(1)			(1)
Genital System				
Epididymis	(48)	(47)	(48)	(47)
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin	× /	2 (4%)		. /
Preputial gland	(48)	(47)	(48)	(47)
Adenoma	5 (10%)	2 (4%)	7 (15%)	3 (6%)
Carcinoma	6 (13%)	· · · ·	4 (8%)	9 (19%)
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin		2 (4%)		
Squamous cell papilloma		· · · ·		1 (2%)
Prostate	(48)	(47)	(48)	(47)
Testes	(48)	(47)	(48)	(47)
Bilateral, interstitial cell, adenoma	22 (46%)	30 (64%)	38 (79%)	39 (83%)
Interstitial cell, adenoma	15 (31%)	12 (26%)	5 (10%)	6 (13%)
Hematopoietic System				
Bone marrow	(48)	(47)	(48)	(47)
Lymph node	(48)	(47)	(48)	(47)
Spleen	(48)	(47)	(48)	(47)
Adenocarcinoma, metastatic, pancreas				1 (2%)
Thymus	(43)	(42)	(43)	(42)
Fibrous histiocytoma		1 (2%)		
Histiocytic sarcoma		1 (2%)		
Integumentary System				
Mammary gland	(43)	(41)	(46)	(41)
Carcinoma	× /		1 (2%)	. /
Fibroadenoma	1 (2%)	2 (5%)	1 (2%)	4 (10%)
Skin	(48)	(47)	(47)	(47)
Basal cell adenoma				1 (2%)
Basal cell carcinoma			1 (2%)	. /
Fibroma	4 (8%)	1 (2%)	1 (2%)	5 (11%)
Fibrous histiocytoma		1 (2%)	1 (2%)	1 (2%)
Keratoacanthoma	2 (4%)	3 (6%)		2 (4%)
Lipoma	× /	3 (6%)	1 (2%)	. ,
Sarcoma		3 (6%)		4 (9%)
Squamous cell carcinoma		× /		1 (2%)
Squamous cell papilloma		1 (2%)		、 <i>/</i>
Face, squamous cell papilloma		1 (2%)		
Sebaceous gland, adenoma		1 (2%)		

TABLE A1 -• • • • • • • M I D . Easd Stade . . с т la altita C

TABLE .	A1
---------	----

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

	0	ppm	91	ppm	272	2 ppm	543	ppm
Musculoskeletal System								
Bone	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Femur, sarcoma, metastatic, skin	(48)		1 (47)	(2%)	(18)		(47)	
Fibrous histiocytoma, metastatic, skin	(40)		(47)		(48)		(47)	(2%)
Nervous System								
Brain	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Cerebrum, astrocytoma malignant			1	(2%)				
Spinal cord	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Respiratory System								
Lung	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma	1	(2%)			3	(6%)	4	(9%)
Carcinoma, metastatic, thyroid gland			1	(29/)	1	(2%)		
Histiocytic sarcoma			1	(2%)				
Sarcoma metastatic skin			1	(2%)			1 ((2%)
Squamous cell carcinoma, metastatic, preputial gland			1	(270)			1	(2%)
Alveolar/bronchiolar, adenoma			1	(2%)				(_/*)
Nose	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Trachea	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Fibrous histiocytoma							1 ((2%)
Special Senses System								
Ear	(1)				(2)			
Pinna, neural crest tumor	1	(100%)			1	(50%)		
Eye	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Lids, sarcoma	1	(2%)						
Harderian gland	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Zymbal's gland	(46)	(20/)	(43)		(47)		(47)	(20/)
Carcinoma	1	(2%)			1	(20/)	1 ((2%)
Squamous cen caremonia					1	(270)		
Urinary System								
Kidney	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Histiocytic sarcoma			1	(2%)				
Urinary bladder	(48)		(47)	(20/)	(48)		(47)	
Iransitional epithelium, papilloma			I	(2%)				
Systemic Lesions								
Multiple organs ⁰	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Leukemia mononuclear	29	(60%)	16	(34%)	19	(40%)	7	(15%)
Mesothelioma malignant	2	(4%)			1	(2%)	1	(2%)

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Neonlasm Summary				
Total animals with primary neoplasms ^c	48	47	47	47
Total primary neoplasms	140	129	122	128
Total animals with benign neoplasms	45	47	47	47
Total benign neoplasms	98	98	92	94
Total animals with malignant neoplasms	34	23	25	26
Total malignant neoplasms	41	31	29	34
Total animals with metastatic neoplasms		3	1	5
Total metastatic neoplasms		10	1	6
Total animals with uncertain neoplasms-			-	-
benign or malignant	1		1	
Total uncertain neoplasms	1		1	

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

a Number of animals examined microscopically at the site and the number of animals with neoplasm
 b Number of animals with any tissue examined microscopically
 c Primary neoplasms: all neoplasms except metastatic neoplasms

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	gy of Ma	le	Ra	ts i	in t	the	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	y of	fL	eu	cor	na	lac	hit	te (Gre	een	: 0	ppm
	5	5	5	5	5	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7
Number of Days on Study	4	6	6	7	0	1	1	2	3	3	5	5	6	6	6	0	0	Ó	Ó	1	1	2	3	3	3
Tumber of Days on Study	1	4	4	, 7	9	3	3	3	2	9	3	9	2	2	6	0	8	1	6	7	8	5	1	2	3
	0	2	2	2	0	0	2	2	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	2	2	2
Carcass ID Number	1	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	3	2 1	3	3	4	4	4	4	5	5	5	5	5	5	27	0	2
	7	0	2	2	6	5	7	8	0	5	8	5	0	2	1	8	0	2	8	6	7	8	3	9	4
Alimentary System																									
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Ileum, leiomyoma																									
Intestine small, duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Hepatocellular adenoma										Х							Х								
Histiocytic sarcoma																									
Mesentery														+	$^+$	$^+$									
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Salivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomach, glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Cardiovascular System																									
Blood vessel	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Endocrine System																									
Adrenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Cortex, adenoma																									
Medulla, pheochromocytoma benign												Х													
Adrenal gland, cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Adrenal gland, medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Islets, pancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Adenoma																	Х				Х				
Parathyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	M
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	N	1 +	+	+	+	+
Pars distalis, adenoma	Х			X		X	X	X		X	X	X	X	X	X				X		X	Х	. X		X
Thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	I	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	• +	+	+	+	+
C cell, adenoma						Х					Х											Х	v		Λ
C-cell, carcinoma																							X		

+: Tissue examined microscopically

A: Autolysis precludes examination

M: Missing tissue I: Insufficient tissue X: Lesion present Blank: Not examined

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of	Ma	le	Ra	ts i	in t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	y of	f L	eu	con	nal	ac	hit	e G	Gre	en:	0 ppm
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Number of Days on Study	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	
	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	4	4	4	4	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	
	2	2	2	2	2	2	3	3	3	3	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	3	3	3	Total
Carcass ID Number	7	7	7	7	8	8	1	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	8	8	1	1	1	1	Tissues/
	6	7	8	9	0	1	0	5	6	7	8	0	1	2	3	4	5	8	9	1	2	3	4	Tumors
Alimentary System																								
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Intestine large, color	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine small	+	+	+	+	+	+	Å	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Ileum leiomyoma							11														v			1
Intestine small duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	Δ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	Δ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Intestine small, ieiunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	Δ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Liver	- -	- -		+	+	- -	л 	- -	+	, +		- -	- -		+	- -	, +			- -			- -	47
	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	48
Hepatocellular adenoma	v																							2
Histiocytic sarcoma	Х																							l
Mesentery		+	+																					5
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Salivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Stomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Stomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Stomach, glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Endocrine System																								
Adrenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Cortex adenoma																x								1
Medulla pheochromocytoma benign									х											x				3
Adrenal gland cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Adrenal gland medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	м	+	40
Islets pancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Adonoma	'					'		v	v		v												'	48
Parathyroid gland	+	+	м	+	+	+	м	л +	л +	м	M	м	+	+	+	+	м	+	м	+	+	м	+	20
Dituitory aland	۰۳ ل	т _	1VI	т 	г +	г -	111	т Т	- -	1VI	1VI	111	т 	T 1	T 1	т _	IVI M	т _	1VI		T 1	1VI	۔ ب	38
Dara distalia adanama	Ŧ	\mathbf{v}	T V	T V	-	\mathbf{v}	T V	\mathbf{v}	т	\mathbf{v}	\mathbf{v}	\mathbf{v}	\mathbf{v}	т	т	\mathbf{v}	111	T V	T V	\mathbf{v}	т	т	-	45
r ars distans, adenoma		- Л	л 	л 	J	л _	л _	л 		- A	<u>А</u>	А 	А !			- Л	.1	л 	- A	- A			L	30
C coll adaption	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Ŧ	4/
C-cell, carcinoma						л													л					6 1

TABLE A2

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	y of Ma	le	Ra	ts i	n th	e 2	-Ye	ear	Fe	ed	Stu	udy	y of	f L	euo	con	nal	ac	hite	e G	Fre	en	: 0	ppm
Number of Days on Study	5 4 1	5 6 4	5 6 4	5 7 7	5 9 9	6 6 1 1 3 3	5 6 1 2 3 3	6 3 2	6 3 9	6 5 3	6 5 9	6 6 2	6 6 2	6 6 6	6 9 0	6 9 8	7 0 1	7 0 6	7 1 7	7 1 8	7 2 5	7 3 1	7 3 2	7 3 3
Carcass ID Number	0 1 7	2 3 0	2 3 2	3 8 2	0 2 6	0 2 2 3 5 7	2 2 3 3 7 8	0 3 0	2 4 5	0 3 8	0 3 5	0 4 0	0 4 2	0 4 1	0 4 8	0 5 0	0 5 2	2 5 8	0 5 6	0 5 7	0 5 8	2 7 3	3 0 9	2 7 4
General Body System Tissue NOS																								
Genital System Coagulating gland Epididymis Preputial gland Adenoma Carcinoma Prostate Seminal vesicle Testes Bilateral, interstitial cell, adenoma Interstitial cell, adenoma	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + X + + + X X	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + X	- + - + - + - + - +	+ + + + + + X	+ + + + + + X	+ + + + + + + + X	+ + + + + + X	+ + + + + + + + + X	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + X	+ + + + + + X	+ + + + + X	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + X + + + X	+ + + + + + + + X	+ + + + + X	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + X
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ · + · + · + · M ·	+ + + + + + + +	- + - + - + - + - +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + M	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +
Integumentary System Mammary gland Fibroadenoma Skin Fibroma Keratoacanthoma	M +	++	+ +	+ +	M ·	+ +	- + - + X	M +	++	++	++	+ + X	+ +	+ +	+++	++	+ +	+ +	++	++	++	++	M +	+ +
Musculoskeletal System Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle	+++++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	- + - + - +	++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+ + +
Nervous System Brain Brain, brain stem Brain, cerebellum Brain, cerebrum Peripheral nerve Spinal cord Spinal cord, thoracic	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	- + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	y of Ma	le	Ra	ts iı	ı th	e 2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	ıdy	/ of	fL	euc	con	nal	ac	hit	e C	Fre	en:	0 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 7 3 3 3 3	7 3 3 3 3	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5		
Carcass ID Number	2 7 6	2 7 7	2 7 8	2 7 9	2 2 8 8 0 1	2 3 3 1 0	3 6 5	3 6 6	3 6 7	3 6 8	0 6 0	0 6 1	0 6 2	0 6 3	0 6 4	0 6 5	0 8 8	0 8 9	3 1 1	3 1 2	3 1 3	3 1 4		Total Tissues/ Tumors
General Body System Tissue NOS			+																					1
Genital System Coagulating gland Epididymis Preputial gland Adenoma Carcinoma Prostate Seminal vesicle Testes Bilateral, interstitial cell, adenoma Interstitial cell, adenoma	+ + + + + X	+ + + + + + X	+ + + + + + + + + X	+ + + + + + + + + X	+ + + + + + + + X X	- + - + X - + - + X X X	+ + + + + + X + + + X X	+ + + X + + + X	+ + + + X + + + X	+ + + + + + X	+ + + + + + + X	+ + + + + + X	+ + + + + + X	M + + X + + X	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + X	+ + + + + + X	+ + + X + + + X	M + + + + X	+ + + + X + + + X	+ + + + + + + X	+ + + X + + X		46 48 48 5 6 48 48 48 48 22 15
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	- + - + - + - + - +	+ + + + M	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + M	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + M		48 48 48 48 48 48 43
Integumentary System Mammary gland Fibroadenoma Skin Fibroma Keratoacanthoma	+	+ + X	++	+ +	+ +	- M - +	[+ +	++	+ + X	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+ + X	+ + X	++	+ X +	+ +		43 1 48 4 2
Musculoskeletal System Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle	+ + +	++++	+++++	++++++	+ + + + + +	- + - + - +	+++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	++++++		48 48 48
Nervous System Brain Brain, brain stem Brain, cerebellum Brain, cerebrum Peripheral nerve Spinal cord Spinal cord, thoracic	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	- + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +		48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	ogy of Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7	
Carcass ID Number	0 2 2 3 0 0 2 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0	
Respiratory System		
Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	
Nose Trachea	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$	
Special Senses System		
Ear Pinna, neural crest tumor		
Eye Lids, sarcoma	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	
Harderian gland	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$	
Zymbal's gland Carcinoma	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	
Urinary System		
Kidney	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$	
Urinary bladder	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	
Systemic Lesions		
Multiple organs	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	
Leukemia mononuclear Mesothelioma malignant	X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	

TABLE A2 Individual Animal Tu

Individual Animal Tumor Patho	logy of Ma	ıle	Ra	its i	in (the	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	St	udy	y 0	f L	eu	cor	nal	ac	hit	e (Gre	en:	0 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	7 3 3	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 5																			
Carcass ID Number	2 7 6	2 7 7	2 7 8	2 7 9	2 8 0	2 8 1	3 1 0	3 6 5	3 6 6	3 6 7	3 6 8	0 6 0	0 6 1	0 6 2	0 6 3	0 6 4	0 6 5	0 8 8	0 8 9	3 1 1	3 1 2	3 1 3	3 1 4		Total Tissues/ Tumors
Respiratory System																									
Lung	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ v	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Nose	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Trachea	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Special Senses System																									
Ear																		+							1
Finna, neural crest tumor	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	л +	+	+	+	+	+		48
Lids, sarcoma													x												1
Harderian gland	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Zymbal's gland Carcinoma	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		46 1
Urinary System																									
Kidney	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Urinary bladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Systemic Lesions																									10
Multiple organs	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ v	+ v	+ v	+	+	+	+	+		48
Mesothelioma malignant	А	л	л Х	л						л			л			л	л	л		л		л	Λ		29

TABLE	A2
LINDLL	

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of	Male	Ra	its	in 1	the	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	St	udy	y o	f L	eu	cor	nal	ac	hit	e C	}re	en	: 9	1 ppm
Number of Days on Study	4 8 7	5 6 7	5 7 9	6 0 4	6 0 6	6 1 5	6 2 0	6 2 9	6 3 6	6 6 7	6 7 1	6 9 7	7 0 9	7 2 4	7 2 9	7 2 9	7 3 2	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3
Carcass ID Number	0 1 5	2 3 3	0 2 4	2 3 5	0 2 8	0 2 9	0 2 7	2 4 0	2 4 4	2 5 1	2 5 4	2 5 6	0 5 3	2 7 2	3 0 7	3 0 8	0 5 9	2 8 2	2 8 3	2 8 4	2 8 5	2 8 6	2 8 7	2 8 8
Alimentary System																								
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Rectum, sarcoma, metastatic, skin				Х																				
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine mall	+ +	+	+	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	+ +	+	+
Illeum leiomyoma	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	\mathbf{v}	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ
Intestine small duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	л +	+	+	+	+	Δ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, ideum	+	Å	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Liver Hepatocellular adenoma Sarcoma, metastatic, skin	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+
Mesentery																				$^+$				
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin				Х																				
Salivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Histiocytic sarcoma						Х																		
Stomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomach, glandular Tongue	++	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	+	+	+	+ +	+	+	+ +	+ +	+	+	+	+ +	+	+ +	+	+ +	+ +
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Histiocytic sarcoma						Х																		
Endocrine System																								
Adrenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Bilateral, medulla, pheochromocytoma benign																								
Cortex, adenoma																								
Medulla, pheochromocytoma malignant												Х							Х					
Medulla, pheochromocytoma benign						Х												Х						Х
Adrenal gland, cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Adrenal gland, medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Islets, pancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Adenoma Depathymoid aland				۸4			١đ					-X		١đ					,			١đ		
r aramyrold gland	+	+	+	1VI	+	+	1 ∨1 _⊥	+	+	+	+	+	+ M	1 ∨1 _⊥	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	1 ∨1 _⊥	+	⊤ ⊥
Pars distalis adenoma	$^+$ v	\mathbf{v}^+	+	Ŧ	\mathbf{v}^{\top}	т	\mathbf{v}^{\top}	\mathbf{v}^{+}	\mathbf{v}^+	+	\mathbf{v}^+	Ŧ	IVI	\mathbf{v}^{\top}	Ŧ	\mathbf{v}^{\top}	т	т	\mathbf{v}^{+}	\mathbf{v}^{\top}	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	1
Thyroid gland	л +	л +	+	+	л +	+	л +	л +	л +	+	л +	+	+	л +	+	л +	+	+	л +	л +	+	+	+	+
C-cell adenoma	ſ			1	x		'	1	1.	1.		1		'	'	'		1	1		x	1	'	
C-cell, carcinoma															х						2 x			
Follicular cell, adenoma															-									

														-							_			-pm
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Number of Days on Study	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	
	4	4	4	4	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	
	3	3	3	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	3	3	3	3	Total
Carcass ID Number	1	6	7	7	6	6	6	6	7	7	7	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	1	1	1	1	2	Tissues/
	8	9	0	1	6	7	8	9	0	1	2	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	5	6	7	9	0	Tumors
Alimenteur Sustem																								
Esonhagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Rectum, sarcoma, metastatic, skin																								1
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	47
Intestine small	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	47
Ileum, leiomyoma																								1
Intestine small, duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	46
Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Intestine small, jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Hepatocellular adenoma																Х								2
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin																								1
Mesentery																		+		+				3
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin																								1
Salivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4/
Histocytic sarcoma																								1
Stomach forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Stomach, dandular	- -	+	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	т _	47
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47 47
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Histiocytic sarcoma																								1
Endocrine System																								
Adrenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Bilateral medulla pheochromocytoma benign	x																							1
Cortex, adenoma						Х																		1
Medulla, pheochromocytoma malignant																								2
Medulla, pheochromocytoma benign																Х					Х			5
Adrenal gland, cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	47
Adrenal gland, medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Ι	+	+	+	+	+	46
Islets, pancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Adenoma													Х											2
Parathyroid gland	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	41
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Pars distalis, adenoma	Х			Х	Х	Х							Х	Х					Х			Х		19
Thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
C-cell, adenoma			Х										Х		Х						Х	Х		7
U-cell, carcinoma			v		v												х							2
FOUNCHIST CELL SCIENCIS			x		x																			

TABLE A2

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	gy of Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 91 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	4 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7	
Carcass ID Number	0 2 0 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 0 2 2 2 2 2 1 3 2 3 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 5 7 0 0 5 8	
General Body System None		
Genital System Coagulating gland Epididymis Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Penis Preputial gland Adenoma Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Prostate Seminal vesicle Testes Bilateral, interstitial cell, adenoma Interstitial cell, adenoma	$\begin{array}{c} + & + & + & + & + & + & + & + & + & + $	
Bone marrow Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus Fibrous histiocytoma Histiocytic sarcoma	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	
Integumentary System Mammary gland Fibroadenoma Skin Fibroma Fibrous histiocytoma Keratoacanthoma Lipoma Sarcoma Squamous cell papilloma Face, squamous cell papilloma Sebaceous gland, adenoma	+ + + + + + + + M + + + + M M + M + + + + + M +	
Musculoskeletal System Bone Femur, sarcoma, metastatic, skin Bone, femur Skeletal muscle	$\begin{array}{c} + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + $	

Individual Animal Tumor Patholo	ogy of M	ale	R٤	ats	in 1	the	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	St	udy	y 0	f L	eu	cor	nal	ac	hit	e (Gre	en:	91 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5		
Carcass ID Number	3 1 8	3 6 9	3 7 0	3 7 1	0 6 6	0 6 7	0 6 8	0 6 9	0 7 0	0 7 1	0 7 2	0 9 0	0 9 1	0 9 2	0 9 3	0 9 4	0 9 5	0 9 6	3 1 5	3 1 6	3 1 7	3 1 9	3 2 0		Total Tissues/ Tumors
General Body System None																									
Genital System Coagulating gland Epididymis Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Penis Preputial gland Adenoma Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Proctate	+ + + X + + X	+++++++	+++++++	++++++	+ + +	+ + + X	+++++++	+++++++	+++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++	++++++	+ + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + X	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++	++++++	+++++++		45 47 2 1 47 2 2 2
Seminal vesicle Testes Bilateral, interstitial cell, adenoma Interstitial cell, adenoma	+ + + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X		47 47 47 30 12
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus Fibrous histiocytoma Histiocytic sarcoma	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + M + + +	+ + + + M	+ + + + +	+ + + + M	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + + +		47 47 45 47 47 42 1 1
Integumentary System Mammary gland Fibroadenoma Skin Fibroma Fibrous histiocytoma Keratoacanthoma Lipoma Sarcoma Squamous cell papilloma Face, squamous cell papilloma Sebaceous gland, adenoma	+ + X X	+	M +	+	+ + X	++	+ X + X	+ + X	++	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	+ + X	+ +	+ +	+ + X	++	+ + X	++	++	+ + X	++		41 2 47 1 1 3 3 3 1 1 1
Musculoskeletal System Bone Femur, sarcoma, metastatic, skin Bone, femur Skeletal muscle	+ + +	+++++	++++++	++++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	++++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	++++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +		47 1 47 47

~~
88

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of M	ale	Ra	ts i	in t	he	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	udy	y of	fL	eu	con	nal	ac	hit	e G	re	en:	9	1 p	pm
Number of Days on Study	4 8 7	5 6 7	5 7 9	6 0 4	6 0 6	6 1 5	6 2 0	6 2 9	6 3 6	6 6 7	6 7 1	6 9 7	7 0 9	7 2 4	7 2 9	7 2 9	7 3 2	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	
Carcass ID Number	0 1 5	2 3 3	0 2 4	2 3 5	0 2 8	0 2 9	0 2 7	2 4 0	2 4 4	2 5 1	2 5 4	2 5 6	0 5 3	2 7 2	3 0 7	3 0 8	0 5 9	2 8 2	2 8 3	2 8 4	2 8 5	2 8 6	2 8 7	2 8 8	
Nervous System Brain Carabrum astrocytoma malignant	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Brain, brain stem Brain, cerebellum Brain, cerebrum Peripheral nerve Spinal cord Spinal cord, thoracic	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+++++++	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	$\Lambda + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+++++++	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	
Respiratory System Lung Fibrous histiocytoma, metastatic, skin Histiocytic sarcoma Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Alveolar/bronchiolar, adenoma	+	+	+	+ X	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Nose Trachea	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +								
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Zymbal's gland	+ + +	+ + M	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+ + +	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + I	+++++	+ + M	+ + M	+++++	+++++	
Urinary System Kidney Histiocytic sarcoma Urinary bladder Transitional epithelium, papilloma	++	++	++	++	++	+ X +	+++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+ + X	++	++	++	++	+ +	
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear	+	+	+ X	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+ X	+ X	+ X	+ X	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+ X	+	+ X	+ X	

Number of Days on Study 7 <th>Individual Animal Tumor Patholog</th> <th>gy of Ma</th> <th>le</th> <th>Ra</th> <th>its</th> <th>in 1</th> <th>the</th> <th>2-</th> <th>Ye</th> <th>ar</th> <th>Fe</th> <th>ed</th> <th>Stı</th> <th>ıdy</th> <th>v ot</th> <th>f L</th> <th>eu</th> <th>con</th> <th>nal</th> <th>ac</th> <th>hit</th> <th>e C</th> <th>Fre</th> <th>en:</th> <th>91 ppm</th>	Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	gy of Ma	le	Ra	its	in 1	the	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	v o t	f L	eu	con	nal	ac	hit	e C	Fre	en:	91 ppm
Number of Days on Study 3 <th></th> <th>7</th> <th></th>		7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
4 4 4 5	Number of Days on Study	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	
3 3 3 3 0		4	4	4	4	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	
Carcass ID Number 1 6 7 7 7 9 9 9 9 1 1 1 1 2 Tissue 8 9 0 1 6 7 7 9 9 9 1 1 1 1 1 2 Tissue Nervous System Brain + <t< td=""><td></td><td>3</td><td>3</td><td>3</td><td>3</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>3</td><td>3</td><td>3</td><td>3</td><td>3</td><td>Tota</td></t<>		3	3	3	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	3	3	3	3	Tota
Nervous SystemBrainBrainCrebrum, astrocytoma malignantBrain, prain stemBrain, crebellumH + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Carcass ID Number	1 8	6 9	7 0	7 1	6 6	6 7	6 8	6 9	7 0	7 1	7 2	9 0	9 1	9 2	9 3	9 4	9 5	9 6	1 5	1 6	1 7	1 9	2 0	Tissues Tumor
Brain + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Nervous System																								
Cerebrum, astrocytoma nalignant Brain, prain sterm + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Brain	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Brain, brain stem + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Cerebrum, astrocytoma malignant																								
Brain, cerebulum + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Brain, brain stem	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Brain, cerebrum + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Brain, cerebellum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Peripheral nerve $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	Brain, cerebrum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Spinal cord Spinal cord Spinal cord Spinal cord Spinal cord thoracic + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Peripheral nerve	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Spinal crd, thoracie $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	Spinal cord	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Respiratory SystemLung $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Spinal cord, thoracic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Lung + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Respiratory System																								
Fibrous histiocytoma, metastatic, skin Histiocytic sarcoma Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Alveolar/bronchiolar, adenoma X Nose + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Lung	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	4
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Alveolar/bronchiolar, adenoma Nose + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Fibrous histiocytoma, metastatic, skin Histiocytic sarcoma																								
Alveolar/bronchiolar, adenoma X Nose $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Sarcoma, metastatic, skin																								
Nose + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Alveolar/bronchiolar, adenoma						Х																		
Trachea + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Nose	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Special Senses System Eye + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Trachea	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Eye + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Special Senses System																								
Harderian gland + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Eye	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	4
Zymbal's gland + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Harderian gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Urinary SystemKidney $+$ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Zymbal's gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Kidney + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Urinary System																								
Histiocytic sarcoma + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Kidney	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	4
Urinary bladder + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Histiocytic sarcoma																								
Transitional epithelium, papilloma Systemic Lesions Multiple organs + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Urinary bladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	4
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Transitional epithelium, papilloma																								
Multiple organs + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Systemic Lesions																								
Leukemia mononuclear X X X X X X X X	Multiple organs	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	4
	Leukemia mononuclear		Х					Х				Х				Х			Х	Х					1

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	gy of Ma	le	Ra	ts i	n t	he	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Sti	udy	y 0	f L	eu	coi	na	lac	hit	e (Gre	en	: 2	272	ppm
Number of Days on Study	4 3 5	4 3 9	4 7 7	5 4 3	5 9 9	6 2 9	6 5 2	6 6 2	6 6 8	6 9 8	7 0 1	7 0 3	7 2 2	7 2 4	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	
Carcass ID Number	0 1 1	0 1 2	0 1 3	0 1 9	0 1 8	2 4 1	2 4 6	0 3 4	0 4 3	0 4 9	0 5 1	2 6 0	2 6 9	2 7 1	2 8 9	2 9 0	2 9 1	2 9 2	2 9 3	2 9 4	3 7 2	3 7 3	3 7 4	3 7 5	3 7 6	
Alimentary System																										
Esophagus Intestine large Colon adenoma	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	+	+	+ +	
Intestine large, cecum Intestine large, colon	+++	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	+ A	+ +	+ +	++	++	+++	+ +	++	++	++	++	+ +	
Intestine large, rectum Intestine small Intestine small duodenum	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + +	+++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++	+++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + A	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++	++++++	+++++	++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	
Intestine small, ileum Intestine small, jejunum Liver	++++++	+ A +	++++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	++++++	++++++	++++++	+ + +	++++++	+ A +	++++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+ + +	++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + +	
Hepatocellular adenoma Mesentery	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	+	+	X	X +	
Salivary glands Stomach	++	++	++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	++	++	++	++	+ M	+++	++	++	++	++	++	+	++	++	+	+++	
Stomach, torestomach Stomach, glandular Tongue	+++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	М Н +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	++++	++++++	+ + +	++++++	+++++	+ + +	
100th							+																			
Cardiovascular System Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Endocrine System Adrenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Medulla, pheochromocytoma benign Adrenal gland, cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	X +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	X +	
Adrenal gland, medulla Islets, pancreatic Adenoma	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+	+	+	+ +	
Parathyroid gland Pituitary gland	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	M +	++	++	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	M +	+	+	+ +	+	M +	+++	
Pars distalis, adenoma Thyroid gland C-cell, adenoma	+	+	+	+	X +	+ X	+	X +	X +	X +	+	X +	+ X	+	X +	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	X +	+	+	+	X +	- X +	+	
Follicular cell, carcinoma								Х																		

General Body System

None

| | le | ка | ts i | n t | ne | 2-

 | Yea | ar | Fe | ed | Sti | ıdy
 | / 01
 | t L
 | euo | con | 1al | ac | hit | e G | re
 | en: | 272 ppm |
|---|--|--|--|---|---
--
--|---
---|--|--|--
--
--
--
--|---|---|---|---|---|--
--|---|---|---|
| 7 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7

 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7
 | 7
 | 7
 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7
 | 7 | |
| 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2

 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2
 | 2
 | 2
 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2
 | 2 | |
| 3 | 3 | 5 | 5 | 5 | 5 | 5

 | 5 | 5 | 5 | 5 | 5 | 5
 | 5
 | 5
 | 5 | 5 | 5 | 5 | 5 | 5 | 5
 | 5 | |
| 4 | 4 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3

 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3
 | 3
 | 3
 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3
 | 0 | |
| 3 | 3 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0

 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 3 | 3
 | 3
 | 3
 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3
 | 0 | Total |
| 7 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7

 | 9 | 9 | 9 | 0 | 0 | 0
 | 2
 | 2
 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2
 | 8 | Tissues/ |
| 7 | 8 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7

 | 7 | 8 | 9 | 0 | 1 | 2
 | 1
 | 2
 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9
 | 6 | Tumors |
| | | | | | |

 | | | | | |
 |
 |
 | | | | | | |
 | | |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | 48 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | 48 |
| | | | | | |

 | | | | | |
 |
 |
 | | | | | Х | |
 | | 1 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | $^+$

 | + | + | + | + | + | $^+$
 | +
 | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | + | + | +
 | + | 48 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | 47 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | 48 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | $^+$

 | + | + | + | + | + | $^+$
 | +
 | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | + | + | +
 | + | 48 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | 47 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | $^+$

 | + | + | + | + | + | $^+$
 | +
 | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | + | + | +
 | + | 48 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | $^+$

 | + | + | + | + | + | $^+$
 | +
 | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | + | + | +
 | + | 46 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | $^+$

 | + | + | + | + | + | $^+$
 | +
 | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | + | + | +
 | + | 48 |
| | | | | | |

 | | | | | | Х
 |
 |
 | | | | | | |
 | | 3 |
| + | | | | | |

 | | | | | |
 |
 |
 | | | | | | |
 | | 6 |
| + | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$

 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | + | $^+$
 | $^+$
 | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$
 | + | 48 |
| + | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$

 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | + | $^+$
 | $^+$
 | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$
 | + | 48 |
| + | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$

 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | + | $^+$
 | $^+$
 | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$
 | + | 47 |
| + | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$

 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$
 | $^+$
 | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$
 | $^+$ | 47 |
| + | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$

 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$
 | $^+$
 | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$
 | $^+$ | 47 |
| + | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | + | $^+$ | $^+$

 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | + | $^+$
 | $^+$
 | +
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | $^+$ | + | +
 | + | 48 |
| | | | | | |

 | | | | | |
 |
 |
 | | | | | | |
 | | 1 |
| | | | | | |

 | | | | | |
 |
 |
 | | | | | | |
 | | |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | 48 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | 48 |
| | | | | | |

 | | | | | |
 |
 |
 | | | | | | |
 | | - |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | 48 |
| ' | | | x | | ' |

 | | | ' | | , |
 |
 | '
 | | ' | | | | |
 | ' | -10 |
| | | | 21 | | |

 | | | | | |
 |
 |
 | | | | | | |
 | | 2 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | 48 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | M | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | 43 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | 47 |
| | | | | | |

 | | | | | |
 | x
 |
 | | | | | | |
 | | -10 |
| м | + | + | + | + | + | м

 | + | + | + | + | м | +
 | M
 | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | м | 40 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | 40 |
| x | x | x | | | |

 | x | x | x | | x |
 | x
 |
 | x | | x | x | | |
 | x | 21 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | 48 |
| | | X | - | | |

 | X | | | - | |
 | X
 |
 | | - | | | | - | X
 | | 7 |
| | | | | | |

 | - | | | | |
 | -
 |
 | | | | | | | -
 | | 1 |
| | 7 3 4
7 3 4
3 7 7
7 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + | $\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$ | 7 7 7 3 3 3 4 4 5 3 3 0 7 7 7 7 8 3 + + + < | 7 7 7 7 3 3 3 3 4 4 5 5 3 3 0 0 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 8 3 4 4 5 5 3 3 0 0 7 7 7 7 7 8 3 4 4 5 5 3 3 0 0 0 7 | 7 7 7 7 7 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 5 5 3 3 0 0 0 7 7 7 7 7 7 8 3 4 5 5 | 7 7 7 7 7 7 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 5 5 5 5 3 3 0 0 0 0 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 8 3 4 5 5 5 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 8 3 4 5 6 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + <td< td=""><td>1 1</td><td>7 7</td><td>1 Number leads in the 2-1 teat 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 3</td><td>1 Name Xats in the 2 - 1 car reside in the interval in the interval interval in the interval i</td><td>Index Rats in the LP - Fear Feed 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 8 9 0 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 8 9 0 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 0 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 0 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 0 7 8 9 0 7 8 9 0 7 4 4</td><td>1 Mate Kass in the 2 - 1 car recursts 7 8 9 0 1 3 4<td>Total field 2-feat field Study 7 8 9 0 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 <td< td=""><td>7 8 3</td><td>7 8 3</td><td>7 8 9 0 1 2 1 2 3</td><td>7 7</td><td>7 8 9 0 1 2 3</td><td>1. Wate Kats in the 2-1 fear freed study of Dectomark: 7</td></td<><td>1. Wate Kats in the 2 - Fair Feed Study of Lettomatating 7<!--</td--><td>1 orace 1 orace</td><td>1 1</td><td>1 mile 2 mile 2 mile 2 mile 3 mile</td></td></td></td></td<> | 1 1 | 7 7 | 1 Number leads in the 2-1 teat 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 3 | 1 Name Xats in the 2 - 1 car reside in the interval in the interval interval in the interval i | Index Rats in the LP - Fear Feed 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 8 9 0 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 8 9 0 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 0 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 0 7 8 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 0 7 8 9 0 7 8 9 0 7 4 4 | 1 Mate Kass in the 2 - 1 car recursts 7 8 9 0 1 3 4 <td>Total field 2-feat field Study 7 8 9 0 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 <td< td=""><td>7 8 3</td><td>7 8 3</td><td>7 8 9 0 1 2 1 2 3</td><td>7 7</td><td>7 8 9 0 1 2 3</td><td>1. Wate Kats in the 2-1 fear freed study of Dectomark: 7</td></td<><td>1. Wate Kats in the 2 - Fair Feed Study of Lettomatating 7<!--</td--><td>1 orace 1 orace</td><td>1 1</td><td>1 mile 2 mile 2 mile 2 mile 3 mile</td></td></td> | Total field 2-feat field Study 7 8 9 0 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 <td< td=""><td>7 8 3</td><td>7 8 3</td><td>7 8 9 0 1 2 1 2 3</td><td>7 7</td><td>7 8 9 0 1 2 3</td><td>1. Wate Kats in the 2-1 fear freed study of Dectomark: 7</td></td<> <td>1. Wate Kats in the 2 - Fair Feed Study of Lettomatating 7<!--</td--><td>1 orace 1 orace</td><td>1 1</td><td>1 mile 2 mile 2 mile 2 mile 3 mile</td></td> | 7 8 3 | 7 8 3 | 7 8 9 0 1 2 1 2 3 | 7 7 | 7 8 9 0 1 2 3 | 1. Wate Kats in the 2-1 fear freed study of Dectomark: 7 | 1. Wate Kats in the 2 - Fair Feed Study of Lettomatating 7 </td <td>1 orace 1 orace</td> <td>1 1</td> <td>1 mile 2 mile 2 mile 2 mile 3 mile</td> | 1 orace 1 orace | 1 1 | 1 mile 2 mile 2 mile 2 mile 3 mile |

General Body System

None

Individual Animal Tumor Patholo	ogy of M	ale	Ra	ts i	in t	the	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	udy	y ot	f L	eu	con	nal	ac	hit	e G	re	en	: 2	72	ррт
Number of Days on Study	4 3 5	4 3 9	4 7 7	5 4 3	5 9 9	6 2 9	6 5 2	6 6 2	6 6 8	6 9 8	7 0 1	7 0 3	7 2 2	7 2 4	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	
Carcass ID Number	0 1 1	0 1 2	0 1 3	0 1 9	0 1 8	2 4 1	2 4 6	0 3 4	0 4 3	0 4 9	0 5 1	2 6 0	2 6 9	2 7 1	2 8 9	2 9 0	2 9 1	2 9 2	2 9 3	2 9 4	3 7 2	3 7 3	3 7 4	3 7 5	3 7 6	
Genital System																										
Coagulating gland	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Epididymis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Preputial gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Adenoma				v					v					v				Х								
Prostate	+	+	+	л +	+	+	+	+	л +	+	+	+	+	л +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Seminal vesicle	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Testes	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Bilateral, interstitial cell, adenoma Interstitial cell, adenoma	Х		Х	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	x	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	
Hematopoietic System																										
Bone marrow	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Lymph node	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Lymph node, mandibular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Lymph node, mesenteric	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Thymus	+	+	+	+	+	+	M	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Fibroadenoma Skin Basal cell carcinoma Fibroare	+	+ +	+ + X	+	+	+ I	+	+	++	++	+	+	+	+	++	+	+	+ +	+	+	+	+	++	+	+	
Fibrous histiocytoma																		Х								
Lipoma										Х																
Musculoskeletal System																										
Bone formur	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Skeletal muscle	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Nervous System																										
Brain	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Brain, brain stem	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Brain, cerebellum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Dram, cereorum Perinheral nerve	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Spinal cord	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Spinal cord, thoracic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
. ,																										

Individual Animal Tumor Patholo	ogy of Ma	le	Ra	ts i	n tl	he 2	2-Y	ea	r Fe	ed	Sti	udy	y of	f L	euc	con	nal	acl	hit	e G	Fre	en:	272 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 7 3 3 5 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 6		
Carcass ID Number	3 7 7	3 7 8	0 7 3	0 7 4	0 7 5	0 7 6	0 7 7	0 9 7	0 0 9 9 8 9	1 0 0	3 0 1	3 0 2	3 2 1	3 2 2	3 2 3	3 2 4	3 2 5	3 2 6	3 2 7	3 2 8	3 2 9	0 8 6	T Tiss Tun	'otal ues/ nors
Genital System																								
Coagulating gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+		47
Epididymis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ ·	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Preputial gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Adenoma		Х		Х		Х				Х	X						Х							7
Carcinoma																	X							4
Prostate	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ •	+ •	+ +	• +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Seminal vesicle	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ •	+ •	+ +	• +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Pilotoral interstitial call adapama	+	\mathbf{v}^+	+	\mathbf{v}^+	\mathbf{v}^+	\mathbf{v}^+	+ · v ·	\mathbf{v}^+	+ + v	· + · v	. +	\mathbf{v}^+	+	\mathbf{v}^+	\mathbf{v}^+	\mathbf{v}^+	\mathbf{v}^+	\mathbf{v}^+	\mathbf{v}^+	+ v	\mathbf{v}^+	+		48
Interstitial cell, adenoma	А	Λ	Х	Λ	Λ	Λ	<u> </u>	~	2		X	Λ		Λ	Λ	Λ	Λ	Λ	Λ	Λ	Λ	Х		5
Hematopoietic System																								
Bone marrow	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Lymph node	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$		48
Lymph node, mandibular	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$		48
Lymph node, mesenteric	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Spleen	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Thymus	М	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ 1	M +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М		43
Integumentary System																								
Mammary gland	+	М	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		46
Carcinoma									Х															1
Fibroadenoma										Х														1
Skin	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	• +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Basal cell carcinoma																								1
Fibroma									v															1
Lipoma								-	А															1
Musculoskeletal System																								
Bone	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$		48
Bone, femur	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ ·	+ +	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+		48
Skeletal muscle	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ ·	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Nervous System																								
Brain	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Brain, brain stem	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Brain, cerebellum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Brain, cerebrum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Peripheral nerve	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Spinal cord	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ -	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Spinal cord, thoracic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ •	+ +	• +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48

9	4

TABLE A2

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	y of Ma	le	Ra	ts i	in t	he	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	/ 01	f L	eu	cor	na	ac	hit	e C	Fre	en	: 2	272	ppm
Number of Days on Study	4 3 5	4 3 9	4 7 7	5 4 3	5 9 9	6 2 9	6 5 2	6 6 2	6 6 8	6 9 8	7 0 1	7 0 3	7 2 2	7 2 4	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	
Carcass ID Number	0 1 1	0 1 2	0 1 3	0 1 9	0 1 8	2 4 1	2 4 6	0 3 4	0 4 3	0 4 9	0 5 1	2 6 0	2 6 9	2 7 1	2 8 9	2 9 0	2 9 1	2 9 2	2 9 3	2 9 4	3 7 2	3 7 3	3 7 4	3 7 5	3 7 6	
Respiratory System																										
Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Carcinoma metastatic thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ x	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Nose Trachea	+ +	+++	+ +																							
Special Senses System																										
Ear Pinna, neural crest tumor										$^+$ X				+												
Eye Harderian gland	+++	+++	+++	+++	+ +	+ +	+++	+++	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+++	++	+++	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+++	++	++	
Zymbal's gland Squamous cell carcinoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Urinary System Kidney	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Urethra Urinary bladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear Mesothelioma malignant	+ X	+	+	+	+ X	+ X	+ X	+	+ X	+ X	+ X	+ X	+ X	+ X	+	+ X	+ X	+ X	+ X X	+	+ X	+ X	+	+	+	

TABLE A2 Individual Animal Tu

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Ma	le	Ra	ts i	in t	he	2-1	Yea	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	ıdy	v of	f L	euo	con	nal	acl	hite	e G	re	en:	272 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 6											
Carcass ID Number	3 7 7	3 7 8	0 7 3	0 7 4	0 7 5	0 7 6	0 7 7	0 9 7	0 9 8	0 9 9	1 0 0	3 0 1	3 0 2	3 2 1	3 2 2	3 2 3	3 2 4	3 2 5	3 2 6	3 2 7	3 2 8	3 2 9	0 8 6		Total Tissues/ Tumors
Respiratory System																									
Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Carcinoma metastatic thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+	+	+		48 3
Nose Trachea	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +		48 48											
Special Senses System Ear Pinna, neural crest tumor Eye Harderian gland Zymbal's gland Squamous cell carcinoma	+++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++		2 1 48 48 47 1
Urinary System Kidney Urethra Urinary bladder	+ +	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+	++	++	++	++	++	+	+	++	++	+	+ +		48 1 48
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear Mesothelioma malignant	+ X	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+		48 19 1

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Male	Ra	its i	in t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	y of	f L	eu	con	nal	ac	hit	e G	re	en:	5	43 ppm
Number of Days on Study	4 7 5	5 0 5	6 0 1	6 4 5	6 4 5	6 5 8	6 6 0	6 6 1	6 6 1	6 7 6	6 7 9	6 8 7	6 9 8	7 0 7	7 1 3	7 1 7	7 2 4	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3
Carcass ID Number	0 1 4	0 1 6	2 3 6	0 3 1	0 3 3	0 3 2	0 3 7	0 3 9	2 5 2	0 4 4	0 4 6	0 4 7	2 5 7	2 6 5	2 6 4	2 7 0	0 8 7	2 9 5	2 9 6	2 9 7	2 9 8	2 9 9	3 0 0	3 3 6
Alimentary System																								
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Jeiunum, leiomyoma																								
Intestine small duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, ideum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Å	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Δ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Fibrous histiocytoma metastatic skin				'				'			'	'		'		'								1
Henotocellular adenoma																								
Mesentery																+							+	
Beneroos	+	+	+	1	-	+	+	-	+	+	+	+	+	-	+	- -	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
A since cell adapasansinoma	т	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	\mathbf{v}	т	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	т	т	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	т	т	т	т	т
Acinar cell, adenocarcinoma						л _																		
Salivary glands	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	T V	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ
Fibrous histocytoma														<u>л</u>										
Stomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomacn, forestomacn	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomach, glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin																								
Endocrine System																								
A dronal aland	i	_	1	1	-	+	+	-	1	-	+	1	+	-	+	1	+	-	_	+	+	+	+	+
Medulla pheochromocytoma malignant	Ŧ	-1-	7*	Τ'	Ŧ	т	т	Τ'	7	T V	Τ'	Τ'	Τ'	Τ'	Τ'	\mathbf{v}	Τ'	-T*	7	Τ'	т	т	т	1
Medulla, pheochromocytoma manglialit					v					Λ						л								
Medulla, pheochromocytoma benign					л																			
Adrenal gland, aartay				.1	J			.1				.1		.1		.1								+
Advend aland madulla	+	+	- -	- -	-	- -	+	+	- -	- -	+	+	- -	- -	- -	+	- -	+	-	- -	+	-	- -	т
Aurenai giano, meduna	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	т _
Adapama	+	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	-	Ŧ	Ŧ	\mathbf{v}	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	т	т	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	-	Ŧ	v
Aucifolia Derethyroid gland			ЪÆ	.1	J			.1	л ,		м	.1	٦.	.1		.1								Λ _
Faramyrold gland	+	+	IVI	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	IVI	+	11/1	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	т 1
Creation is a second second	+	+	+	+	+	IVI	IVI	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	т
Cramopharyngionna Dara distalia, adanama					\mathbf{v}						\mathbf{v}												\mathbf{v}	v
1 ars uistails, auchoilla					л						л												л	Λ

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	y of M	ale	Ra	ıts	in	the	e 2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	l St	ud	y o	f L	eu	coi	na	lac	hit	e (Gre	en:	543 ppm
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Number of Days on Study	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	
	3	3	4	4	4	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	
	3	3	3	3	3	0	0	0	0	0	0) ()	0	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	Tot
Carcass ID Number	3	3	7	8	8	7	7	8	8	8	8	8 8	8	0	0	0	0	3	3	3	3	3	3	Tissue
	7	8	9	0	3	8	9	0	1	2	3	4	5	3	4	5	6	0	1	2	3	4	5	Tumo
Alimentary System																								
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	4
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Intestine small	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Jeiunum, leiomvoma										х														
Intestine small, duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Intestine small jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Fibrous histiocytoma metastatic skin										x														
Henatocellular adenoma			x											x										
Mesentery								+						11										
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Acinar cell adenocarcinoma				·	·	·			·	·				·									·	
Saliyary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Fibrous histiogytoma																								г
Stomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Stomach forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Stomach, Ibrestomach	· +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
	1				1							1										1		
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Beart Sarcoma, metastatic, skin	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	4
Adrenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	1
Medulla nheochromocytoma malignant		'							'	v					'	'	'						'	7
Medulla, pheochromocytoma complex										Λ														
Medulla, pheochromocytoma benign	v			v														v						
A dropal gland contax	л 		1	л 	+	+	+	+	-	+	+	+	+	+	-	+	+	л 	-	+	+	+	+	1
Adrenal gland, modullo		т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	- -	- -	- T	- T	- T	- -	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	4
Islate paperantic	+	+ _	+ +	+ +	+ _	+ _	Τ .⊥	+ +	+ _	+ +	+	+	+ _	+ +	+ +	+ _	+ _	-T -L	+ +	+ +	τ 	+ +		4
A denoma	\mathbf{v}	Τ.	T	Τ,	т	т	т	Т	т	Τ'	Τ,	Τ'	т	т	\mathbf{v}^{\top}	т	т	г	т	т	т	т	1-	4
Aucifulia Darathyraid gland			<u>т</u>	<u>т</u>	м	<u>ـــ</u>	м	-L	<u>_</u>	<u>т</u>	1	1	<u>т</u>	<i>т</i>	∧ ⊥	<u>_</u>	<u>_</u>	_L	<u>ـــ</u>	<i>_</i> ⊥	_L	<u>т</u>	+	4
i aramytolu glanu	+	+	- T	- T	11/1	т 	11/1	-T	т 		+	+	т 	T	Ť	Ť	Ť	-	-T	т 	т 	- T	-r -	4
Cranionhargingioma	Ŧ	Ť	\mathbf{v}	7*	Τ'	Τ'	Τ'	т	Τ'	7	-1-	-	Τ'	Τ'	Τ'	Τ'	Τ'	Ŧ	Τ'	Τ.	Τ,	Τ'	Ŧ	4
Crantopharyngionna Pars distalis, adenome			л		\mathbf{v}		\mathbf{v}		\mathbf{v}		\mathbf{v}	v	\mathbf{v}			\mathbf{v}			\mathbf{v}				v	1
i ars uistans, auchoina					л		л		л		л	л	л			л			Λ				л	1

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	gy of Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 543 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	4 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7	
Carcass ID Number	0 0 2 0 0 0 2 2 0 2 3 3 1 1 3 3 3 3 5 4 4 4 5 6 6 7 8 9 9 9 0 3 4 6 6 1 3 2 7 9 2 4 6 7 7 5 6 7 8 9 0 6	
Endocrine System (continued) Thyroid gland Fibrous histiocytoma Bilateral, follicular cell, carcinoma C-cell, adenoma Follicular cell, adenoma Follicular cell, carcinoma	+ + + + + + + + + + + + M + + + + + + +	
General Body System Tissue NOS	+	
Genital System Coagulating gland Epididymis Preputial gland Adenoma Carcinoma Sauamous cell papilloma	+ + + + + + + + + + + M + + + + + + + +	
Prostate Seminal vesicle Testes Bilateral, interstitial cell, adenoma Interstitial cell, adenoma	+ +	
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Adenocarcinoma, metastatic, pancreas Thymus	$\begin{array}{c} + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + $	
Integumentary System Mammary gland Fibroadenoma Skin Basal cell adenoma Fibroma Fibrous histiocytoma Keratoacanthoma	+ + M + + + M + + M + + M + + + M M + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	
Sarcoma Squamous cell carcinoma	Х	

Table A2

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Ma	le	Ra	ts ii	n th	le 2	-Ye	ar	Fee	ed	Stu	ıdy	[,] of	L	euc	on	ıal	ac	hit	e G	re	en:	543 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 7 3 3 5 5	7 7 3 3 5 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5		
Carcass ID Number	3 3 7	3 3 8	3 7 9	3 8 0	3 8 3	0 (0 7 7 8 9	0 0 7 8 9 0	0 8 1	0 8 2	0 8 3	0 8 4	0 8 5	3 0 3	3 0 4	3 0 5	3 0 6	3 3 0	3 3 1	3 3 2	3 3 3	3 3 4	3 3 5		Total Tissues/ Tumors
Endocrine System (continued) Thyroid gland Fibrous histiocytoma Bilateral, follicular cell, carcinoma C-cell, adenoma Follicular cell, adenoma Follicular cell, carcinoma	+	+	+	+	+	+ + X	- + X	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+ X	+	+	+ X		46 1 1 4 1 1
General Body System Tissue NOS																								1
Genital System Coagulating gland Epididymis Preputial gland Adenoma Carcinoma Squamous cell papilloma Prostate Seminal vesicle Testes Bilateral, interstitial cell, adenoma Interstitial cell, adenoma	+ + + + + + + X	+ + + + + X	+ + + + + + X	+ + + X + + X	+ + + + + + + + + + X + - + - + - +	++ ++ ++ ++ ++ ++ ++ ++ X X	- + - + X X - + - + X X	+ + + + + + + + + X	+ + + + + X	+ + + + + + X	+ + + + X + + + X	+ + + + X + + X	+ + + + + + X	+ + + + + + + X	+ + + + +	+ + + + + X	+ + + + + X + + + X X	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + X	+ + + + X + + X	+ + + X + + X	+ + + + + + X		46 47 47 3 9 1 47 47 47 39 6
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Adenocarcinoma, metastatic, pancreas Thymus	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	- + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + M	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +		47 47 47 47 47 47 1 42
Integumentary System Mammary gland Fibroadenoma Skin Basal cell adenoma Fibroma Fibrous histiocytoma Keratoacanthoma Sarcoma Squamous cell carcinoma	+ + X	+ X +	+	+ + X	+ + +	+ + + + X	- + - +	+ X +	+ + X	++	+ X +	++	++	+ + X	++	++	++	+ + X	++	+ + X	++	+ + X		41 4 47 1 5 1 2 4 1

1	n	A
I	υ	υ

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	gy of Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 543 ppm
Number of Days on Study	4 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 3 3 3
Carcass ID Number	0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 3 3 1 1 3 3 3 3 5 4 4 4 5 6 6 7 8 9 9 9 0 3 4 6 6 1 3 2 7 9 2 4 6 7 7 5 4 0 7 5 6 7 8 9 0 6
Musculoskeletal System	
Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle Fibrous histiocytoma, metastatic, skin	$\begin{array}{c} + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$
Nervous System	
Brain Brain, brain stem Brain, cerebellum Brain, cerebrum Braine a seree	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$
Spinal cord Spinal cord, thoracic	$\begin{array}{c} + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Squamous cell carcinoma, metastatic,	$egin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
preputial gland Nose Trachea Fibrous histiocytoma	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Zymbal's gland Carcinoma	$\begin{array}{c} + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + $
Urinary System Kidney Urinary bladder	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear Mesothelioma malignant	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	gy of M	ale	Ra	its i	in t	the	2-	Yea	ar 1	Fe	ed	Sti	udy	y oi	f L	eu	cor	nal	ac	hite	e (Gre	en:	543 ppm	
Number of Days on Study		7 7 3 3 3 3	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5		
Carcass ID Number		3 3 3 3 7 8	3 7 9	3 8 0	3 8 3	0 7 8	0 7 9	0 8 0	0 8 1	0 8 2	0 8 3	0 8 4	0 8 5	3 0 3	3 0 4	3 0 5	3 0 6	3 3 0	3 3 1	3 3 2	3 3 3	3 3 4	3 3 5		Total Tissues/ Tumors
Musculoskeletal System																									
Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle Fibrous histiocytoma, metastatic, skin	+ + +	· + · +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + X	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +		47 47 47 1
Nervous System																									
Brain Brain, brain stem Brain, cerebellum Brain, cerebrum Peripheral nerve Spinal cord Spinal cord, thoracic	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + +		47 47 47 47 47 47 47
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Sarcoma, metastatic, skin	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47 4 1
Squamous cell carcinoma, metastatic, preputial gland Nose Trachea Fibrous histiocytoma	+ +	· + · +	+++	X + +	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +		1 47 47 1
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Zymbal's gland Carcinoma	+ + +	· + · +	++++	++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++		47 47 47 1
Urinary System Kidney Urinary bladder	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+ +	+ +	+++	++++	++++	++++	+++	+++	++++	++++	+++	++++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++		47 47
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear Mesothelioma malignant	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+		47 7 1

TABLE	A3
-------	----

Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Adrenal Medulla: Benign Pheochromocytoma				
Overall rate ^a	3/47 (6%)	6/46 (13%)	2/47 (4%)	3/47 (6%)
Adjusted rate ^b	7.4%	14.5%	4.8%	7.1%
Terminal rate ^c	2/23 (9%)	5/29 (17%)	2/33 (6%)	3/30 (10%)
First incidence (days)	659	615	733 (T)	733 (T)
Poly-3 test ^d	P=0.311N	P=0.250	P=0.485N	P=0.643N
Adrenal Medulla: Malignant Pheochromocytom	a			
Overall rate	0/47 (0%)	2/46 (4%)	0/47 (0%)	3/47 (6%)
Adjusted rate	0.0%	4.9%	0.0%	7.0%
Terminal rate	0/23 (0%)	1/29 (3%)	0/33 (0%)	1/30 (3%)
First incidence (days)		697	f	676
Poly-3 test	P=0.127	P=0.241	1	P=0.128
Adrenal Medulla: Benign, Complex, or Maligna	nt Pheochromocytoma			
Overall rate	3/47 (6%)	8/46 (17%)	2/47 (4%)	7/47 (15%)
Adjusted rate	7.4%	19.2%	4.8%	16.3%
Terminal rate	2/23 (9%)	6/29 (21%)	2/33 (6%)	4/30 (13%)
First incidence (days)	659	615	733 (T)	645
Poly-3 test	P=0.357	P=0.103	P=0.485N	P=0.179
Liver: Hepatocellular Adenoma				
Overall rate	2/48 (4%)	2/47 (4%)	3/48 (6%)	2/47 (4%)
Adjusted rate	4.8%	4.8%	7.0%	4.7%
Terminal rate	0/24 (0%)	2/30 (7%)	3/34 (9%)	2/30 (7%)
First incidence (days)	639	733 (T)	733 (T)	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.568	P=0.692N	P=0.512	P=0.690N
Lung: Alveolar/bronchiolar Adenoma				
Overall rate	1/48 (2%)	1/47 (2%)	3/48 (6%)	4/47 (9%)
Adjusted rate	2.4%	2.4%	7.0%	9.3%
Terminal rate	1/24 (4%)	1/30 (3%)	3/34 (9%)	2/30 (7%)
First incidence (days)	733 (T)	733 (T)	733 (T)	660
Poly-3 test	P=0.073	P=0.757N	P=0.319	P=0.189
Mammary Gland: Fibroadenoma				
Overall rate	1/48 (2%)	2/47 (4%)	1/48 (2%)	4/47 (9%)
Adjusted rate	2.4%	4.7%	2.3%	9.4%
Terminal rate	1/24 (4%)	1/30 (3%)	1/34 (3%)	4/30 (13%)
First incidence (days)	733 (1)	66 / D 0 500	733(1)	733(1)
Poly-3 test	P=0.122	P=0.508	P=0.752N	P=0.185
Mammary Gland: Fibroadenoma or Carcinoma				
Overall rate	1/48 (2%)	2/47 (4%)	2/48 (4%)	4/47 (9%)
Adjusted rate	2.4%	4.7%	4.7%	9.4%
Terminal rate	1/24 (4%)	1/30 (3%)	2/34 (6%)	4/30 (13%)
First incidence (days)	733 (1)	667 D 0 509	733 (T) D 0 514	733 (T) D 0 195
Poly-3 test	P=0.122	P=0.508	P=0.514	P=0.185
Pancreatic Islets: Adenoma				
Overall rate	5/48 (10%)	2/47 (4%)	1/48 (2%)	4/47 (9%)
Adjusted rate	12.0%	4.7%	2.3%	9.4%
Terminal rate	3/24 (13%)	1/30 (3%)	1/34 (3%)	3/30 (10%)
First incidence (days)	698	697 D 0 00055	733 (T)	661 D. 6. 46.453
Poly-3 test	P=0.525N	P=0.209N	P=0.093N	P=0.484N

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Pituitary Gland (Pars Distalis): Adenoma				
Overall rate	30/45 (67%)	19/46 (41%)	21/48 (44%)	13/45 (29%)
Adjusted rate	69.6%	43.0%	47.5%	31.3%
Terminal rate	15/23 (65%)	10/30 (33%)	16/34 (47%)	11/30 (37%)
First incidence (days)	541	487	599	645
Poly-3 test	P<0.001N	P=0.008N	P=0.026N	P<0.001N
Preputial Gland: Adenoma				
Overall rate	5/48 (10%)	2/47 (4%)	7/48 (15%)	3/47 (6%)
Adjusted rate	12.1%	4.8%	16.3%	7.0%
Terminal rate	4/24 (17%)	2/30 (7%)	7/34 (21%)	1/30 (3%)
First incidence (days)	718	733 (T)	733 (T)	658
Poly-3 test	P=0.482N	P=0.209N	P=0.405	P=0.339N
Preputial Gland: Carcinoma				
Overall rate	6/48 (13%)	0/47 (0%)	4/48 (8%)	9/47 (19%)
Adjusted rate	14.2%	0.0%	9.1%	20.9%
Terminal rate	4/24 (17%)	0/30 (0%)	1/34 (3%)	7/30 (23%)
First incidence (days)	564		543	505
Poly-3 test	P=0.035	P=0.015N	P=0.344N	P=0.301
Preputial Gland: Adenoma or Carcinoma				
Overall rate	11/48 (23%)	2/47 (4%)	10/48 (21%)	12/47 (26%)
Adjusted rate	26.0%	4.8%	22.8%	27.6%
Terminal rate	8/24 (33%)	2/30 (7%)	7/34 (21%)	8/30 (27%)
First incidence (days)	564	733 (T)	543	505
Poly-3 test	P=0.116	P=0.006N	P=0.460N	P=0.532
Skin: Lipoma				
Overall rate	0/48 (0%)	3/47 (6%)	1/48 (2%)	0/47 (0%)
Adjusted rate	0.0%	7.1%	2.3%	0.0%
Terminal rate	0/24 (0%)	3/30 (10%)	0/34 (0%)	0/30 (0%)
First incidence (days)	—	733 (T)	698	—
Poly-3 test	P=0.274N	P=0.121	P=0.508	—
Skin: Fibroma				
Overall rate	4/48 (8%)	1/47 (2%)	1/48 (2%)	5/47 (11%)
Adjusted rate	9.6%	2.4%	2.3%	11.7%
Terminal rate	3/24 (13%)	1/30 (3%)	1/34 (3%)	2/30 (7%)
First incidence (days)	623	733 (T)	733 (T)	687
Poly-3 test	P=0.250	P=0.176N	P=0.169N	P=0.515
Skin: Sarcoma				
Overall rate	0/48 (0%)	3/47 (6%)	0/48 (0%)	4/47 (9%)
Adjusted rate	0.0%	7.1%	0.0%	9.4%
Terminal rate	0/24 (0%)	2/30 (7%)	0/34 (0%)	4/30 (13%)
First incidence (days)	_	604	—	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.092	P=0.123	—	P=0.063
Skin: Fibrous Histiocytoma or Sarcoma				
Overall rate	0/48 (0%)	4/47 (9%)	1/48 (2%)	5/47 (11%)
Adjusted rate	0.0%	9.4%	2.3%	11.8%
Terminal rate	0/24 (0%)	2/30 (7%)	1/34 (3%)	5/30 (17%)
First incidence (days)	—	604	733 (T)	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.071	P=0.063	P=0.508	P=0.032

TABLE A3 Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

TABLE .	A3
---------	----

Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Skin: Fibroma Fibrous Histocytoma or Sarcoma				
Overall rate	4/48 (8%)	5/47 (11%)	2/48 (4%)	10/47 (21%)
Adjusted rate	9.6%	11.8%	4 7%	23.4%
Terminal rate	3/24 (13%)	3/30 (10%)	2/34 (6%)	7/30 (23%)
First incidence (days)	623	604	733 (T)	687
Poly-3 test	P=0.042	P=0.511	P=0.323N	P=0.076
Skin: Keratoacanthoma				
Overall rate	2/48 (4%)	3/47 (6%)	0/48 (0%)	2/47 (4%)
Adjusted rate	4.8%	7.1%	0.0%	4.7%
Terminal rate	1/24 (4%)	2/30 (7%)	0/34 (0%)	2/30 (7%)
First incidence (days)	662	579	_	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.428N	P=0.510	P=0.230N	P=0.688N
Skin: Squamous Cell Papilloma or Keratoacanthoma				
Overall rate	2/48 (4%)	5/47 (11%)	0/48 (0%)	2/47 (4%)
Adjusted rate	4.8%	11.7%	0.0%	4.7%
Terminal rate	1/24 (4%)	4/30 (13%)	0/34 (0%)	2/30 (7%)
First incidence (days)	662	579	—	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.264N	P=0.224	P=0.230N	P=0.688N
Skin: Squamous Cell Papilloma, Keratoacanthoma, or	Squamous Cell Ca	rcinoma		
Overall rate	2/48 (4%)	5/47 (11%)	0/48 (0%)	3/47 (6%)
Adjusted rate	4.8%	11.7%	0.0%	7.1%
Terminal rate	1/24 (4%)	4/30 (13%)	0/34 (0%)	3/30 (10%)
First incidence (days)	662	579	_	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.461N	P=0.224	P=0.230N	P=0.508
Skin: Squamous Cell Papilloma, Keratoacanthoma, Ba	asal Cell Adenoma,	Basal Cell Carcinoma	, or Squamous Cell	Carcinoma
Overall rate	2/48 (4%)	5/47 (11%)	1/48 (2%)	4/47 (9%)
Adjusted rate	4.8%	11.7%	2.3%	9.4%
Terminal rate	1/24 (4%)	4/30 (13%)	0/34 (0%)	4/30 (13%)
First incidence (days)	662	579	477	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.488	P=0.224	P=0.483N	P=0.345
Testes: Adenoma				
Overall rate	37/48 (77%)	42/47 (89%)	43/48 (90%)	45/47 (96%)
Adjusted rate	82.5%	93.3%	92.2%	95.7%
Terminal rate	23/24 (96%)	29/30 (97%)	32/34 (94%)	28/30 (93%)
First incidence (days)	564	579	435 D 0 115	475
Poly-3 test	P=0.036	P=0.078	P=0.115	P=0.029
Thyroid Gland (C-Cell): Adenoma	(17 (120/)	7/47 (150/)	7/40 (150/)	4/46 (00/)
A diverte di vete	0/4/ (13%)	1/4/ (15%)	//48 (15%)	4/46 (9%)
Adjusted rate	14.4%	10.5%	10.1%	9.0%
Firminal rate	5/24 (15%)	6/30 (20%)	5/34 (15%)	4/30 (13%)
First incidence (days)	613 D 0 2001	606 D. 0.519	629 D 0 525	/33 (1) D 0 2(0)
Poly-3 test	P=0.266N	P=0.518	P=0.535	P=0.368N
Thyroid Gland (C-Cell): Adenoma or Carcinoma	7/47 (150/)	0/47 (100/)	7/49 (159/)	4/46 (00/)
A divisted rate	//4/ (13%) 16.00/	9/4/ (19%)	//48 (15%) 16 10/	4/40 (9%)
Aujusteu rate	10.9%	21.2%	10.1%	9.0%
Terminal rate	3/24 (13%) 612	//30 (23%)	5/34 (15%) 620	4/30 (13%)
First incluence (days)	015 D=0.125N	000 D-0.410	029 D-0.580N	/33 (1) D=0.250N
roly-5 test	P=0.135N	P=0.410	P=0.380N	P=0.239IN

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Thyroid Gland (Follicular Cell): Adenoma or Carcinor	na			
Overall rate	0/47 (0%)	2/47 (4%)	1/48 (2%)	3/46 (7%)
Adjusted rate	0.0%	4.8%	2.3%	7.2%
Terminal rate	0/24 (0%)	2/30 (7%)	0/34 (0%)	3/30 (10%)
First incidence (days)	_ ` `	733 (T)	662	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.122	P=0.244	P=0.512	P=0.121
All Organs: Mononuclear Cell Leukemia				
Overall rate	29/48 (60%)	16/47 (34%)	19/48 (40%)	7/47 (15%)
Adjusted rate	63.6%	36.6%	41.6%	16.0%
Terminal rate	12/24 (50%)	9/30 (30%)	9/34 (27%)	2/30 (7%)
First incidence (days)	564	579	435	601
Poly-3 test	P<0.001N	P=0.007N	P=0.026N	P<0.001N
All Organs: Benign Neoplasms				
Overall rate	45/48 (94%)	47/47 (100%)	47/48 (98%)	47/47 (100%)
Adjusted rate	95.0%	100.0%	99.6%	100.0%
Terminal rate	24/24 (100%)	30/30 (100%)	34/34 (100%)	30/30 (100%)
First incidence (days)	541	487	435	475
Poly-3 test	P=0.094	P=0.166	P=0.208	P=0.166
All Organs: Malignant Neoplasms				
Overall rate	34/48 (71%)	23/47 (49%)	25/48 (52%)	26/47 (55%)
Adjusted rate	73.8%	51.6%	53.0%	56.0%
Terminal rate	15/24 (63%)	13/30 (43%)	12/34 (35%)	13/30 (43%)
First incidence (days)	564	579	435	475
Poly-3 test	P=0.132N	P=0.020N	P=0.027N	P=0.054N
All Organs: Benign or Malignant Neoplasms				
Overall rate	48/48 (100%)	47/47 (100%)	47/48 (98%)	47/47 (100%)
Adjusted rate	100.0%	100.0%	99.6%	100.0%
Terminal rate	24/24 (100%)	30/30 (100%)	34/34 (100%)	30/30 (100%)
First incidence (days)	541	487	435	475
Poly-3 test	P=0.998N	_	P=1.000N	_

TABLE A3 Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

(T)Terminal sacrifice

^a Number of neoplasm-bearing animals/number of animals examined. Denominator is number of animals examined microscopically for adrenal gland, liver,

b lung, pancreatic islets, pituitary gland, preputial gland, testes, and thyroid gland; for other tissues, denominator is number of animals necropsied.

Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

d Observed incidence at terminal kill

^a Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice. A negative trend or a lower incidence in an exposure group is indicated by N.

Not applicable; no neoplasms in animal group

f Value of statistic cannot be computed.

ТА	BLE	A4a

Historical Incidence of Thyroid Gland (Follicular Cell) Neoplasms in Control Male F344 Rats^a

	Incidence in Controls			
Study	Adenoma	Carcinoma	Adenoma or Carcinoma	
Doxylamine	1/48	0/48	1/48	
Fumonisin B ₁	0/48	0/48	0/48	
Gentian violet	1/163	0/163	1/163	
Pyrilamine	0/42	0/42	0/42	
Sulfamethazine	0/170	0/170	0/170	
Triprolidine	0/40	0/40	0/40	
Total (%)	2/511 (0.4%)	0/511 (0%)	2/511 (0.4%)	
Kange	0%-2%		0%-2%	

^a Data as of April 30, 2003. Studies were performed at the National Center for Toxicological Research in animals given NIH-31 feed.

TABLE A4b Historical Incidence of Testes Adenoma in Control Male F344 Rats^a

Study	Incidence in Controls	
Doxylamine Fumonisin B ₁ Gentian violet Pyrilamine Sulfamethazine Triprolidine	36/48 33/48 160/177 39/48 161/179 40/47	
Total (%) Range	469/547 (85.7%) 69%-90%	

^a Data as of April 30, 2003. Studies were performed at the National Center for Toxicological Research in animals given NIH-31 feed.
	0	ррт	91	ppm	27	2 ppm	543	3 ppm
Disposition Summary								
Animals initially in study		48		48		48		48
Early deaths		10		10		10		10
Moribund		20		12		11		10
Natural deaths		4		5		3		7
Survivors								
Died last week of study		1		1				
Terminal sacrifice		23		29		34		30
Missexed				1				1
Animals examined microscopically		48		47		48		47
Annentary System	(40)		(47)		(40)		(47)	
Intestine large	(48)		(47)		(48)	(20/)	(47)	
Artery, colon, serosa, dilatation	2	$\langle (0) \rangle$	1	(20/)	1	(2%)		
Cecum, lymphoid tissue, hyperplasia	3	(6%)	1	(2%)	2	(40/)	1	(20/)
Colon, lymphoid tissue, hyperplasia	(47)		(47)		(19)	(4%)	1	(2%)
Intestine small	(47)		(47)	(20/)	(48)		(47)	
Duodenum, autolysis			1	(2%)		$\langle 20 \rangle$		
lleum, nyperplasia					1	(2%)		
Herm, inflammation	4	(00/)	1	(20/)	1	(2%)	2	((0/)
Leionen autologia	4	(9%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	3	(0%)
Jejunum, autolysis			1	(2%)			1	(20/)
Jejunum, diverticulum	1	(20/)					1	(2%)
Jejunum, lympnoid tissue, nyperplasia	(19)	(2%)	(47)		(19)		(47)	(4%)
Deserbilie feaus	(48)		(47)	(40/)	(48)		(47)	(40/)
Dasconnic locus	4	(90/)	19	(470)	12	(270/)	10	(4%)
Degeneration, cystic	4	(8%)	18	(38%)	13	(27%)	19	(40%)
Easing this facua	1	(270)	1	(270)	0	(100/)	1	(270) (170/)
Eosinophilic focus multiple	2	(470)	0 6	(1770) (1306)	10	(1970) (210)	0 25	(1770) (530/a)
Homotopointic coll proliferation	1	(270)	0	(1370)	10	(2170)	25	(3370)
Henatodianhragmatic nodule	1	(270)	2	(4%)	3	(6%)		
Infiltration cellular lymphocyte	2	(470)	2	(470)	5	(070)	1	(2%)
Inflammation focal granulomatous	3	(6%)	1	$(2^{9/3})$	1	$(2^{0/2})$	1	(270)
Mixed cell focus	5	(070)	1	(270)	1	(270)	2	(270) (4%)
Necrosis	1	(2%)			1	(2%)	2	(470)
Pigmentation	1	(270)			1	(2%)		
Vacualization cytoplasmic	9	(19%)	21	(45%)	10	(21%)	13	(28%)
Bile duct cyst	1	(1)/0)	21	(4370)	10	(21/0)	15	(2070)
Bile duct, bypernlasia	41	(85%)	42	(89%)	42	(88%)	38	(81%)
Centrilobular necrosis	71	(0570)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	3	(6%)
Mesentery	(5)		(3)	(270)	(6)	(270)	(3)	(070)
Accessory spleen	(5)		(5)		(0)	(33%)	(5)	
Polvarteritis					2	(33%)	1	(33%)
Fat necrosis	3	(60%)	3	(100%)	2	(33%)	2	(55%)
Pancreas	(48)	(0070)	(47)	(10070)	(48)	(5570)	(47)	(0770)
Accessory spleen	(10)		(17)		(10)	(2%)	(17)	(2%)
Hyperplasia					1	(2%)	1	(270)
Infiltration cellular lymphocyte	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)
Polyarteritis	1	(270)	2	(1/0)	2	(1/0)	1	(2%)
Acinus atronhy	28	(58%)	16	(34%)	24	(50%)	22	(47%)
Artery inflammation chronic	28	(3070)	10	(2%)	24	(4%)	22 A	(9%)
Artery, media, hypertrophy			1	(2%)	L	(1/0)	1	(2%)

TABLE A5

Summary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green^a

 $^{\rm a}$ $\,$ Number of animals examined microscopically at the site and the number of animals with lesion

TABLE	A5
-------	----

	0	ррт	91	ppm	27	2 ppm	543	3 ppm
Alimentary System (continued)								
Salivary glands	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Atrophy	()				1	(2%)	· · ·	
Stomach	(48)		(47)		(47)		(47)	
Forestomach, edema	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)		
Forestomach, inflammation	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)
Forestomach, necrosis		(20)	1	(2%)		(20)		(40/)
Forestomach, epithelium, hyperplasia	1	(2%)	1	(20/)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)
Glandular, eccina	1	(2%)	1	(2%)				
Glandular, mineralization	1	(270)	1	(270)			1	(2%)
Tooth					(1)		1	(270)
Gingiya, hyperplasia					1	(100%)		
Gingiva, inflammation					1	(100%)		
Cardiovascular System								
Heart	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Cardiomyonathy	(+0)	(77%)	(+7)	(77%)	(+0) 	(83%)	40	(85%)
Atrium thromhosis	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	40	(0570)	3	(6%)
Myocardium, infarct	1	(270)	-	(1/0)			1	(2%)
Ventricle right, dilatation	1	(2%)						(-/-)
Endocrine System								
Adrenal gland	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Degeneration	(40)		(+7)		(40)		(+7)	(2%)
Cortex accessory adrenal cortical nodule					2	(4%)	1	(2%)
Cortex, cytoplasmic alteration					-	(170)	1	(2%)
Cortex, hyperplasia, focal			5	(11%)	3	(6%)	5	(11%)
Cortex, hypertrophy, focal			1	(2%)			1	(2%)
Cortex, vacuolization cytoplasmic	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	4	(8%)	2	(4%)
Medulla, hyperplasia	1	(2%)			3	(6%)	2	(4%)
Islets, pancreatic	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Hyperplasia			1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Parathyroid gland	(38)	(=0.()	(41)	(50.()	(40)		(42)	(20)
Hyperplasia, focal	2	(5%)	2	(5%)	(40)		1	(2%)
Angiostasis	(45)		(46)	(494)	(48)	(294)	(45)	
Infiltration cellular histiocytic			1	(470)	1	(270)		
Pigmentation			1	(2%)				
Pars distalis, cvst	2	(4%)	3	(2%)	5	(10%)	3	(7%)
Pars distalis, hyperplasia	1	(2%)	7	(15%)	2	(4%)	7	(16%)
Pars intermedia, cyst				× ,			1	(2%)
Thyroid gland	(47)		(47)		(48)		(46)	
Ultimobranchial cyst					1	(2%)		
C-cell, hyperplasia	8	(17%)	6	(13%)	3	(6%)	3	(7%)
Follicle, cyst							3	(7%)
Follicular cell, hyperplasia	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	3	(6%)	3	(7%)
General Body System								
Tissue NOS	(1)						(1)	
Abdominal, pigmentation	1	(100%)						
Abdominal, fat, necrosis							1	(100%)

	0	ррт	91	ppm	27	2 ppm	543	3 ppm
Genital System								
Coagulating gland	(46)		(45)		(47)		(46)	
Decreased secretory fluid	2	(4%)	(10)		()		3	(7%)
Inflammation, suppurative			1	(2%)				()
Epididymis	(48)		(47)	()	(48)		(47)	
Atrophy					. ,		ĺ	(2%)
Granuloma sperm			1	(2%)				
Inflammation, chronic							1	(2%)
Serosa, cyst	1	(2%)						
Penis			(1)					
Thrombosis			1	(100%)				
Preputial gland	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Atrophy	1	(2%)					3	(6%)
Hyperplasia	1	(2%)	1	(2%)			3	(6%)
Infiltration cellular, chronic	1	(2%)						
Inflammation	35	(73%)	36	(77%)	38	(79%)	29	(62%)
Duct, ectasia	7	(15%)	8	(17%)	11	(23%)	9	(19%)
Prostate	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Decreased secretory fluid	1	(2%)	1	(2%)			1	(2%)
Inflammation	29	(60%)	21	(45%)	22	(46%)	18	(38%)
Ventral, hyperplasia	1	(2%)	3	(6%)	1	(2%)	6	(13%)
Seminal vesicle	(48)		(47)		(48)	(20)	(47)	(20)
Atrophy	•	(500()		((()))	1	(2%)	l	(2%)
Decreased secretory fluid	28	(58%)	31	(66%)	33	(69%)	36	(77%)
Lumen, distended	1	(2%)						
Serosa, inflammation, chronic	1	(2%)	(47)		(40)		(47)	
lestes Mineralization	(48)	(20/)	(47)		(48)	(20/)	(47)	
Mineralization	1	(2%)	11	(220/)	1	(2%)	2	((0))
Seminiferous tubule, atrophy	17	(23%)	7	(15%)	3	(10%) (6%)	8	(0%) (17%)
Hematonoietic System								
Bone marrow	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Atrophy	(40)	(2%)	(47)	(2%)	(40)		(47)	(2%)
Hyperplasia	2	(270) (4%)	1	(270)			2	(270) (4%)
Myeloid cell hyperplasia	-	(1/0)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	- 1	(2%)
Lymph node	(48)		(47)	(270)	(48)	(1/0)	(47)	(270)
Infiltration cellular, plasma cell	1	(2%)	()		()		()	
Axillary, hyperplasia, lymphoid					1	(2%)		
Deep cervical, infiltration cellular, plasma cell					1	(2%)		
Lumbar, hematopoietic cell proliferation					1	(2%)		
Lumbar, hyperplasia, lymphoid	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)		
Lumbar, pigmentation			1	(2%)				
Mandibular, ectasia	3	(6%)	5	(11%)	6	(13%)	4	(9%)
Mandibular, hemorrhage	1	(2%)				· /	1	(2%)
Mandibular, hyperplasia, lymphoid			2	(4%)	3	(6%)	1	(2%)
Mandibular, infiltration cellular, plasma cell	5	(10%)	6	(13%)	11	(23%)	7	(15%)
Mediastinal, ectasia	1	(2%)						
Mediastinal, hemorrhage			1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Mesenteric, congestion			1	(2%)				
Mesenteric, ectasia	4	(8%)	6	(13%)	6	(13%)	1	(2%)
Mesenteric, hemorrhage	1	(2%)	3	(6%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)

TABLE A5

TABLE	A5
-------	----

	0) ppm	91	ppm	27	2 ppm	543	3 ppm
Hematopoietic System (continued)								
Lymph node (continued)	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Mesenteric, hyperplasia, lymphoid	1	(2%)			1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Mesenteric, infiltration cellular, plasma cell	2	(4%)					1	(2%)
Pancreatic, hyperplasia, lymphoid	1	(2%)	1	(2%)				
Pancreatic, infiltration cellular, plasma cell	1	(2%)						
Pancreatic, pigmentation			1	(2%)				
Renal, hemorrhage	1	(2%)	2	(4%)				
Renal, hyperplasia, lymphoid		(_, , ,	2	(4%)				
Renal, infiltration cellular, diffuse, histiocytic			- 1	(2%)				
Spleen	(48)		(47)	(_, , ,	(48)		(47)	
Angiectasis	(10)		1	(2%)	(10)		(17)	
Fibrosis	5	(10%)	6	(13%)	1	(2%)	5	(11%)
Hematopoietic cell proliferation	2	(4%)	3	(6%)	1	(2%)	8	(17%)
Hyperplasia focal	-	(170)	5	(070)	1	(2%)	0	(1770)
Hyperplasia, lymphoid			1	(2%)	2	(2^{10})	4	(9%)
Infarct			1	(2%)	2	(470)	2	(370)
Pigmentation	3	(6%)	2	(270)			2	(4%)
Stromal hyperplasia	1	(2%)	2	(470)			2	(470)
Thymus	(43)	(270)	(42)		(43)		(42)	
Ectonic parathyroid gland	(13)	(2%)	(12)		(15)		(12)	
Enithelial cell hyperplasia	1	(270)					1	(2%)
							1	(270)
Intogumontory System								
Mommony gland	(12)		(41)		(16)		(41)	
	(43)	(1.40/)	(41)	(20/)	(40)	(120/)	(41)	(50/)
University	0	(14%)	1	(270)	0	(13%)	2	(3%)
Dust dilatation	12	(12%)	4	(10%)	4	(9%)	3	(12%)
Duct, dilatation	12	(28%)	0	(15%)	3	(/%)	4	(10%)
SKII	(48)	(20/)	(47)		(47)		(47)	
Abscess	1	(2%)					1	(20/)
Cyst	2	(40/)	2	(40/)			1	(2%)
Use epinema inclusion	2	(4%)	2	(4%)			1	(2%)
	1	(2%)			1	(20/)		
					1	(2%)		
Enidemain harrandaria	1	(20/)			1	(270)	1	(20/)
Epidermis, hyperplasia	1	(2%)					1	(2%)
							1	(2%)
Epitnelium, hyperplasia				(20/)		(20)	2	(4%)
Foot, inflammation, chronic			1	(2%)	I	(2%)	1	(2%)
Musaulaskalatal System								
Musculoskeletal System	(10)				(10)		(17)	
Bone	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	(40/)
Femur, fibrous osteodystrophy	1	(2%)	-	(20)			2	(4%)
Sternum, fibrous osteodystrophy			1	(2%)				
Skeletal muscle	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Arteriole, mandibular, proliferation					1	(2%)		
Fiber, mandibular, hypertrophy					1	(2%)		

	0	ррт	91	ppm	27	2 ppm	54.	3 ppm
Nervous System								
Brain	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Brain stem, hemorrhage	(10)	(2%)	2	(4%)	(10)		(17)	
Brain stem, hypothalamus, compression	9	(19%)	4	(9%)	6	(13%)	1	(2%)
Cerebrum, compression		()		(3,4)		()	1	(2%)
Cerebrum, hemorrhage							1	(2%)
Cerebrum, hydrocephalus			1	(2%)				
Cerebrum, hypothalamus, compression			1	(2%)				
Spinal cord	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Thoracic, hemorrhage			1	(2%)				
Respiratory System								
Lung	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Granuloma			ĺ	(2%)				
Hemorrhage	1	(2%)		× /	2	(4%)		
Alveolar epithelium, hyperplasia	2	(4%)	2	(4%)	4	(8%)	6	(13%)
Alveolus, infiltration cellular, histiocytic							1	(2%)
Alveolus, infiltration cellular, histiocyte	3	(6%)	4	(9%)	2	(4%)	4	(9%)
Alveolus, inflammation, multifocal					1	(2%)		
Mediastinum, hemorrhage			1	(2%)				
Nose	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Inflammation, suppurative			1	(2%)				
Nasolacrimal duct, inflammation	10	(21%)	15	(32%)	16	(33%)	12	(26%)
Nasolacrimal duct, mineralization							1	(2%)
Respiratory epithelium, hyperplasia	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)		
Respiratory epithelium, inflammation, chronic	1	(2%)				(20)		
Septum, inflammation, enronic	1	(2%)			1	(2%)		
Special Senses System								
Ear	(1)				(2)			
Canal, external ear, exudate	(10)		(47)		1	(50%)	(17)	
Eye	(48)	((0))	(47)	((0))	(48)	(40/)	(47)	(20)
Cataract	3	(6%)	3	(6%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)
Hemorrhage	2	(4%)						
Dilataral action	1	(2%)			1	(20/)	2	$(\mathbf{C}0/\mathbf{)}$
Bilateral rating deconcretion	2	(4%)			1	(270)	5	(0%)
Cornea, edema	1	(270)					5	(1170)
Retina autolysis	1	(270)	5	(11%)	3	(6%)	3	(6%)
Retina, degeneration	8	(17%)	3	(6%)	3	(6%)	2	(0/0)
Sclera metanlasia osseous	2	(1770)	5	(070)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Harderian gland	(48)	(1/0)	(47)		(48)	(270)	(47)	(270)
Hyperplasia	()		1	(2%)	()		()	
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte	16	(33%)	16	(34%)	16	(33%)	18	(38%)
Inflammation	1	(2%)	1	(2%)		· /	1	(2%)
Zymbal's gland	(46)	× /	(43)	· /	(47)		(47)	
Hyperplasia	(-)				1	(2%)		
Inflammation, chronic	1	(2%)						
Duct, ectasia							1	(2%)

TABLE A5

TABLE	A5
-------	----

	0	ppm	91	ppm	27	2 ppm	543	3 ppm
Urinary System								
Kidney	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Accumulation, hyaline droplet	× /						1	(2%)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte	1	(2%)						. /
Nephropathy	43	(90%)	45	(96%)	46	(96%)	47	(100%)
Pigmentation	3	(6%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)		· /
Thrombosis				()			1	(2%)
Cortex, cyst					1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Renal tubule, hyperplasia					1	(2%)		
Urinary bladder	(48)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Calculus microscopic observation only	× /						1	(2%)
Hemorrhage			1	(2%)				
Inflammation			1	(2%)				
Artery, inflammation				~ /			1	(2%)

APPENDIX B SUMMARY OF LESIONS IN FEMALE RATS IN THE 2-YEAR FEED STUDIES OF MALACHITE GREEN CHLORIDE AND LEUCOMALACHITE GREEN

TABLE B1a	Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Rats	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride	114
TABLE B1b	Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Rats	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	118
TABLE B2a	Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of Female Rats	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride	122
TABLE B2b	Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of Female Rats	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	146
TABLE B3a	Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Female Rats	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride	170
TABLE B3b	Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Female Rats	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	173
TABLE B4a	Historical Incidence of Thyroid Gland (Follicular Cell) Neoplasms	
	in Control Female F344 Rats	176
TABLE B4b	Historical Incidence of Hepatocellular Adenoma in Control Female F344 Rats	176
TABLE B4c	Historical Incidence of Mammary Gland Neoplasms in Control Female F344 Rats	177
TABLE B4d	Historical Incidence of Pituitary Gland (Pars Distalis) Neoplasms	
	in Control Female F344 Rats	177
TABLE B5a	Summary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Female Rats	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride	178
TABLE B5b	Summary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Female Rats	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	183

TABLE	B1a
-------	-----

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride^a

	0	ppm	100) ppm	30	0 ppm	600) ppm
Disposition Summary								
Animals initially in study		48		48		48		48
Early deaths								
Moribund		18		22		15		17
Natural deaths		1		3		1		6
Survivors		• •						
Terminal sacrifice		29		23		32		25
Animals examined microscopically		48		48		48		48
Alimentary System								
Intestine large, colon	(47)		(47)		(48)		(47)	
Polyp adenomatous			~ /		ĺ	(2%)	· · · ·	
Intestine large, rectum	(48)		(46)		(48)		(48)	
Polyp adenomatous							1	(2%)
Intestine small, ileum	(47)		(46)		(48)		(47)	
Liver	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Carcinoma, metastatic, uterus			1	(2%)				
Hepatocellular carcinoma					1	(2%)		
Hepatocellular adenoma			1	(2%)	3	(6%)	3	(6%)
Hepatocellular adenoma, multiple	1	(2%)					1	(2%)
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary			(-)				1	(2%)
Mesentery	(9)		(5)	(2001)	(2)		(4)	
Carcinoma, metastatic, uterus	1	(110/)	1	(20%)				
Sarcoma	1	(11%)					1	(250/)
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary	(10)		(19)		(19)		(49)	(25%)
Carainama matastatia utarus	(48)		(48)	(29/)	(48)		(48)	
Calcinoma, metastatic, uterus	(19)		(47)	(2%)	(18)		(18)	
Tongue	(48)		(47)		(48)		(48)	
Sarcoma metastatic ovary	(40)		(48)		(40)		(48)	(2%)
Squamous cell carcinoma							1	(2%)
Squamous cell papilloma			1	(2%)			1	(270)
Cardiovascular System	(10)				(10)		(10)	
Heart Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48) 1	(2%)
Endocrine System								
Adrenal cortex	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Adenoma	2	(4%)	(40)		(40)		(40)	
Pheochromocytoma malignant metastatic adrenal medulla	1	(2%)						
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary		(270)					1	(2%)
Adrenal medulla	(47)		(47)		(48)		(48)	(_, .)
Pheochromocytoma malignant	1	(2%)						
Pheochromocytoma benign			1	(2%)			1	(2%)
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary				-			1	(2%)
Islets, pancreatic	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Adenoma			2	(4%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Carcinoma					1	(2%)		

	0	ppm	100) ppm	300) ppm	600) ppm
Endocrine System (continued)								
Pituitary gland	(48)		(47)		(46)		(45)	
Carcinoma, metastatic, Zymbal's gland							ĺ	(2%)
Pars distalis, adenoma	26	(54%)	36	(77%)	32	(70%)	29	(64%)
Pars distalis, carcinoma							1	(2%)
Thyroid gland	(46)		(48)		(47)		(46)	
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary		(00)	-	(100/)	2	((0))	1	(2%)
C-cell, adenoma	4	(9%)	5	(10%)	3	(6%)	3	(7%)
C-cell, carcinoma	3	(/%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)
Follicular cell, carcinoma					2	(2%) (4%)	1	(2%) (2%)
General Body System								
Tissue NOS			(1)					
Genital System								
Clitoral gland	(48)		(48)		(47)		(47)	
Adenoma	7	(15%)	5	(10%)	8	(17%)	8	(17%)
Carcinoma	5	(10%)	1	(2%)	5	(11%)	4	(9%)
Bilateral, carcinoma			1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Ovary	(48)		(48)		(47)		(48)	
Carcinoma, metastatic, clitoral gland					1	(2%)		
Granulosa cell tumor malignant			1	(2%)				
Sarcoma							1	(2%)
Uterus	(48)		(48)	/ - • / ·	(48)		(48)	
Polyp stromal	14	(29%)	7	(15%)	5	(10%)	16	(33%)
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary	2	(40/)		(20/)		(20())	1	(2%)
Sarcoma stromal	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(20/)
Schwannonna mangnant							1	(2%)
Endometrium, adenoma			1	(2%)			1	(270)
Vagina	(48)		(48)	(270)	(48)		(48)	
Sarcoma	(10)		(10)		(10)		1	(2%)
Hematopoietic System								
Bone marrow	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Lymph node	(10)		(7)		(7)		(5)	
Lymph node, mandibular	(47)		(46)		(47)		(48)	
Lymph node, mesenteric	(47)		(47)		(48)		(48)	
Spleen	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Carcinoma, metastatic, uterus			1	(2%)				
Hemangiosarcoma							1	(2%)
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary							1	(2%)
Thymus	(40)		(42)		(43)		(40)	
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary							1	(3%)
Sarcoma, metastatic, uncertain primary site							1	(3%)

TABLE B1a Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

TABLE	B1a
-------	-----

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

	0 ppn	n 100) ppm 300	ppm 600 ppm
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Fibroadenoma Skin Basal cell adenoma Keratoacanthoma Squamous cell papilloma Subcutaneous tissue, fibroma	(46) 2 (4%) 15 (33° (48) 1 (2%)	(48) 2 %) 13 (48) 5)	(4%) (48) (27%) 12 (48) 1 (2%)	$\begin{array}{ccccc} (48) \\ (2\%) & 5 & (10\%) \\ (25\%) & 9 & (19\%) \\ (48) \\ (2\%) \\ (2\%) \end{array}$
Subcutaneous tissue, sarcoma Musculoskeletal System Bone Sarcoma Skeletal muscle	(48) (48)	(48) (48)	(48) (48)	(48) (48) (48) (48)
Nervous System Brain Oligodendroglioma malignant Ventricle, carcinoma, metastatic, pituitary gland	(48)	(48)	(48)	(48) 1 (2%) 1 (2%)
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Carcinoma, metastatic, thyroid gland Carcinoma, metastatic, Zymbal's gland Sarcoma, metastatic, mesentery Sarcoma, metastatic, uncertain primary site Sarcoma stromal, metastatic, uterus Mediastinum, sarcoma, metastatic, ovary	(48) 1 (2%	(48) 1 1 5)	(2%) (2%) (2%)	(48) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%)
Special Senses System Ear Pinna, neural crest tumor Eye Harderian gland Adenoma Zymbal's gland Carcinoma	(47) (47) (47) 1 (2%	(48) (48) (48)	(48) (48) (48) 1	$(1) \\ 1 (100\%) \\ (48) \\ (48) \\ (48) \\ 1 (2\%) \\ (46) \\ (2\%) 2 (4\%) $
Urinary System Kidney Urinary bladder Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Transitional epithelium, carcinoma Transitional epithelium, papilloma	(48) (47)	(48) (48) 1	(48) (47) (2%)	(48) (47) 1 (2%) 1 (2%)
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear	(48) 19 (40)	(48) %) 17	(48) (35%) 10	(48) (21%) 1 (2%)

	0 ppm	100 ppm	300 ppm	600 ppm
Neoplasm Summary				
Total animals with primary neoplasms	47	48	46	42
Total primary neoplasms	104	99	94	102
Total animals with benign neoplasms	41	42	40	35
Total benign neoplasms	70	74	69	75
Total animals with malignant neoplasms	29	24	21	23
Total malignant neoplasms	34	25	25	26
Total animals with metastatic neoplasms	2	3	1	5
Total metastatic neoplasms	2	6	1	17
Total animals with malignant neoplasms				
of uncertain primary site				1
Total animals with uncertain neoplasms-				
benign or malignant				1
Total uncertain neoplasms				1

TABLE B1a

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

a Number of animals examined microscopically at the site and the number of animals with neoplasm
 b Number of animals with any tissue examined microscopically
 b Primary neoplasms: all neoplasms except metastatic neoplasms

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green^a

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Disposition Summary				
Animals initially in study	48	48	48	48
Early deaths	10	10	10	10
Moribund	12	11	12	10
Natural deaths	3	1	1	4
Survivors				
Died last day of study				1
Terminal sacrifice	33	36	35	33
Animals examined microscopically	48	48	48	48
Alimentary System				
Intestine large	(48)	(48)	(48)	(48)
Colon, adenocarcinoma				1 (2%)
Intestine small	(48)	(48)	(48)	(48)
Liver	(48)	(48)	(48)	(48)
Hepatocellular adenoma	1 (2%)	3 (6%)		3 (6%)
Mesentery	(8)	(7)	(1)	(4)
Sarcoma	1 (13%)			
Schwannoma malignant, metastatic, uterus	1 (13%)	(40)	(17)	(49)
Pancreas	(48) (29()	(48)	(47)	(48)
Acinar cell adenoma	1 (2%) 1 (2%)			
Salivary glands	(48)	(48)	(48)	(48)
Sarcoma	(10)	(10)	1 (2%)	(10)
Parotid gland, adenoma			- (-,-)	1 (2%)
Stomach	(48)	(48)	(48)	(48)
Tongue	(48)	(48)	(48)	(48)
Squamous cell carcinoma Squamous cell papilloma			1 (2%)	1 (2%)
Cardiovascular System				
Blood vessel	(48)	(48)	(48)	(48)
Heart	(48)	(48)	(48)	(48)
Endocardium, schwannoma malignant Myocardium, schwannoma malignant			1 (2%) 1 (2%)	
Endocrine System				
Adrenal gland	(47)	(48)	(47)	(48)
Medulla, pheochromocytoma malignant			1 (2%)	
Medulla, pheochromocytoma benign	(19)	(19)	(47) (2%)	(19)
Dituitory gland	(48)	(48)	(47)	(46)
Pars distalis, adenoma	26 (55%)	23 (49%)	17 (38%)	20 (43%)
Thyroid gland	(46)	(46)	(47)	(48)
Bilateral, C-cell, adenoma	X - 7	< - <i>/</i>	1 (2%)	1 (2%)
Bilateral, C-cell, carcinoma			1 (2%)	× /
C-cell, adenoma	4 (9%)	7 (15%)	4 (9%)	4 (8%)
C-cell, carcinoma		1 (2%)		
Follicular cell, adenoma				1 (2%)
Follicular cell, carcinoma		1 (2%)	2 (4%)	

	0 ppm				272	2 ppm	543	ppm
General Body System	(1)				(1)			
Issue NOS Schwannoma malignant, metastatic, uterus Abdominal, lipoma	(1)	(100%)			(1)	(100%)		
Genital System								
Clitoral gland	(47)		(47)		(46)		(47)	
Adenoma	7	(15%)	8	(17%)	3	(7%)	6	(13%)
Carcinoma	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	2	(4%)
Ovary	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Oviduct	(1)							
Leiomyoma	1	(100%)						
Uterus	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Leiomyoma	1	(2%)					1	(2%)
Polyp stromal	9	(19%)	10	(21%)	16	(33%)	16	(33%)
Sarcoma stromal	1	(2%)					1	(2%)
Schwannoma malignant	1	(2%)			1	(2%)		
Bilateral, polyp stromal	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	3	(6%)	1	(2%)
Cervix, squamous cell papilloma			1	(2%)			1	(20/)
Endometrium, adenoma			1	(2%)			1	(2%)
Endometrium, carcinoma		(18)	1	(2%)		(48)		(18)
Sarcoma		(48)		(48)	1	(48)		(48)
Schwannoma malignant			1	(2%)	1	(270)		
Hematopoietic System								
Lymph node	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Mesenteric, schwannoma malignant, metastatic, uterus	1	(2%)			(-)		(-)	
Spleen	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Thymus	(41)		(47)		(44)		(42)	
Integumentary System								
Mammary gland	(48)		(46)		(48)		(48)	
Adenoma			1	(2%)	ĺ	(2%)	2	(4%)
Carcinoma			1	(2%)	2	(4%)	2	(4%)
Fibroadenoma	20	(42%)	12	(26%)	9	(19%)	13	(27%)
Fibroadenoma, multiple					3	(6%)		
Skin	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Basal cell adenoma	1	(2%)	1	(2%)				
Basal cell carcinoma							1	(2%)
Fibroma			1	(2%)		(20/)	1	(2%)
Fibrous histiocytoma				(20/)	1	(2%)		(20/)
Keratoacanthoma Saraama			1	(2%)			1	(2%)
Sauconia Sauconia	1	(2%)	2	(470)				
	1	(2/0)						

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

Musculoskeletal System

None

	0	ppm	91	ррт	272 ppm	543 ppm
Nervous System						
Brain	(48)		(48)		(48)	(48)
Cranial nerve, schwannoma malignant			~ /		1 (2%)	
Respiratory System						
Lung	(48)		(48)		(48)	(48)
Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	3 (6%)	
Carcinoma, metastatic, thyroid gland					1 (2%)	
Nose	(48)		(48)		(48)	(48)
Trachea	(48)		(48)		(48)	(48)
Special Senses System						
Ear			(1)			
Pinna, neural crest tumor			1	(100%)		
Eye	(48)		(48)		(48)	(48)
Lids, sarcoma	1	(2%)	~ /		× /	~ /
Harderian gland	(48)		(48)		(48)	(48)
Zymbal's gland	(46)		(47)		(47)	(46)
Adenoma						2 (4%)
Urinary System						
Kidney	(48)		(48)		(48)	(48)
Hemangiosarcoma	()		1	(2%)	()	()
Mesenchymal tumor benign				(_,,,)	1 (2%)	
Sarcoma	1	(2%)				
Renal tubule, carcinoma	1	(2%)				
Urinary bladder	(47)		(47)		(48)	(48)
Transitional epithelium, carcinoma			ĺ	(2%)		
Systemic Lesions						
Multiple organs	(48)		(48)		(48)	(48)
Hemangiosarcoma	(10)		1	(2%)	()	(,
Leukemia mononuclear	17	(35%)	8	(17%)	5 (10%)	8 (17%)
		<pre></pre>	0	× · · · · ·	- (/0)	- ()

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Noonlaam Summary				
	16	16	12	42
Iotal animals with primary neoplasms	46	46	42	43
Total primary neoplasms	99	92	84	90
Total animals with benign neoplasms	41	43	37	38
Total benign neoplasms	74	73	63	75
Total animals with malignant neoplasms	21	16	19	15
Total malignant neoplasms	25	18	21	15
Total animals with metastatic neoplasms	1		1	
Total metastatic neoplasms	4		1	
Total animals with uncertain neoplasms-				
benign or malignant		1		
Total uncertain neoplasms		1		

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

^a Number of animals examined microscopically at the site and the number of animals with neoplasm
 ^b Number of animals with any tissue examined microscopically
 ^c Primary neoplasms: all neoplasms except metastatic neoplasms

	4	4	5	5	5	5	5	5	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7
Number of Days on Study	0	4	2	2	3	3	5	8	0	2	2	3	4	4	4	6	0	1	2	2	2	2	2	2	2
	1	3	6	9	3	5	2	9	6	6	6	1	1	1	7	7	4	1	2	8	8	8	8	8	8
	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Conserve ID Normhan	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	5	ç	0	0	7	7	7	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Carcass ID Number	1	1 4	2 7	8	2 5	2 6	2 9	4 0	4 6	5 1	5 4	6 6	6 4	0	2	5	8 2	3 3	3 2	9	9 2	9 3	9 4	9 5	6
Alimentary System																									
Esonhagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	Å	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	Δ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine arge, eccum	+	+	+	+	+	+	Δ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small jejunum	, +	+	+	+	+	+	Δ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	л л	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Henatocellular adenoma multiple	1					'						'					'			'				'	1
Mesentery					+					+							+			+	+				
Sarcoma					v															'					
Depercon	+	+	+	+	л _	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	_	-	+	_	+	+	+	-	+	-	+	+	+
railcieas	+	+	+ +	+ +	+	+	+ +	+	+ +	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+							
Stangah forestomach	۱ ــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ				+	+	+	+	- -	, +		- -	+	- -	, ,	+	+			- -	+		, ,	+	+
Stomach, dandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
	'											'			'										
Cardiovascular System																									
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Endocrine System																									
Adrenal cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Adenoma																					Х				
Pheochromocytoma malignant,																									
metastatic, adrenal medulla										Х															
Adrenal medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+
Pheochromocytoma malignant										Х															
Islets, pancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Parathyroid gland	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	М	Μ	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Pars distalis, adenoma							Х		Х	Х	Х			Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х		Х	
Thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	Μ	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
C-cell, adenoma																		Х							
C-cell carcinoma															x										

General Body System

None

+: Tissue examined microscopically

A: Autolysis precludes examination

M: Missing tissue I: Insufficient tissue

X: Lesion present Blank: Not examined TABLE B2a Individual Anir

Individual Animal Tumor Pathole	ogy of Fe	ma	le l	Rat	s ii	n tl	he	2-Y	Yea	ar I	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	M	ala	ich	ite	G	ree	en (Chlo	ride: 0 ppm
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Number of Days on Study	2 8	2 8																						
	0	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Tot
Carcass ID Number	9 7	1 1	1 2	1 3	1 4	1 5	1 6	1 7	3 4	3 5	3 6	3 7	3 8	6 2	6 3	6 4	6 5	6 6	8 8	8 9	9 0	9 1	9 2	Tissue Tumo
Alimentary System																								
Esophagus	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	4
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Intestine small, duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Intestine small, jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Hepatocellular adenoma, multiple																				Х				
Mesentery	+			+				+		+														
Sarcoma																								,
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Stamoch forestamoch	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Stomach, dendular	+	+	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	т _	4
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Cardiovascular System Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Endocrine System																								
Adrenal cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Adenoma Pheochromocytoma malignant.	Х																							
metastatic, adrenal medulla																								
Adrenal medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Pheochromocytoma malignant																								
Islets, pancreatic	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	4
Parathyroid gland	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	4
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	4
Pars distalis, adenoma	Х	Х		Х	Х		Х	Х			Х				Х	Х				Х		Х	Х	2
Thyroid gland	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	4
C-cell, adenoma						Х					Х											Х		
C-cell, carcinoma										Х							Х							

General Body System

None

Number of Days on Study 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 </th <th>Individual Animal Tumor Pathol</th> <th>logy of F</th> <th>ema</th> <th>le</th> <th>Rat</th> <th>ts ii</th> <th>n tl</th> <th>ne 2</th> <th>2-Y</th> <th>lea</th> <th>r I</th> <th>Fee</th> <th>d S</th> <th>Stu</th> <th>dy</th> <th>of</th> <th>Μ</th> <th>ala</th> <th>ch</th> <th>ite</th> <th>Gı</th> <th>ree</th> <th>n (</th> <th>Chl</th> <th>lori</th> <th>ide:</th> <th>0 ppm</th>	Individual Animal Tumor Pathol	logy of F	ema	le	Rat	ts ii	n tl	ne 2	2-Y	lea	r I	Fee	d S	Stu	dy	of	Μ	ala	ch	ite	Gı	ree	n (Chl	lori	ide:	0 ppm
Number of Days on Study 0 1 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 6 0 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 2 <th2< th=""> 2 <th2< th=""> <th2< th=""></th2<></th2<></th2<>			44	5	5	5	5	5	5	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
$\begin{array}{c} 1 & 3 & 6 & 9 \\ 1 & 1 & 2 & 2 & 9 & 6 & 6 & 6 & 1 & 1 & 1 & 7 & 7 & 4 & 1 & 2 & 8 & 8 & 8 & 8 \\ \hline \\ Carcass ID Number \\ \begin{array}{c} 1 & 1 & 2 & 2 & 2 & 2 & 4 & 4 \\ 1 & 1 & 2 & 2 & 2 & 2 & 4 & 4 & 5 & 5 & 6 & 6 & 7 & 7 & 4 & 1 & 2 & 8 & 8 & 8 & 8 \\ \hline \\ Carcass ID Number \\ \begin{array}{c} 1 & 1 & 2 & 2 & 2 & 2 & 4 & 4 & 5 & 5 & 6 & 6 & 7 & 7 & 4 & 1 & 2 & 8 & 8 & 8 & 8 & 8 \\ \hline \\ Carcass ID Number \\ \begin{array}{c} 1 & 1 & 2 & 2 & 2 & 2 & 4 & 4 & 5 & 5 & 6 & 6 & 7 & 7 & 4 & 1 & 2 & 8 & 8 & 8 & 8 & 8 \\ \hline \\ Carcass ID Number \\ \begin{array}{c} 1 & 1 & 2 & 2 & 2 & 2 & 4 & 4 & 5 & 5 & 6 & 6 & 7 & 7 & 4 & 1 & 2 & 8 & 8 & 8 & 8 & 8 \\ \hline \\ Carcass ID Number \\ \hline \\ Carcass ID Number \\ \hline \\ Carcass ID Number \\ \hline \\ Carcas X & X \\ Carcinoma \\ X & X \\ X \\ Saccona stromal \\ X & X \\ X$	Number of Days on Study		04	2	2	3	3	5	8	0	2	2	3	4	4	4	6	ó	1	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	
$\begin{array}{c} 1 & 5 & 6 & 7 & 5 & 5 & 2 & 7 & 6 & 6 & 6 & 1 & 4 & 5 & 7 & 7 & 7 & 8 & 3 & 3 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0$	fumber of Days on Study		1 3	6	0	3	5	2	0	6	6	6	1	1	1	7	7	4	1	2	8	8	8	8	8	8	
Carcass ID Number $ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			1 5	0	,	5	5	2	,	0	0	0	1	1	1	/	/	4	1	2	8	0	8	0	0	8	
Carcass ID Number $ \begin{array}{ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Carcass ID Number		1 1	2	ົ	2	2 2	°	1	1	5	5	6	6	7	7	7	ç	3	3	0	0	õ	0	0	0	
Serial System Sinoral gland + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +			2 4	7	8	5	6	9	0	6	1	4	6	4	0	2	5	2	3	2	1	2	3	4	5	6	
Seried System Carcinoma + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +																											
$\begin{array}{c} In the light of the second of the s$	Genital System					1																					
National X	Adapama		+ +	+	+	\mathbf{v}^+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	\mathbf{v}^+	+	+	+	\mathbf{v}^+	+	+	+	+	
Calcinolation $X + X + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Carainama		v v			л												л				л	v		v	v	
$\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} x_{1} \\ y_{2} \\ z_{rers} \\ $		-	<u>лл</u>																				<u>л</u>		л _	л _	
$\begin{array}{c} X \text{ Loss } & Y + Y + Y + Y + Y + Y + Y + Y + Y + Y$	Jvaly		+ + + J	+	+	+	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+	+	+ +	+ +	+	+	+	+	+ +	+ +	+	+	+	+	+ +	
Tory submat A <t< td=""><td>Dictus Dolyn stromol</td><td></td><td>r +</td><td>+</td><td>\mathbf{v}^+</td><td>+</td><td>Ŧ</td><td>\mathbf{v}^{\top}</td><td>Ŧ</td><td>Ŧ</td><td>Ŧ</td><td>Ŧ</td><td>Ŧ</td><td>\mathbf{v}^{\top}</td><td>Ŧ</td><td>Ŧ</td><td>Ŧ</td><td>Ŧ</td><td>\mathbf{v}^{\top}</td><td>Ŧ</td><td>Ŧ</td><td>\mathbf{v}^+</td><td>\mathbf{v}^+</td><td>+</td><td>+</td><td>\mathbf{v}^{\top}</td><td></td></t<>	Dictus Dolyn stromol		r +	+	\mathbf{v}^+	+	Ŧ	\mathbf{v}^{\top}	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	\mathbf{v}^{\top}	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	\mathbf{v}^{\top}	Ŧ	Ŧ	\mathbf{v}^+	\mathbf{v}^+	+	+	\mathbf{v}^{\top}	
$\begin{array}{c} \text{Againa} & + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Polyp stromal				Х			л	v					л					А			А	Å			А	
vagina + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Sarcoma stromai		, ,						<u>л</u>											,		,					
Henatopoletic System Sone marrow + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	vagina		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
bone marrow $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	Iematopoietic System																										
$\begin{array}{rcrcr} + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	Sone marrow		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
ymph node, madibular + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	wmph node		,				+			+	+					+			+	+	+				+		
$\begin{array}{c} + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	with node, mandibular		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
$\begin{array}{c} + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	ymph node, mesenteric		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
$\begin{array}{c} \text{Trymus} & M M M + M + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	Spleen		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
ntegumentary System Mammary gland + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Thymus	ľ	иM	M	+	M	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	M	+	+	
Mammary gland + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	ntom ontom Suctor																										
Vialinary grand +	Mommery aland		L ,				_	+	-	-	Т	+	Т	_	+	-	Т	Т	Ц	L	_	J	J			L	
X X	vianmary gland		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
rioroacenoma X <	Carcinoma Filmes demonstra		~		37		v											X			v			37	37	v	
$\begin{array}{c} + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	r ibroadenoma		Δ.		Х		X											X			X	,		Х	Х	X	
X X Musculoskeletal System Basa cell adenoma + <	Skin		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Musculoskeletal System Sone tikeletal muscle + <	Basal cell adenoma																				X						
Bone + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Musculoskeletal System																										
Skeletal muscle + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Bone		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	
Nervous System Brain + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Skeletal muscle		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Brain + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Nervous System																										
$\begin{array}{c} + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	Ter Yous System		, ,																			,	,				
rempneration reve + + M + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Dialli Desimber		- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
spinal cord + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	rempneral nerve		+ +	M	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Respiratory System Lung $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	pinal cord		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
$\begin{array}{c} + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	Respiratory System																										
Sarcoma, metastatic, mesentery X Nose $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Lung		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Nose $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	Sarcoma, metastatic mesentery		,			x																					
+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Nose		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
	Frachea		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	y of Fe	ma	le l	Rat	s in	1 th	e 2	-Ye	ear	Fe	ed S	Stu	dy	of	M	ala	chi	ite	Gr	ee	n (Chloride:	0 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 7 2 2 8 8	7 7 2 2 3 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	
Carcass ID Number	0 9 7	1 1 1	1 1 2	1 1 3	1 1 4	1 1 5	1 1 6	1 1 1 3 7 4	1 1 3 3 4 5	1 3 6	1 3 7	1 3 8	1 6 2	1 6 3	1 6 4	1 6 5	1 6 6	1 8 8	1 8 9	1 9 0	1 9 1	1 9 2	Total Tissues/ Tumors
Genital System Clitoral gland Adenoma Carcinoma	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+ X	+	+	+ -	+ +	+ + X	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48 7 5
Ovary Uterus Polyp stromal Sarcoma stromal Vagina	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++	+ + X +	+ + +	+ + X +	+ + +	+ -	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + X +	+ + X +	+ + +	+ + X +	+ + X +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + X +	+ + X +	+ + +	48 48 14 2 48
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus	+ + + + M	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ - + - I - + -	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	++++++	+ + + + + + +	+ + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	++++++++	+++++++	++++++++	+++++++	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + M	48 10 47 47 48 40
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Fibroadenoma Skin Basal cell adenoma	+	+ X +	+	+	+	M +	+ - X + -	+ + 2 + +	+ + X + +	+	+ X +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X +	M +	+ X +	+	+ X +	46 2 15 48 1
Musculoskeletal System Bone Skeletal muscle	+ +	++	+++	+++	++++	+ +	+ - + -	+ + + +	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	48 48
Nervous System Brain Peripheral nerve Spinal cord	+ + +	++++	++++	+++++	++++++	+ + +	+ - + - + -	+ + + +	+ + + +	+++++	+++++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+ + +	48 47 48
Respiratory System Lung Sarcoma, metastatic, mesentery Nose Trachea	+ + +	++++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ - + - + -	+ + + +	+ + + +	+++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	48 1 48 48

| gy of Fe | ma | le l | Rat | s i | n tl | he | 2-¥ | lea | ar l

 | Fee | ed S
 | Stu | dy | of

 | M
 | ala | chi | ite | G
 | ree | n (| Ch | lor | ide: 0 pp | m |
|----------|--|---|--|--|--|--|---|--
--
--|---
--
--|--|--
--
--
--
---	--	--	--
--	---	--	
4	4	5	5

 | 6 | 6
 | 6 | 6 | 6

 | 6
 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7
 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7 | |
| 0 | 4 | 2 | 2 | 3 | 3 | 5 | 8 | 0 | 2

 | 2 | 3
 | 4 | 4 | 4

 | 6
 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 2
 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | |
| 1 | 3 | 6 | 9 | 3 | 5 | 2 | 9 | 6 | 6

 | 6 | 1
 | 1 | 1 | 7

 | 7
 | 4 | 1 | 2 | 8
 | 8 | 8 | 8 | 8 | 8 | |
| 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0

 | 0 | 0
 | 0 | 0 | 0

 | 0
 | 0 | 1 | 1 | 0
 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | |
| 1 | 1 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 4 | 4 | 5

 | 5 | 6
 | 6 | 7 | 7

 | 7
 | 8 | 3 | 3 | 9
 | 9 | 9 | 9 | 9 | 9 | |
| 2 | 4 | 7 | 8 | 5 | 6 | 9 | 0 | 6 | 1

 | 4 | 6
 | 4 | 0 | 2

 | 5
 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 1
 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | |
| | | | | | | | | |

 | |
 | | |

 |
 | | | |
 | | | | | | |
| + | + | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | М | + | + | +

 | + | $^+$
 | + | + | +

 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | |
| + | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | М | + | $^+$ | $^+$

 | $^+$ | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | +

 | +
 | + | + | $^+$ | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | |
| | | | | | | | | | $^+$

 | $^+$ | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ |

 |
 | | | $^+$ |
 | $^+$ | | | $^+$ | + | |
| + | $^+$ | $^+$ | М | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | $^+$ | $^+$

 | $^+$ | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$

 | $^+$
 | $^+$ | + | $^+$ | $^+$
 | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | $^+$ | + | |
| | | | | | | | | |

 | | Х
 | | |

 |
 | | | | | | | | | |
 | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |

 | |
 | | |

 |
 | | | |
 | | | | | | |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | +
 | + | + | +

 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | +
 | + | + | +

 | +
 | + | Μ | + | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | |
| | | | | | | | | |

 | |
 | | |

 |
 | | | |
 | | | | | | |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | +
 | + | + | +

 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | + | + | |
| | | Х | | | Х | Х | | | Х

 | |
 | Х | Х | Х

 | Х
 | | Х | Х | Х
 | | Х | х | | х | |
| | gy of Fer
4
0
1
0
1
2
+
+
+
+
+
+
+ | gy of Fema
4 4
0 4
1 3
0 0
1 1
2 4
+ +
+ +
+ +
+ +
+ +
+ + | gy of Female I 4 4 0 4 1 3 0 0 1 1 2 4 7 7 $+$ | gy of Female Rat 4 4 5 5 0 4 2 2 1 3 6 9 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 2 2 4 7 8 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + | gy of Female Rats in 4 4 5 5 5 0 4 2 2 3 1 3 6 9 3 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 2 2 2 4 7 8 5 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + | gy of Female Rats in the second sec | gy of Female Rats in the second state 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 3 5 6 9 3 5 6 9 3 5 6 9 3 5 6 9 3 5 4 4 4 | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Y 4 4 5 6 9 0 | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Yea 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 6 0 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 2 2 2 4 4 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 + <td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year I 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 +</td> <td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Fee 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 0 1 4 4 5 5 5 6 9 0<td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed S 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 1 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 0 1 4 6</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Stu 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 1 1 1 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 1 4 6 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 6 6 6 1 4 6 4 4 4 5 5 6 6 6 1 4 4</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 1<td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6
 6 1 1 1 7 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 <td< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Mage 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 1 1 1 7 7 0 1 1 1</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Mala 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 4 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 0 1 1 1 1 7</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malach 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 0 1 1</td></td<><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 8 3 3 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 <t< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Group 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 2 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 2 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 1 0 1 1 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 8 3 3 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Gree 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 4 4 7 8 5</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green (4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 3</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Ch 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 9 2 3 4 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 3 4 4 4 4 4 <td< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chlor 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 7 7 7</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride: 0 pp. 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7
 8 6 6 1 1<</td></td<></td></t<></td></td></td></td> | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year I 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 + | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Fee 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 0 1 4 4 5 5 5 6 9 0 <td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed S 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 1 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 0 1 4 6</td> <td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Stu 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 1 1 1 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 1 4 6 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 6 6 6 1 4 6 4 4 4 5 5 6 6 6 1 4 4</td> <td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 1<td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 1 1 1 7 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 <td< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Mage 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 1 1 1 7 7 0 1 1 1</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Mala 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 4 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 0 1 1 1 1 7</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malach 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 0 1 1</td></td<><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 8 3 3 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 <t< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Group 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 0 4 2 2 3
 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 2 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 2 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 1 0 1 1 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 8 3 3 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Gree 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 4 4 7 8 5</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green (4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 3</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Ch 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 9 2 3 4 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 3 4 4 4 4 4 <td< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chlor 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 7 7 7</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride: 0 pp. 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 6 6 1 1<</td></td<></td></t<></td></td></td> | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed S 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 1 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 0 1 4 6 | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Stu 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 1 1 1 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 1 4 6 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 6 6 6 1 4 6 4 4 4 5 5 6 6 6 1 4 4 | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 1 <td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 1 1 1 7 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 <td< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Mage 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 1 1 1 7 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 0 1 1 1</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Mala 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 4 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 0 1 1 1 1 7</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malach 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 0 1 1</td></td<><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 8 3 3 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 <t< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Group 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 2 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 2 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 1 0 1 1 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 8 3 3 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Gree 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 4 4 7 8 5</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green (4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 3</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Ch 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 9 2 3 4 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 3 4 4 4 4 4 <td< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chlor 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 7 7 7</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride: 0 pp. 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 6 6 1 1<</td></td<></td></t<></td></td> | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 1 1 1 7 0 1 1 1
 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 <td< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Mage 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 1 1 1 7 7 0 1 1 1</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Mala 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 4 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 0 1 1 1 1 7</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malach 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 0 1 1</td></td<> <td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 8 3 3 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 <t< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Group 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 2 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 2 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 1 0 1 1 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 8 3 3 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Gree 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 4 4 7 8 5</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green (4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 3</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Ch 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 9 2 3 4 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 3 4 4 4 4 4 <td< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chlor 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 7 7 7</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride: 0 pp. 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 6 6 1 1<</td></td<></td></t<></td> | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Mage 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 0 1 1 1 | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Mala 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 4 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 0 1 1 1 1 7 | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malach 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 0 1 1 | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 8 3 3 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 <t< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Group 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 2 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 2 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 1 0 1 1 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 8 3 3 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Gree 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 4 4 7 8 5</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green (4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 3</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Ch 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 9 2 3 4 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 3 4 4 4 4 4 <td< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chlor 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 7 7 7</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride: 0 pp. 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 6 6 1 1<</td></td<></td></t<> | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Group 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 0 4 2 2 3 3 5 8 0 2 2 3 4 4 4 6 0 1 2 2 1 3 6 9 3 5 2 9 6 6 6 1 1 1 7 7 4 1 2 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 1 1 0 1 1 0 1 1 2 2 2 2 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 8 3 3 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2 | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Gree 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 4 4 7 8 5 | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green (4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 2 4 7 8 5 6 9 0 6 1 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 3 | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Ch 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 9 2 3 4 4 6 4 0 2 5 2 3 2 1 2 3 4 4 4 4 4 <td< td=""><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chlor 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 7 7 7</td><td>gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride: 0 pp. 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 6 6 1 1<</td></td<> | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chlor 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 3 3 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 7 7 7 | gy of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride: 0 pp. 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 6 6 1 1< |

TABLE B2a Individual Animal Tumor Patho	ology of Fe	ma	ıle	Ra	ts i	in t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	eed	St	ud	ly (of	M	ala	ıch	ite	G	re	en	C	hlorid	le: 0	ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8 8	7 2 8 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8 8	7 2 8	7 7 2 2 8 8	7 7 2 2 8 8	7 2 8	7 2 8 8	7 2 3	7 2 8										
Carcass ID Number	0 9 7) 1 1 1	1 1 2	1 1 3	1 1 4	1 1 5	1 1 6	1 1 7	1 3 4	1 3 5	1 3 6	1 1 3 3 5 7	1 1 3 2 7 8	1 3 8	1 6 2	1 6 3	1 6 4	1 6 5	1 6 6	1 8 8	1 8 9	1 9 0	1 9 1)	1 9 2		Total Tissues/ Tumors
Special Senses System																											
Eye	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ -	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	F		47
Harderian gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ -	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	÷		47
Lacrimal gland	+		+	+	+		+	+			+	+	+														18
Zymbal's gland Carcinoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	+ -	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	F		47 1
Urinary System																											
Kidney	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ -	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-		48
Urinary bladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ -	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-		47
Systemic Lesions																											49
Leukemia mononuclear	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	X	K 2	×	+ X	+	т Х	+	+	+	÷		F		48 19

Individual Animal Tumor Patho	ology of l	Fen	al	le F	Rat	ts i	n t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	ıdy	of	f M	[ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en (Ch	lor	ide:	100 ppm	
Number of Days on Study		4 4 3	4 8 5	4 9 4	5 1 2	5 3 9	5 4 0	5 5 6	5 7 4	5 7 7	5 9 1	5 9 6	5 9 8	6 0 0	6 1 0	6 1 3	6 2 4	6 4 1	6 4 8	6 8 6	6 8 7	7 0 7	7 0 8	7 1 8	7 1 8	7 2 2		
Carcass ID Number		0 1 3	0 1 8	0 2 1	0 2 2	0 2 3	0 2 4	0 3 5	0 4 1	0 3 8	0 4 8	0 4 2	0 4 5	0 4 9	0 4 3	0 4 7	0 6 7	0 6 2	0 6 5	0 8 6	0 8 1	0 8 5	1 3 1	0 8 9	1 6 1	1 5 9		
Alimentary System																												
Esophagus		+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Intestine large, colon		А	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Intestine large, rectum		А	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	А	+	+	+	+		
Intestine large, cecum		А	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	А	+	+	+	+		
Intestine small, duodenum		А	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$		
Intestine small, jejunum		А	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	А	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$		
Intestine small, ileum		А	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	А	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$		
Liver		+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+		
Carcinoma, metastatic, uterus																Х												
Hepatocellular adenoma																												
Mesentery					+						+	+				+												
Carcinoma, metastatic, uterus																Х												
Pancreas		+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Carcinoma, metastatic, uterus																Х												
Salivary glands		+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Stomach, forestomach		+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Stomach, glandular		+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Squamous cell papilloma		+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Cardiovascular System																												
Blood vessel		+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	M	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
		т	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ		
Endocrine System																												
Adrenal cortex		+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Adrenal medulla		+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	Μ	[+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Pheochromocytoma benign																												
Islets, pancreatic		+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Parathyroid gland		+	+	+	+	+	м	+	+	+	+	+	+	м	м	+	+	+	+	м	+	+	м	+	+	+		
Pituitary gland		Ī	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Pars distalis, adenoma		•	x	x	x	x		x				X	X				x	x	X	x	X	X			x	x		
Thyroid gland		+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
C-cell, adenoma						Х																						
C-cell, carcinoma							Х																					
General Body System Tissue NOS																							+					
Canital System																												
Clitoral gland		-	+	L	J													. 1					.1	.1		Т		
A denoma		т	т	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	\mathbf{v}^{\top}		
Carcinoma																										21		
Bilateral, carcinoma																												

129

TABLE B2a

Individual Animal Tumor Patho	ology of Fe	ema	le	Ra	ts i	in t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	ıdy	of	M	ala	ich	ite	Gı	ree	n (Chloride:	100 ppm
		77	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Number of Days on Study	2	2 2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	
	8	8 8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	
Caraass ID Number	() (1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Total
Carcass ID Number	8	3 3 9	0	1	9	0	8	9	3 9	4 0	4	2	4	7	8	9	0	1	8 4	3	9 4	5	6	Tumors
Esophagus	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine large colon	-	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	40
Intestine large, rectum	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Intestine large, cecum	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Intestine small, duodenum	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Intestine small, jejunum	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Intestine small, ileum	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Liver	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	48
Carcinoma, metastatic, uterus Hepatocellular adenoma																						х		1 1
Mesentery																$^+$								5
Carcinoma, metastatic, uterus																								1
Pancreas	-	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	48
Carcinoma, metastatic, uterus																								1
Salivary glands	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	47
Stomach, forestomach	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	48
Stomach, glandular	н	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	48
Tongue	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Squamous cell papilloma																		Х						1
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	-	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Heart	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Endoaring System																								
Endocrine System																								10
Adrenal cortex	-	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Adrenal medulia	-	- +	+	+	+ V	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4/
Interest and Interesting Interesting					- A																		1	1
A denome	F		т	\mathbf{v}	т.	т	т	т	Ŧ	\mathbf{v}	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	т	Т	Ŧ	т	т	т	Ŧ	т	т	40
Parathyroid gland	_	+	+	л +	+	+	+	+	+	л +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	13
Pituitary gland	-	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
Pars distalis adenoma	3	x x	v	v	. '	v	v	v	v	v	v		v	v	ÿ	ÿ	v	ÿ	v	ÿ	ÿ	v	v	36
Thyroid gland	-	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
C-cell adenoma	3	ζ'									x	x										x	'	-10
C-cell carcinoma	1										21	1										1		1
																								1
General Body System Tissue NOS																								1
Genital System																								10
Clitoral gland	+	- + ,	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Adenoma	2	•			v	Х								Х					Х					5
Carcinoma Bilataral correinor					Х																	v		1
Bilateral, carcinoma																						л		1

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	y of Fei	na	le I	Rat	s ir	1 th	ne 2	2-Y	ea	r I	Fee	d S	Stu	dy	of	Μ	ala	ch	ite	Gı	ree	n (Chl	ori	ide:	100 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	4 4 3	4 8 5	4 9 4	5 1 2	5 3 9	5 4 0	5 5 6	5 7 4	5 7 7	5 9 1	5 9 6	5 9 8	6 0 0	6 1 0	6 1 3	6 2 4	6 4 1	6 4 8	6 8 6	6 8 7	7 0 7	7 0 8	7 1 8	7 1 8	7 2 2		
Carcass ID Number	0 1 3	0 1 8	0 2 1	0 2 2	0 2 3	0 2 4	0 3 5	0 4 1	0 3 8	0 4 8	0 4 2	0 4 5	0 4 9	0 4 3	0 4 7	0 6 7	0 6 2	0 6 5	0 8 6	0 8 1	0 8 5	1 3 1	0 8 9	1 6 1	1 5 9		
Genital System (continued) Ovary Granulosa cell tumor malignant Uterus Polyp stromal Sarcoma stromal Endometrium, carcinoma	+ +	++	++	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ + X	+++	+ + X	+ +	+ + X X	+ + X	+ +	+++	++	+ +	+++	+++	+ +	+++	+ +		
Vagina	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Carcinoma, metastatic, uterus Thymus	+ + + A +	+ + + +	++++++++	+ + + +	+ + + H	+ M + +	+ + + M	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + H	++++++++	+ M + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + X +	+ + + + + +	++++++++	++++++++	+ + + +	+ + + + +	++++++++	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	++++++++	+ + + +		
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Fibroadenoma Skin Subcutaneous tissue, fibroma	+ +	+	+ X +	+ X +	+	+	+	+ X +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X +	+	+ X +	++	+	+	+ X +	+	+ X +		
Musculoskeletal System Bone Skeletal muscle	+++	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +	++++	++++	++++	++++	+ +		
Nervous System Brain Peripheral nerve Spinal cord	+ + +	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+++++	++++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +		
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Carcinoma, metastatic, thyroid gland Sarcoma stromal, metastatic, uterus	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Nose Trachea	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +		

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	gy of Fei	na	le I	Rat	ts i	n tl	he	2-1	Yea	ır 1	Fee	ed S	Stu	ıdy	of	M	ala	ch	ite	G	ree	n (Chloric	le: 100 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 2 8																							
Carcass ID Number	0 9 8	0 9 9	1 0 0	1 0 1	1 0 9	1 1 0	1 1 8	1 1 9	1 3 9	1 4 0	1 4 1	1 4 2	1 4 3	1 6 7	1 6 8	1 6 9	1 7 0	1 7 1	1 8 4	1 9 3	1 9 4	1 9 5	1 9 6	Total Tissues/ Tumors
Genital System (continued)	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Granulosa cell tumor malignant	1			x	'			'	'	'		'			'	'	'			'			1	1
Uterus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Polyp stromal				Х						v			Х				Х							7
Sarcoma stromal										Х														1
Vagina	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Hematopoietic System																								
Bone marrow	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Lymph node																+						+		7
Lymph node, mandibular	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Spleen	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Carcinoma, metastatic, uterus																								1
Thymus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	42
Integumentary System																								
Mammary gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Carcinoma	v			v						v		X		v								v	v	2
Skin	А +	+	+	л +	+	+	+	+	+	л +	+	л +	+	л +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	л +	л +	13
Subcutaneous tissue, fibroma																				X				1
Musculoskeletal System																								
Bone	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Skeletal muscle	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Nervous System																								
Brain	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Spinal cord	+ +	++	++	++	M +	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	47 48
Respiratory System	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma									,					X				,						1
Carcinoma, metastatic, thyroid gland																								1
Sarcoma stromal, metastatic, uterus						,	,		,	X								,	,					1
Nose Trachea	+	++	++	++	++	++	+++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+++	++	++	++	+++	++	48
Tuened	1	'			'		1		'				'	'				1	'	1		'		40

Individual Animal Tumor Pa	athology of Fe	ma	le l	Rat	s ii	n tl	he	2-Y	Yea	ar I	Fee	ed S	Stu	ldy	of	M	ala	ch	ite	G	ree	n (Chl	lori	ide:	100 ppm	1
Number of Days on Study	4 4 3	4 8 5	4 9 4	5 1 2	5 3 9	5 4 0	5 5 6	5 7 4	5 7 7	5 9 1	5 9 6	5 9 8	6 0 0	6 1 0	6 1 3	6 2 4	6 4 1	6 4 8	6 8 6	6 8 7	7 0 7	7 0 8	7 1 8	7 1 8	7 2 2		
Carcass ID Number	0 1 3	0 1 8	0 2 1	0 2 2	0 2 3	0 2 4	0 3 5	0 4 1	0 3 8	0 4 8	0 4 2	0 4 5	0 4 9	0 4 3	0 4 7	0 6 7	0 6 2	0 6 5	0 8 6	0 8 1	0 8 5	1 3 1	0 8 9	1 6 1	1 5 9		
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Lacrimal gland Zymbal's gland	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++	++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++	++++	+++++	+ + + +	+++++	++++++		
Urinary System Kidney Urinary bladder Transitional epithelium, papilloma	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +	+++	+ + X	+ +		
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+ X	+ X	+	+	+ X	+ X	+	+ X	+	+ X	+ X	+ X	+ X	+ X	+ X	+	+		

TABLE **B2**a Individual • •

Individual Animal Tumor Patholo	ogy of Fei	ma	le]	Rat	ts i	n t	he	2-1	Yea	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	ıdy	of	M	ala	ch	ite	Gı	ree	n (Chloride:	100 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	
Carcass ID Number	0 9 8	0 9 9	1 0 0	1 0 1	1 0 9	1 1 0	1 1 8	1 1 9	1 3 9	1 4 0	1 4 1	1 4 2	1 4 3	1 6 7	1 6 8	1 6 9	1 7 0	1 7 1	1 8 4	1 9 3	1 9 4	1 9 5	1 9 6	Total Tissues/ Tumors
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Lacrimal gland Zymbal's gland	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + +	+++++	+ + + +	++++++	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + +	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	+ + +	+ + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	48 48 14 48
Urinary System Kidney Urinary bladder Transitional epithelium, papilloma	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	++	+++	+++	+++	+++	++++	++++	++++	++++	+++	+++	++++	48 48 1
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48 17

Individual Animal Tumor Pathol	ogy of Fer	na	le I	Rat	s ii	n tl	he	2-1	Yea	ar I	Fee	ed S	Stu	ıdy	of	M	ala	ach	ite	G	ree	n (Chl	lori	ide:	300	ppn	n
Number of Days on Study	4 8 4	5 0 8	6 0 3	6 1 9	6 2 6	6 2 7	6 5 2	6 5 9	6 5 9	6 6 6	6 7 3	6 9 2	6 9 7	6 9 7	7 1 5	7 1 9	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8			
Carcass ID Number	0 1 7	0 1 9	0 5 0	0 6 0	0 5 3	0 5 6	0 6 8	0 6 9	0 7 3	0 7 1	0 8 0	0 8 8	0 7 8	0 9 0	1 6 0	0 8 7	1 0 2	1 0 3	1 2 0	1 2 1	1 2 2	1 2 3	1 2 4	1 2 5	1 2 6			
Alimentary System																												
Esophagus Intestine large, colon Polyp adenomatous	++	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+ +	++	++	++	++	++			
Intestine large, rectum Intestine large, cecum Intestine small, duodenum Intestine small, jejunum	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + +			
Intestine small, ileum Liver Hepatocellular carcinoma Hepatocellular adenoma	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ + X	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	++	++	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	++	+ +	+ +	+ +			
Mesentery Pancreas Salivary glands Stomach, forestomach Stomach, glandular	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	++++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	++++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + +			
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+			
Cardiovascular System Blood vessel Heart	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	++++	+++	+++	++++	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	++++	+ +	+++	+ +			
Endocrine System Adrenal cortex Adrenal medulla Islets, pancreatic Adenoma	+ + +	++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	++++	++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	++++++			
Carcinoma Parathyroid gland Pituitary gland Pars distalis, adenoma Thyroid gland C-cell, adenoma	M M +	+ + +	+ + X +	+ + X +	+ + +	+ + X +	+ + X +	+ + X +	+ + X +	+ + X +	M + +	+ + X +	+ I +	+ + X +	+ + +	+ + X + X	+ + X +	++++	+ + X +	+++++	+ + X +	+ + X +	+++++	+ + X +	+ + X			
C-cell, carcinoma Follicular cell, adenoma Follicular cell, carcinoma																Х							X X					
General Body System None																												
Genital System Clitoral gland Adenoma Carcinoma Bilateral, carcinoma	+ X	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+ X	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	М			

Individual Animal Tumor Path	ology of Fe	ma	le	Rat	ts i	n tl	he	2-1	Y ea	ar	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	M	ala	chi	ite	G	ree	n (Chloride	e: 300 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 2 8																							
Carcass ID Number	1 2 7	1 4 4	1 4 5	1 4 6	1 4 7	1 4 8	1 4 9	1 5 0	1 7 2	1 7 3	1 7 4	1 7 5	1 7 6	1 7 7	1 7 8	1 7 9	1 9 7	1 9 8	1 9 9	2 0 0	2 0 1	2 0 2	2 0 3	Total Tissues/ Tumors
Alimentary System																								
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	48
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	48
Polyp adenomatous										Х														1
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	48
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	48
Intestine small, duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine small, jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Hepatocellular carcinoma										х														1
Hepatocellular adenoma							х			X														3
Mesentery																								2
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Salivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Stomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Stomach glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Cardiovascular System	+	. +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Endocrine System																								
Adrenal cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Adrenal medulla	+	. +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	40
Islets pancreatic	+	. +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Adenoma					·	·	·		·	·							x	·	·					1
Carcinoma																	x							1
Parathyroid gland	+	. +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	л +	+	+	+	м	+	+	1
Pituitary gland	+	. +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	45
Pars distalis adenoma	N N	v	v			'	v	v	'	v	v	v	v	v	v	v	v		v	v		v	v	40
Thuroid gland		. <u> </u>	л +	+	+	+	л +	л +	+	л +	+	л +	л +	м	л +	л +	32							
C cell adenoma	T V	. –	т	т	т	т	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	т	Т	IVI	т	т	4/
C coll correinome	7	-																						3
C-cell, carcinoma											v													2
Follicular cell, carcinoma											л											Х		2
General Body System None																								
Genital System																								
Clitoral gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	47
Adenoma									Х			Х			Х	Х	Х							8
Carcinoma																		Х			Х			5
Bilateral, carcinoma																				Х				1

136

TABLE B2a

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	y of Fer	nal	le I	Rat	s iı	n tł	ne î	2-3	Yea	ar l	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	M	ala	ch	ite	G	ree	n (Chl	ori	de:	300 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	4 8 4	5 0 8	6 0 3	6 1 9	6 2 6	6 2 7	6 5 2	6 5 9	6 5 9	6 6 6	6 7 3	6 9 2	6 9 7	6 9 7	7 1 5	7 1 9	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8		
Carcass ID Number	0 1 7	0 1 9	0 5 0	0 6 0	0 5 3	0 5 6	0 6 8	0 6 9	0 7 3	0 7 1	0 8 0	0 8 8	0 7 8	0 9 0	1 6 0	0 8 7	1 0 2	1 0 3	1 2 0	1 2 1	1 2 2	1 2 3	1 2 4	1 2 5	1 2 6		
Genital System (continued) Ovary Carcinoma, metastatic, clitoral gland Uterus Polyp stromal Sarcoma stromal Vagina	+ +	+++++	+ + X +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + X +	M + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ X + X +	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++++		
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+++++++	+ + + + +	+++++++	+++++++	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+++++++	+ + + + +	+ + + M	+ + + + +	+ + + + M	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+++++++	+ + + M	+ M + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + M	+ + + + +		
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Fibroadenoma Skin Keratoacanthoma Squamous cell papilloma	+	+	+	+	+ X +	+ X +	+	+ X +	+	+	+	+	+	+ X +	+	+ X +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Musculoskeletal System Bone Skeletal muscle	+++	+++	+++	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+ +		
Nervous System Brain Peripheral nerve Spinal cord	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++		
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Nose Trachea	+ + +	++++++	+ + +	+++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +		
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Lacrimal gland Zymbal's gland Carcinoma	+++++++	+++++	++++++	+++++	++++++	+++++++	+ + + X	++++++	++++++	++++	++++++	+++++	+ + + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	+ + + +	++++++		

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	y of Fe	ma	le l	Rat	ts i	n tl	he 1	2-Y	Yea	ar I	Fee	ed S	Stu	ıdy	of	M	ala	ich	ite	G	ree	n (Chlorid	le: 300 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	
Carcass ID Number	1 2 7	1 4 4	1 4 5	1 4 6	1 4 7	1 4 8	1 4 9	1 5 0	1 7 2	1 7 3	1 7 4	1 7 5	1 7 6	1 7 7	1 7 8	1 7 9	1 9 7	1 9 8	1 9 9	2 0 0	2 0 1	2 0 2	2 0 3	Total Tissues/ Tumors
Genital System (continued) Ovary	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Uterus Polyp stromal Sarcoma stromal Vagina	+	+++	+ X +	++	+ X +	++	++	+ X +	++	++	++	+++	++	++	+++	++	++	++	+++	++	++	+++	+	1 48 5 1 48
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus	+ + + +	+++++	+ + + M	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	++++++	+ + + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	++++++	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	7 47 48 48 43
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Fibroadenoma Skin Keratoacanthoma Squamous cell papilloma	+	+ X +	+	+	+ +	+ X +	+	+	+	+ X +	+	++	+ X +	+ + X	++	+ + X	+	+	++	+ X +	+ X +	+ X +	+ +	48 1 12 48 1 1
Musculoskeletal System Bone Skeletal muscle	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	+++	+++	++++	++++	++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	++	+++	+++	+ +	+++	+++	+++++	48 48
Nervous System Brain Peripheral nerve Spinal cord	+ + +	++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+ + +	48 48 48
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Nose Trachea	+ + +	++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ X + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	48 1 48 48
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Lacrimal gland Zymbal's gland Carcinoma	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++	++++	+++++	++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+ + +	48 48 15 48 1

Individual Animal Tumor Patho	ology of Fe	ma	le l	Rat	s ii	n tl	he	2-}	Yea	ar I	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	M	ala	chi	ite	Gı	ee	n (Chl	ori	ide:	300 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	4 8 4	5 0 8	6 0 3	6 1 9	6 2 6	6 2 7	6 5 2	6 5 9	6 5 9	6 6 6	6 7 3	6 9 2	6 9 7	6 9 7	7 1 5	7 1 9	7 2 8										
Carcass ID Number	0 1 7	0 1 9	0 5 0	0 6 0	0 5 3	0 5 6	0 6 8	0 6 9	0 7 3	0 7 1	0 8 0	0 8 8	0 7 8	0 9 0	1 6 0	0 8 7	1 0 2	1 0 3	1 2 0	1 2 1	1 2 2	1 2 3	1 2 4	1 2 5	1 2 6		
Urinary System Kidney Urinary bladder	+++	++	+++	+ +	++	++	++	+++	+++	+ +	++	+++	+++	+ M	+++	+++	+++	++	++	++	+++	++	++	++	+ +		
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+ X	$^+_{\rm X}$	+ X	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+		

TABLE	B2a
-------	-----

Individual Animal Tumor Path	ology of Fe	ma	le l	Rat	ts i	n t	he	2-	Yea	ar 1	Fee	ed S	Stu	ıdy	of	M	ala	ich	ite	G	ree	n (Chloride:	300 ppm
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Number of Days on Study	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	
	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	
	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	2	2	2	2	Total
Carcass ID Number	2	4	4	4	4	4	4	5	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	9	9	9	0	0	0	0	Tissues/
	7	4	5	6	7	8	9	0	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	7	8	9	0	1	2	3	Tumors
Urinary System																								
Kidney	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Urinary bladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Systemic Lesions																								
Multiple organs	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Leukemia mononuclear			Х							Х													Х	10

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	y of Fe	ma	le	Ra	ts i	n tl	he	2-1	Yea	ar I	Fee	ed S	Stu	ıdy	of	M	ala	ich	ite	G	ree	n (Chl	ori	ide:	600 ppm
Number of Days on Study	1 1 1	3 2 3	3 7 8	4 4 3	4 5 4	5 0 8	5 4 6	5 6 2	5 7 0	5 8 1	5 8 9	6 0 5	6 1 9	6 2 0	6 3 0	6 3 3	6 3 4	6 5 4	6 7 0	6 8 5	6 9 4	6 9 7	6 9 9	7 2 8	7 2 8	
Carcass ID Number	((1) 0) 0 6	0 1 1	0 1 6	0 1 5	0 2 0	0 3 6	0 3 7	0 3 4	0 3 9	0 4 4	0 5 2	0 5 9	0 5 5	0 6 1	0 5 8	0 6 3	0 7 4	0 7 6	0 8 3	0 7 7	0 7 9	0 8 4	1 0 4	1 0 5	
Alimentary System																										
Esophagus	+	+ +	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	
Intestine large, colon	-	- +	Α	. +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	
Intestine large, rectum	+	- +	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	
Polyp adenomatous																										
Intestine large, cecum	-	+	Α	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	
Intestine small, duodenum	-	+ +	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	
Intestine small, jejunum	-	+ +	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	
Intestine small, ileum	-	- +	Α	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Liver	-	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Hepatocellular adenoma Hepatocellular adenoma, multiple Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary											X														х	
Mesentery											+				+											
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary											Х															
Pancreas	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Salivary glands	-	- +	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	
Stomach, forestomach	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Stomach, glandular	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Tongue	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Squamous cell carcinoma											Х															
Cardiovascular System																										
Blood vessel	+	- +	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	
Heart	+	- +	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary											Х															
Endocrine System																										
Adrenal cortex	-	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovarv											Х															
Adrenal medulla	-	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Pheochromocytoma benign																										
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary											Х															
Islets, pancreatic	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Adenoma																										
Parathyroid gland	-	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	М	+	+	М	+	М	+	М	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	
Pituitary gland	-	- +	+	+	М	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	I	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Carcinoma, metastatic. Zvmbal's gland								Х											-							
Pars distalis, adenoma									Х		Х					Х	Х	Х			Х	Х	Х		Х	
Pars distalis, carcinoma									-		-					-	-	-		Х	-	-	-			
Thyroid gland	-	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovarv											Х									-						
C-cell, adenoma																										
C-cell, carcinoma																										
Follicular cell, adenoma																										
Follicular cell, carcinoma																										
·																										

TABLE B2a Individual Anim

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	y of Fei	na	le l	Rat	ts i	n tl	he	2-1	Yea	ar 1	Fee	ed S	Stu	ldy	of	M	ala	ch	ite	G	ree	n (Chlorid	e: 600 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 2 8																							
Carcass ID Number	1 0 6	1 0 7	1 0 8	1 2 8	1 2 9	1 3 0	1 5 1	1 5 2	1 5 3	1 5 4	1 5 5	1 5 6	1 5 7	1 5 8	1 8 0	1 8 1	1 8 2	1 8 3	2 0 4	2 0 5	2 0 6	2 0 7	2 0 8	Total Tissues/ Tumors
Alimentary System																								
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Polyp adenomatous																							X	1
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Intestine small, duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine small, jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Hepatocellular adenoma Hepatocellular adenoma, multiple Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary		1					1	X	I	x	1	I								1	X			3 1
Mesentery									+							+								4
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary																								1
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Salivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Stomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Stomacn, glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Squamous cell carcinoma	т	Т	-	т	т	т	Т	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	×	т	Т	т	т	Т	40 1 1
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	48
Heart	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	48
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary																								1
Endocrine System																								
Adrenal cortex	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	48
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary																								1
Adrenal medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Pheochromocytoma benign																Х								1
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary																								1
Islets, pancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Adenoma Depathymoid aland				м			м				м										_А			1
Parathyrold gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	39 45
Carcinoma metastatic Zymbal's gland	1				'	'		'															1	45
Pars distalis adenoma	x	x	x	x	x	x	x	x	x	x	x	x	x	x		x	x		x		x	x	х	29
Pars distalis, carcinoma									11		11	21	~ •											1
Thyroid gland	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary																								1
C-cell, adenoma		Х							Х										Х					3
C-cell, carcinoma											Х													1
Follicular cell, adenoma														Х	v									1
romeutat een, carentointa															Λ									1

TABLE B2a

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fe	ma	le l	Rat	s iı	n tł	1e î	2-1	lea	ar l	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	M	ala	ch	ite	Gı	ree	n (Chl	ori	ide:	600 ppm
Number of Days on Study	1 1 1	3 2 3	3 7 8	4 4 3	4 5 4	5 0 8	5 4 6	5 6 2	5 7 0	5 8 1	5 8 9	6 0 5	6 1 9	6 2 0	6 3 0	6 3 3	6 3 4	6 5 4	6 7 0	6 8 5	6 9 4	6 9 7	6 9 9	7 2 8	7 2 8	
Carcass ID Number	0 0 1	0 0 6	0 1 1	0 1 6	0 1 5	0 2 0	0 3 6	0 3 7	0 3 4	0 3 9	0 4 4	0 5 2	0 5 9	0 5 5	0 6 1	0 5 8	0 6 3	0 7 4	0 7 6	0 8 3	0 7 7	0 7 9	0 8 4	1 0 4	1 0 5	
General Body System None																										
Genital System Clitoral gland Adenoma Carcinoma	+	+ X	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+ X	М	+	+	+ X X	+	+	+ X	+	+ X	+	+	+	
Bilateral, carcinoma Ovary Sarcoma Uterus Polyp stromal Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Schwannoma malignant	+ +	+	+	+	+	+ + X	+	+ + X	+	+	+ X + X	+	+	+ + X	+ + X	+	+	+	+	+ + X	+ + X	+	+	+	+	
Endometrium, adenoma Vagina Sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Hemangiosarcoma Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Thymus Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Sarcoma, metastatic, uncertain primary site	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + M	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + +	+ + + + + + + M	+ + + M	+ + + M	+ + + + +	+ + + + X + X	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + M	+ + + + + M	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Fibroadenoma Skin Subcutaneous tissue, sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+ X +	+	+	+	+ X +	+	+	+	+ X +	+ X +	+ + X	+	+ + X	+	+ X +	+	+ X +	+ X +	+	+	
Musculoskeletal System Bone Sarcoma Skeletal muscle	+	++	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	++	++	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	++	+ +	++	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	++	++	+ +	
TABLE B2a

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fe	ma	le]	Rat	ts i	n t	he	2-}	Yea	ır 1	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	Μ	ala	ch	ite	G	ree	n (Chloride:	600 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	
Carcass ID Number	1 0 6	1 0 7	1 0 8	1 2 8	1 2 9	1 3 0	1 5 1	1 5 2	1 5 3	1 5 4	1 5 5	1 5 6	1 5 7	1 5 8	1 8 0	1 8 1	1 8 2	1 8 3	2 0 4	2 0 5	2 0 6	2 0 7	2 0 8	Total Tissues/ Tumors
General Body System None																								
Genital System																								
Clitoral gland Adenoma Carcinoma	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+ X	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47 8 4
Bilateral, carcinoma Ovary Sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	X +	+	1 48 1
Uterus Polyp stromal Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Schwannoma malignant	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+ X	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+ X	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+ X	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+ X	+	+ X	48 16 1
Endometrium, adenoma Vagina Sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	X +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	1 48 1
Hematopoietic System	+	_	-	-	-	-	-	+	-	-	+	-	-	-	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	+	+	18
Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular	+	+	+	+++	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+++	+	48 5 48
Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Hemangiosarcoma	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ + X	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	48 48 1
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Thymus Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Sarcoma, metastatic, uncertain primary site	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	1 40 1 1
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+	48 5
Skin Subcutaneous tissue, sarcoma	X +	+	+	+	+	+	+	X +	+	X +	Х +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Х +	+	+	48 2
Musculoskeletal System	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	10
Sarcoma Skeletal muscle	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Г +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48 1 48

1	4	4

TABLE B2a

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of	f Fei	na	le I	Rat	s ii	n tl	he	2-}	Yea	ar l	Fee	ed S	Stu	ıdy	of	M	ala	ch	ite	G	ree	n (Chl	ori	de:	600 ppm
Number of Days on Study	1 1 1	3 2 3	3 7 8	4 4 3	4 5 4	5 0 8	5 4 6	5 6 2	5 7 0	5 8 1	5 8 9	6 0 5	6 1 9	6 2 0	6 3 0	6 3 3	6 3 4	6 5 4	6 7 0	6 8 5	6 9 4	6 9 7	6 9 9	7 2 8	7 2 8	
Carcass ID Number	0 0 1	0 0 6	0 1 1	0 1 6	0 1 5	0 2 0	0 3 6	0 3 7	0 3 4	0 3 9	0 4 4	0 5 2	0 5 9	0 5 5	0 6 1	0 5 8	0 6 3	0 7 4	0 7 6	0 8 3	0 7 7	0 7 9	0 8 4	1 0 4	1 0 5	
Nervous System Brain Oligodendroglioma malignant Ventricle, carcinoma, metastatic,	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Peripheral nerve Spinal cord	+ +	M +	+ +	+ +	+ +	X + +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +															
Respiratory System Lung Carcinoma, metastatic, Zymbal's gland Sarcoma, metastatic, uncertain primary site	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Mediastinum, sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Nose Trachea	+ +	X + +	+ +																							
Special Senses System Ear Pinna, neural crest tumor Eye Harderian gland	++++	++	++	++	+++	+++	+++	+++	++	++	++	++	+++	++	++	++	++	+++	++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	++++	
Adenoma Lacrimal gland Zymbal's gland Carcinoma	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	++	+	++	+	+	+	М	+	X +	+	++	
Urinary System Kidney Urinary bladder Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Transitional epithelium, carcinoma	+ +	++	++	++	+++	+++	++	+ +	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+ + X	+ +	+ +	++	++	+++	++	+ +	++	+ +	
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	

TABLE B2a

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fe	ma	le l	Rat	ts ii	n tl	he	2-1	Yea	ar 1	Fee	ed a	Stu	ıdy	of	M	ala	ich	ite	G	ee	n (Chlor	ide:	<u>600 pp</u>	m
Number of Days on Study	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8	7 2 8			
Carcass ID Number	1 0 6	1 0 7	1 0 8	1 2 8	1 2 9	1 3 0	1 5 1	1 5 2	1 5 3	1 5 4	1 5 5	1 5 6	1 5 7	1 5 8	1 8 0	1 8 1	1 8 2	1 8 3	2 0 4	2 0 5	2 0 6	2 0 7	2 0 8			Total Tissues/ Tumors
Nervous System Brain Oligodendroglioma malignant Ventricle, carcinoma, metastatic,	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+			48 1
pituitary gland Peripheral nerve Spinal cord	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +			1 47 48
Respiratory System Lung Carcinoma, metastatic, Zymbal's gland Sarcoma, metastatic, uncertain primary site	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+			48 1 1
Mediastinum, sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Nose Trachea	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +			1 48 48
Special Senses System Ear Pinna, neural crest tumor Eye Harderian gland Adenoma Lacrimal gland Zymbal's gland Carcinoma	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	++++	++++++	+++++++	+++++++	+++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	+ X + + +	++++	+++++++	++++	++++++	++++	+++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	++++++			1 1 48 48 1 9 46 2
Urinary System Kidney Urinary bladder Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Transitional epithelium, carcinoma	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	+++	+ +	+++	+++	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	+++	+ +	+ +	+ + X	+ M	+++	+ +			48 47 1 1
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+			48 1

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fer	na	le I	Rat	s ii	n tł	he	2-\	Yea	ar I	Fee	ed S	Stu	ıdy	of	Le	euc	om	nala	acł	nite	G	ree	en:	0 ppm
	5	5	5	5	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7
Number of Days on Study	5	7	8	8	2	3	5	6	6	6	7	1	1	1	1	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3
<i>.</i>	2	8	5	9	7	5	3	2	2	9	3	4	8	9	9	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	5
	2	1	1	2	1	1	2	1	1	1	2	2	1	1	1	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	4	3
Carcass ID Number	2	1	2	3	2	2	4	3	3	3	5	6	4	4	4	5	5	5	6	6	6	6	6	3	9
	0	9	2	4	5	6	8	0	1	4	3	8	0	1	2	7	8	9	0	1	2	3	4	8	5
Alimentary System																									
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, colon	+ +	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	+	+	+	+ +
Intestine mall	+ +	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	+	+	+	+ +
Intestine small duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Δ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, dubuchulli	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Δ	+	Δ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, ieiunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Δ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Henatocellular adenoma																									
Mesenterv	+	+			+			+	+						+			+							
Sarcoma	x																								
Schwannoma malignant, metastatic, uterus		Х																							
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Schwannoma malignant, metastatic, uterus		Х																							
Acinar cell, adenoma																									
Sanvary giands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomach forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	+	+	+	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomach, alandular	+ +	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	+	+	+	+ +
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Cardiovacoular System																									
Dlaad vassal																									
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
neart	т	T	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	-	т	Т	т	Т	Т	т	т	т	Т	т	т	т	т	т	T
Endocrine System																									
Adrenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Adrenal gland, cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Adrenal gland, medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Islets, pancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Parathyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	Μ	Α	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	+	+	Ι	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Pars distalis, adenoma					Х			Х	Х		Х	Х	Х		Х			Х		Х		Х	Х	Х	Х
Thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Α	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
C-cell, adenoma				Х																				Х	
Canaral Rody System																									
Tissue NOS		<u>ـــ</u>																							
Sahwannama malianast suct statis		+																							
Schwannoma mangnant, metastatic, uterus		Х																							

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fei	na	le	Kat	ts 1	n t	ne	2- <u>)</u>	Y ea	ar I	Fee	ed s	Stu	idy	01	L	euc	on	181	ac	nite	e G	reen	: 0 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 6																			
Carcass ID Number	3 9 6	3 9 7	3 9 8	3 9 9	4 3 7	1 4 6	1 4 7	1 4 8	1 4 9	1 7 3	1 7 4	1 7 5	1 7 6	1 7 7	1 7 8	1 7 9	1 8 0	4 0 6	4 0 7	4 0 8	4 0 9	4 1 0	4 1 1	Ti: Tı	Total ssues/ umors
Alimentary System																									
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Intestine large, rectum	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+		48
Intestine small	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Intestine small, duodenum	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+		47
Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+		46
Intestine small, jejunum	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Hepatocellular adenoma					Х																				1
Mesentery																	+								8
Sarcoma																									1
Schwannoma malignant, metastatic, uterus																									1
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Schwannoma malignant, metastatic, uterus																									1
Acinar cell, adenoma															Х										1
Salivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Stomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Stomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Stomach, glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Cardiovascular System																									
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Endocrine System																									
Adrenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	T	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Adrenal gland cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	ī	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Adrenal gland, medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	Ī	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Islets nancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Parathyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	M	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	M		42
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Pars distalis, adenoma		x	x	X	x		-		x			x		x			x	x	x		x	x	x		26
Thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		46
C-cell, adenoma									Х									Х							4
Canaral Rody System																									
Tissue NOS																									1
Schwannoma malignant, metastatic, uterus																									1

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	gy of Fei	na	le l	Rat	s ii	n tl	he	2-}	Yea	ar 1	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	Le	euc	on	nala	acł	nite	e G	ree	en:	0 ppm
Number of Days on Study	5 5 2	5 7 8	5 8 5	5 8 9	6 2 7	6 3 5	6 5 3	6 6 2	6 6 2	6 6 9	6 7 3	7 1 4	7 1 8	7 1 9	7 1 9	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 5						
Carcass ID Number	2 2 0	1 1 9	1 2 2	2 3 4	1 2 5	1 2 6	2 4 8	1 3 0	1 3 1	1 3 4	2 5 3	2 6 8	1 4 0	1 4 1	1 4 2	3 5 7	3 5 8	3 5 9	3 6 0	3 6 1	3 6 2	3 6 3	3 6 4	4 3 8	3 9 5
Genital System																									
Clitoral gland Adenoma	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$ X	+	+	+	+	+ X
Carcinoma Ovary Oviduat	+	+	X +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Leiomyoma Uterus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Leiomyoma Polyp stromal Sarcoma stromal			Х				X					Х						X		Х					
Schwannoma malignant Bilateral, polyp stromal Vagina	+	X +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Bone marrow Lymph node Mesenteric, schwannoma malignant	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +						
metastatic, uterus	+	X +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen	M +	++	++	+ +	++	+++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	++	+++	++	++	+++	+ +	++	++	++	++	++	+ + M	++	++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	++	+ +
	т	т	Т	IVI	Т	Т	т	т	т	т	т	т	IVI	т	т	т	т	т	IVI	Т	т	т	т	IVI	Т
Integumentary System Mammary gland Fibroadenoma Skin	+ +	++	++	+ X +	+	+	+	+	+	+ X +	+	+	+	+ X +	+	+ X +	+ X +	+ X +	+ X +	+ X +	+	++	++	+ X +	+ +
Squamous cell papilloma																								Х	
Musculoskeletal System																									
Bone	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Bone, femur Skeletal muscle	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +
Nervous System																									
Brain	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Brain, cerebellum	+	++	++	++	++	+	+	++	++	++	+	++	++	++	++	++	+	+	+	++	+	+	+	++	+
Brain, cerebrum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Peripheral nerve	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Spinal cord thoracic	+	++	++	++	++	+	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+	+	+	++	+
Spinar coru, moracie	Ŧ	Τ'	T	т	Г	Г	Г	Г	т	Τ'	т	Т	Т	Г	Г	Т	T	т	т	т	т	Г	Г	т	1

| of Fe | ma | le] | Rat | ts i | n tl | he | 2-1

 | lea | ır l | Fee | d S

 | Stu | dy | of | Le | euc | om
 | nala | acł | nite
 | e G | ree | n: 0 ppm | |
|---|---|---|---|--|---|---
--
--
---|---|---
--
---|---|---|---|--
---|---
---|---|--|--|---
---|---|
| 7
3
5 | 7
3
5 | 7
3
5 | 7
3
5 | 7
3
5 | 7
3
6 | 7
3
6 | 7
3
6

 | 7
3
6 | 7
3
6 | 7
3
6 | 7
3
6

 | 7
3
6 | 7
3
6 | 7
3
6 | 7
3
6 | 7
3
6 | 7
3
6
 | 7
3
6 | 7
3
6 | 7
3
6
 | 7
3
6 | 7
3
6 | | |
| 3 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 4 | 1 | 1 | 1

 | 1 | 1 | 1 | 1

 | 1 | 1 | 1 | 1 | 1 | 4
 | 4 | 4 | 4
 | 4 | 4 | | Total |
| 9
6 | 9
7 | 9
8 | 9
9 | 3
7 | 4
6 | 4
7 | 4
8

 | 4
9 | 7
3 | 7
4 | 7
5

 | 7
6 | 7
7 | 7
8 | 7
9 | 8
0 | 0
6
 | 0
7 | 0
8 | 0
9
 | 1
0 | 1
1 | | Tissues/
Tumors |
| | | | | | | |

 | | | |

 | | | | | |
 | | |
 | | | | |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | +
X | +

 | + | + | + | +
X

 | + | + | +
X | + | + | +
 | $^+_{\rm X}$ | + | $^+_{\rm X}$
 | +
x | + | | 47
7
2 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | +
 | + | +
+
V | | 48
1 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | +
 | + | л
+ | | 48 |
| Х | | | | х | | | Χ

 | | | х |

 | | | | | | х
 | | х |
 | | | | 9
1
1 |
| + | + | X
+ | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | +
 | + | + | | 1
48 |
| - | - | _ | - | - | - | - | -

 | - | - | т | -

 | - | - | - | - | - | -
 | - | - | -
 | - | т. | | 19 |
| + | + | + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | +
 | + | + | | 48 |
| +
+ | +++ | +++ | +++ | +
+ | +
+ | +
+ | +
+

 | +
+ | +
+ | +
+ | +
+

 | +
+ | +
+ | +
+ | +
+ | M
+ | +
+
 | +
+ | +
+ | +
+
 | +
+ | +++ | | 1
47
47 |
| ++ | +
M | ++ | +
+ | +
+ | +
+ | +
+ | +
+

 | +
M | +
+ | +
+ | +
+

 | +
+ | +
+ | +
+ | +
+ | +
+ | +
+
 | +
+ | +
+ | +
M
 | +
+ | +
+ | | 48
41 |
| | | | | | | |

 | | | |

 | | | | | |
 | | |
 | | i | | 49 |
| +
X
+ | +
X
+ | + | + | + | + | +
X
+ | +

 | +
X
+ | +
X
+ | +
X
+ | +

 | + | +
+ | +
X
+ | + | + | +
 | +
+
X | +
X
+ | +
 | +
X
+ | + | | 48
20
48
1
1 |
| | | | | | | |

 | | | |

 | | | | | |
 | | |
 | | | | |
| +
+
+ | +
+
+ | +
+
+ | +
+
+ | +
+
+ | +
+
+ | +
+
+ | +
+
+

 | +
+
+ | +
+
+ | +
+
+ | +
+
+

 | +
+
+ | +
+
+ | +
+
+ | +
+
+ | +
+
+ | +
+
+
 | +
+
+ | +
+
+ | +
+
+
 | +
+
+ | +
+
+ | | 48
48
48 |
| | | | | | | |

 | | | |

 | | | | | |
 | | |
 | | | | |
| +++++++ | ++++ | ++++ | ++++ | +++++ | ++++ | +++++ | +
+
+

 | ++++++ | +
+
+ | +++++ | ++++++

 | ++++++ | +
+
+ | ++++++ | +++++ | +
+
+ | ++++
 | +++++ | +++++ | ++++
 | ++++ | +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ | | 48
48
48 |
| +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ | +++++++ | +++++++ | +++++++ | +++++++ | ++++++ | +
+
+ | +
+
+

 | +
+
+ | +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ | ++++++ | ++++++

 | +++++++ | +++++ | ++++++ | ++++++ | +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ | +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++
 | +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ | ++++++ | +++++
 | +++++ | ++++++ | | 48
48
48 |
| | y of Fe
7
3
5
3
9
6
+
+
+
+
+
+
+
+
+
+
+
+
+
+
+
+
+
+ | y of Fema 7 7 3 3 5 5 3 3 9 9 6 7 + + | x of Female 1 7 7 7 3 3 3 5 5 5 3 3 3 9 9 9 6 7 8 + + + | y of Female Rate 7 7 7 3 3 3 5 5 5 3 3 3 9 9 9 6 7 8 + + + | x x < | x of Female Rats in the 7 7 7 7 7 7 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 5 5 5 5 5 5 6 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 9 9 9 9 9 3 4 6 7 8 9 7 6 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + | v of Female Rats in the 7 6 7 8 9 7 6 7 8 9 7 6 7 8 9 7 6 7 8 9 7 6 7 8 9 7 6 7 8 9 7 6 7 8 9 7 6 7 <td>v of Female Rats in the 2-N 7 8 9 7 6 7 8 9 7 6 7 8 1</td> <td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Yea 7 8 9 9 3 4</td> <td>x x <</td> <td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Fee 3
3 3 3 3 3 3<td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed S 3 <</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-year Feed Stu 7</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study 7</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Vear Feed Study of 7</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Le 7</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leux 7<!--</td--><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucon 7</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomal 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalact 7 8 0 <t< td=""><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalechia 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
 7 8 9 0</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite G 7 8 9 3 4</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Lecomalachite Gree 7 8 9 0 0 0 0 1</td></t<><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 pm 3</td></td></td></td> | v of Female Rats in the 2-N 7 8 9 7 6 7 8 9 7 6 7 8 1 | v of Female Rats in the 2-Yea 7 8 9 9 3 4 | x x < | v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Fee 3 <td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed S 3 <</td> <td>v of Female Rats in the 2-year Feed Stu 7
7 7</td> <td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study 7</td> <td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Vear Feed Study of 7</td> <td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Le 7</td> <td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leux 7<!--</td--><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucon 7</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomal 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalact 7 8 0 <t< td=""><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalechia 7 8 9 0</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite G 7 8 9 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
4 4</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Lecomalachite Gree 7 8 9 0 0 0 0 1</td></t<><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 pm 3</td></td></td> | v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed S 3 < | v of Female Rats in the 2-year Feed Stu 7 | v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study 7 | v of Female Rats in the 2-Vear Feed Study of 7 | v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Le 7 | v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leux 7 </td <td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucon 7</td> <td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomal 7 7 7 7
 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7</td> <td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalact 7 8 0 <t< td=""><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalechia 7 8 9 0</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite G 7 8 9 3 4</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Lecomalachite Gree 7 8 9 0 0 0 0 1</td></t<><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 pm 3</td></td> | v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucon 7 | v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomal 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 8 9 0 6 7 | v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalact 7 8 0 <t< td=""><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalechia 7
 7 8 9 0</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite G 7 8 9 3 4</td><td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Lecomalachite Gree 7 8 9 0 0 0 0 1</td></t<> <td>v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 pm 3</td> | v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalechia 7 8 9 0 | v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite G 7 8 9 3 4 | v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Lecomalachite Gree 7 8 9 0 0 0 0 1 | v of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 pm 3 |

TABLE B20 Individual Animal Tumor Pathol	logy of Fe	ma	le]	Rat	ts i	n tl	he	2-3	Yea	ar I	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	Le	uc	om	ala	ach	nite	G	rea	en:	0 ppm
Number of Days on Study	5 5 2	5 7 8	5 8 5	5 8 9	6 2 7	6 3 5	6 5 3	6 6 2	6 6 2	6 6 9	6 7 3	7 1 4	7 1 8	7 1 9	7 1 9	7 3 4	7 3 5								
Carcass ID Number	2 2 0	1 1 9	1 2 2	2 3 4	1 2 5	1 2 6	2 4 8	1 3 0	1 3 1	1 3 4	2 5 3	2 6 8	1 4 0	1 4 1	1 4 2	3 5 7	3 5 8	3 5 9	3 6 0	3 6 1	3 6 2	3 6 3	3 6 4	4 3 8	3 9 5
Respiratory System																									
Lung	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma																									X
Nose Trachea	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ +
Special Senses System																									
Eye Lids. sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Harderian gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Lacrimal gland																+	$^+$						+		+
Zymbal's gland	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+
Urinary System																									
Kidney Sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Kenai tubule, carcinoma Urinary bladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Systemic Lesions																									
Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear	+ X	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	$^+_{\rm X}$	$^+_{\rm X}$	+ X	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	\mathbf{x}^+	+ X	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+ X	+	+ X	+	+ X	+ X	+	+	+ X

TABLE B2b Individual Anir

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	y of Fer	na	le I	Rat	s ir	ı tł	ie 2	2-Y	lea	ar I	Fee	ed (Stu	ıdy	of	L	euc	on	al	acł	nite	e G	reen	: 0 ppn	1
Number of Days on Study	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 6																			
Carcass ID Number	3 9 6	3 9 7	3 9 8	3 9 9	4 3 7	1 4 6	1 4 7	1 4 8	1 4 9	1 7 3	1 7 4	1 7 5	1 7 6	1 7 7	1 7 8	1 7 9	1 8 0	4 0 6	4 0 7	4 0 8	4 0 9	4 1 0	4 1 1		Total Tissues/ Tumors
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Nose Trachea	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +		48 1 48 48
Special Senses System Eye Lids, sarcoma Harderian gland Lacrimal gland Zymbal's gland	+ + +	+++++	++++++	+++++++	+++++++	+++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ X +	++++++	+++++++	+++++	++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	+ + +		48 1 48 10 46
Urinary System Kidney Sarcoma Renal tubule, carcinoma Urinary bladder	+	++	+	++	+	++	+	+	++	+	+	++	+ +	+	++	+	++	+ X +	+	+ +	+	+	+		48 1 1 47
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+ X	+	+ X	+		48 17

Individual Animal Tumor Path	ology of Fe	ma	le	Ra	ts i	n t	he	2-1	Yea	ar I	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	Ľ	euc	on	nal	acł	nite	G	ree	en:	91 ppm
Number of Days on Study) 5 6 1	6 0 5	6 2 5	6 5 7	6 8 3	6 9 0	7 0 9	7 1 4	7 1 6	7 2 5	7 3 2	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 5						
Carcass ID Number	1 (1	1 1 8	1 2 3	2 3 9	1 2 9	1 3 8	1 3 7	2 6 1	2 6 6	2 6 7	1 7 2	4 0 5	3 3 9	3 4 0	3 4 1	3 4 2	3 4 3	3 4 4	4 0 0	4 3 9	4 4 0	4 4 1	4 4 2	4 4 3	4 4 4
Alimentary System																									
Esophagus	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, cecum	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, colon	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, rectum	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, duodenum	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, ileum	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, jejunum	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Liver Hepatocellular adenoma Mesentery	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	++	++	++	+	+	+	++	+	+
Pancreas	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Salivary glands	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomach	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomach, forestomach	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomach, glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+
Tongue	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Cardiovascular System																									
Blood vessel	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Heart	4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Endocrine System																									
Adrenal gland	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Adrenal gland, cortex	+	- +	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Adrenal gland, medulla	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+
Islets, pancreatic	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+
Parathyroid gland	+	M	M	[+	М	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Pituitary gland	+	- +	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+
Pars distalis, adenoma		Х	X				Х	Х		Х					Х		Х		Х		Х			Х	Х
Thyroid gland	+	- M	[+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
C-cell, adenoma											Х		Х	Х					Х	Х		Х			
C-cell, carcinoma			Х																						
Follicular cell, carcinoma												Х													
General Body System None																									
Genital System																									
Clitoral gland	4	- +	+	+	+	+	м	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Adenoma	г	ſ	ſ	1-	1.	'	111			1.		1.	'						x			'	1	x	
Carcinoma											x								1					Δ	
Ovary	-4	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
		'																				,			

Individual Animal Tumor Path	ology of Fe	mal	le I	Rat	s ii	n tl	he î	2-\	Yea	ır l	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	Le	euc	on	ala	acł	ite	e G	reen	: 91 ppm
N	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Number of Days on Study	3	3 6																						
	4	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	Tota
Carcass ID Number	4 5	5 0	5 1	5 2	5 3	5 4	5 5	5 6	8 1	8 2	8 3	8 4	8 5	8 6	8 7	1 2	1 3	1 4	1 5	1 6	1 7	1 8	1 9	Tissues Tumor
Alimentary System																								
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4′
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4'
Intestine small	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Intestine small, duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Intestine small, jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
Hepatocellular adenoma					Х											Х		Х						-
Mesentery							+			+	+													,
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
Salivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
Stomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
Stomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Stomach, glandular Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	43
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	4
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Endocrine System																								
Adrenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	4
Adrenal gland, cortex	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	42
Adrenal gland, medulla	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	4
Islets, pancreatic	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	43
Parathyroid gland	Μ	+	+	+	$^+$	+	М	$^+$	М	$^+$	+	М	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	Μ	+	Μ	3'
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	Ι	$^+$	+	+	+	+	4'
Pars distalis, adenoma	Х			Х	Х			Х			Х	Х	Х			Х	Х		Х			Х	Х	23
Thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	40
C-cell, adenoma												Х												,
C-cell, carcinoma Follicular cell, carcinoma																								
General Body System None																								
Genital System																								
Clitoral gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4′
Adenoma		Х	Х	Х			Х			Х							Х							
Carcinoma																								
Ovary	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	gy of Fe	ma	le l	Rat	s ii	n tł	he	2-Y	Yea	ar l	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	Le	euc	om	ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en:	91 j	ppm	
Number of Days on Study	0 6 0	5 6 1	6 0 5	6 2 5	6 5 7	6 8 3	6 9 0	7 0 9	7 1 4	7 1 6	7 2 5	7 3 2	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5		
Carcass ID Number	1 0 1	1 1 8	1 2 3	2 3 9	1 2 9	1 3 8	1 3 7	2 6 1	2 6 6	2 6 7	1 7 2	4 0 5	3 3 9	3 4 0	3 4 1	3 4 2	3 4 3	3 4 4	4 0 0	4 3 9	4 4 0	4 4 1	4 4 2	4 4 3	4 4 4		
Genital System (continued) Uterus Polyp stromal Bilateral, polyp stromal Cervix, squamous cell papilloma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+ X	+ X	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+ X		
Endometrium, adenoma Endometrium, carcinoma Vagina Schwannoma malignant	+	+	+	+	X +	+	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + M	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + M + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +		
Integumentary System Mammary gland Adenoma Carcinoma Eibroadanama	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X V	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Skin Basal cell adenoma Fibroma Keratoacanthoma Sarcoma	+	+	+	л +	л +	+	л +	л + Х	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	л +	л +	л +	+		
Musculoskeletal System Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle	+ + +	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	++++	++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +		
Nervous System Brain Brain, brain stem Brain, cerebellum Brain, cerebrum Peripheral nerve Spinal cord Spinal cord, thoracic	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +		

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	gy of Fer	nal	le I	Rat	ts i	n tl	he	2-\	Yea	ır l	Fee	d S	Stu	dy	of	Le	euc	om	ala	ach	ite	e G	reen	: 91 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 3 5	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6																
Carcass ID Number	4 4 5	1 5 0	1 5 1	1 5 2	1 5 3	1 5 4	1 5 5	1 5 6	1 8 1	1 8 2	1 8 3	1 8 4	1 8 5	1 8 6	1 8 7	4 1 2	4 1 3	4 1 4	4 1 5	4 1 6	4 1 7	4 1 8	4 1 9	Total Tissues/ Tumor
Genital System (continued)																								
Uterus Polyp stromal Bilateral, polyp stromal Cervix, squamous cell papilloma Endometrium, adenoma	+	+ X	+	+	+	+ X	+	+ X	+ X	+	+ X	+	+	+ X	+	+ X X	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	48 10 2 1 1
Endometrium, carcinoma Vagina Schwannoma malignant	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	1 48 1
Hematopoietic System																								
Bone marrow	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Lymph node	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Lymph node, mandibular	+	+	+	+	+	+ M	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4/
Spleen Thymus	++++	++	++	++	++	+ +	+++	+++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+ + +	47 48 47
Integumentary System																								
Mammary gland Adenoma Carcinoma	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46 1 1
Fibroadenoma				Х						Х			Х		Х	Х								12
Skin Basal cell adenoma Fibroma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+	+	+	48 1
Keratoacanthoma Sarcoma																							Х	1
Musculoskeletal System																								
Bone	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Skeletal muscle	++	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48 48
Nervous System																								
Brain	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Brain, brain stem	+	+	+	+	+	+	++	+	+	+	+	+++	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	++	48
Brain cerebrum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	40 48
Peripheral nerve	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Spinal cord	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Sminal agend themesia	+	+	+	-																				40

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	gy of Fe	ma	le l	Rat	ts i	n tl	he	2-\	Yea	ar l	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	Le	euc	om	ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en:	91 ppm
Number of Days on Study	0 6 0	5 6 1	6 0 5	6 2 5	6 5 7	6 8 3	6 9 0	7 0 9	7 1 4	7 1 6	7 2 5	7 3 2	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 5						
Carcass ID Number	1 0 1	1 1 8	1 2 3	2 3 9	1 2 9	1 3 8	1 3 7	2 6 1	2 6 6	2 6 7	1 7 2	4 0 5	3 3 9	3 4 0	3 4 1	3 4 2	3 4 3	3 4 4	4 0 0	4 3 9	4 4 0	4 4 1	4 4 2	4 4 3	4 4 4
Respiratory System																									
Lung	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Nose	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	л +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Special Senses System Ear Pinna, neural crest tumor Eye Harderian gland Lacrimal gland Zymbal's gland	+ + +	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + + +	+++++	+ + + +	++++	+ + + +	+++++	++++	+++++	+ + M
Urinary System																									
Kidney	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Hemangiosarcoma Urinary bladder Transitional epithelium carcinoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	X M	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Kidney Hemangiosarcoma Urinary bladder Transitional epithelium, carcinoma Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Hemangiosarcoma Leukemia mononuclear	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ + + X	+ M + X	+ +	+ + + X	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ + + X	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ + + X	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ + +

TABLE **B2**b Individual Anir

Individual Animal Tumor Patholo	gy of Fe	ma	le	Ra	ts i	n t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	y of	f L	eu	con	nal	acl	hite	e G	reen	: 91 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	7 3 5	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6																				
Carcass ID Number	4 4 5	1 5 0	1 5 1	1 5 2	1 5 3	1 5 4	1 5 5	1 5 6	1 8 1	1 8 2	1 8 3	1 8 4	1 8 5	1 8 6	1 8 7	4 1 2	4 1 3	4 1 4	4 1 5	4 1 6	4 1 7	4 1 8	4 1 9		Total Tissues/ Tumor
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48 2 48
Trachea	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Special Senses System Ear Pinna, neural crest tumor Eye Harderian gland Lacrimal gland Zymbal's gland	++++++++	++++	++++	++++	+ + + +	+++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	++++	++++	+ + + +	++++	++++	++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	+ X + +	++++++	++++	++++++		1 48 48 6 47
Urinary System Kidney Hemangiosarcoma Urinary bladder Transitional epithelium, carcinoma	+ +	+ +	++	++	+ + X	+	++	+	+	+ +	++	+	++	++	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	+	+	+		48 1 47 1
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Hemangiosarcoma Leukemia mononuclear	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+ X	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48 1 8

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	y of Fe	ema	le	Ra	ts i	in t	he	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	St	udy	/ 01	f L	eu	con	nal	ac	hit	e C	Gre	en:	272 ppm
	1	4	4	5	6	6	6	6	7	7	7	, 7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7
Number of Days on Study	() 7	8	9	2	5	7	9	0	0	0) 1	2	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3
5 5	2	2 0	2	9	6	7	6	8	9	9	9	9	4	4	4	4	4	4	5	5	5	5	5	5	5
	1	1	2	1	2	2	1	1	2	2	2	1	1	3	3	3	3	3	4	4	4	4	4	4	4
zarcass ID Number	(3 1	1 8	2 0	4	4 7	3 5	3 9	5 9	2	3	5 4	0	4 5	4 6	4 7	4 8	4 9	4 6	4 7	4 8	9	0	5 1	5 2
limontary System																									
sonhagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
itestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
ntestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
itestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
itestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
itestine small	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
itestine small, duodenum	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+
ntestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+
ntestine small, jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+
iver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Iesentery																			+						
ancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
alivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Sarcoma																									
tomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
tomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
tomach, glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
ongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Squamous cen carcinoma																									
Cardiovascular System																									
lood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
leart	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Endocardium, schwannoma malignant Myocardium, schwannoma malignant																									
ndocrine System																									
drenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Medulla, pheochromocytoma malignant																									Х
Medulla, pheochromocytoma benign																									
drenal gland, cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
drenal gland, medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
slets, pancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
arathyroid gland	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	Μ	+	+	Μ	+	+
ituitary gland	Μ	[+	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Pars distalis, adenoma				X			X		X	X			X	X								X			
hyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	1	+	+	+	+	+
Bilateral, C-cell, adenoma												Х													
Bilateral, C-cell, carcinoma															v	v									
C-cell, adenoma															Х	Х							\mathbf{v}		
romeutat cen, caremonia																							л		
General Body System										<u>ـــ</u>															
Abdominal linoma										$^+$															
Audominai, npoma										л															

TABLE B2b Individual Anii

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fei	ma	le]	Ra	ts i	n t	he	2-1	Yea	ar I	Fe	ed S	Stu	ıdy	of	L	euc	om	ala	acł	iite	e G	reei	a: 272 ppm
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Number of Days on Study	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	
	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	
	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	4	4	4	4	4	4	Tota
Carcass ID Number	5	5	5	6	6	6	6	6	8	8	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	2	2	2	2	2	2	Tissues/
	7	8	9	0	I	2	3	4	8	9	0	I	2	3	4	5	6	0	I	2	3	4	5	Tumors
Alimentary System																								
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine mall	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	40
Intestine small duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine small, ieiunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Mesentery																								1
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Salivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Sarcoma																						Х		1
Stomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Stomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Stomach, glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Squamous cell carcinoma	Х																							1
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Endocardium, schwannoma malignant Myocardium, schwannoma malignant											Х	-							X					1
Endocrine System																								
Adrenal gland	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Medulla, pheochromocytoma malignant																								1
Medulla, pheochromocytoma benign																	Х							1
Adrenal gland, cortex	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Adrenal gland, medulla	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Islets, pancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Parathyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	M	+	+	+	+	M	+	M	+	+	40
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	+	+ v	+	+	+ v	+ v	+ v	+	+ v	+	+	+	+ v	+	+ v	+ v	+	+ v	+	+	43
Thuroid gland	л +	+	+	+	л +	+	+	л +	л +	л +	+	л +	+	+	+	л +	+	л +	л +	+	л +	+	+	17
Bilateral C-cell adenoma	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	Т	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	47
Bilateral, C-cell, carcinoma														x										1
C-cell adenoma										x			x	11										1
Follicular cell, carcinoma																			Х					2
Ceneral Rody System																								
Tissue NOS																								1
Abdominal, lipoma																								1

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fer	na	le I	Rat	s iı	1 tł	1e I	2-\	Yea	ır I	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	Le	euc	om	ala	ich	ite	G	ree	en:	27	'2 ppm
Number of Days on Study	1 0 2	4 7 0	4 8 2	5 9 9	6 2 6	6 5 7	6 7 6	6 9 8	7 0 9	7 0 9	7 0 9	7 1 9	7 2 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	
Carcass ID Number	1 0 3	1 1 1	2 1 8	1 2 0	2 4 3	2 4 7	1 3 5	1 3 9	2 5 9	2 6 2	2 6 3	1 4 5	1 7 0	3 4 5	3 4 6	3 4 7	3 4 8	3 4 9	4 4 6	4 4 7	4 4 8	4 4 9	4 5 0	4 5 1	4 5 2	
Genital System																										
Adenoma Carcinoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	М	+	+	М	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	
Ovary Uterus Polyp stromal Schwannoma malignant	+ +	++	+ + X	+ + X	++	+ +	+++	+ + X	++	+ + X	+ +	+ + X	+ +	++	++	+ + X	++	+ +	+ +	+ + X	+ +	+ + X	+ + X	+ +	+ +	
Vagina Sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	х +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus	+ + + + + +	+ + + + M	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	++++++++	+ + + + M	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + M	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	
Integumentary System Mammary gland Adenoma Carcinoma Fibroadenoma	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+ X	+	+	+ X	+ X	+ X	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	
Skin Fibrous histiocytoma	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	л +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Musculoskeletal System Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle	+ + +	++++	++++	+++++	++++++	+ + +	++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ M +	++++++	
Nervous System Brain Cranial nerve, schwannoma malignant Brain, brain stem Brain, cerebellum Brain, cerebellum Peripheral nerve Spinal cord Spinal cord, thoracic	+ X + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fei	na	le F	Rat	s ir	1 th	le 2	2-Y	ea	r F	'ee	d S	tu	dy	of	Le	uc	om	ala	acł	ite	G	reen:	272 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6		
Carcass ID Number	1 5 7	1 5 8	1 5 9	1 6 0	1 6 1	1 6 2	1 6 3	1 6 4	1 8 8	1 8 9	1 9 0	1 9 1	1 9 2	1 9 3	1 9 4	1 9 5	1 9 6	4 2 0	4 2 1	4 2 2	4 2 3	4 2 4	4 2 5	T T	Total 'issues/ lumors
Genital System Clitoral gland Adenoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+	+	+		46 3
Ovary Uterus Polyp stromal Schwannoma malignant Bilataral, polyn stromal	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+ +	+ + X	+ + X	+ +	+ + X	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ + X	+ +	+ +	+ + X		48 48 16 1 3
Vagina Sarcoma	+	+	л +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	л +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48 1
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + M	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++		48 48 48 48 48 48 44
Integumentary System Mammary gland Adenoma Carcinoma Fibroadenoma Fibroadenoma, multiple	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X X	+ X	+ X	+	+	+	+ X	+ X		48 1 2 9 3
Skin Fibrous histiocytoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48 1
Musculoskeletal System Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+++++	+ + +		48 47 48
Nervous System Brain Cranial nerve, schwannoma malignant Brain, brain stem Brain, cerebellum Brain, cerebrum Davinhorel paging	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + +	++++++	+ + + + + +	+ + + + -	+++++	+ + + + .	+ + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + +	+ + + + +		48 1 48 48 48
Spinal cord Spinal cord, thoracic	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +		48 48 48

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology o	of Fer	na	le l	Rat	s ii	n th	ie 2	2-3	lea	ır l	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	Le	uc	om	ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en:	272 ppm
Number of Days on Study	1 0 2	4 7 0	4 8 2	5 9 9	6 2 6	6 5 7	6 7 6	6 9 8	7 0 9	7 0 9	7 0 9	7 1 9	7 2 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5
Carcass ID Number	1 0 3	1 1 1	2 1 8	1 2 0	2 4 3	2 4 7	1 3 5	1 3 9	2 5 9	2 6 2	2 6 3	1 4 5	1 7 0	3 4 5	3 4 6	3 4 7	3 4 8	3 4 9	4 4 6	4 4 7	4 4 8	4 4 9	4 5 0	4 5 1	4 5 2
Respiratory System																									
Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Carcinoma, metastatic, thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Nose Trachea	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +
Special Senses System																									
Eye Harderian gland Lacrimal gland Zymbal's gland	+++++	++++++	+++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	++++++	+ + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + +	+ + +	++++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	+ + +
Urinary System Kidney Mesenchymal tumor benign	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+
Urinary bladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear	+	+	+ X	$^+_{\rm X}$	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+

TABLE B2b Individual Anir

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fei	na	le 1	Rat	ts i	n t	he	2-`	Yea	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	ıdy	of	L	euc	on	ala	ach	nite	e G	reen	272 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6		
Carcass ID Number	1 5 7	1 5 8	1 5 9	1 6 0	1 6 1	1 6 2	1 6 3	1 6 4	1 8 8	1 8 9	1 9 0	1 9 1	1 9 2	1 9 3	1 9 4	1 9 5	1 9 6	4 2 0	4 2 1	4 2 2	4 2 3	4 2 4	4 2 5	T Tissi Tur	otal ues/ 10rs
Respiratory System																									
Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Carcinoma, metastatic, thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48 3 1
Nose Trachea	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +		48 48
Special Senses System																									
Eye Harderian gland Lacrimal gland Zymbal's gland	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + M	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + +		48 48 8 47
Urinary System Kidney Mesenchymal tumor benign Urinary bladder	+ +	++	++	++	+++	+++	+++	++	+++	++	+	+++	++	+++	++	+++	++	++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++		48 1 48
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48 5

TABLE B2b

										41 1		u c	<i>i</i> u	uy	01		uc				iiit	0	100		545 ppm
	4	4	5	5	5	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7
Number of Davs on Study	0	8	3	7	8	3	3	4	4	5	6	7	1	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3
<i>. .</i>	5	4	6	0	5	2	3	0	8	4	9	6	9	3	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	5	5	5	5
			Ű	Ű	-	_	5	0	Ű		ĺ	Ŭ	ĺ	5									U		0
	2	1	1	2	1	2	1	1	1	2	1	1	1	1	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3
Carcass ID Number	1	1	1	3	2	4	2	2	3	4	3	3	4	4	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	8	8	9	9
	7	2	3	1	1	2	7	8	2	9	6	3	3	4	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	8	9	0	1
limontory System																									
Sonhagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
		т 1	т 1	т 1	T	- -	т 1	T	т 1	- T	T	т 1	т 1	т 1	T	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	- -	т 1	- -	- T	- T	т 1
C 1 1	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ
Colon, adenocarcinoma																									
ntestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
ntestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
ntestine large, rectum	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+
ntestine small	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+
ntestine small, duodenum	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+
ntestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
ntestine small jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
iver	· +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Hamata aallulan adan ama	'				'					'			'			\mathbf{v}									
Hepatocenular adenoma																л									
lesentery												+													
ancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
alivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Parotid gland, adenoma																									
tomach	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+
tomach, forestomach	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
tomach glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
ongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Squamous cell papilloma																			X						
Cardiovascular System																									
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Ieart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Indocrine System																									
drenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
dronal gland cortax	т ,				י ג	، ر	، د				5	، د	' 		, ,	' 	' 	5							_
Aurenai giano, cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	т
arenai gland, medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
slets, pancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
arathyroid gland	+	+	+	М	+	М	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	Μ	+
ituitary gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Ι	+	+	+	+
Pars distalis, adenoma						Х	Х				Х					Х		Х	Х				Х		Х
hyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Bilateral, C-cell, adenoma																									
C-cell adenoma												x		x									x		
c con, auchonia												1		1									1		

None

7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
								'	'		/	/	/	/	/	/	/	/	/		/	/	
3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	
5	5	5	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	
2	2	2	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	2	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	
3	3	3	1	1	1	1	1	0	0	0	2	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	Tissues
2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	7	8	9	0	1	2	3	4	6	7	8	9	0	1	2	Tumor
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	A ⁴
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	40
1				'						v					'			'			'	1	
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	л +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	1
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
+	+			, ,	' +		, ,	+	+			+	+		+	- -	+		+		- -	- -	4
+	- +	г +	г +	г +	+	г +	г +	+	+	+ +	T +	+	+	+	+	г +	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
+	- -	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	+ +	т _	40						
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
-	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	\mathbf{v}	\mathbf{v}^{\top}	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	т	40
											Λ	Λ			+			+		+			
+	+	-	-	-	-	-	+	-	+	-	+	-	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	-	+	-	+	4
+	т 1	т 1	т 1	T	T	т 1	т 1	- -	- T	т 1	т 1	- -	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	- -	т 1	T	т 1	40
+	Ŧ	Ŧ	T V	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	40
1			<u>л</u>																				4
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	40
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	40
																							4
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
+	+	+	М	+	+	+	М	М	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	М	+	М	+	30
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
Х						Х	Х	Х	Х	-	Х	Х		Х	Х		Х		Х			Х	20
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4
			x																				
			-															х					
																						Х	
	5 3 9 2 + + + + + + + + + + + + +	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 1	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	3 3 3 1	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 1	3 3 3 3 1	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 1	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 1										

None

Number of Days on Study 4 4 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 7 </th <th>Individual Animal Tumor Path</th> <th>ology of F</th> <th>ema</th> <th>le</th> <th>Rat</th> <th>ts i</th> <th>n tl</th> <th>he</th> <th>2-\</th> <th>Yea</th> <th>ar l</th> <th>Fee</th> <th>ed S</th> <th>Stu</th> <th>dy</th> <th>of</th> <th>Le</th> <th>euc</th> <th>om</th> <th>ala</th> <th>acł</th> <th>ite</th> <th>e G</th> <th>ree</th> <th>en:</th> <th>543 ppm</th> <th></th>	Individual Animal Tumor Path	ology of F	ema	le	Rat	ts i	n tl	he	2-\	Yea	ar l	Fee	ed S	Stu	dy	of	Le	euc	om	ala	acł	ite	e G	ree	en:	543 ppm	
Carcass ID Number 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 3 4	Number of Days on Study		4 4) 8 5 4	5 3 6	5 7 0	5 8 5	6 3 2	6 3 3	6 4 0	6 4 8	6 5 4	6 6 9	6 7 6	7 1 9	7 3 3	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	7 3 5	
Genital SystemChioral gland+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Carcass ID Number		2 1 I 1 7 2	1 1 3	2 3 1	1 2 1	2 4 2	1 2 7	1 2 8	1 3 2	2 4 9	1 3 6	1 3 3	1 4 3	1 4 4	3 5 0	3 5 1	3 5 2	3 5 3	3 5 4	3 5 5	3 5 6	3 8 8	3 8 9	3 9 0	3 9 1	
Chtoral gand $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	Genital System																										
Autominal X	Clitoral gland		+ + v	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ v	+	+	+	+	+ v	+	+	+	+	+	+ v	
Oray + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Carcinoma		Λ												л					л				x	v	Λ	
Upersolution + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Ovary		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Leionyona X X X X X X X X X X Poly stronal X Bilateral, poly stronal X Spleen X Bilateral Monopole X Bilateral Mono	Uterus		· ·	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Polyp stronal Sarcona stromal Bilateral, polyp stromal Endometrium, adenomaXX </td <td>Leiomyoma</td> <td></td> <td>x</td> <td></td>	Leiomyoma														x												
Sarcoma stromal Bilateral, polyp stromal Endometium, adenomaXXXWagina $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Polyp stromal				х							х	х		X		х	х									
Bilateral, polyp stromal Endometrium, adenoma X Vagina + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Sarcoma stromal			x																							
Endometrium, adenoma + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Bilateral, polyp stromal																								Х		
Vagina + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Endometrium, adenoma																										
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Vagina		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Intermotion of the system Bore marrow + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Hamatanajatic System																										
Due martow $Y + Y + Y + Y + Y + Y + Y + Y + Y + Y $	Pono marrow						5	5	J				J	5	5											±	
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Bone marrow			+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Lymph node			+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Lymph node, mandibular		г т 1 1	- T	- -	- -	- -	-	+	- -	-	- -	-	- -	-	-	- -	-	- -	+	-	- -	-	-	-	+	
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Seleen			+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Integumentary System Mammary gland + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Thymus	1	ΛM	т I М	+	+	+	т М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	т М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Mammary gland $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Integumentary System																										
Mainingly gland + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Mommony glond																										
Automa A A Carcinoma X X X Fibroadenoma X X X Skin $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	A danama		г т	т	Ŧ	\mathbf{v}	т	т	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	\mathbf{v}^{\top}	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	
Cardinal X	Adenoma					л												л					v				
A A A A A A A Skin $+$	Eibraadanama				v		v	v			v								v				л				
Skill Image: Height = 1, 2, 3, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4,	Floroadenoma			-	л 	+	л 	л 	-	-	л 	-	+	+	+	+	+	+	л 	-	+	+	+	+	+	т.	
Base Concentration X Fibroma X Keratoacanthoma X Musculoskeletal System X Bone $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Basal cell carcinoma						'		'					'			v										
Keratoacanthoma X Musculoskeletal System Bone + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Fibroma					v											л										
Nusculoskeletal System Bone Bone Bone, femur + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Keratoacanthoma					Λ												v									
Musculoskeletal System Bone + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +																		Λ									
Bone $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Musculoskeletal System																										
Bone, femur $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Bone		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Skeletal muscle + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Bone, femur		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Nervous System Brain $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Skeletal muscle		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Brain $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Nervous System																										
Brain, brain stem + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Brain		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Brain, cerebellum $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Brain, brain stem		· +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Brain, cerebrum $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Brain cerebellum		· +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Peripheral nerve $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Brain, cerebrum		· ·	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Spinal cord $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	Peripheral nerve		· +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
$-r_{}$	Spinal cord		, + +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
	Spinal cord, thoracic		· +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	

Individual Animal Tumor Path	ology of Fo	ema	le	Rat	ts ii	n tł	ie 2	2-Y	lea	ır I	Fee	d S	Stu	dy	of	Le	uc	om	ala	acł	ite	G	reen	:543 ppm	
Number of Days on Study		7 7 3 3 5 5	7 3 5	7 3 6																					
Carcass ID number		3 3 9 9 2 3	3 9 4	1 6 5	1 6 6	1 6 7	1 6 8	1 6 9	1 9 7	1 9 8	1 9 9	2 0 0	4 0 1	4 0 2	4 0 3	4 0 4	4 2 6	4 2 7	4 2 8	4 2 9	4 3 0	4 3 1	4 3 2	Tota Tissues Tumor	ป 3/ กร
Genital System																									
Clitoral gland Adenoma Carcinoma		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4	7 6 2
Ovary Uterus		+ + + +	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	4: 4	8																	
Leiomyoma Polyp stromal Sarcoma stromal Bilateral, polyp stromal		Х	X					Х			Х		X	X			X	X			X		Х	1	1 6 1 1
Endometrium, adenoma Vagina		+ +	+	+	+	+	X +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4	1
Hematopoietic System																									
Bone marrow		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4	8
Lymph node		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43	8
Lymph node, manafoular			+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4	0 Q
Spleen		· ·	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4	8
Thymus		+ +	+	+	M	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4	2
Integumentary System Mammary gland		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4	8
Adenoma																								;	2
Carcinoma Fibroadonomo								v				v		v	v	х	v	v	v			v		1	2
Skin		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	л +	+	+	+	л +	+	л +	л +	+	л +	л +	л +	+	+	л +	+	1. 4	3 .8
Basal cell carcinoma Fibroma Keratoacanthoma																									1 1 1
Musculoskeletal System																									~
Bone Bone formur		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43	8
Skeletal muscle		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4	8
Nervous System																									_
Brain		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4	8
Brain, brain stem		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4	8
Brain cerebrum		+ +	++	+	++	+	+ +	+	+	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+	+	++	+ +	4	0 8
Peripheral nerve		· ·	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4	.8
Spinal cord		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4	8
Spinal cord, thoracic		+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4	8

Individual Animal Tumor Patho	ology of Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 543 ppm
Number of Days on Study	4 4 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 7 3 3 3
Carcass ID Number	2 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 3
Respiratory System Lung Nose Trachea	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Lacrimal gland Zymbal's gland Adenoma	$\begin{array}{c} + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + $
Urinary System Kidney Urinary bladder	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$

TABLE B2b Individual Anii

Individual Animal Tumor Path	ology of Fe	ema	le	Ra	ts i	in t	he	2-`	Yea	ar	Fee	ed	Stu	ıdy	v of	ſL	euo	con	ıal	acl	hite	e G	reen	: 543	ppm
Number of Days on Study		7 7 3 3 5 5	7 3 5	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6	7 3 6		
Carcass ID number	2	3 3 9 9 2 3	3 9 4	1 6 5	1 6 6	1 6 7	1 6 8	1 6 9	1 9 7	1 9 8	1 9 9	2 0 0	4 0 1	4 0 2	4 0 3	4 0 4	4 2 6	4 2 7	4 2 8	4 2 9	4 3 0	4 3 1	4 3 2		Total Tissues/ Tumors
Respiratory System																									
Lung	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Nose Trachea	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +		48 48
Special Senses System																									
Eye	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Harderian gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Lacrimal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	м	+		4
Adenoma	'	'				x				'	x	1										101	I		2
Urinary System																									
Kidney	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Urinary bladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Systemic Lesions																									
Multiple organs Leukemia mononuclear	+	$^+$ X	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+		48 8

TABLE	B3a
-------	-----

Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

	0 ppm	100 ppm	300 ppm	600 ppm
Clitoral Gland: Adenoma				
Overall rate ^a	7/48 (15%)	5/48 (10%)	8/47 (17%)	8/47 (17%)
Adjusted rate	17.2%	13.1%	18.8%	21.1%
Terminal rate	5/29 (17%)	4/23 (17%)	6/31 (19%)	4/25 (16%)
First incidence (days)	533	722	692	570
Poly-3 test	P=0.282	P=0.423N	P=0.537	P=0.439
Clitoral Gland: Carcinoma				
Overall rate	5/48 (10%)	2/48 (4%)	6/47 (13%)	5/47 (11%)
Adjusted rate	12.0%	5.2%	13.7%	12.9%
Terminal rate	3/29 (10%)	2/23 (9%)	4/31 (13%)	1/25 (4%)
First incidence (days)	401 P=0.227	728 (1) D=0.251N	484 D=0.524	323 D=0.584
Poly-3 test	P=0.557	P=0.231N	P=0.334	P=0.384
Clitoral Gland: Adenoma or Carcinoma				
Overall rate	12/48 (25%)	7/48 (15%)	14/47 (30%)	12/47 (26%)
Adjusted rate	28.3%	18.3%	31.9%	30.2%
First incidence (days)	8/29 (28%)	0/23 (20%) 722	10/31 (32%)	5/25 (20%) 222
Poly_3 test	P=0.287	P=0.211N	404 P=0.451	525 P=0 524
Tory-5 test	1-0.207	1-0.2111	1-0.451	1-0.524
Liver: Hepatocellular Adenoma			e	
Overall rate	1/48 (2%)	1/48 (2%)	3/48 (6%)	4/48 (8%)
Adjusted rate	2.5%	2.6%	6.9%	10.8%
Ierminal rate	1/29 (3%) 728 (T)	1/23 (4%) 728 (T)	2/32 (6%)	4/25 (16%) 728 (T)
Poly 3 test	728 (1) P=0.059	728 (1) P=0 751	032 P=0.336	728 (1) P=0 155
roly-5 test	r=0.039	r=0.731	r-0.330	r=0.155
Mammary Gland: Fibroadenoma				
Overall rate	15/48 (31%)	13/48 (27%)	12/48 (25%)	9/48 (19%)
Adjusted rate	35.5%	32.1%	27.0%	23.6%
Ierminal rate	11/29 (38%)	//23 (30%)	//32 (22%) 626	5/25 (20%)
Poly_3 test	P=0.127N	P=0.461N	020 P=0.263N	020 P=0.175N
	1 0.12/10	1 0.4011	1 0.20310	1 0.1751
Mammary Gland: Carcinoma	2/49 (40/)	0/48 (40/)	1/40 (20/)	5/49 (100/)
Overall rate	2/48 (4%)	2/48 (4%)	1/48 (2%)	5/48 (10%)
Adjusted rate	5.0%	5.2%	2.3%	13.0%
First incidence (days)	704	686	7732(576)	2/23 (870)
Poly-3 test	P=0.113	P=0.679	P=0.473N	P=0.197
Mammary Gland: Fibroadenoma or Carcinoma	1(149 (2201)	14/40 (200/)	10/48 (058/)	14/48 (200/)
Overall rate	16/48 (33%)	14/48 (29%)	12/48 (25%)	14/48 (29%)
Terminal rate	12/29 (41%)	54.5% 7/23 (30%)	27.0%	7/25 (28%)
First incidence (days)	401	494	626	508
Poly-3 test	P=0.415N	P=0.460N	P=0.193N	P=0.500N
Pituitary Cland (Pare Distalia): Adamana				
Overall rate	26/48 (54%)	36/47 (77%)	32/46 (70%)	29/45 (64%)
Adjusted rate	60.7%	82.7%	71.6%	76.2%
Terminal rate	16/29 (55%)	21/23 (91%)	22/32 (69%)	21/25 (84%)
First incidence (days)	552	485	603	570
Poly-3 test	P=0.233	P=0.014	P=0.193	P=0.092

	0 ppm	100 ppm	300 ppm	600 ppm
Pituitary Gland (Pars Distalis): Adenoma or Carcino	ma			
Overall rate	26/48 (54%)	36/47 (77%)	32/46 (70%)	30/45 (67%)
Adjusted rate	60.7%	82.7%	71.6%	78.5%
Terminal rate	16/29 (55%)	21/23 (91%)	22/32 (69%)	21/25 (84%)
First incidence (days)	552	485	603	570
Poly-3 test	P=0.162	P=0.014	P=0.193	P=0.056
Thyroid Gland (C-Cell): Adenoma				
Overall rate	4/46 (9%)	5/48 (10%)	3/47 (6%)	3/46 (7%)
Adjusted rate	10.4%	12.9%	7.1%	8.5%
Terminal rate	3/29 (10%)	4/23 (17%)	2/31 (7%)	3/24 (13%)
First incidence (days)	711	539	719	728 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.348N	P=0.506	P=0.446N	P=0.546N
Thyroid Gland (C-Cell): Carcinoma				
Overall rate	3/46 (7%)	1/48 (2%)	2/47 (4%)	1/46 (2%)
Adjusted rate	7.8%	2.6%	4.7%	2.8%
Terminal rate	2/29 (7%)	0/23 (0%)	1/31 (3%)	1/24 (4%)
First incidence (days)	647	540	719	728 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.323N	P=0.303N	P=0.458N	P=0.337N
Thyroid Gland (C-Cell): Adenoma or Carcinoma				
Overall rate	7/46 (15%)	6/48 (13%)	4/47 (9%)	4/46 (9%)
Adjusted rate	18.1%	15.2%	9.4%	11.3%
Terminal rate	5/29 (17%)	4/23 (17%)	3/31 (10%)	4/24 (17%)
First incidence (days)	647	539	719	728 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.207N	P=0.486N	P=0.209N	P=0.313N
Thyroid Gland (Follicular Cell): Adenoma or Carcin	oma			
Overall rate	0/46 (0%)	0/48 (0%)	3/47 (6%)	2/46 (4%)
Adjusted rate	0.0%	0.0%	7.1%	5.7%
Terminal rate	0/29 (0%)	0/23 (0%)	3/31 (10%)	2/24 (8%)
First incidence (days)	I	—	728 (T)	728 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.064	g	P=0.137	P=0.218
Uterus: Stromal Polyp				
Overall rate	14/48 (29%)	7/48 (15%)	5/48 (10%)	16/48 (33%)
Adjusted rate	33.6%	17.5%	11.4%	41.0%
Terminal rate	10/29 (35%)	3/23 (13%)	3/32 (9%)	11/25 (44%)
First incidence (days)	529	596	603	508
Poly-3 test	P=0.172	P=0.076N	P=0.011N	P=0.323
Uterus: Stromal Polyp or Stromal Sarcoma				
Overall rate	16/48 (33%)	8/48 (17%)	6/48 (13%)	16/48 (33%)
Adjusted rate	38.0%	20.1%	13.6%	41.0%
Terminal rate	11/29 (38%)	4/23 (17%)	4/32 (13%)	11/25 (44%)
First incidence (days)	529	596	603	508
Poly-3 test	P=0.319	P=0.057N	P=0.007N	P=0.481
All Organs: Mononuclear Cell Leukemia				
Overall rate	19/48 (40%)	17/48 (35%)	10/48 (21%)	1/48 (2%)
Adjusted rate	43.7%	40.0%	22.5%	2.7%
Terminal rate	9/29 (31%)	4/23 (17%)	4/32 (13%)	0/25 (0%)
First incidence (days)	526	443	619	546
Poly 3 test	P<0.001N	P=0.447N	P=0.026N	P<0.001N

TABLE B3a

Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

TABLE	B3a
-------	-----

Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

	0 ppm	100 ppm	300 ppm	600 ppm
All Organs: Benign Neoplasms				
Overall rate	41/48 (85%)	42/48 (88%)	40/48 (83%)	35/48 (73%)
Adjusted rate	89.6%	93.0%	86.4%	83.4%
Terminal rate	26/29 (90%)	23/23 (100%)	28/32 (88%)	21/25 (84%)
First incidence (days)	401	485	603	508
Poly-3 test	P=0.114N	P=0.407	P=0.439N	P=0.279N
All Organs: Malignant Neoplasms				
Overall rate	29/48 (60%)	24/48 (50%)	21/48 (44%)	23/48 (48%)
Adjusted rate	62.2%	55.1%	45.5%	52.6%
Terminal rate	13/29 (45%)	9/23 (39%)	12/32 (38%)	9/25 (36%)
First incidence (days)	401	443	484	323
Poly-3 test	P=0.186N	P=0.317N	P=0.076N	P=0.235N
All Organs: Benign or Malignant Neoplasms				
Overall rate	47/48 (98%)	48/48 (100%)	46/48 (96%)	42/48 (88%)
Adjusted rate	97.9%	100.0%	95.8%	93.9%
Terminal rate	28/29 (97%)	23/23 (100%)	30/32 (94%)	24/25 (96%)
First incidence (days)	401	443	484	323
Poly-3 test	P=0.084N	P=0.500	P=0.500N	P=0.306N

(T)Terminal sacrifice

^a Number of neoplasm-bearing animals/number of animals examined. Denominator is number of animals examined microscopically for clitoral gland, liver, pituitary gland, and thyroid gland; for other tissues, denominator is number of animals necropsied.

b Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

c Observed incidence at terminal kill

Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice. A negative trend or a lower incidence in an exposure group is indicated by N.

 e_{c} A single incidence of carcinoma occurred in an animal that also had an adenoma.

f Not applicable; no neoplasms in animal group

^g Value of statistic cannot be computed.

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Clitoral Gland: Adenoma				
Overall rate ^a	7/47 (15%)	8/47 (17%)	3/46 (7%)	6/47 (13%)
Adjusted rate	16.2%	18.2%	7 2%	14.0%
Terminal rate	7/33 (21%)	8/36 (22%)	3/35 (0%)	4/34 (12%)
First incidence (days)	7/33 (2170) 734 (T)	734(T)	5/55 (970) 734 (T)	4/34 (12/0)
Poly 2 tost ^d	P = 0.210 N	P=0.514	P=0.160N	404 B-0 506N
roly-5 test	F=0.5101N	r=0.314	r=0.1091N	r-0.3001
Clitoral Gland: Adenoma or Carcinoma				
Overall rate	9/47 (19%)	9/47 (19%)	5/46 (11%)	8/47 (17%)
Adjusted rate	20.6%	20.5%	11.9%	18.7%
Terminal rate	8/33 (24%)	8/36 (22%)	4/35 (11%)	6/34 (18%)
First incidence (days)	585	725	676	484
Poly-3 test	P=0.386N	P=0.599N	P=0.212N	P=0.517N
Liver: Hepatocellular Adenoma				
Overall rate	1/48 (2%)	3/48 (6%)	0/48 (0%)	3/48 (6%)
Adjusted rate	2.3%	6.7%	0.0%	7.0%
Terminal rate	1/33 (3%)	3/36 (8%)	0/35 (0%)	3/34 (9%)
First incidence (days)	734 (T)	734 (T)	e	734 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.360	P=0.314	P=0.500N	P=0.297
Lung: Alveolar/bronchiolar Adenoma				
Overall rate	1/48 (2%)	2/48 (4%)	3/48 (6%)	0/48 (0%)
Adjusted rate	2.3%	4.5%	6.8%	0.0%
Terminal rate	1/33 (3%)	1/36 (3%)	2/35 (6%)	0/34 (0%)
First incidence (days)	734 (T)	725	657	_
Poly-3 test	P=0.340N	P=0.508	P=0.308	P=0.505N
Mammary Gland: Fibroadenoma				
Overall rate	20/48 (42%)	12/48 (25%)	12/48 (25%)	13/48 (27%)
Adjusted rate	45.0%	26.3%	27.0%	29.4%
Terminal rate	17/33 (52%)	8/36 (22%)	8/35 (23%)	9/34 (27%)
First incidence (days)	589	625	599	570
Poly-3 test	P=0.160N	P=0.048N	P=0.058N	P=0.094N
Mammary Gland: Fibroadenoma or Aden	oma			
Overall rate	20/48 (42%)	13/48 (27%)	13/48 (27%)	15/48 (31%)
Adjusted rate	45.0%	28.5%	29.2%	33.6%
Terminal rate	17/33 (52%)	8/36 (22%)	8/35 (23%)	10/34 (29%)
First incidence (days)	589	625	599	570
Poly-3 test	P=0.278N	P=0.076N	P=0.090N	P=0.185N
Mammary Gland: Adenoma or Carcinom	a			
Overall rate	0/48 (0%)	2/48 (4%)	3/48 (6%)	4/48 (8%)
Adjusted rate	0/40 (0/0)	2/40 (470) A 5%	6.8%	0 30%
Terminal rate	0.070	ч.370 0/36 (0%)	1/35 (20/2)	3/34 (00%)
First incidence (days)	0/33 (070)	600	657	585
Poly-3 test	 P=0.047	P=0.244	P=0.120	P=0.058
Mammary Gland: Fibroadenoma, Adenon	na. or Carcinoma			
Overall rate	20/48 (42%)	13/48 (27%)	14/48 (20%)	17/48 (35%)
Adjusted rate	20/40 (4270) 45 00/	13/40 (2770) 28 50/	21 20/	1 // HO (33 70) 38 10/
Augusted fate	43.0%	20.370	31.370 9/25 (220/)	JO.170 10/24 (250/)
First ingidence (deve)	1//33 (32%)	8/30 (22%) 625	8/33 (23%) 500	12/34 (33%)
First incluence (days)	289 D. 0. 47201	020 D=0.07(0)	399 D-0 12031	570 D=0.22551
roiy-5 test	P=0.4/2N	r=0.0/6N	r=0.130N	r=0.323N

TABLE B3b

Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

TABLE	B3b
-------	-----

Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Overall rate	26/47 (55%)	23/47 (49%)	17/45 (38%)	20/46 (43%)
Adjusted rate	58.6%	51.1%	39.7%	48.1%
Terminal rate	19/33 (58%)	18/35 (51%)	12/35 (34%)	17/32 (53%)
First incidence (days)	627	561	599	632
Poly-3 test	P=0.170N	P=0.306N	P=0.056N	P=0.218N
Skin: Fibroma, Fibrous Histiocytoma, or Sarcoma				
Overall rate	0/48 (0%)	3/48 (6%)	1/48 (2%)	1/48 (2%)
Adjusted rate	0.0%	6.7%	2.3%	2.3%
Terminal rate	0/33 (0%)	1/36 (3%)	0/35 (0%)	0/34 (0%)
First incidence (days)		709	470	585
Poly-3 test	P=0.579N	P=0.123	P=0.503	P=0.498
Thyroid Gland (C-Cell): Adenoma				
Overall rate	4/46 (9%)	7/46 (15%)	5/47 (11%)	5/48 (10%)
Adjusted rate	9.4%	16.2%	11.7%	11.7%
Terminal rate	3/33 (9%)	6/35 (17%)	4/34 (12%)	3/34 (9%)
First incidence (days)	589	725	719	676
Poly-3 test	P=0.536N	P=0.271	P=0.505	P=0.506
Thyroid Gland (C-Cell): Adenoma or Carcinoma				
Overall rate	4/46 (9%)	8/46 (17%)	6/47 (13%)	5/48 (10%)
Adjusted rate	9.4%	18.3%	14.0%	11.7%
Terminal rate	3/33 (9%)	6/35 (17%)	5/34 (15%)	3/34 (9%)
First incidence (days)	589	605	719	676
Poly-3 test	P=0.499N	P=0.190	P=0.374	P=0.506
Thyroid Gland (Follicular Cell): Adenoma or Carcinom	la			
Overall rate	0/46 (0%)	1/46 (2%)	2/47 (4%)	1/48 (2%)
Adjusted rate	0.0%	2.3%	4.7%	2.4%
Terminal rate	0/33 (0%)	0/35 (0%)	2/34 (6%)	1/34 (3%)
First incidence (days)	— D 0 2/7	732 D 0 506	734 (1)	734 (1)
Poly-3 test	P=0.367	P=0.506	P=0.241	P=0.503
Uterus: Stromal Polyp				
Overall rate	10/48 (21%)	12/48 (25%)	19/48 (40%)	17/48 (35%)
Adjusted rate	22.5%	26.9%	42.1%	39.0%
Terminal rate	8/33 (24%)	11/30 (31%)	14/35 (40%)	13/34 (38%)
Poly-3 test	P=0.035	P=0.409	P=0.037	P=0.071
Uterus: Stromal Polyp or Stromal Sarcoma				
Overall rate	11/48 (23%)	12/48 (25%)	19/48 (40%)	18/48 (38%)
Adjusted rate	24.8%	26.9%	42.1%	40.7%
Terminal rate	9/33 (27%)	11/36 (31%)	14/35 (40%)	13/34 (38%)
First incidence (days)	585	732	482	536
Poly-3 test	P=0.035	P=0.506	P=0.062	P=0.082
All Organs: Mononuclear Leukemia				
Overall rate	17/48 (35%)	8/48 (17%)	5/48 (10%)	8/48 (17%)
Adjusted rate	37.0%	17.8%	11.0%	18.2%
Terminal rate	8/33 (24%)	6/36 (17%)	1/35 (3%)	3/34 (9%)
First incidence (days)	552	683	482	484
Poly-3 test	P=0.038N	P=0.033N	P=0.003N	P=0.037N

				543 ppm	
All Organs: Benign Neonlasms					
Overall rate	41/48 (85%)	43/48 (90%)	37/48 (77%)	38/48 (79%)	
Adjusted rate	88.1%	91.9%	80.6%	82.9%	
Terminal rate	29/33 (88%)	33/36 (92%)	27/35 (77%)	29/34 (85%)	
First incidence (days)	585	561	482	484	
Poly-3 test	P=0.140N	P=0.390	P=0.237N	P=0.334N	
All Organs: Malignant Neoplasms					
Overall rate	21/48 (44%)	16/48 (33%)	19/48 (40%)	15/48 (31%)	
Adjusted rate	44.7%	34.7%	39.9%	33.6%	
Terminal rate	10/33 (30%)	7/36 (19%)	10/35 (29%)	9/34 (27%)	
First incidence (days)	552	605	102	484	
Poly-3 test	P=0.242N	P=0.221N	P=0.397N	P=0.190N	
All Organs: Benign or Malignant Neoplasms					
Overall rate	46/48 (96%)	46/48 (96%)	42/48 (88%)	43/48 (90%)	
Adjusted rate	95.8%	97.9%	87.5%	91.2%	
Terminal rate	31/33 (94%)	35/36 (97%)	29/35 (83%)	30/34 (88%)	
First incidence (days)	552	561	102	484	
Poly-3 test	P=0.111N	P=0.507	P=0.134N	P=0.305N	

TABLE B3b

Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

(T)Terminal sacrifice

Number of neoplasm-bearing animals/number of animals examined. Denominator is number of animals examined microscopically for clitoral gland, liver, lung, pituitary gland, and thyroid gland; for other tissues, denominator is number of animals necropsied.

Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

C Observed incidence at terminal kill

Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice. A negative trend or a lower incidence in an exposure group is indicated by N.

e Not applicable; no neoplasms in animal group

0/517 (0%)

7/517 (1.4%)

0%-3%

Study		Incidence in Controls				
	Adenoma	Carcinoma	Adenoma or Carcinoma			
Doxylamine	0/47	0/47	0/47			
Fumonisin B ₁	0/48	0/48	0/48			
Gentian violet	1/159	0/159	1/159			
Pyrilamine	0/48	0/48	0/48			
Sulfamethazine	5/170	0/170	5/170			
Triprolidine	1/45	0/45	1/45			

7/517 (1.4%)

0%-3%

TABLE B4a

Total (%)

Range

Historical Incidence of Thyroid Gland (Follicular Cell) Neoplasms in Control Female F344 Rats^a

^a Data as of April 30, 2003. Studies were performed at the National Center for Toxicological Research in animals given NIH-31 feed.

TABLE B4b Historical Incidence of Hepatocellular Adenoma in Control Female F344 Rats^a

Study	Incidence in Controls			
Doxylamine Fumonisin B ₁ Gentian violet Pyrilamine Sulfamethazine Triprolidine	0/48 0/48 0/170 0/48 1/179 0/48			
Total (%) Range	1/541 (0.2%) 0%-1%			

^a Data as of April 30, 2003. Studies were performed at the National Center for Toxicological Research in animals given NIH-31 feed.

	Incidence in Controls					
Study	Adenoma	Carcinoma	Adenoma or Carcinoma			
Doxylamine	1/48	2/48	3/48			
Fumonisin B ₁	1/47	2/47	3/47			
Gentian violet	1/169	0/169	1/169			
Pyrilamine	1/47	0/47	1/47			
Sulfamethazine	1/177	0/177	1/177			
Friprolidine	0/46	0/46	0/46			
Fotal (%)	5/534 (0.9%)	4/534 (0.7%)	9/534 (1.7%)			
Range	0%-2%	0%-4%	0%-6%			

TABLE B4c

Historical Incidence of Mammary Gland Neoplasms in Control Female F344 Rats^a

^a Data as of April 30, 2003. Studies were performed at the National Center for Toxicological Research in animals given NIH-31 feed.

TABLE B4d Historical Incidence of Pituitary Gland (Pars Distalis) Neoplasms in Control Female F344 Rats^a

Study	Incidence in Controls Adenoma or Carcinoma				
Doxylamine	25/48				
Fumonisin B ₁	32/47				
Gentian violet	82/161				
Pyrilamine	32/47				
Sulfamethazine	103/177				
Triprolidine	32/48				
Total (%)	306/528 (58.0%)				
Range	51%-68%				

^a Data as of April 30, 2003. Studies were performed at the National Center for Toxicological Research in animals given NIH-31 feed.

TABLE B5aSummary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Female Ratsin the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride^a

	0 pj) ppm 100 ppm		300 ppm		600 ppm	
Disposition Summary								
Animals initially in study		48		48		48		48
Early deaths								
Moribund		18		22		15		17
Natural deaths		1		3		1		6
Survivors								
Terminal sacrifice		29		23		32		25
Animals examined microscopically		48		48		48		48
Alimentary System								
Esophagus	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Dilatation							1	(2%)
Foreign body							1	(2%)
Intestine small, ileum	(47)		(46)		(48)		(47)	
Dilatation			1	(2%)				
Liver	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Angiectasis	1	(2%)						
Basophilic focus	2	(4%)	3	(6%)	2	(4%)	7	(15%)
Basophilic focus, multiple	19	(40%)	14	(29%)	18	(38%)	8	(17%)
Clear cell focus			2	(4%)				
Clear cell focus, multiple					1	(2%)		
Cyst			1	(2%)				
Degeneration, cystic					1	(2%)		
Developmental malformation	4	(8%)	7	(15%)	2	(4%)	5	(10%)
Eosinophilic focus	3	(6%)	9	(19%)	3	(6%)	11	(23%)
Eosinophilic focus, multiple	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	10	(21%)	3	(6%)
Fatty change							1	(2%)
Hematopoietic cell proliferation	2	(4%)	3	(6%)	4	(8%)	5	(10%)
Hepatodiaphragmatic nodule	3	(6%)	6	(13%)	2	(4%)	3	(6%)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte	2	(4%)	3	(6%)	3	(6%)	8	(17%)
Inflammation, focal, granulomatous	18	(38%)	15	(31%)	23	(48%)	19	(40%)
Inflammation, focal, suppurative	1	(2%)	2	(4%)				
Mixed cell focus			2	(4%)				
Mixed cell focus, multiple							1	(2%)
Necrosis		(0.0.1)	2	(4%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)
Vacuolization cytoplasmic	4	(8%)	4	(8%)	1	(2%)	6	(13%)
Bile duct, cyst					1	(2%)	-	
Bile duct, hyperplasia	10	(21%)	10	(21%)	9	(19%)	5	(10%)
Centrilobular, necrosis			(-)				4	(8%)
Mesentery	(9)	(=00.0)	(5)	(000)	(2)	(1000)	(4)	(===)
Fat, necrosis	7	(78%)	4	(80%)	2	(100%)	3	(75%)
Pancreas	(48)		(48)		(48)	(20)	(48)	(40/)
Inflitration cellular, lymphocyte					1	(2%)	2	(4%)
Inflammation		(270/)		(200/)	10	(250/)	1	(2%)
Acinus, atrophy	13	(2/%)	14	(29%)	12	(25%)	1	(15%)
Salivary glands	(48)		(47)	(40/)	(48)	(20/)	(48)	(20/)
Atrophy	1	(20/)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
initiation cellular, lymphocyte	1	(2%)					I	(2%)

^a Number of animals examined microscopically at the site and the number of animals with lesion
	0	ррт	100	ррт	30	0 ppm	600) ppm
Alimentary System (continued								
Stomach, forestomach	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Edema			1	(2%)				
Erosion					1	(2%)		
Inflammation	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)		
Necrosis			1	(2%)				(***
Epithelium, hyperplasia			1	(2%)			1	(2%)
Cardiovascular System								
Heart	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Cardiomyopathy	13	(27%)	22	(46%)	19	(40%)	14	(29%)
Atrium, thrombosis	1	(2%)						. ,
Fndocrine System								
Adrenal cortex	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Accessory adrenal cortical nodule	(40)	(2%)	(40)		(40)	(2%)	(40)	
Angiectasis	10	(21%)	11	(23%)	17	(35%)	16	(33%)
Atrophy						()	2	(4%)
Hematopoietic cell proliferation							1	(2%)
Hyperplasia, focal			1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Hypertrophy, focal	1	(2%)	4	(8%)	1	(2%)	4	(8%)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte							1	(2%)
Vacuolization cytoplasmic	6	(13%)	5	(10%)	2	(4%)	3	(6%)
Adrenal medulla	(47)		(47)		(48)		(48)	
Hyperplasia	1	(2%)	3	(6%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Islets, pancreatic	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Hyperplasia	1	(2%)					(***	
Parathyroid gland	(43)	(20)	(43)		(45)		(39)	
Hyperplasia, focal	1	(2%)	(47)		(10)		(45)	
Pituitary gland	(48)	(100/)	(47)	(40/)	(46)	(40/)	(45)	(40/)
Angiectasis	5	(10%)	2	(4%)	2	(4%)	2	(4%)
Pars distalis, cyst	0 5	(1770)	5	(11%)	9	(20%)	9	(20%)
Pars intermedia, cyst	5	(1070)			11	(2470)	0	(1370)
Thyroid gland	(46)		(48)		(47)		(46)	(270)
C-cell hyperplasia	(40)	(17%)	(40)	(10%)	11	(23%)	(40)	(13%)
Follicle. cvst	0	(1770)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	3	(7%)
Follicular cell, hyperplasia			-	(_,,)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)
General Body System None								
Conital System								
Cliteral aland	(40)		(40)		(47)		(47)	
Unioral giana Hymerologia	(48)	(1094)	(48)	(80/)	(47)	(49/)	(47)	(120/)
Inflammation	2 21	(10%) (44%)	4 20	(070) (63%)	2	(470) (49%)	0	(15%)
Metanlasia squamous	21	(++/0)	30	(05/0)	25	(+>/0)	20	(2%)
Duct dilatation	6	(13%)	5	(10%)	7	(15%)	6	(13%)
Davy unumon	0	(1570)	5	(10/0)	,	(1270)	0	(15/0)

	0	ррт	100	ррт	30	0 ppm	600) ppm
Genital System (continued)								
Ovary	(48)		(48)		(47)		(48)	
Atrophy	18	(38%)	14	(29%)	11	(23%)	10	(21%)
Congestion		()					1	(2%)
Cyst	5	(10%)	4	(8%)	7	(15%)	10	(21%)
Cyst, multiple							1	(2%)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte	1	(2%)						
Interstitial cell, hyperplasia			1	(2%)				
Uterus	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Decidual reaction							1	(2%)
Hemorrhage							1	(2%)
Inflammation, suppurative	1	(2%)				(20)		(20)
Thrombosis		(20())		(20)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Cervix, hypertrophy	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)		
Endometrium humaniagia avatia	1	(2%)	2	(60/)	11	(220/)	0	(170/)
Endometrium, hyperplasia, cystic	0 (48)	(13%)	3	(0%)	(19)	(23%)	8	(1/%)
Inflammation suppurative	(48)	(6%)	(46)	(6%)	(48)	(10%)	(48)	(20/2)
Prolapse	5	(070)	5	(070)	5	(10/0)	2	(4%)
Dana mamou		(19)		(19)		(19)		(19)
Atrophy	1	(48)	2	(48)	r	(48)	2	(48)
Myelofibrosis	1	(270)	3	(0%)	2	(470)	2	(470)
Myelostromal proliferation	1	(2%)			2	(470)		
Myeloid cell hyperplasia	5	(270)			5	(10%)	4	(8%)
Lymph node	(10)	(10/0)	(7)		(7)	(10/0)	(5)	(070)
Pigmentation	(10)		1	(14%)	()		(5)	
Deep cervical, hemorrhage	1	(10%)		()				
Deep cervical, hyperplasia, lymphoid	1	(10%)					1	(20%)
Iliac, hyperplasia, lymphoid	1	(10%)						· /
Lumbar, ectasia							2	(40%)
Lumbar, hematopoietic cell proliferation			1	(14%)				
Lumbar, hemorrhage			1	(14%)			1	(20%)
Lumbar, hyperplasia, lymphoid	2	(20%)					1	(20%)
Mediastinal, hemorrhage	1	(10%)	1	(14%)	3	(43%)		
Mediastinal, hyperplasia, lymphoid	2	(20%)						
Pancreatic, hematopoietic cell proliferation					1	(14%)		
Pancreatic, hemorrhage	1	(10%)						(200/)
Pancreatic, hyperplasia, lymphoid	1	(10%)					1	(20%)
Renal, ectasia	1	(10%)			1	(1.40/)		
Renal, nemorrage	2	(20%)	1	(1.49/)	1	(14%)		
Lymph nodo, mondibular	(47)		(46)	(14%)	(47)	(14%)	(19)	
Eginph node, mandibular	(47)		(40)	(2%)	(47)		(48)	
Hemorrhage			1	(270)	2	(4%)		
Hypernlasia lymphoid	1	(2%)	3	(7%)	2	(4%)	5	(10%)
Infiltration cellular plasma cell	5	(11%)	5	(11%)	5	(11%)	7	(15%)
Lymph node, mesenteric	(47)	(11/0)	(47)	(11/0)	(48)	(11/0)	(48)	(10,0)
Ectasia	(./)		(17)		1	(2%)	(10)	
Hemorrhage			1	(2%)	1	(2%)		
Hyperplasia, lymphoid	2	(4%)				× · · ·		
Infiltration cellular, plasma cell			1	(2%)			1	(2%)
-								

Hematopoietic System (continued) Spleen (48) (49) (12%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (40) (42) (43) (40) (43) (40) (43) (40) (43) (43) (44) (45) (48) <t< th=""><th></th><th>0</th><th>ppm</th><th>100</th><th>ррт</th><th>300</th><th>) ppm</th><th>600</th><th>ppm</th></t<>		0	ppm	100	ррт	300) ppm	600	ppm
	Hematopoietic System (continued)								
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Spleen	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Atrophy							1	(2%)
Henstopicitic cell proliferation 6 (13%) 2 (4%) 7 (15%) 12 (25%) Pignentation 1 (2%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 3 (6%) Thrombosis 1 (2%) 2 (4%) 3 (6%) Capsule, hemorrhage 1 (3%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) Trymus (40) (42) (43) (40) Cyst 1 (3%) 1 (2%) 1 (3%) 1 (3%) Ectopic parathyroid gland 1 (3%) 1 (2%) 1 (3%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 1 (3%) Mammary glanchecke 4 (9%) 8 (17%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 1 (3%) 2 (4%) 1 (3%) 2 (4%) 1 (3%) 2 (4%) 1 (3%) 2 (4%) 1 (3%) 2 (4%) 1 (3%) 2 (4%) 1 (2%) 1	Fibrosis							1	(2%)
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Hematopoietic cell proliferation	6	(13%)	2	(4%)	7	(15%)	12	(25%)
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Hyperplasia, focal	1	(2%)	2	(40/)	2	(40/)	2	$(\mathbf{C}0/\mathbf{)}$
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Pigmentation	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	2	(4%)	3	(6%)
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Cansule hemorrhage			1	(2%)	1	(270)		
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Thymus	(40)		(42)	(270)	(43)		(40)	
Ecosy in parathyroid gland 1 (2%) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) Hyperplasia, reticulum cell 1 (2%) Integumentary System (46) (48) (48) Galactocele 4 (9%) 8 (17%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) Hyperplasia 28 (61%) 33 (69%) 29 (60%) 35 (7%) Inflammation 12 (26%) 22 (4%) 18 (38%) 11 (23%) Skin (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Hyperplasia 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) Epidermis, hyperplasia 2 (4%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) Epidermis, necrosis 2 (4%) 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Sternum, fibrous osteodystrophy 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Sternum, fibrous osteodystrophy 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Sternum, fibrous osteodystrophy 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Sternum, fibrous osteodystro	Cyst	(10)	(3%)	(12)		(13)		(10)	
Henorhage 1 (2^{26}) Hyperplasia, reticulum cell 1 $(3^{9}6)$ Integumentary System (46) (48) (48) Manmary gland (46) (48) (48) (48) Galactocele 4 (9^{6}) 31 (17^{6}6) 2 (48) Hyperplasia 28 (61^{6}6) 33 (69^{6}6) 35 (73%) Duct, dilatation 12 (26^{6}6) 22 (48)	Ectopic parathyroid gland	-	(0,0)	1	(2%)				
Hyperplasia, reticulum cell 1 (3%) Integumentary System Mammary gland (46) (48) (48) (48) Galactocele 4 (9%) 8 (17%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) Hyperplasia 28 (61%) 33 (69%) 29 (60%) 35 (73%) Duct, dilatation 12 (26%) 22 (46%) 18 (38%) 11 (23%) Skin (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Hyperkeratosis 2 (4%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) Epidermis, hyperplasia 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Stemum, ostoopetrosis 8 (17%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Stemum, ostoopetrosis 8 (17%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Sternum, ostoopetrosis 7 (15%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (Hemorrhage				~ /	1	(2%)		
Integumentary System Integumentary gland (46) (48) (48) (48) Galactocele 4 (9%) 8 (17%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) Hyperplasia 28 (61%) 33 (69%) 35 (73%) Inflammation 12 (26%) 22 (46%) 18 (38%) 11 (23%) Skin (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Hyperplasia 2 (4%) 1 (2%) Epidermis, necrosis 2 (4%) Inflammation 1 (2%) 1 (2%) Epidermis, necrosis 2 (4%) Bone (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Femure, osteopetrosis 8 (17%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) <td>Hyperplasia, reticulum cell</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1</td> <td>(3%)</td>	Hyperplasia, reticulum cell							1	(3%)
Mammary gland (46) (48) (48) (48) Galactocel 4 (9%) 8 (17%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) Hyperplasia 28 (61%) 33 (69%) 29 (48) 2 (48) Duct, dilation 12 (26%) 22 (4%) (48) </td <td>Integumentary System</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	Integumentary System								
Galactocele 4 9%) 8 (17%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) Hyperplasia 28 (61%) 33 (69%) 29 (60%) 35 (73%) Duct, dilatation 12 (26%) 22 (46%) 18 (38%) 11 (23%) Musculoskeletal System (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Epidermis, hyperplasia 1 (2%) 2 (4%) (48) (48) Epidermis, hyperplasia 1 (2%) 2 (4%) (48) (48) Femur, fibrous osteodystrophy 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 3	Mammary gland	(46)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Hyperplasia 28 (61%) 33 (69%) 29 (60%) 35 (73%) Inflammation 12 (26%) 22 (46%) 18 (38%) 11 (23%) Skin (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Hyperkeratosis 2 (4%) 1 (22%) (48) (48) Epidermis, hyperplasia 1 (22%) 1 (22%) 2 (4%) (48) (48) Femur, fibrous osteodystrophy 1 (22%) 1 (22%) 3 (6%)	Galactocele	4	(9%)	8	(17%)	2	(4%)	2	(4%)
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Hyperplasia	28	(61%)	33	(69%)	29	(60%)	35	(73%)
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Inflammation			1	(2%)				
Skin (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Hyperkeratosis 2 (4%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 48) 48) 48) 48)	Duct, dilatation	12	(26%)	22	(46%)	18	(38%)	11	(23%)
Hyperkeratosis 2 (4%) Inflammation 1 (2%) Epidernis, hyperplasia 1 (2%) Epidernis, necrosis 2 (4%) Musculoskeletal System 2 (4%) Bone (48) (48) (48) Femur, fibrous osteodystrophy 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Femur, fibrous osteodystrophy 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 3 (6%) Sternum, notecopetrosis 8 (17%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Sternum, osteopetrosis 8 (17%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Turbinate, osteopetrosis 7 (15%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) Nervous System 1 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Spinal cord (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Spinal cord (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 4 (8%) Infammation, chronic, diffuse 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) Infammation, chronic, foral	Skin	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Hyperkeratosis	2	(4%)						
Epidermis, hyperplasa 1 (2%) Epidermis, necrosis 2 (4%) Musculoskeletal System 2 (4%) Bone (48) (48) (48) Femur, fibrous osteodystrophy 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Sternum, fibrous osteodystrophy 8 (17%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Sternum, osteopetrosis 8 (17%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Sternum, osteopetrosis 8 (17%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Turbinate, osteopetrosis 7 (15%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) Nervous System 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Spinal cord (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) 5 (10%) 14 (29%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Spinal cord (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) 2 (4%) 14 (8%) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48)	Inflammation			1	(2%)				
In the formation of the proventies of the formation of the proventies of the formation of the proventies of the proventis of the proventies of the proventies of the proventies of the pr	Epidermis, nyperplasia Epidermis, necrosis			1	(2%) (4%)				
Musculoskeletal System Bone (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Femur, fibrous osteodystrophy 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Femur, osteopetrosis 8 (17%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Sternum, osteopetrosis 8 (17%) 3 (6%)				2	(470)				
Bone (48) (6%) 3 (6%) 4 (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48)	Musculoskeletal System								
Femur, ibrous osteodystrophy 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 3 (6%) Femur, osteopetrosis 8 (17%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Sternum, fibrous osteodystrophy 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 3 <t< td=""><td>Bone</td><td>(48)</td><td></td><td>(48)</td><td>(20)</td><td>(48)</td><td></td><td>(48)</td><td>((0))</td></t<>	Bone	(48)		(48)	(20)	(48)		(48)	((0))
Fermur, osteopetrosis 8 (1%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) Sternum, fibrous osteodystrophy 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 48)<	Femur, fibrous osteodystrophy	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	2		3	(6%)
Sternum, norous osteodystrophy 1 (226) Sternum, osteopetrosis 8 (17%) 3 (6%) 3 (6%) 2 (4%) 1 (2%) 7 (15%) 5 (10%) 1 (2%) 7 (15%) 5 (10%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (4%) (4%) (4%) (2%) (2%) (2%)	Femur, osteopetrosis	8	(17%)	3	(6%)	3	(6%)	3	(6%)
Stellulit, östeopetrosis 5 (17%) 5 (0%) 5 (0%) 5 (0%) 5 (0%) Turbinate, osteopetrosis 7 (15%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 2 (4%) Nervous System Brain (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Spinal cord (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Spinal cord (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Respiratory System 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Respiratory Gystem 1 (2%) 4 (8%) (48) Lung (48) (48) (48) (48) Foreign body 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 2 (4%) 1 (8%) Inflammation, chronic, diffuse 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8 (17%) Inflammation, chronic, focal 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8 (17%)	Sternum, norous osteonystrophy	0	(1794)	1	(270)	2	(60/)	2	(60/)
Nervous System Brain (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Spinal cord (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) 7 (15%) Spinal cord (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Respiratory System (48) (48) (48) (48) Lung (48) (48) (48) (48) Foreign body 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 4 (8%) Inflammation, chronic, diffuse 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8 (17%) Inflammation, chronic, focal 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8 (17%)	Turbinate osteopetrosis	87	(17%)	2	(0%)	2	(4%)	2	(0%)
Nervous System Brain (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Hypothalamus, compression 5 (10%) 14 (29%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Spinal cord (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 7 Respiratory System Lung (48) (48) (48) (48) Foreign body 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 4 (8%) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 2 (4%) 1 Inflammation, chronic, diffuse 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8 (17%) Alwealer aritheting humenlegie ford 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8 (17%)		,	(10,0)		(170)	_	(170)	_	(170)
Brain (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Spinal cord (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Spinal cord (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Respiratory System 1 (2%) 48) (48) (48) Lung (48) (48) (48) (48) Foreign body 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 4 (8%) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 2 (4%) Inflammation, chronic, diffuse 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8 (17%) Inflammation, chronic, focal 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8 (17%)	Nervous System	(40)		(40)		(40)		(40)	
Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 1 (2%) Hypothalamus, compression 5 (10%) 14 (29%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Spinal cord (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 10 (21%) 7 (15%) Respiratory System Lung (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Foreign body 1 (2%) 4 (8%) 4 (8%) 1 (2%) 4 (8%) Inflammation, chronic, diffuse 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8 (17%) Alwapha exitication waves 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (17%)	Brain	(48)	(20/)	(48)	(20/)	(48)		(48)	
Intypondations, compression 1 (10%) 1 (21%) 1 (11%) Spinal cord (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 1 (2%) (48) (48) Respiratory System Lung (48) (48) (48) (48) Foreign body 1 (2%) 4 (8%) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 4 (8%) Inflammation, chronic, diffuse 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8<(17%)	Hypothalamus compression	1	(2%)	14	(2%)	10	(21%)	7	(15%)
Hemorrhage 1 (2%) (16) (16) (16) Respiratory System 1 (2%) 1 (2%) (48) (48) (48) Lung (48) (48) (48) (48) (48) Foreign body 1 (2%) 4 (8%) (48) Hemorrhage 1 (2%) 2 (4%) Inflammation, chronic, diffuse 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8 (17%) Alwachar enrichting 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8 (17%)	Spinal cord	(48)	(10/0)	(48)	(2)/0)	(48)	(2170)	(48)	(1570)
Respiratory System Lung (48) (48) (48) Foreign body 1 (2%) 4 (8%) Hemorrhage 2 (4%) Inflammation, chronic, diffuse 1 (2%) Inflammation, chronic, focal 1 (2%) A buscler criticalium humamilaria focal 1 (2%)	Hemorrhage	1	(2%)	(10)		(10)		(10)	
Lung (48) (48) (48) (48) Foreign body 1 (2%) 4 (8%) 2 (4%) Hemorrhage 2 (4%) 2 (4%) 1 Inflammation, chronic, diffuse 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8 (17%) Alweeler eritelium humemlerie fooel 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 2 (4%)	Respiratory System								
Easily (10) (10) (10) (10) Foreign body 1 (2%) 4 (8%) Hemorrhage 2 (4%) Inflammation, chronic, diffuse 1 (2%) Inflammation, chronic, focal 1 (2%) Alweder erithelium kuraemlerin focal 1 (2%)		(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Hemorrhage Inflammation, chronic, diffuse Inflammation, chronic, focal Alweelen enithelium humemlesis focal 1 (2%) 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8 (17%)	Foreign body	(64)		(0+)		(-0)	(2%)	4	(8%)
Inflammation, chronic, diffuse 1 (2%) Inflammation, chronic, focal 1 (2%) 3 (6%) 4 (8%) 8 (17%)	Hemorrhage					1	(270)	2	(4%)
Inflammation, chronic, focal $1 (2\%) \qquad 3 (6\%) \qquad 4 (8\%) \qquad 8 (17\%)$	Inflammation, chronic, diffuse			1	(2%)			-	
Altractor with altrum hymometry for $1 (20/) = 1 (20/) = 2 (40/)$	Inflammation, chronic, focal	1	(2%)	3	(6%)	4	(8%)	8	(17%)
Aiveoiar epimenum, nyperpiasia, iocai i (2%) i (2%) 2 (4%)	Alveolar epithelium, hyperplasia, focal	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)		. ,
Alveolus, infiltration cellular, histiocyte1 (2%)1 (2%)	Alveolus, infiltration cellular, histiocyte	1	(2%)	1	(2%)				

	0) ppm	100	ppm	30	0 ppm	60	0 ppm
Respiratory System (continued)								
Nose	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Foreign body	~ /		. ,		1	(2%)	2	(4%)
Inflammation, chronic	1	(2%)						
Inflammation, suppurative					1	(2%)	2	(4%)
Nasolacrimal duct, inflammation	19	(40%)	10	(21%)	11	(23%)	13	(27%)
Olfactory epithelium, cytoplasmic alteration	2	(4%)	3	(6%)	6	(13%)	1	(2%)
Olfactory epithelium, respiratory epithelium,								
cytoplasmic alteration	1	(2%)			2	(4%)		
Respiratory epithelium, cytoplasmic alteration							1	(2%)
Trachea	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Inflammation					3	(6%)	1	(2%)
Epithelium, hyperplasia					1	(2%)	2	(4%)
Snecial Senses System								
Fve	(47)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Cataract	(47)	(15%)	(-0)	(4%)	(40)		(40)	(15%)
Hemorrhage	,	(1570)	2	(470)	1	(2%)	,	(1370)
Phthisis bulbi					2	(2^{0})		
Bilateral cataract	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	2	(4%)
Bilateral retina degeneration	13	(28%)	14	(29%)	20	(47%)	18	(38%)
Cornea inflammation	15	(2070)	14	(2)/0)	20	(4270)	18	(2%)
Retina autolysis	1	(2%)	4	(8%)			2	(2%)
Retina degeneration	8	(17%)	8	(17%)	9	(19%)	9	(19%)
Sclera metanlasia osseous	1	(2%)	0	(1770)	,	(1970)	,	(1770)
Harderian gland	(47)	(270)	(48)		(48)		(48)	
Atrophy	1	(2%)	(10)		(10)		(10)	
Infiltration cellular lymphocyte	34	(72%)	37	(77%)	36	(75%)	32	(67%)
Inflammation	1	(2%)	57	(///0)	50	(1370)	52	(0770)
Pigmentation	1	(270)					1	(2%)
Lacrimal gland	(18)		(14)		(15)		(9)	(2/0)
Infiltration cellular lymphocyte	(10)	(11%)	2	(14%)	(13)	(13%)	3	(33%)
Metaplasia	18	(100%)	14	(100%)	15	(100%)	9	(100%)
Zymbal's gland	(47)	(10070)	(48)	(10070)	(48)	(10070)	(46)	(10070)
Hyperplasia	1	(2%)	(10)	(2%)	(10)		(10)	
Metaplasia, squamous	-	(270)	1	(2%)				
Videov	(40)		(40)		(40)		(40)	
Liver on her or is	(48)		(48)		(48)	(20/)	(48)	
riyuronephrosis Minemplization	22	(600/)	21	(650/)	1	(2%)	20	(620/)
Montronathy	33	(09%) (81%)	31	(03%)	30	(03%)	30	(03%)
Delvis inflormation	39	(01%)	38	(79%)	41	(03%)	40	(83%)
Pervis, minammation Polyis, transitional oniticity hymometry			1	(2%)				
Perol tabula magnaia			1	(270)				(20/)
Kenai tubule, necrosis	(47)		(40)		(47)			(2%)
Unitary olddder	(47)	(20/)	(48)		(4/)	(29/)	(47)	(20/)
minutation centular, lymphocyte	1	(2%)			1	(2%)	1	(2%)

	() ppm	91	ppm	27	2 ppm	54	3 ppm
Disposition Summary								
Animals initially in study		48		48		48		48
Early deaths								
Moribund		12		11		12		10
Natural deaths		3		1		1		4
Survivors								
Died last week of study								1
Terminal sacrifice		33		36		35		33
Animals examined microscopically		48		48		48		48
Alimentary System								
Intestine large	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Cecum inflammation	(40)		(40)		(40)	(2%)	(40)	
Cecum lymphoid tissue hyperplasia			1	(2%)	1	(270)		
Colon lymphoid tissue, hyperplasia			1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Rectum, inflammation	1	(2%)	1	(270)	1	(270)	-	(270)
Intestine small	(48)	(=/-)	(48)		(48)		(48)	
Ileum, dilatation	(10)		()		1	(2%)	(10)	
Ileum, inflammation					1	(2%)		
Ileum, lymphoid tissue, hyperplasia	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)		
Liver	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Angiectasis							1	(2%)
Basophilic focus	3	(6%)	4	(8%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)
Basophilic focus, multiple	20	(42%)	26	(54%)	2	(4%)		. ,
Degeneration, cystic	3	(6%)	2	(4%)	5	(10%)	3	(6%)
Developmental malformation	7	(15%)	5	(10%)	3	(6%)	5	(10%)
Eosinophilic focus	3	(6%)	4	(8%)	13	(27%)	5	(10%)
Eosinophilic focus, multiple			8	(17%)	7	(15%)	11	(23%)
Hematopoietic cell proliferation	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	3	(6%)	1	(2%)
Hepatodiaphragmatic nodule	4	(8%)	1	(2%)	5	(10%)	1	(2%)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte	2	(4%)	3	(6%)	7	(15%)	4	(8%)
Inflammation, focal, granulomatous	10	(21%)	19	(40%)	20	(42%)	13	(27%)
Mixed cell focus	1	(2%)						
Necrosis	4	(8%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	3	(6%)
Tension lipidosis	1	(2%)	2	(4%)				
Tension lipidosis, multiple	_		_				1	(2%)
Vacuolization cytoplasmic	5	(10%)	5	(10%)	17	(35%)	22	(46%)
Bile duct, cyst		(222)	10	(2004)	2	(4%)	10	(2004)
Bile duct, hyperplasia	16	(33%)	18	(38%)	19	(40%)	18	(38%)
Centrilobular, necrosis					l	(2%)	2	(4%)
Mesentery	(8)		(/)	(2004)	(1)		(4)	(0.50())
Accessory spleen		(7.50.())	2	(29%)		(1000())	1	(25%)
Fat, necrosis	6	(75%)	5	(/1%)	1	(100%)	3	(75%)
Pancreas	(48)		(48)	(40/)	(47)	$\langle (0) \rangle$	(48)	(20/)
Influence in the influe	1	(29/)	2	(4%)	3	(0%) (2%)	1	(2%)
Inflammation	1	(2%)	16	(220/)	17	(2%)	10	(200/)
Actinus, atrophy	20	(42%)	16	(33%)	17	(30%)	18	(38%)
Salivary glands	(48)	(40/)	(48)		(48)		(48)	(20/)
Auophy Infiltration collular lymphosyste	2	(470)			1	(29%)	1	(270)
Parotid gland, hypertrophy, focal			1	(2%)	1	(270)		

^a Number of animals examined microscopically at the site and the number of animals with lesion

	0	ррт	91	ppm	27:	2 ppm	543	3 ppm
Alimentary System (continued)								
Stomach	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Forestomach, edema	í	(2%)	~ /		· · ·		· · ·	
Forestomach, inflammation	2	(4%)			1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Forestomach, epithelium, hyperplasia	2	(4%)			1	(2%)		
Glandular, edema	1	(2%)						
Tongue	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Epithelium, hyperplasia, focal					1	(2%)		
Cardiovascular System								
Heart	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Cardiomyopathy	35	(73%)	35	(73%)	33	(69%)	30	(63%)
Endocrine System								
Adrenal gland	(47)		(48)		(47)		(48)	
Cortex, accessory adrenal cortical nodule	()		()		3	(6%)	(10)	
Cortex, angiectasis	8	(17%)	10	(21%)	2	(4%)	3	(6%)
Cortex, atrophy			1	(2%)				
Cortex, degeneration	1	(2%)						
Cortex, hyperplasia, focal	4	(9%)	2	(4%)	4	(9%)	5	(10%)
Cortex, hypertrophy, focal	2	(4%)			2	(4%)		
Cortex, thrombosis							1	(2%)
Cortex, vacuolization cytoplasmic	2	(4%)					1	(2%)
Medulla, hyperplasia	1	(2%)						
Pituitary gland	(47)		(47)		(45)		(46)	
Angiectasis	3	(6%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)
Pars distalis, cyst	8	(17%)	4	(9%)	6	(13%)	I	(2%)
Pars distalis, hyperplasia	2	(4%)	4	(9%)	4	(9%)	5	(11%)
I nyroid gland	(46)	(280/)	(46)	(110/)	(47)	(120/)	(48)	(20/)
C-cen, hyperplasia	15	(28%)	3	(1170)	0	(15%)	1	(270)
Follicular cell hyperplasia	1	(2%)	1	(270)			2	(4%)
	I	(270)					3	(070)
General Body System None								
Genital System								
Clitoral gland	(47)		(47)		(46)		(47)	
Hyperplasia	4	(9%)	4	(9%)	5	(11%)	3	(6%)
Inflammation	23	(49%)	31	(66%)	22	(48%)	28	(60%)
Duct, dilatation	25	(53%)	24	(51%)	18	(39%)	15	(32%)
Duct, hyperplasia							1	(2%)
Ovary	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Atrophy	6	(13%)	5	(10%)	10	(21%)	7	(15%)
Cyst	8	(17%)	5	(10%)	10	(21%)	4	(8%)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte Periovarian tissue, hemorrhage	3	(6%)	3 1	(6%) (2%)	3	(6%)		

	0	ppm	91	ppm	27	2 ppm	54.	3 ppm
Genital System (continued)								
Uterus	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Decidual reaction	()		1	(2%)	()		1	(2%)
Hemorrhage			1	(2%)			1	(2%)
Inflammation	1	(2%)		. ,				
Thrombosis							1	(2%)
Bilateral, horn, dilatation							1	(2%)
Cervix, hypertrophy	5	(10%)	5	(10%)	2	(4%)	5	(10%)
Endometrium, hyperplasia							1	(2%)
Endometrium, hyperplasia, cystic	3	(6%)	3	(6%)	4	(8%)	7	(15%)
Vagina	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Cyst	1	(2%)						
Exudate, mucous	1	(2%)	1	(2%)				
Hemorrhage							1	(2%)
Inflammation, suppurative	3	(6%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)
Metaplasia, squamous					1	(2%)		
Prolapse							1	(2%)
Hematopoietic System								
Bone marrow	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Atrophy	4	(8%)	2	(4%)	4	(8%)	3	(6%)
Myelostromal proliferation							1	(2%)
Myeloid cell, hyperplasia			1	(2%)				
Lymph node	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Hyperplasia, lymphoid					1	(2%)		
Bronchial, hyperplasia, lymphoid			1	(2%)				
Lumbar, ectasia	1	(2%)						
Lumbar, hyperplasia, lymphoid	1	(2%)						
Mandibular, ectasia					2	(4%)	2	(4%)
Mandibular, hyperplasia, lymphoid	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	4	(8%)	1	(2%)
Mandibular, infiltration cellular, plasma cell	4	(8%)	8	(17%)	4	(8%)		
Mediastinal, ectasia			1	(2%)			1	(2%)
Mediastinal, hemorrhage	1	(2%)	3	(6%)			1	(2%)
Mediastinal, hyperplasia, lymphoid	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)		
Mediastinal, infiltration cellular, plasma cell	1	(2%)						
Mesenteric, angiectasis				(= = ()	1	(2%)	-	
Mesenteric, ectasia	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	4	(8%)	2	(4%)
Mesenteric, hemorrhage			1	(2%)			2	(4%)
Mesenteric, hyperplasia, lymphoid	1	(2%)			2	(4%)	2	(4%)
Pancreatic, ectasia				(20)			1	(2%)
Pancreatic, hemorrhage			1	(2%)	2	(10)	1	(2%)
Pancreatic, hyperplasia, lymphoid		(20)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)
Renal, ectasia	1	(2%)						
Renal, hemorrhage	1	(2%)			1	(20/)		
Sultan	(49)	(4%)	(49)		(49)	(2%)	(49)	
Angiostopia	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	(20/)
Fibrosis							1	(2%)
FIDIOSIS	2	(69/)	4	(80/)	1	(120/)	1	(2%)
Hyperplasia, focal	3	(0%)	4	(870)	6	(1370)	3	(10%)
Digmontation	1	(2%)	1	(270) (494)	2	(6%)	1	(20/2)
stromal hyperplacia	1	(270)	Z	(+70)	3	(070)	1	(270)
Thymus	(41)		(17)		1 (14)	(270)	(12)	
Cyst	(41)		(47)	(4%)	(44)	(2%)	(42)	(2%)
Cysi			2	(+/0)	1	(2/0)	1	(2/0)

	G) ppm	91	ppm	27	2 ppm	54.	3 ppm
Integumentary System								
Mammary gland	(48)		(46)		(48)		(48)	
Galactocele	7	(15%)	2	(4%)				
Hyperplasia	25	(52%)	20	(43%)	19	(40%)	22	(46%)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte			1	(2%)				
Duct, dilatation	10	(21%)	13	(28%)	7	(15%)	3	(6%)
Skin	(48)		(48)	(20)	(48)		(48)	
Abscess			1	(2%)				(20)
Hyperkeratosis, multifocal		(40/)				(20)	1	(2%)
Inflammation	2	(4%)		(20)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Epidermis, hyperplasia	3	(6%)	1	(2%)	3	(6%)	3	(6%)
Epidermis, necrosis	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	3	(6%)
Musculoskeletal System								
Bone	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Cranium, osteopetrosis							1	(2%)
Femur, fibrous osteodystrophy	2	(4%)						
Femur, fracture healed							1	(2%)
Femur, osteopetrosis	1	(2%)	4	(8%)	3	(6%)	1	(2%)
Mandible, osteopetrosis							1	(2%)
Maxilla, inflammation, chronic			1	(2%)				
Sternum, fibrous osteodystrophy	1	(2%)	1	(2%)				
Sternum, osteopetrosis	1	(2%)	4	(8%)	4	(8%)	1	(2%)
Turbinate, osteopetrosis	1	(2%)	3	(6%)	4	(8%)	1	(2%)
Skeletal muscle	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Mineralization, multifocal	1	(2%)						
Nervous System								
Brain	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Brain stem hemorrhage	()	(2%)	(10)		(10)		(10)	
Brain stem, hypothalamus, compression	11	(2.3%)	6	(13%)	5	(10%)	5	(10%)
Cerebrum, hemorrhage	1	(2%)	0	(1570)	5	(1070)	1	(2%)
Respiratory System								
Lung	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Infiltration cellular lymphocyte	(40)		(48)		(48)	(2%)	(48)	
Alveolar epithelium hyperplasia			3	(6%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)
Alveolar epithelium metanlasia focal squamous			5	(070)	1	(270)	1	(7%)
Alveolus infiltration cellular multifocal							1	(2%)
Alveolus, infiltration cellular, histiocute	1	(8%)	3	(6%)	10	(21%)	1	(270)
Alveolus inflammation multifocal	4	(070)	5	(2%)	10	(21/0)	1	(1370)
Nose	(48)		(48)	(270)	(48)		(48)	(270)
Inflammation sumurative	(40)		(+0)	(2%)	(40)		(40)	
Nasolacrimal duct exet epithelial inclusion			1	(2%)				
Nasolacrimal duct, cyst epiticital inclusion	21	(44%)	10	(270)	19	(38%)	10	(40%)
Respiratory enithelium concretion	∠1	(-++-)	19	(-10/0)	10	(3070)	19	(2%)
Trachea	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	(270)
Inflammation chronic	(40)		(+0)	(2%)	(40)		(40)	
			1	(270)				

	0	ppm	91	ррт	27	2 ppm	54.	3 ppm
Special Senses System								
Eye	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Cataract	2	(4%)					5	(10%)
Phthisis bulbi			1	(2%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)
Bilateral, cataract	1	(2%)	1	(2%)			2	(4%)
Bilateral, retina, degeneration	4	(8%)	4	(8%)	5	(10%)	7	(15%)
Conjunctiva, inflammation	1	(2%)		· /		· /		. ,
Cornea, neovascularization		· /					1	(2%)
Retina, autolysis	5	(10%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	3	(6%)
Retina, degeneration		(3	(6%)	6	(13%)	9	(19%)
Sclera, metaplasia, osseous	1	(2%)						
Harderian gland	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Hyperplasia	()		()		1	(2%)	()	
Infiltration cellular, focal, histiocyte			1	(2%)				
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte	19	(40%)	26	(54%)	22	(46%)	21	(44%)
Inflammation							1	(2%)
Lacrimal gland	(10)		(6)		(8)		(4)	(_,,,)
Infiltration cellular lymphocyte	3	(30%)	1	(17%)	(0)		2	(50%)
Metaplasia	10	(100%)	6	(100%)	8	(100%)	4	(100%)
Urinary System								
Kidney	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Hydronephrosis			1	(2%)	1	(2%)		
Infarct	1	(2%)		, í				
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte		× /			1	(2%)		
Mineralization	47	(98%)	46	(96%)	47	(98%)	48	(100%)
Necrosis, focal	1	(2%)		· /				``´´
Nephropathy	34	(71%)	31	(65%)	27	(56%)	29	(60%)
Pigmentation	2	(4%)		~ /		~ /	2	(4%)
Urinary bladder	(47)	` <i>`</i>	(47)		(48)		(48)	` '
Hemorrhage			1	(2%)				
Infiltration cellular. lymphocyte			1	(2%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)
Inflammation			2	(4%)	-		_	())

APPENDIX C SUMMARY OF LESIONS IN FEMALE MICE IN THE 2-YEAR FEED STUDIES OF MALACHITE GREEN CHLORIDE AND LEUCOMALACHITE GREEN

TABLE C1a	Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Mice	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride	191
TABLE C1b	Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Mice	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	195
TABLE C2a	Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of Female Mice	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride	198
TABLE C2b	Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of Female Mice	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	222
TABLE C3a	Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Female Mice	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride	246
TABLE C3b	Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Female Mice	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	248
TABLE C4	Historical Incidence of Hepatocellular Neoplasms in Control Female B6C3F ₁ Mice	250
TABLE C5a	Summary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Female Mice	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride	251
TABLE C5b	Summary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Female Mice	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	255

	0 pp	m	100	ppm	225	5 ppm	450	ppm
Disposition Summary								
Animals initially in study	48		,	48		48		48
Farly deaths	40		•	+0		40		40
Accidental death						1		
Moribund	4			3		3		4
Natural deaths	4			1		4		3
Survivors	т			1		-		5
Terminal sacrifice	40			44		40		41
Animals examined microscopically	48			48		48		48
Alimentary System								
Gallbladder	(43)		(46)		(44)		(43)	
Intestine large colon	(48)		(46)		(44)		(46)	
Intestine large, rectum	(46)		(46)		(46)		(48)	
Intestine large, recum	(46)		(47)		(45)		(46)	
Intestine small duodenum	(46)		(47)		(43)		(47)	
Polyn adenomatous	(10)		(17)		(13)	(2%)	(17)	
Intestine small jejunum	(46)		(47)		(44)	(270)	(47)	
Intestine small ileum	(46)		(47)		(44)		(46)	
Liver	(48)		(48)		(46)		(48)	
Hemangiosarcoma	(10)		(.0)	(2%)	(10)		(10)	
Henatocellular carcinoma	1 (2)	%)	2	(4%)			1	(2%)
Hepatocellular adenoma	3 (6)	%)	2	(4%)	2	(4%)	2	(2%)
Histiocytic sarcoma	3 (6	%)	-	(1/0)	- 1	(2%)	- 1	(2%)
Sarcoma metastatic skin	5 (0	/0)	1	(2%)	-	(270)	1	(270)
Sarcoma metastatic uterus	1 (2)	%)	1	(270)				
Mesentery	(2)	/0)	(5)		(1)			
Sarcoma metastatic skin	(2)		(3)	(20%)	(1)			
Sarcoma metastatic uterus	1 (5	0%)	1	(2070)				
Pancreas	(47)	070)	(47)		(44)		(47)	
Histiocytic sarcoma	2 (4)	%)	(17)		(11)		(17)	
Sarcoma metastatic ovary	1 (2)	%)						
Salivary glands	(48)	/0)	(48)		(48)		(48)	
Stomach forestomach	(10)		(47)		(46)		(10)	
Squamous cell papilloma	(47)	%)	(47)	(2%)	(40)	(4%)	(40)	(2%)
Stomach, glandular	(47)	/0)	(47)	(270)	(46)	(470)	(48)	(270)
Heart	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
	()		()		(10)		(10)	
Endocrine System								
Adrenal cortex	(47)		(47)		(45)		(47)	
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin					ĺ	(2%)		
Subcapsular, adenoma							1	(2%)
Adrenal medulla	(47)		(46)		(44)		(46)	
Pheochromocytoma benign	~ /		2	(4%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Islets, pancreatic	(46)		(46)		(43)	< · · · ·	(47)	
Adenoma	()		()		()		1	(2%)
Carcinoma	1 (2)	%)					1	(=, .,)
Pituitary gland	(48))	(47)		(46)		(45)	
Pars distalis, adenoma	()		2	(4%)	2	(4%)	()	
······································			-	()	-	()		

TABLE C1a

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride^a

TABLE C1a

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

	0	ppm	10() ppm	225	5 ppm	450	ppm
Endocrine System (continued)								
Thyroid gland	(47)		(46)		(46)		(48)	
Follicular cell, adenoma	1	(2%)			. ,			
General Body System								
Tissue NOS	(1)				(1)			
Hemangiosarcoma	1	(100%)						
Genital System								
Ovary	(48)		(46)		(46)		(45)	
Granulosa cell tumor benign	(-)		2	(4%)				
Histiocytic sarcoma	2	(4%)		· /				
Luteoma	1	(2%)						
Sarcoma	1	(2%)						
Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus	1	(2%)						
Yolk sac carcinoma			1	(2%)				
Uterus	(48)		(48)		(47)		(48)	
Adenoma	1	(2%)						
Histiocytic sarcoma	2	(4%)			1	(2%)		
Polyp stromal					1	(2%)		
Sarcoma	1	(2%)						
Vagina	(48)		(48)		(46)		(48)	
Leiomyoma					1	(2%)		
Sarcoma	1	(2%)						
Squamous cell carcinoma	1	(2%)			1	(2%)		
Hematopoietic System								
Bone marrow	(47)		(47)		(47)		(48)	
Hemangiosarcoma	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	ĺ	(2%)		
Lymph node	(13)		(13)	× /	(6)		(9)	
Lumbar, histiocytic sarcoma	1	(8%)			1	(17%)		
Pancreatic, sarcoma, metastatic, skin			1	(8%)				
Renal, histiocytic sarcoma	1	(8%)			1	(17%)		
Renal, sarcoma, metastatic, skin			1	(8%)				
Lymph node, mandibular	(48)		(48)		(47)		(48)	
Lymph node, mesenteric	(45)		(46)		(44)		(46)	
Histiocytic sarcoma	2	(4%)					1	(2%)
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary	1	(2%)						
Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus	1	(2%)						
Spleen	(47)		(47)		(45)		(47)	
Hemangiosarcoma	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Histiocytic sarcoma	2	(4%)					1	(2%)
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary	1	(2%)						
Thymus	(43)		(44)		(43)		(47)	
Histiocytic sarcoma	2	(5%)					1	(2%)

	0 pj	om	100	ррт	225	ppm	450 ppm
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Skin Hemangiosarcoma Sarcoma Subcutaneous tissue, sarcoma	(46) 2 (- (48)	4%)	(48) 1 (48) 1	(2%)	(45) 1 (46) 2	(2%) (4%)	(46) 4 (9%) (48) 1 (2%) 1 (2%)
Musculoskeletal System Skeletal muscle Sarcoma, metastatic, skin	(48)		(48) 1	(2%)	(48)		(48)
Nervous System Brain	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Alveolar/bronchiolar carcinoma Alveolar/bronchiolar carcinoma, multiple Carcinoma, metastatic, mammary gland Histiocytic sarcoma Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Nose Trachea	(48) 2 (- 3 (- (48) (48) (48)	4%) 6%)	(48) 4 1 (48) (47)	(8%) (2%)	(48) 3 1 (48) (46)	(6%) (2%) (2%)	(48) $1 (2%)$ $1 (2%)$ $1 (2%)$ (48) (48)
Special Senses System Harderian gland Adenoma	(48) 3 (1	6%)	(48)		(48) 2	(4%)	(48) 3 (6%)
Urinary System Kidney Histiocytic sarcoma Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Urinary bladder	(48) 1 (. (47)	2%)	(47) (46)		(48) (45)		(47) 1 (2%) (48)
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs ^b Histiocytic sarcoma Leukemia granulocytic Lymphoma malignant	(48) 3 (r 1 (2 7 (6%) 2%) 15%)	(48) 10	(21%)	(48) 1 6	(2%) (13%)	(48) 1 (2%) 13 (27%)

TABLE C1a

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

450 ppm

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasm	is in Female Mice in the	2-Year Feed Study o	of Malachite Green (
	0 ppm	91 ppm	225 ppm
Neoplasm Summary			
Total animals with primary neoplasms	25	23	20
Total primary neoplasms	35	32	29

TABLE C1a

Total animals with benign neoplasms

Total animals with malignant neoplasms

Total animals with metastatic neoplasms

Total benign neoplasms

Total malignant neoplasms

Total metastatic neoplasms

C**hloride**^a

а Number of animals examined microscopically at the site and the number of animals with neoplasm b

c

Number of animals with any tissue examined microscopically Primary neoplasms: all neoplasms except metastatic neoplasms

	48 4 7 37 47		48 5 2 41		48 7 2		48
	48 4 7 37 47		48 5 2 41		48 7 2		48
	4 7 37 47		5 2 41		7 2		4
	4 7 37 47		5 2 41		7 2		4
	7 37 47		2 41		2		
	37 47		41				5
	37 47		41				
	47				39		39
			48		47		47
(44)		(47)		(44)		(46)	
(46)		(48)		(47)		(46)	
(44)		(47)		(47)		(46)	
í	(2%)						
						1	(2%)
(47)		(48)		(47)		(47)	. /
1	(2%)	1	(2%)				
				1	(2%)	2	(4%)
3	(6%)	6	(13%)	4	(9%)	8	(17%)
				1	(2%)	1	(2%)
1	(2%)	1	(2%)			2	(4%)
(45)		(48)		(47)		(45)	
						1	(2%)
		1	(2%)				
(47)		(48)		(47)		(47)	
(46)		(48)		(47)		(46)	
1	(2%)						
				1	(2%)		
		2	(4%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
						1	(2%)
			(20)				
		1	(2%)				
(47)		(48)		(47)		(47)	
						1	(2%)
(44)		(48)		(47)		(45)	
(++) 1	(2%)	(40)		(47)		(45)	
(41)	(=/0)	(45)		(44)		(46)	
3	(7%)	(-5)		(++)	(2%)	(-0)	(4%)
(46)	(,,,,,,	(48)		(47)	(=/)	(47)	(
1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	(./)	
	(44) (46) (44) 1 (47) 1 (47) (46) 1 (47) (46) 1 (47) (44) 1 (41) 3 (46) 1	$(44) \\ (46) \\ (44) \\ 1 (2\%) \\ (47) \\ 1 (2\%) \\ 3 (6\%) \\ 1 (2\%) \\ (45) \\ (45) \\ (45) \\ (47) \\ (46) \\ 1 (2\%) \\ (41) \\ 3 (7\%) \\ (46) \\ 1 (2\%) \\ (46) \\ 1 (2\%) \\ (2\%) \\ (41) \\ (2\%) \\ (42) \\ (42) \\ (42) \\ (43) \\ (43) \\ (44) \\ (44) \\ (44) \\ (45) \\ (45) \\ (45) \\ (45) \\ (45) \\ (46) \\ (46) \\ (42\%) \\ (42\%) \\ (46) \\ (42\%) \\ (46) \\ (42\%) \\ (46) \\ (42\%) \\ (46) \\ (42\%) \\ (46) \\ (42\%) \\ (46) \\ (42\%) \\ (46) \\ (42\%) \\ (46) \\ (42\%$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	

TABLE C1b

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

General Body System

None

TABLE	C1b
-------	-----

Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

	0	ppm	91	ppm	204 pj	pm	408 ppm
Canital System							
Overv	(46)		(48)		(47)		(44)
Charicagerainama	(40)		(48)		(47)	0/)	(44)
Custadenocarcinoma					1 (2	70) 04)	
Cystadenoma					1 (2	70)	1 (2%)
Granulasa cell tumor melignent							1 (270) 1 (294)
Higtioautia saraoma	1	(20/)					1 (270)
Sarcoma	1	(270)					
Taratama hanian	1	(270)					
Uterus	(46)	(470)	(48)		(47)		(46)
Hamangiama	(40)		(48)	(20/)	(47)		(40)
Hemangiosaraoma			1	(270)	1 (2)	0/)	
Hemangiosarcoma	1	(20/)	1	(20/)	1 (2	70)	
	1	(2%)	1	(2%)			
	1	(2%)	1	(2%)			
Sarcoma stromai	(45)	(4%)	(17)		(47)		(10)
vagina	(45)	(20)	(47)		(47)		(46)
Mast cell tumor malignant	1	(2%)					1 (20())
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin							1 (2%)
Hematopoietic System							
Bone marrow	(46)		(48)		(47)		(46)
Hemangiosarcoma	(.0)	(2%)	(10)		1 (2)	%)	(10)
Histiocytic sarcoma		(270)			1 (2	, ()	1 (2%)
Mast cell tumor malignant	1	(2%)					1 (270)
I vmph node	(47)	(270)	(48)		(47)		(47)
Lumbar histiocytic sarcoma	(1)	(2%)	(40)		(47)		(47)
Mandibular, histocytic sarcoma	1	(2%)					
Mandibular, mast cell tumor malignant	1	(270)					
Mandroulai, mast cen tumor mangnant	1	(270)	1	(29/)			
Mesenterie, instructure sarcoma			1	(270)			2(40/)
Selece	(15)		(19)		(47)		2 (470)
Homongiosoroomo	(43)	(40/)	(40)		(47)		(43)
Thermony	(42)	(470)	(15)		(45)		(12)
	(43)		(43)		(43)		(43)
Histiocytic sarcoma	1	(20/)					1 (2%)
	1	(2%)					
Integumentary System							
Mammary gland	(46)		(48)		(47)		(45)
Adenoacanthoma	2	(4%)	()		1 (2)	%)	()
Carcinoma	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1 (2)	%)	4 (9%)
Carcinoma two	-	(_/))	-	(_,,)	1 (2)	%)	
Skin	(46)		(48)		(45)	, ()	(45)
Fibrous histiocytoma	()		(10)	(2%)	(10)		(10)
Hemangioma	1	(2%)	1	(270)			
Hemangiosarcoma	1	(2%)					
Mast cell tumor benign	1	(270)	1	(2%)			
Mast cell tumor malignant	1	(2%)	1	(270)			
Sarcoma	1	(270)	1	(2%)			2(4%)
Tail, hemangioma			1	(270)	1 (2	%)	2 (470)
Musaulaskalatal System							
stusculoskeletai systelli			(10)				(10)
Skeletal muscle	(47)		(48)	(20/)	(47)		(46)
Sarcoma			1	(2%)			

	0	ppm	91	ррт	204 ppm	408 ppm
Nervous System						
Brain	(47)		(48)		(47)	(47)
Respiratory System						
Lung	(47)		(48)		(47)	(47)
Adenoacanthoma, metastatic, mammary gland	2	(4%)				
Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma	3	(6%)	1	(2%)	2 (4%)	1 (2%)
Alveolar/bronchiolar carcinoma	2	(4%)				
Carcinoma, metastatic, mammary gland						1 (2%)
Hepatocellular carcinoma, metastatic, liver						1 (2%)
Histiocytic sarcoma	1	(2%)	1	(2%)		1 (2%)
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin						2 (4%)
Sarcoma, metastatic, skeletal muscle	(1-)		1	(2%)		
Nose	(47)		(48)		(47)	(47)
Special Senses System						
Harderian gland	(47)		(48)		(47)	(47)
Adenocarcinoma	1	(2%)				1 (2%)
Adenoma	2	(4%)	2	(4%)	4 (9%)	4 (9%)
Bilateral, adenoma						1 (2%)
Zymbal's gland	(47)		(47)		(46)	(47)
Mast cell tumor malignant	1	(2%)				
Urinary System						
Kidney	(47)		(48)		(47)	(47)
Histiocytic sarcoma	1	(2%)				
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin						1 (2%)
Urinary bladder	(46)		(48)		(47)	(44)
Histiocytic sarcoma			1	(2%)		
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin						1 (2%)
Systemic Lesions						
Multiple organs ^b	(47)		(48)		(47)	(47)
Hemangioma	1	(2%)			1 (2%)	
Hemangiosarcoma	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	1 (2%)	
Lymphoma malignant	6	(13%)	5	(10%)	12 (26%)	6 (13%)
Neoplasm Summary						
Total animals with primary neoplasms ^c		28		22	26	32
Total primary neoplasms		48		30	35	41
Total animals with benign neoplasms		16		14	13	19
Total benign neoplasms		17		15	15	20
Total animals with malignant neoplasms		16		11	18	17
Total malignant neoplasms		31		15	20	21
Total animals with metastatic neoplasms		3		1		4
Total metastatic neoplasms		3		3		12

TABLE C1b Summary of the Incidence of Neoplasms in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

а Number of animals examined microscopically at the site and the number of animals with neoplasm Number of animals with any tissue examined microscopically b

c Primary neoplasms: all neoplasms except metastatic neoplasms

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	y of Female	Mice in 1	the 2-Year Feed	Study of Malachite Green Chloride: 0 ppm
Number of Days on Study	3 5 5 7 6 9 8 2 9	6 6 6 4 7 7 7 3 6	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 2
Carcass ID Number	$\begin{array}{cccc} 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 1 & 2 \\ 9 & 7 & 4 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{cccc} 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 2 & 3 & 3 \\ 7 & 4 & 1 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	0 0
Alimentary System				
Esophagus	+ + +	+ + +	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$
Gallbladder	M A +	+ + +	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$	+ + + + + + + + M + + + +
Intestine large, colon	+ + +	+ + +	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + +
Intestine large, rectum	+ A +	M + +	+ + + + + +	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$
Intestine large, cecum	A A +	+ + +	+ + + + + +	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$
Intestine small, duodenum	A A +	+ + +	+ + + + + +	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$
Intestine small, jejunum	A A +	+ + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
Intestine small, ileum	A A +	+ + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
Liver	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + + + +	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$
Hepatocellular carcinoma				
Hepatocellular adenoma	37		37 37	Х
Histiocytic sarcoma	Х		XX	
Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus				
Mesentery				
Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus				
Pancreas	A + +	+ + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + +
Fiscocytic sarconia	Λ	v	Λ	
Saliyany glands	<u>т</u> тт			
Sanvary granus	+ + + • + +		+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Sources cell papilloma	A + + V	v v		
Stomach, glandular	$\Delta + +$	л + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + +
Tongue	+ + +	+ + +	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$	+ + + + + + + + + + + + +
Cardiovascular System				
Blood vessel	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + +
Heart	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + +
Endocrine System				
Adrenal cortex	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + + + +	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$
Adrenal medulla	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + +
Islets, pancreatic	A A +	+ + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + +
Carcinoma	·			
Parathyroid gland	+ + +	+ + +	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$	+ + M + + + + + + + + + +
Pituitary gland	+ + +	+ + +	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$	+ + + + + + + + + + + + +
Thyroid gland	+ + +	+ + +	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$	+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$
Follicular cell, adenoma				
General Body System				
Tissue NOS				+
Hemangiosarcoma				X
				V. Losion propert

+: Tissue examined microscopically A: Autolysis precludes examination

M: Missing tissue I: Insufficient tissue

X: Lesion present Blank: Not examined

Number of Days on Study																									
Number of Days on Study 2 <th></th> <th>7</th> <th></th>		7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
$\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 $	Number of Days on Study	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	
Carcass ID Number 0 1		7	1	7	1	1	1	7	7	1	7	7	7	1	1	7	1	1	7	7	1	7	1	1	
Carcass ID Number 8 0 0 0 1 1 3 4		0	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Total
0 5 6 7 8 9 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Tumo Alinentary System Esophagus + <	Carcass ID Number	8	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	3	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	7	7	7	7	Tissues/
Alimentary SystemEsophagus+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +		0	5	6	7	8	9	0	1	9	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	5	6	7	8	Tumors
Explanation+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Alimentary System																								
Gailhaddar+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine large, colon + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Gallbladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	43
Intestine large, rectum + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine large, cecum + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	46
Intestine small, duodenum + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	46
Intestine small, jejnum + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Intestine small, duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Intesting small, ileum + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Intestine small, jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Liver $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Hepatocellular actinomaXHepatocellular actinomaXHistiocytic sarcomaSarcoma, metastatic, uterusXMesentery+Sarcoma, metastatic, uterusXPancreas+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Hepatocellular adenoma X X X Histicoytic sarcoma X X Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus X X Panereas $+$ $+$ $+$ Panereas $+$ $+$ $+$ Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus X X Panereas $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Sarcoma Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Salvary glands Salvary glands $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ Squamous cell papilloma Stomach, forestomach $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ Stomach, glandular $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ Cardiovascular System Blood vessel $+$ <	Hepatocellular carcinoma															Х									1
Histocytic sarcoma X Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus X Mesentery + Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus X Pancreas + Histocytic sarcoma X Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus X Pancreas + Histocytic sarcoma X Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Salivary glands Salivary glands + + + Stomach, forestomach + + + Stomach, forestomach + + + Stomach, glandular + Tongue + + + Readivascular System Blood vessel Heart + Heart + Adrenal cotex + + + Adrenal medulla + + + Yeath + Parathyroid gland + + + Parathyroid gland + + + Yeath </td <td>Hepatocellular adenoma</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>Х</td> <td></td> <td>Х</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>3</td>	Hepatocellular adenoma				Х											Х									3
Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus X Mesentery + Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus X Pancreas + Histiocytic sarcoma Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Salivary glands + Stomach, forestomach + Stomach, forestomach + Stomach, forestomach + Stomach, forestomach + Stomach, glandular + Tongue + Cardiovascular System Blood vessel Blood vessel + + + Heart + Adrenal cortex + + + Variabilities, pancreatic + Panthyroid gland + + + Yessel + + + Stomach, glandular + + + Heart + Heart + Heart + Adrenal cortex + A + Panathyroid gland + <tr< td=""><td>Histiocytic sarcoma</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>3</td></tr<>	Histiocytic sarcoma																								3
Mesentry + + + + Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus X Pancreas + <t< td=""><td>Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>Х</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>1</td></t<>	Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus															Х									1
Sarcona, metastate, uterus X Pancreas + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Mesentery						+									+									2
Panceas + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus															X									1
Sarcoma metastatic, ovary Salivary glands + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Salivary glands $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	Fishocytic sarcollia																								2
Saliva glands $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary	+	<u>т</u>	+	-	1	+	-	-	-	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	+	-	-	-	-	+	+	1
Stomach, forestomach F + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Stomach forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Stomach, glandular + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Squamous cell papilloma	1				'			'											'				'	47
Something guilded in the second of the s	Stomach glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	2 47
Cardiovascular System Blood vessel + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Cardiovascular System Blood vessel + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Tongue	I	'			'			1	'	'	1	'	'			'	'		1	'		1	1	40
Blood vessel + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Cardiovascular System																								
Heart $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + $	Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	47
Endocrine System Adrenal cortex + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Adrenal cortex + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Endocrine System																								
Adrenal medulla + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Adrenal cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Islets, pancreatic + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Adrenal medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Carcinoma X Parathyroid gland + M + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Islets, pancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	46
Parathyroid gland $+$ M + $+$ + + + + $+$ + $+$ + $+$ + $+$ + $+$ + + + + $+$ + $+$ + $+$ + $+$ + $+$ + + + $+$ + $+$ + $+$ + $+$ + + + $+$ + $+$ + $+$ + $+$ + + + $+$ + + + + $+$ + $+$ + $+$ + + + $+$ + + + $+$ + $+$ + + + $+$ + + + $+$ + + + $+$ + + + $+$ + + + $+$ + + + $+$ + + + $+$ + + + + + +	Carcinoma																							Х	1
Pituitary gland $+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	Parathyroid gland	+	Μ	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	Μ	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	45
Thyroid gland + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Pituitary gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Follicular cell, adenoma X Ceneral Body System	Thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	47
General Body System	Follicular cell, adenoma			Х																					1
General Dody System	General Body System																								
Tissue NOS	Tissue NOS																								1
Hemangiosarcoma	Hemangiosarcoma																								1

Individual Animal Tumor Path	nology of Fe	ma	le 1	Mie	e i	n t	he	2-	Yea	ar	Fee	ed S	Stu	ıdy	' of	f M	[ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en (Ch	lor	ide: 0 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	3 7 8	5 6 2	5 9 9	6 4 7	6 7 3	6 7 6	6 7 6	6 9 4	7 2 7																	
Carcass ID Number	0 0 9	0 1 7	0 2 4	0 2 7	0 3 4	0 3 1	0 3 5	0 3 2	0 4 0	0 4 1	0 4 2	0 4 3	0 4 4	0 4 5	0 4 6	0 4 7	0 4 8	0 4 9	0 7 3	0 7 4	0 7 5	0 7 6	0 7 7	0 7 8	0 7 9	
Genital System																										
Clitoral gland	+	• +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Ovary	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Histiocytic sarcoma		Х						Х																		
Luteoma																										
Sarcoma				Х																						
Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus																										
Uterus	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Adenoma																										
Histiocytic sarcoma		Х						Х																		
Sarcoma																										
Vagina	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	
Sarcoma																										
Squamous cell carcinoma																										
Hematopoietic System																										
Bone marrow	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Hemangiosarcoma																					х					
Lymph node					+	+		+		+			+		+						+	+			+	
Lumbar histiocytic sarcoma								x																		
Renal histiocytic sarcoma								x																		
Lymph node mandibular	+	. +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Lymph node, mandroutai	Δ	Δ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	м	+	+	+	
Histiocytic sarcoma	1						x	x														111				
Sarcoma metastatic ovary				v			1	1																		
Sarcoma metastatic, Uterus				Λ																						
Saleen	+	- Δ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Hemangiosarcoma		11						'													v					
Histiocytic sarcoma							x	x													1					
Sarcoma metastatic ovary				v			1	1																		
Thymus	N	1 +	+	M	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	м	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Histioautia saraoma	14	1 '		111			\mathbf{v}	\mathbf{v}	'			'							IVI						1	
histocytic sarconia							л	л																		
Intomumontary System																										
Integumentary system			· .				,																			
Mammary gland	Ν	1 M	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Carcinoma							,					,					Х ,							Х ,	1	
SKIII	+	• +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	т	
Musculoskeletal System																										
Bone	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Skeletal muscle	1 -	. +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Skeletal Illusele	Т	r	1.	1.	'	'	1	1	'	1		1	1			1	1		1	1	1	1	1.			

Individual Animal Tumor Patho	logy of Fe	ma	le I	Mic	ce i	n t	he	2-`	Yea	ar I	Fee	ed (Stu	ıdy	of	M	ala	ich	ite	G	ree	en (Chlo	oride:	0 ppm
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7		
Number of Days on Study	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2		
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7		
	0	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1		Total
Carcass ID Number	8	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	3	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	7	7	7	7		Tissues
	0	5	6	7	8	9	0	1	9	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	5	6	7	8		Tumors
Genital System																									
Clitoral gland	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+		48
Ovary	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Histiocytic sarcoma																									2
Luteoma									Х																1
Sarcoma																									1
Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus															Х										1
Uterus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Adenoma									Х																1
Histiocytic sarcoma																									2
Sarcoma															X										l
vagina	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	\mathbf{v}^+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Squamous cell carcinoma														л						Х					1
Hematopoietic System																									
Bone marrow	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Hemangiosarcoma																									1
Lymph node			+		+														+	+					13
Lumbar, histiocytic sarcoma																									1
Renal, histiocytic sarcoma																									1
Lymph node, mandibular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+		48
Lymph node, mesenteric	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+		45
Histiocytic sarcoma																									2
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary																									1
Sarcoma, metastatic, uterus															Х										1
Spleen	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Hemangiosarcoma																									1
Histiocytic sarcoma																									2
Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary																									1
Thymus	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		43
Histiocytic sarcoma																									2
Integumentary System																									
Mammary gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		46
Carcinoma																									2
Skin	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Musculoskeletal System																									
Bone	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48
Skeletal muscle	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	+		18

Individual Animal Tumor Pathol	logy of Fe	ma	le]	Mie	ce i	n t	he	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	/ 01	f M	ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en (Ch	lor	ide:	0 ppr	n
Number of Days on Study	3 7 8	5 6 2	5 9 9	6 4 7	6 7 3	6 7 6	6 7 6	6 9 4	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7																
Carcass ID Number	0 0 9	0 1 7	0 2 4	0 2 7	0 3 4	0 3 1	0 3 5	0 3 2	0 4 0	0 4 1	0 4 2	0 4 3	0 4 4	0 4 5	0 4 6	0 4 7	0 4 8	0 4 9	0 7 3	0 7 4	0 7 5	0 7 6	0 7 7	0 7 8	0 7 9		
Nervous System Brain Peripheral nerve Spinal cord	+ + +	· + · +	++++	++++	++++	+++++	+ + +	+ + +	+++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	++++	+ + +	++++	++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++++		
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Histiocytic sarcoma Nose Trachea	+ + +	+ + X + +	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ X + +	+ X + +	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ X + +	++++++		
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Adenoma Zymbal's gland	+ + +	· + · +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	++++	+ + X +	+++++	++++++		
Urinary System Kidney Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Urinary bladder	+ A	+ +	++	+ X +	+++	++	+	+	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+ +		
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Histiocytic sarcoma Leukemia granulocytic Lymphoma malignant	+ X	+ X	+	+	+ X	+ X	+ X	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		

TABLE C2a Individual Anim

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fe	ma	le I	Mie	ce i	in t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	udy	y of	f M	Ial	ach	nite	G	ree	en (Chlo	ride:	0 ppn	n
Number of Days on Study	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7			
Carcass ID Number	0 8 0	1 0 5	1 0 6	1 0 7	1 0 8	1 0 9	1 1 0	1 1 1	1 3 9	1 4 0	1 4 1	1 4 2	1 4 3	1 4 4	1 4 5	1 4 6	1 4 7	1 4 8	1 4 9	1 7 5	1 7 6	1 7 7	1 7 8			Total Tissues/ Tumors
Nervous System Brain Peripheral nerve Spinal cord	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	+ + +			48 48 48
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Histiocytic sarcoma Nose Trachea	+ + +	+ X + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +			48 2 3 48 48
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Adenoma Zymbal's gland	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + X +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + X +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +			48 48 3 48
Urinary System Kidney Sarcoma, metastatic, ovary Urinary bladder	+ +	++	++	++	++	++	++	+ +	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+ +			48 1 47
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Histiocytic sarcoma Leukemia granulocytic Lymphoma malignant	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+ X	+			48 3 1 7

Individual Animal Tumor Patho	ology of Fe	ma	le I	Mie	ce i	n t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	y of	f M	[ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en (Ch	lor	ide:	100 ppm
Number of Days on Study	5 9 6	6 4 4	6 5 9	7 1 1	7 2 7																					
Carcass ID Number	0 2 3	0 2 8	0 3 0	0 3 8	0 5 0	0 5 1	0 5 2	0 5 3	0 5 4	0 5 5	0 5 6	0 5 7	0 8 1	0 8 2	0 8 3	0 8 4	0 8 5	0 8 6	0 8 7	0 8 8	0 8 9	0 9 0	0 9 1	1 1 2	1 1 3	
Alimentary System																										
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	
Gallbladder	А	+	Μ	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	
Intestine large, colon	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Intestine large, rectum	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	
Intestine large, cecum	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Intestine small, duodenum	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Intestine small jejunum	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Intestine small ileum	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Hemangiosarcoma								'																		
Hepatocellular carcinoma Hepatocellular adenoma		Х																					v			
Sarcoma, inclastatic, skill Mesentery								4															∧ _			
Someone metactotic alvin								Ŧ															T V			
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin																							<u>л</u>			
	111		- -	- -	-	-	-	-	-	-	- -	- -	-	- -	-	- -	+	- -	+	-	- -	-	- -	+	- -	
Stamoch forestamoch	T M	. T	-	- -	+	+	- -	-	- -	-	- -	- -	- -	- -	-	+	+	-	+	-	- -	-	- -	+	- -	
	111	т	т	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	т	т	т	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	v	т	Ŧ	т	т	т	Ŧ	т	
Squamous cen papinoma																		л 								
Tongue	A +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Cardiovascular System																										
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Endocrine System																										
Adrenal cortex	Μ	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	
Adrenal medulla	Μ	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	Μ	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	
Pheochromocytoma benign								Х														Х				
Islets, pancreatic	Μ	+	+	Μ	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	
Parathyroid gland	Μ	+	+	Μ	М	$^+$	М	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	Μ	+	
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	Μ	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	
Pars distalis, adenoma Thyroid gland	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	X +	М	+	
General Body System None																										
Genital System																										
Clitoral gland	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Ovary	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Granulosa cell tumor benign								Х					Х													
Yolk sac carcinoma		Х						-					-													
Uterus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Vagina	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
U U																										

Individual Animal Tumor Patho	ology of Fe	ma	le I	Mie	ce i	n t	he	2-`	Yea	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	/ 01	f M	ala	ich	ite	G	ree	n (Chloride:	100 ppm
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Number of Days on Study	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Carcass ID Number	1	1	1	1	1	1	1 5	1 5	1 5	1	1	1	1 5	1 7	1 8	1 8	1 8	Total Tissues/						
	4	5	6	7	8	9	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	9	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	Tumors
Alimentary System																								
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	48
Gallbladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	46
Intestine large, colon	+	+	$^+$	Μ	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	46
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	46
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	47
Intestine small, duodenum	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	47
Intestine small, jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	47
Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	47
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	48
Hemangiosarcoma																			Х					1
Hepatocellular carcinoma						Х																		2
Hepatocellular adenoma								Х					Х											2
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin																								1
Mesentery							+			+						+								5
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin																								1
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	47
Salivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	48
Stomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	47
Squamous cell papilloma																								1
Stomach, glandular	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	47
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Endocrine System																								
Adrenal cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Adrenal medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Pheochromocytoma benign																								2
Islets pancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Parathyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	м	M	+	+	м	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	40
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Pars distalis adenoma																							x	2
Thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
General Body System																								
None																								
Genital System																								
Clitoral gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Ovary	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Granulosa cell tumor benign																								2
Yolk sac carcinoma																								1
Uterus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Vagina	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48

TABLE C2a

Individual Animal Tumor Patholo	gy of Fe	ma	le I	Mie	ce i	n t	he	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	udy	' 0 1	f M	[ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en (Ch	lor	ide:	100 ppm
Number of Days on Study	5 9 6	6 4 4	6 5 9	7 1 1	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7											
Carcass ID Number	0 2 3	0 2 8	0 3 0	0 3 8	0 5 0	0 5 1	0 5 2	0 5 3	0 5 4	0 5 5	0 5 6	0 5 7	0 8 1	0 8 2	0 8 3	0 8 4	0 8 5	0 8 6	0 8 7	0 8 8	0 8 9	0 9 0	0 9 1	1 1 2	1 1 3	
Hematopoietic System																										
Bone marrow	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	
Hemangiosarcoma											Х															
Lymph node Pancreatic, sarcoma, metastatic, skin Renal, sarcoma, metastatic, skin	+		+	+							+									+		+	+ X X	+	+	
Lymph node, mandibular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Lymph node, mesenteric	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	
Spleen	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Hemangiosarcoma Thymus	Ν	1 +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	X +	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	
Integumentary System																										
Mammary gland Carcinoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Skin Subcutaneous tissue, sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	\mathbf{x}^+	+	+	
Musculoskeletal System																										
Bone	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	
Skeletal muscle Sarcoma, metastatic, skin	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	
Nervous System																										
Brain	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Peripheral nerve Spinal cord	+	· + · +	++	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +											
Respiratory System																										
Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	
Alveolar/bronchiolar carcinoma																				Х						
Nose Trachea	+ A	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +													
Special Senses System																										
Eye	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Harderian gland Zymbal's gland	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +									

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	gy of Fei	ma	le I	Mic	e i	n t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	v of	ſΜ	ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en (Chloride:	100 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 2 7																							
Carcass ID Number	1 1 4	1 1 5	1 1 6	1 1 7	1 1 8	1 1 9	1 5 0	1 5 1	1 5 2	1 5 3	1 5 4	1 5 5	1 5 6	1 7 9	1 8 0	1 8 1	1 8 2	1 8 3	1 8 4	1 8 5	1 8 6	1 8 7	1 8 8	Total Tissues/ Tumors
Hematopoietic System																								
Bone marrow Hemangiosarcoma Lymph node Pancreatic, sarcoma, metastatic, skin	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	++	+	+	+	47 1 13 1
Renal, sarcoma, metastatic, skin Lymph node, mandibular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	1 48
Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Hemangiosarcoma	++	+	+	+	+	+ +	+	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	46 47 1
Thymus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Skin	+ +	++	++	++	+++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+++	++	++	++	++	+++	+++	+ X +	++	++	+ +	48 1 48
Subcutaneous tissue, sarcoma																								1
Musculoskeletal System Bone Skeletal muscle Sarcoma, metastatic, skin	+ +	++	+ +	++	+++	++	+ +	+++	++	+ +	48 48 1													
Nervous System																								
Brain Peripheral nerve Spinal cord	+ + +	+ M +	+ + +	48 47 48																				
Respiratory System																								
Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Alveolar/bronchiolar carcinoma	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	48 4 1
Nose Trachea	+++	+ +	++++	48 47																				
Special Senses System																								
Eye Harderian gland Zymbal's gland	+++++	+ + +	48 48 48																					

Individual Animal Tumor	r Pathology of Fe	m	ıle	Mi	ce i	in t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fee	ed 1	Stu	ıdy	^y of	' M	ala	ich	ite	G	ree	n (Ch	lor	ide:	100 ppm
Number of Days on Study	5 9 6	5 6 9 4 5 4	6 5 9	7 1 1	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7							
Carcass ID Number	0 2 3	0 0 2 2 8 8	0 0 2 3	0 3 8	0 5 0	0 5 1	0 5 2	0 5 3	0 5 4	0 5 5	0 5 6	0 5 7	0 8 1	0 8 2	0 8 3	0 8 4	0 8 5	0 8 6	0 8 7	0 8 8	0 8 9	0 9 0	0 9 1	1 1 2	1 1 3	
Urinary System Kidney Urinary bladder	A A	× +	- +	+++	+ +	+++	++	+++	++	++	+++	++	++	+++	++	+++	+++	+++	+ +	+++	+ +	+++	+ M	++	+++	
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Lymphoma malignant	+	- +	+ X	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+ X	

Individual Animal Tumor Pa	thology of Fe	ma	le I	Mic	ce i	n t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fee	ed	Stu	ıdy	^y of	' M	ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en (Chloride:	100 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7 2	
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Total
Carcass ID Number	1	1 5	1 6	1 7	1 8	1 9	5 0	5 1	5 2	5 3	5 4	5 5	5 6	7 9	8 0	8 1	8 2	8 3	8 4	8 5	8 6	8 7	8 8	Tissues/ Tumors
Urinary System																								
Kidney Urinary bladder	+ +	+ +	++	++	++	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	++	++	++	+ +	+ +	47 46
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Lymphoma malignant	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	48 10

Individual Animal Tumor Path	ology of Fe	ma	le N	Mic	e i	n t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	ıdy	/ 01	f M	Ial	acł	ite	e G	ree	en	Ch	lor	ide:	225 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	2 2 6	2 5 2	4 4 2	4 4 4	5 6 8	6 7 3	6 9 4	7 0 7	7 2 7																		
Carcass ID Number	0 0 6	0 0 7	0 1 6	0 1 5	0 2 2	0 2 9	0 3 7	0 3 6	0 5 8	0 5 9	0 6 0	0 6 1	0 6 2	0 6 3	0 9 2	0 9 3	0 9 4	0 9 5	0 9 6	0 9 7	0 9 8	1 2 0	1 2 1	1 2 2	1 2 3		
Alimentary System																											
Esophagus	+	+	+	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Gallbladder	+	A	+	A	+	+	A	Α	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Intestine large, colon	+	M	+	A	+	+	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Intestine large, rectum	+	+ M	+	+	+	+		1VI +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Intestine small duodenum	+	Δ	+	A	+	+	A	Δ	+	+	м	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Polyp adenomatous		11		11			11	11			141																
Intestine small, jejunum	+	М	+	А	+	+	А	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Intestine small, ileum	+	Μ	+	А	$^+$	$^+$	А	А	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+		
Liver	+	А	+	А	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Hepatocellular adenoma Histiocytic sarcoma							х			Х																	
Mesentery Peneroog	+	٨	+	۸	+	-	٨	٨	-	-	+	-	+	-	+	-	-	-	+	+	-	-	-	-	-		
Salivary glands	+	+	+	A +	+	+	+	A +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Stomach, forestomach	+	M	+	Å	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Squamous cell papilloma																											
Stomach, glandular	+	М	+	А	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Cardiovascular System																											
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Endocrine System																											
Adrenal cortex	+	М	+	Α	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin																											
Adrenal medulla	+	Μ	+	А	+	+	+	Μ	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Pheochromocytoma benign	1	٨																									
Parathyroid gland	+	M	+	A	+	+	A +	M	+	M	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Ń	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Pars distalis, adenoma																X											
Thyroid gland	+	А	+	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
General Body System																											
Tissue NOS				A				+																			
Genital System																											
Clitoral gland	+	М	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Ovary	+	Μ	+	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Uterus	+	Μ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Histiocytic sarcoma Polyp stromal							Х																				

Individual Animal Tumor Pathe	ology of Fei	na	le I	Mic	ce i	n t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	/ 01	f M	[ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en (Chloride:	225 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	
Carcass ID Number	1 2 4	1 2 5	1 2 6	1 2 7	1 2 8	1 5 7	1 5 8	1 5 9	1 6 0	1 6 1	1 6 2	1 6 3	1 8 9	1 9 0	1 9 1	1 9 2	1 9 3	1 9 4	1 9 5	1 9 6	1 9 7	1 9 8	1 9 9	Total Tissues/ Tumors
Alimentary System																								
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Gallbladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	45
Intestine small, duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
Polyp adenomatous													Х											1
Intestine small, jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
Liver Hepatocellular adenoma Histiocytic sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46 2 1
Mesentery																								1
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
Salivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Stomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Squamous cell papilloma											Х									Х				2
Stomach, glandular Tongue	++	+	+	+	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	+	+	+ +	+ +	46 48
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Endocrine System																								
Adrenal cortex	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	45
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin		Х																						1
Adrenal medulla	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	44
Pheochromocytoma benign																Х								1
Islets, pancreatic	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	Ι	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	43
Parathyroid gland	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	41
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Pars distalis, adenoma Thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	X +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	2 46
General Body System Tissue NOS																								1
Genital System																								
Clitoral gland	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Ovary	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Uterus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Histiocytic sarcoma Polyp stromal																х								1 1

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	y of Fer	nal	le I	Mic	e i	n t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fee	ed (Stı	ıdy	v of	f M	ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en (Ch	lor	ide:	225 j	ppm	
Number of Days on Study	2 2 6	2 5 2	4 4 2	4 4 4	5 6 8	6 7 3	6 9 4	7 0 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7			
Carcass ID Number	0 0 6	0 0 7	0 1 6	0 1 5	0 2 2	0 2 9	0 3 7	0 3 6	0 5 8	0 5 9	0 6 0	0 6 1	0 6 2	0 6 3	0 9 2	0 9 3	0 9 4	0 9 5	0 9 6	0 9 7	0 9 8	1 2 0	1 2 1	1 2 2	1 2 3			
Genital System (continued) Vagina Leiomyoma Squamous cell carcinoma	+	М	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+			
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Hemangiosarcoma	+	+	+	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+			
Lymph node Lumbar, histiocytic sarcoma Renal, histiocytic sarcoma Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Hemangiosarcoma Thymus	+ + + +	+ A A +	++++++	+ A A	+ + +	+ + + +	+ X X M A A +	+ + + + M	+ + + M	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	+ + +	+++++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	+ + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++			
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Skin Sarcoma	+ +	A A	++	A A	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	M +	+ + X	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+ +			
Musculoskeletal System Bone Skeletal muscle	++++	+++	+++	+++	++++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	++++			
Nervous System Brain Peripheral nerve Spinal cord	++++++	++++	++++	++++	++++++	+ + +	+++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	++++	+ + +	++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	+ + +			
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Alveolar/bronchiolar carcinoma, multiple	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+			
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Nose Trachea	+ +	$^+_{\rm A}$	+ +	+ A	+++	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +			

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fe	ma	le I	Mic	e i	n t	he	2-`	Yea	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	v of	f M	[ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en (Chloride:	225 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	
Carcass ID Number	1 2 4	1 2 5	1 2 6	1 2 7	1 2 8	1 5 7	1 5 8	1 5 9	1 6 0	1 6 1	1 6 2	1 6 3	1 8 9	1 9 0	1 9 1	1 9 2	1 9 3	1 9 4	1 9 5	1 9 6	1 9 7	1 9 8	1 9 9	Total Tissues/ Tumors
Genital System (continued) Vagina Leiomyoma Squamous cell carcinoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46 1 1
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Hemangiosarcoma Lymph node Lumbar, histiocytic sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	++	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47 1 6 1
Renal, histiocytic sarcoma Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Hemangiosarcoma Thymus	+ + +	+ M +	+++++	+ + +	+ + + X +	+ + +	1 47 44 45 1 43																	
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Skin Sarcoma	+ +	+ + X	++	++	++	++	+ X +	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+ +	45 1 46 2
Musculoskeletal System Bone Skeletal muscle	+++	+++	+++	++	++	++	+++	+++	++	+++	+++	+++	+++	++	+++	++	+++	+++	+++	++	++	+++	+++	48 48
Nervous System Brain Peripheral nerve Spinal cord	+ + +	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ M +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	48 47 48
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Alveolar/bronchiolar carcinoma, multiple Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Nose	+	+ X X +	+ X +	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	+++	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +	+ X +	+ +	+	48 3 1 48
Trachea	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4

TABLE C2a

Individual Animal Tumo	r Pathology of H	Fen	nal	le I	Mic	ce i	n t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	v of	f M	ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en (Ch	lor	ide:	225 p	opm
Number of Days on Study		2 2 6	2 5 2	4 4 2	4 4 4	5 6 8	6 7 3	6 9 4	7 0 7	7 2 7																		
Carcass ID Number		0 0 6	0 0 7	0 1 6	0 1 5	0 2 2	0 2 9	0 3 7	0 3 6	0 5 8	0 5 9	0 6 0	0 6 1	0 6 2	0 6 3	0 9 2	0 9 3	0 9 4	0 9 5	0 9 6	0 9 7	0 9 8	1 2 0	1 2 1	1 2 2	1 2 3		
Special Senses System																												
Eye		$^+$	А	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+		
Harderian gland Adenoma		+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Zymbal's gland		+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Urinary System																												
Kidney		+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Urinary bladder		+	Μ	+	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Systemic Lesions																												
Multiple organs		+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Histiocytic sarcoma								Х																				
Lymphoma malignant			Х				Х		Х										Х							Х		
TABLE C2a Individual Anim

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of	Fer	nal	le I	Mie	ce i	n t	he	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	v of	f M	[ala	ıch	ite	G	ree	n (Chloride:	225 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 2 7																							
Carcass ID Number	1 2 4	1 2 5	1 2 6	1 2 7	1 2 8	1 5 7	1 5 8	1 5 9	1 6 0	1 6 1	1 6 2	1 6 3	1 8 9	1 9 0	1 9 1	1 9 2	1 9 3	1 9 4	1 9 5	1 9 6	1 9 7	1 9 8	1 9 9	Total Tissues/ Tumors
Special Senses System																								
Eye Harderian gland Adenoma	+ +	+ + X	++	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ + X	+ +	+ +	47 48 2								
Zymbal's gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Urinary System																								
Kidney Urinary bladder	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ M	+ +	48 45																		
Systemic Lesions																								
Multiple organs Histiocytic sarcoma Lymphoma malignant	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48 1 6

TABLE C2a

Individual Animal Tumor Path	hology of Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride: 450 ppm
Number of Days on Study	1 3 6 6 7
Carcass ID Number	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Alimentary System	
Esophagus Gallbladder Intestine large, colon	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Intestine large, rectum Intestine large, cecum Intestine small, duodenum Intestine small, jejunum Intestine small, ileum	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Liver Hepatocellular carcinoma Hepatocellular adenoma Histiocytic sarcoma	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
Pancreas Salivary glands Stomach, forestomach Squamous cell papilloma	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
Stomach, glandular Tongue	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
Cardiovascular System Blood vessel	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
Endocrine System Adrenal cortex Subcapsular, adenoma Adrenal medulla	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + M + + + + +
Islets, pancreatic Adenoma Parathyroid gland	A + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
Pituitary gland Thyroid gland	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
General Body System None	
Genital System Clitoral gland Ovary Uterus	A M + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + M + M +
Vagina	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +

TABLE C2a

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	gy of Fei	na	le N	Aic	e ii	n th	le 2	2-Y	ear	ſF	eed	St	udy	y of	f M	ala	ich	ite	G	ree	en (Chlo	ride:	450 pp	m
Number of Days on Study	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 ⁷ 2 2 7 ⁷	7 ^ 2 1 7 ^	7 7 2 2 7 7	7 2 2 7 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7			
Carcass ID Number	1 3 3	1 3 4	1 3 5	1 3 6	1 3 7	1 3 8	1 6 4	1 6 5	1 6 6	1 1 6 0 7 8	1 1 6 6 8 9	1 5 7 9 0	1 7 1	1 7 2	1 7 3	1 7 4	2 0 0	2 0 1	2 0 2	2 0 3	2 0 4	2 0 5		T J	Total 'issues/ Fumors
Alimentary System																									
Esophagus Gallbladder Intestine large, colon	++++++	++++++	+ M +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ - + - + -	+ - + -	+ + + + + +	+ + + +	+ + +	++++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ M +	+ + M	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +			47 43 46
Intestine large, rectum Intestine large, cecum	++	++	++	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ ·	+ - + -	+ - + -	+ +	+ +	+++	++	++	+++	++	+++	++	++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ +			48 46 47
Intestine small, jejunum Intestine small, ileum	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	++++++	+ + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ · + · + ·	 + - + - + -	+ - + - + -	 + - + -	- + - + - +	+ + + +	+ + +	++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + +			47 47 46 48
Hepatocellular carcinoma Hepatocellular adenoma Histiocytic sarcoma							x							,					x		,				1 2 1
Pancreas Salivary glands Stomach, forestomach	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ - + - + -	+ - + - + -	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +			47 48 48
Squamous cell papilloma Stomach, glandular Tongue	+++	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ - + -	+ - + -	+ -	+ + + +	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	++	+ +	+ +	+ +			1 48 48
Cardiovascular System																									
Blood vessel Heart	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ -	+ -	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +			48 48
Endocrine System																									
Adrenal cortex Subcapsular, adenoma Adrenal medulla	++	++	++	++	+	+	+ +	+ ·	+ -	+ -	+ + +	+ + + +	+ M	++	++	++	++	++	++	+	++	+			47 1 46
Pheochromocytoma benign Islets, pancreatic Adenoma	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+ ·	+ -	+ -	+ -	+ +	+	+	+	X +	+	+	+	+	+	+			1 47 1
Parathyroid gland Pituitary gland Thyroid gland	+ + +	+ + +	M + +	+ + +	+ + +	+] +] +	M 1 M +	M + + +	+ - + - + -	+ - + - + -	+ + +	+ M + + + +	1 + + +	M + +	+ + +	+ I +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +			42 45 48
General Body System None																									
Genital System																									
Chtoral gland Ovary Uterus Vagina	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ · + · + ·	+ - + - + -	+ - + - + -	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ M + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + + +			44 45 48 48

TABLE C2a Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	y of Fe	ma	le I	Mie	ce i	in t	he	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	udy	y of	f M	[ala	acł	nite	G	ree	en (Ch	lor	ide:	450 p	pm
Number of Days on Study	1 6 1	3 1 8	6 2 6	6 3 3	6 7 3	7 0 4	7 2 3	7 2 7																			
Carcass ID Number	0 0 1	0 0 8	0 2 6	0 2 5	0 3 3	0 3 9	0 7 2	0 6 4	0 6 5	0 6 6	0 6 7	0 6 8	0 6 9	0 7 0	0 7 1	0 9 9	1 0 0	1 0 1	1 0 2	1 0 3	1 0 4	1 2 9	1 3 0	1 3 1	1 3 2		
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node	+ +	+++	+	+	+++	+	++++	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Histiocytic sarcoma Spleen	+ A A	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	++++	+ + +	+++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	++++	++++	+++	+ + +								
Hemangiosarcoma Histiocytic sarcoma Thymus Histiocytic sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	X +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Skin Hemangiosarcoma Sarcoma	+	M +	+ X +	+ X +	+++	+ + X	++	++	++	++	++	+++	+++	++	M +	+ X +	+ + X	++	++	++	++	++	+++	++	+ +		
Musculoskeletal System Bone Skeletal muscle	+ +	++	++	++	+++	+++	+++	+++	++	++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+ +		
Nervous System Brain Peripheral nerve Spinal cord	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +		
Respiratory System Lung Carcinoma, metastatic, mammary gland Histiocytic sarcoma	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Nose Trachea	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	X + +	+ +																				
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+++	++++	+++	++++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	++++	+++	++++	+++	+++	++++	++++		
Adenoma Zymbal's gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		

TABLE C2a

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fer	na	le N	Mic	e i	n tl	he	2-1	Yea	ır 1	Fee	ed S	Stu	ıdy	of	M	ala	ch	ite	G	ree	n (Chlo	ride:	450 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7		
Carcass ID Number	1 3 3	1 3 4	1 3 5	1 3 6	1 3 7	1 3 8	1 6 4	1 6 5	1 6 6	1 6 7	1 6 8	1 6 9	1 7 0	1 7 1	1 7 2	1 7 3	1 7 4	2 0 0	2 0 1	2 0 2	2 0 3	2 0 4	2 0 5		Total Tissues/ Tumors
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Histiocytic sarcoma Spleen Hemangiosarcoma Histiocytic sarcoma Thymus Histiocytic sarcoma	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + +	+ + X + X + X	+ + + +	+ + M +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + M	+ + + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + +		48 9 48 46 1 47 1 1 47 1
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Skin Hemangiosarcoma Sarcoma	+ +	+ +	+	+	+ +	+ +	+	+	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ X +	+	+	+ +	+	+	+ +		46 4 48 1 1
Musculoskeletal System Bone Skeletal muscle	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+ +	++++	+++	++++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	++++	+ +	+ +	+ +	++++	+++	+++	+++	++++		48 48
Nervous System Brain Peripheral nerve Spinal cord	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	+ + +	++++++	+ + +	+ + +	++++++	+ + +	+ + +	+++++	+++++	++++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+ + +		48 48 48
Respiratory System Lung Carcinoma, metastatic, mammary gland Histiocytic sarcoma Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Nose	+	++	+	+	+ +	+	+ X +	+	+	+	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	++	+	+++		48 1 1 1 48
Nose Trachea Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Adenoma Zymbal's gland	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + + +	++++++	+ + + + M	+ + + + +	+ + + X +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + X +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	++++++	+ + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + X +	+++++++	+ + + +	+ + + + +		48 48 48 48 48 3 47

2	1	A
4	4	υ

TABLE C2a

Individual Animal Tumor	Pathology of Fe	mal	e N	Aic	e i	n t	he	2-1	Yea	ar I	Fee	ed	Stu	ıdy	of	M	ala	ich	ite	G	ree	n (Ch	lor	ide:	450 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	1 6	3	6 2	6 3	6 7	7 0	7 2	7 2	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2	7 2	7 2 7	7 2	7 2	7 2	7 2 7	7 2	7 2	7 2 7	7 2 7	7 2		
	1	8	6	3	3	4	3	/	/	/	/	/	/	/	/	/	/	/	/	/	/	/	/	/	/		
Carcass ID Number	0 0 1	0 0 8	0 2 6	0 2 5	0 3 3	0 3 9	0 7 2	0 6 4	0 6 5	0 6 6	0 6 7	0 6 8	0 6 9	0 7 0	0 7 1	0 9 9	1 0 0	1 0 1	1 0 2	1 0 3	1 0 4	1 2 9	1 3 0	1 3 1	1 3 2		
Urinary System Kidney	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Histiocytic sarcoma Urinary bladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		
Histiocytic sarcoma Lymphoma malignant	Х	Х			х		X						х						х								

TABLE C2a Individual Animal Tu

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fer	na	le N	Mic	e i	n t	he	2-1	Yea	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	v of	f M	[ala	ach	ite	G	ree	en (Chloride:	450 ppm
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Number of Days on Study	2	2 7	2 7	2 7	2 7	2 7	2 7	2 7	2 7	2 7	2 7	2 7	2 7	2 7	2 7	2 7	2 7	2 7	7	2 7	7	2 7	2 7	
	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	2	2	2	2	2	2	Total
Carcass ID Number	3 3	3 4	3 5	3 6	3 7	3 8	6 4	6 5	6 6	6 7	6 8	6 9	7 0	7 1	7 2	7 3	7 4	0 0	0 1	0 2	0 3	0 4	0 5	Tissues/ Tumors
Urinary System																								
Kidney Histiocytic sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+_{\rm X}$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47 1
Urinary bladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Systemic Lesions																								10
Multiple organs Histiocytic sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48 1
Lymphoma malignant						Х				Х		Х		Х				Х	Х			Х		13

TABLE C2b

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology o	of Fema	ıle	Mi	ce i	in t	he	2-	Yea	ar I	Fee	d S	Stu	dy	of	Le	uc	om	al	acl	nite	e G	re	en:	0 ppm
	1	7	, 5	6	6	6	6	6	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7
Number of Days on Study	2	2	2 1	3	8	8	8	9	0	3	3	3	3	, 3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3
Camber of Days on Stady	2	5	; 8	9	2	2	8	5	0	2	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	4	4	4	4
					_	_			Ŭ	-	5	5	2		2	2	5	2	5	5				•
	0) () ()	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Carcass ID Number	0) 1	2	3	3	4	3	4	4	4	4	4	4	5	5	5	5	5	5	7	7	7	7
	3	, 7	5	9	0	3	0	9	1	7	5	6	8	9	0	1	2	3	4	5	5	6	, 7	8
Alimontory System																								
Esonhagus	+	+	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Collbladder	' -	_ ^	, ,			, ,	, +	- -	' +		- -	- -		- -	- -	' -			- -	+	+		+	+
	т 1	· A	ι A		+	A _	+	+	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	T L	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+	+	+	+ +	+	+
Intestine large		A	· -	-	- T	- -	- -	- -	+	- -	+	-	- -	T .	- -	- -	- -	+	- -	- -	-	- -	-	+
	т	A	. A		- -	- -	- -	+	A	+	- -	- -	- -	T .	-	- -	T	-	-	- -	-	-	- -	+
Intestine large, colon	+	A	ιA	. +	+	+	+	+	A	+	+	+	+ •	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, rectum	+	A	· +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small	+	A	۰ A	+	+	+	+	+	А	+	+	+	+	t	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
lieum, sarcoma, metastatic, ovary								X																
Intestine small, duodenum	+	· A	ь А	. +	+	M	+	+	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, ileum	+	· A	L A	. +	+	+	+	+	A	+	+	+	+ •	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, jejunum	+	· A	ь А	. +	+	+	+	+	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Liver	+	· +	· +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Hemangiosarcoma					•••					Х										•••				
Hepatocellular adenoma					Х															Х				
Histiocytic sarcoma									Х															
Mesentery																								
Pancreas	+	· A	r +	+	+	+	+	+	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Salivary glands	+	• +	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomach	+	• +	· A	. +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Forestomach, mast cell tumor, malignant																								
Stomach, forestomach	+	• +	· A	. +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomach, glandular	+	• +	·A	. M	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Tongue	+	• +	• +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	+	• +	- +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Heart	+	• +	• +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Endocrine System																								
Adranal gland		!			1	_L	<u>ـــ</u>	_L	1	м	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		_L	_L	<u>ـــ</u>	_L	+
Adranal gland cortex	т ,	т !		τ 	+ +	т "⊥		⊤ _⊥	⊤ ⊥	M	т +	+	- -	+	+	+	т +	+		-T		+ +	- -	+
Adronal gland, contex	+	+	· +	+	+	+	+	т ./	+	IVI M	т _	τ _	+ ·	т -	- r -L	τ _	+ +	- -	+	+	+	+	+	т _
Aurenar grand, meduna	+	· +	. +	- T	T	-	- -	- -			- -	+	-r -	T' 1		- - -	т _	-	-	- -	т М	т 	- -	т +
A demonstration	+	A	. +	+	+	+	+	+	А	+	+	+	+	Ť	+	+	+	+	+	+	IVI	+	+	т
Auchoma Derethymoid alamd									,		M	M												1
raramyrold gland Ditaitana alama	+	· +	· +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	11/1	11/1	+ ·	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	т
Pituitary gland	+	N	1 +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ V	t	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Pars distalis, adenoma				Х					,				Ă											
						-	1	-	-								_	-	-	-				
Thyroid gland	+	- +	- +	· +	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ		Ŧ	Ŧ	+	+	+	+	+	+	т	т	Ŧ	T	т	Ŧ	+	+

General Body System

None

+: Tissue examined microscopically

M: Missing tissue I: Insufficient tissue

X: Lesion present Blank: Not examined

A: Autolysis precludes examination

TABLE C2b Individual Anir

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fe	ma	le]	Mi	ce i	in t	the	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	udy	y of	f L	eu	cor	na	lac	hit	e C	Gree	en: 0 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 3 4																							
Carcass ID Number	0 7 9	1 0 8	1 0 9	1 1 0	1 1 1	1 1 2	1 1 3	1 1 4	1 3 8	1 3 9	1 4 0	1 4 1	1 4 2	1 4 3	1 4 4	1 4 5	1 4 6	1 7 4	1 7 5	1 7 6	1 7 7	1 7 8	1 7 9	Total Tissues/ Tumors
Alimentary System																								
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Gallbladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Intestine large cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
Intestine large colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Intestine small	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	40
Ileum sarcoma metastatic ovary					·			·		·		·		·		·			·			·		1
Intestine small duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
Intestine small jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Hemangiosarcoma		'						'					'		'	'				'			'	47
Hepatocellular adenoma Histiocytic sarcoma				Х																				3
Mesentery																				+				1
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	45
Salivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Stomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Forestomach mast cell tumor malignant																						x		1
Stomach forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Stomach glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	45
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	47
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Endocrine System																								
Adrenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Adrenal gland, cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Adrenal gland medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	45
Islets, pancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
Adenoma					х																			1
Parathyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	м	М	42
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	М	+	М	+	+	М	М	+	+	+	41
Pars distalis, adenoma																	x				-			3
Thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
Follicular cell, adenoma																								1

General Body System

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of	f Fema	le 1	Mi	ce i	n t	he	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	/ 01	fL	euc	con	nal	acl	hite	e G	re	en:	0 ppm
Number of Days on Study	1 2 2	2 2 5	5 1 8	6 3 9	6 8 2	6 8 2	6 8 8	6 9 5	7 0 0	7 3 2	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4						
Carcass ID Number	0 0 3	0 0 7	0 1 5	0 2 9	0 3 0	0 3 3	0 4 0	0 3 9	0 4 1	0 4 7	0 4 5	0 4 6	0 4 8	0 4 9	0 5 0	0 5 1	0 5 2	0 5 3	0 5 4	0 5 5	0 7 5	0 7 6	0 7 7	0 7 8
Genital System Clitoral gland Ovary Histiocytic sarcoma Sarcoma Teratoma benign Uterus Histiocytic sarcoma Leiomyoma Sarcoma stromal Vagina	+ + X +	A M A	+ + + +	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	+ + + X +	+ + X + X X M	+ + + + + X +	++++++	++++++	++++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	+++++++	++++++	+ + +
Mast cell tumor malignant Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Hemangiosarcoma Mast cell tumor malignant Lymph node Lumbar, histiocytic sarcoma Mandibular, histiocytic sarcoma Mandibular, mast cell tumor malignant Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Hemangiosarcoma Thymus	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	A + + A A	+ + + A M	+ X + + + + X +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + X X + A A +	+ + + + + + + X +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +
Mast cell tumor malignant Integumentary System Mammary gland Adenoacanthoma Carcinoma Skin Hemangioma Hemangiosarcoma Mast cell tumor malignant	+	A	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ X +	+ +	+ +	+ + X	+ +	+ X +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ + X	+ +	+ +	+ +
Musculoskeletal System Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle	+ + +	++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +

TABLE C2b Individual Anir

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	y of Fe	ma	le I	Mi	ce i	in t	the	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	eed	St	udy	y of	f L	eu	cor	nal	ac	hit	e C	Greei	n: 0 pp	m
Number of Days on Study	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4																			
Carcass ID Number	0 7 9	1 0 8	1 0 9	1 1 0	1 1 1	1 1 2	1 1 3	1 1 4	1 3 8	1 3 9	1 4 0	1 4 1	1 4 2	1 4 3	1 4 4	1 4 5	1 4 6	1 7 4	1 7 5	1 7 6	1 7 7	1 7 8	1 7 9		Total Tissues/ Tumors
Genital System Clitoral gland Ovary Histiocytic sarcoma Sarcoma	+ +	+++	+ +	+++	+++	++	+++	++	+++	++	+ +	M +	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+ +	+ +		45 46 1 1
Teratoma benign Uterus Histiocytic sarcoma Leiomyoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		2 46 1
Sarcoma stromal Vagina Mast cell tumor malignant	+	+	+	+	+	X +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+		2 45 1
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Hemangiosarcoma Mast cell tumor malignant Lymph node Lumbar, histiocytic sarcoma	+	++	++	++	++	+	+	++	++	++	+	+ +	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+ X +	+		46 1 1 47
Mandibular, histiocytic sarcoma Mandibular, mast cell tumor malignant Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Hemangiosarcoma Thymus Mast cell tumor malignant	+ M +	++++++	++++++	+ + + +	+ + +	++++++	+ + +	+++++	+ + + +	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + +	++++++	+ + + M	+ + + +	+ + + +	++++++	X + + + X	+++++++		1 47 44 45 2 43 1
Integumentary System Mammary gland Adenoacanthoma Carcinoma Skin Hemangioma Hemangiosarcoma Mast cell tumor malignant	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	++	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ + X	+ X +		46 2 1 46 1 1 1
Musculoskeletal System Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +		47 47 47

| Fema | le I | Mi | ce i | in t | he

 | 2-` | Ye | ar | Fee
 | ed

 | Stu | ıdy | ' of | ſL
 | euc
 | con | nal | lac | hit
 | e G | Fre | en: | 0 ppm
 | |
|------|--|--|--|---
--
--	---
--

--
---|--|--|--
--
--
--
--|--|--|---|---|--
--|---|---|
| 1 | 2 | 5 | 6 | 6 | 6

 | 6 | 6 | 7 | 7
 | 7

 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7
 | 7
 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7
 | 7 | 7 | 7 | 7
 | |
| 1 | 2 | 1 | 2 | 0 | 0

 | 0 | 0 | ^
^ | 2
 | 2

 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2
 | 2
 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2
 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 2
 | |
| 2 | 2 | 1 | 3 | ð | ð

 | ð | 9 | 0 | 3
 | 2

 | 2 | 2 | 3 | 2
 | 3
 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 3
 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3
 | |
| 2 | 3 | 8 | 9 | 2 | 2

 | 8 | С | 0 | 2
 | 3

 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3
 | 3
 | 3 | 3 | 3 | 3
 | 4 | 4 | 4 | 4
 | |
| 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0

 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0
 | 0

 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0
 | 0
 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0
 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0
 | |
| 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0

 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0
 | 0

 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0
 | 0
 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0
 | 0 | 0 | 0 | 0
 | |
| 0 | 0 | 1 | 2 | 3 | 3

 | 4 | 3 | 4 | 4
 | 4

 | 4 | 4 | 4 | 5
 | 5
 | 5 | 5 | 5 | 5
 | 1 | 7 | 7 | 7
 | |
| 3 | 7 | 5 | 9 | 0 | 3

 | 0 | 9 | 1 | 7
 | 5

 | 6 | 8 | 9 | 0
 | 1
 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5
 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8
 | |
| | | | | |

 | | | |
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | | | |
 | | | |
 | |
| + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | |
| | т
1 | т
1 | - T | т
1 | T

 | т
1 | т
1 | т
1 | T
 | т
1

 | т
1 | т
1 | T | т
1
 | -
-
 | т
1 | -
- | - T | т
1
 | T | т
1 | - T | +
 | |
| | -
- | -
- | - | - | -
-

 | - | - | -
- | -
-
 | -
-

 | - | -
- | T . | -
 | +
 | -
- | - | - | -
-
 | -
- | + | + | +
 | |
| + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | |
| + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | |
| + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | Μ
 | + | + | + | +
 | |
| + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | |
| + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | |
| | | | | |

 | | | |
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | | | |
 | | | |
 | |
| + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | -
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | - | +
 | |
| т | т | т | T | т | т

 | T
V | т | т | т
 | т

 | т | т | т | т
 | Ŧ
 | т | т | Ŧ | т
 | т | т | Ŧ | т
 | |
| | | | | |

 | л | | |
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | | | | v
 | | | |
 | |
| | | | | |

 | | | |
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | | | | λ
 | | | |
 | |
| | | | | |

 | | | ••• |
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | | | Х |
 | | | |
 | |
| | | | | |

 | | | Х |
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | | | |
 | | | |
 | |
| + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | |
| + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | |
| | | | | |

 | | | |
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | | | |
 | | | |
 | |
| + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | |
| + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | |
| | | | ' | ' | '

 | | x | | '
 | '

 | ' | | | '
 | '
 | ' | | ' |
 | | ' | ' |
 | |
| | | | | |

 | | 1 | |
 |

 | | | x |
 |
 | | | |
 | | | |
 | |
| ± | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | A
+ | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | |
| Ŧ | - | Ŧ | Ŧ | T | Ŧ

 | Ŧ | T | Ŧ | Ŧ
 | -

 | - | 7" | 77 | -
 | Ŧ
 | T | Ŧ | Ŧ | т
 | Ŧ | т | Ŧ | 17
 | |
| | | | | |

 | | | |
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | | | |
 | | | |
 | |
| | | | | |

 | | | |
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | | | |
 | | | |
 | |
| + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | |
| | | | | |

 | | | x |
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | | | |
 | | | |
 | |
| + | А | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | |
| | 17 | | | ' |

 | ' | ' | ' |
 | ·

 | ' | | |
 | '
 | | | ' | '
 | ' | ' | |
 | |
| | | | | |

 | | | |
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | | | |
 | | | |
 | |
| + | + | + | + | + | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +

 | + | + | + | +
 | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | + | + | + | +
 | |
| | | | | |

 | | | |
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | | | |
 | Х | | |
 | |
| | | | Х | |

 | | | | Х
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | | | |
 | | | |
 | |
| | х | | | |

 | | х | |
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | х | | |
 | х | | |
 | |
| | | | | |

 | | | |
 |

 | | | |
 |
 | 2 L | | |
 | 21 | | |
 | |
| | Fema 1 2 2 0 0 3 +++++ ++++++ ++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ | Female 1 1 2 2 2 2 5 0 0 0 0 3 7 + + + | Female Mid 1 2 5 2 2 1 2 5 8 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 7 5 + + + < | Female Mice i 1 2 5 6 2 2 1 3 2 5 8 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 3 7 5 9 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + | Female Mice in t 1 2 5 6 6 2 2 1 3 8 2 5 8 9 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 3 7 5 9 0 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + <t< td=""><td>Female Mice in the 1 2 5 6 6 6 2 2 1 3 8 8 2 5 8 9 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +<</td><td>Female Mice in the 2- 1 2 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 0</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Ye 1 2 5 6 0 1</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year 1 2 5 6 6 6 6 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 9 0 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 3 4 3 4 3 7 5 9 0 3 0 9 1 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +<td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Fee 1 2 5 6 6 6 6 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 9 0 3 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 5 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 3 4 3 4 4 3 7 5 9 0 3 0 9 1 7 + <t< td=""><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed 1 2 5 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 9 0 3 3 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 5 0 2 3 0</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Stu 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 9 0 3 3 3 0 1 7 5 6 0 1 7 7 7 7</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 9 0 3 3 3 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 5 0 2 3
 3 0 3</td></t<><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 9 0 3<td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of L 1 2 5 6 6 6 7<td>Feed Study of Leux 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucon 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 <</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomal 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Fermale Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalac 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachit 1 2 5 6 6 6 7<!--</td--><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachite C 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Gree 1 2 5 6 6 6 7<td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 1 2 5 6 6 6 7
7 <t< td=""><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 ppm 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td></t<></td></td></td></td></td></td></td></t<> | Female Mice in the 1 2 5 6 6 6 2 2 1 3 8 8 2 5 8 9 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +< | Female Mice in the 2- 1 2 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 0 | Female Mice in the 2-Ye 1 2 5 6 0 1 | Female Mice in the 2-Year 1 2 5 6 6 6 6 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 9 0 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 3 4 3 4 3 7 5 9 0 3 0 9 1 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + <td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Fee 1 2 5 6 6 6 6 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 9 0 3 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 5 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 3 4 3 4 4 3 7 5 9 0 3 0 9 1 7 + <t< td=""><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed 1 2 5 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 9 0 3 3 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 5 0 2 3 0</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Stu 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 9 0 3 3 3 0 1 7 5 6 0 1 7 7 7 7</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 9 0 3 3 3 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 5 0 2 3 3 0 3</td></t<><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 9 0 3<td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of L 1 2 5 6 6 6 7
 7 7<td>Feed Study of Leux 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucon 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 <</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomal 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Fermale Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalac 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachit 1 2 5 6 6 6 7<!--</td--><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachite C 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Gree 1 2 5 6 6 6 7<td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 <t< td=""><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 ppm 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td></t<></td></td></td></td></td></td> | Female Mice in the 2-Year Fee 1 2 5 6 6 6 6 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 9 0 3 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 5 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 3 4 3 4 4 3 7 5 9 0 3 0 9 1 7 + + + + + +
 + <t< td=""><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed 1 2 5 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 9 0 3 3 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 5 0 2 3 0</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Stu 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 9 0 3 3 3 0 1 7 5 6 0 1 7 7 7 7</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 9 0 3 3 3 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 5 0 2 3 3 0 3</td></t<> <td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 9 0 3<td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of L 1 2 5 6 6 6 7<td>Feed Study of Leux 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucon 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 <</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomal 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Fermale Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalac 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachit 1 2 5 6 6 6 7<!--</td--><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachite C 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
 7 7</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Gree 1 2 5 6 6 6 7<td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 <t< td=""><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 ppm 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td></t<></td></td></td></td></td> | Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed 1 2 5 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 9 0 3 3 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 5 0 2 3 0 | Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Stu 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 8 9 0 3 3 3 0 1 7 5 6 0 1 7 7 7 7 | Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 9 0 3 3 3 2 5 8 9 2 2 8 5 0 2 3 3 0 3 | Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 2 2 1 3 8 8 9 0 3 <td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of L 1 2 5 6 6 6 7<td>Feed Study of Leux 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucon 1 2 5 6 6 6 7
 7 <</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomal 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Fermale Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalac 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachit 1 2 5 6 6 6 7<!--</td--><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachite C 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Gree 1 2 5 6 6 6 7<td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 <t< td=""><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 ppm 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td></t<></td></td></td></td> | Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of L 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 <td>Feed Study of Leux 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td> <td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucon 1 2 5 6 6 6 7
 7 7 7 7 <</td> <td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomal 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td> <td>Fermale Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalac 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td> <td>Feed Study of Leucomalachit 1 2 5 6 6 6 7<!--</td--><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachite C 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td><td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Gree 1 2 5 6 6 6 7<td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 <t< td=""><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 ppm 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td></t<></td></td></td> | Feed Study of Leux 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 | Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucon 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 < | Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomal 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 | Fermale Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalac 1 2 5 6 6 6 7
7 7 | Feed Study of Leucomalachit 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 </td <td>Feed Study of Leucomalachite C 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td> <td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Gree 1 2 5 6 6 6 7<td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 <t< td=""><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 ppm 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td></t<></td></td> | Feed Study of Leucomalachite C 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 | Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Gree 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 <td>Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 <t< td=""><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 ppm 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td></t<></td> | Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 1 2 5 6 6 6 7
7 7 <t< td=""><td>Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 ppm 1 2 5 6 6 6 7</td></t<> | Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 0 ppm 1 2 5 6 6 6 7 |

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fei	na	le I	Mie	ce i	in t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	udy	/ 0 1	fL	euc	on	nal	ac	hit	e C	Gree	en: 0 pp	m
Number of Days on Study	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4																
Carcass ID Number	0 7 9	1 0 8	1 0 9	1 1 0	1 1 1	1 1 2	1 1 3	1 1 4	1 3 8	1 3 9	1 4 0	1 4 1	1 4 2	1 4 3	1 4 4	1 4 5	1 4 6	1 7 4	1 7 5	1 7 6	1 7 7	1 7 8	1 7 9		Total Tissues/ Tumors
Nervous System																									
Brain	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Brain, brain stem	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Brain, cerebellum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		4/
Brain, cerebrum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		4/
Sering and	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		40
Spinal cord, thoracic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47 47
Respiratory System																									
Lung	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Adenoacanthoma, metastatic, mammary gland																								Х	2
Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma												Х							Х						3
Alveolar/bronchiolar carcinoma									Х																2
Histiocytic sarcoma																									1
Nose	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		4/
Special Senses System																									-
Eye	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Harderian gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		4/
Adenocarcinoma																					v				1
Zymbal's gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	л +	+	+		47
Mast cell tumor malignant	I												'		,				1			x			1
Urinary System																									
Kidney	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Histiocytic sarcoma																									1
Urinary bladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		46
Systemic Lesions			_	_	_									_					_	_			_		
Multiple organs	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47
Hemangioma																									1
Hemangiosarcoma		37						37																	2
Lympnoma mangnant		Х						А																	6

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of	f Fei	na	le I	Mic	ce i	n t	he	2-	Yea	ar	Fee	ed (Stu	ıdy	of	L	euc	on	nal	acl	nite	e G	re	en:	91 ppm
	4	5	6	6	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7
Number of Days on Study	9	9	7	9	0	0	2	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3
	8	0	5	0	8	9	9	3	3	3	3	3	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4
~ ~ ~ ~ ~	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	1
Carcass ID Number	1	2	3	3	3	3	7	5	5	5	5	6	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	9	0	1	1
	6	4	1	4	6	7	3	6	7	8	9	0	0	1	2	3	4	5	7	8	9	0	4	5	6
Alimentary System																									
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Gallbladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Ń	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large cacum	+	+	+	+	+	+	Δ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine large, cecum	- -	Å	+	+		, +	л 	- -	- -	+		+	- -	+	- -	- -	+		+	+		- -		+	- -
Intestine large, colon	- T	A	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	- -	- T	т 1	T	т 1	- -	т 1
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small	+	+	+	+	+	+	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	т
Intestine small, duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Intestine small, jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Hemangiosarcoma							Х																		
Hepatocellular adenoma	Х													Х											Х
Histiocytic sarcoma				Х																					
Mesentery					+							+													
Pancreas	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+
Sarcoma, metastatic, skeletal muscle									Х																
Salivary glands	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+
Stomach	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+
Forestomach, squamous cell papilloma							Х																Х		
Glandular, sarcoma, metastatic, skeletal muscle									Х																
Stomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Stomach, glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Condiavageation System																									
Caruiovascular System													,	,		,									
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Endocrine System																									
Adrenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Adrenal gland cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Adrenal gland, medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Islets papereatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Parathyroid gland	 	+	М	+	+	+	м	+	+	+	+	+	+	м	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Pituitary gland	+	+	1VI +	+	T +	+	1VI +	+	+	+	+	+	г +	1VI +	+	г +	+	г +	+	+	+	т +	+	+	+
Thuraid gland	۳ ر		т _	т _	т 	г -	г т	г -	+ +	+ +	т 	г +	г 	г -	г -	г -	۔ ب	г т	т 	- -	T 1	т Т	-	т 	· -
Fallioular call adaptors	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Ŧ	+	Ŧ	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	т
Fomcular cell, adenoma																									

General Body System

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of	Fer	na	le I	Mic	e i	n t	he	2-`	Yea	ar	Fe	ed a	Stu	ıdy	^v of		euc	on	nal	acl	nite	e G	reen	1: 91 ppm
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Number of Days on Study	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	
	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	
	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Total
Carcass ID Number	1	1	1	2	3	4	4	4	5	5	5	5	5	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	Tissues/
	7	8	9	0	1	7	8	9	0	1	2	3	4	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	Tumors
Alimentary System																								
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Gallbladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	47
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	47
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	48
Intestine small	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	47
Intestine small, duodenum	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	47
Intestine small, ileum	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	47
Intestine small, jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	47
Liver	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	48
Hemangiosarcoma																								1
Hepatocellular adenoma							Х									Х			Х					6
Histiocytic sarcoma																								1
Mesentery																								2
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	48
Sarcoma, metastatic, skeletal muscle																								1
Salivary glands	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	48
Stomach	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	48
Forestomach, squamous cell papilloma Glandular, sarcoma, metastatic, skeletal muscle																								2
Stomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	48
Stomach, glandular	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	48
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Endocrine System																								
Adrenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	18
Adrenal gland cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Adrenal gland, medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	48
Islets nancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	40
Parathyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	м	+	м	м	+	+	+	+	+	+	40
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	+	м	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	м	+	M	+	+	+	+	+	+	42
Thyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
Follicular cell, adenoma							1									x	'							1

General Body System

230	

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fe	ma	le I	Mic	e i	n t	he	2-	Yea	ar 1	Fee	ed (Stu	ıdy	' of	Ľ	euc	con	ıal	acł	iite	: G	ree	en:	91	ppm	
Number of Days on Study	4 9 8	5 9 0	6 7 5	6 9 0	7 0 8	7 0 9	7 2 9	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 4	7 3 4													
Carcass ID Number	0 1 6	0 2 4	0 3 1	0 3 4	0 3 6	0 3 7	1 7 3	0 5 6	0 5 7	0 5 8	0 5 9	0 6 0	0 8 0	0 8 1	0 8 2	0 8 3	0 8 4	0 8 5	0 8 7	0 8 8	0 8 9	0 9 0	1 0 4	1 1 5	1 1 6		
Genital System Clitoral gland Ovary Uterus Hemangioma Histiocytic sarcoma Leiomyoma Vagina	M + +	++++	+ + + +	+ + X M	+ + + +	+ + + +	++++++	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	++++++	+ + + +	+ + X +	+ + + +		
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Mesenteric, histiocytic sarcoma Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + X + + + +	+ + + + + M	+ + + + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + M	+ + + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + M + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + +		
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Skin Fibrous histiocytoma Mast cell tumor benign Sarcoma	+ +	++	++	++	+ + X	+ +	++	+ +	++	++	++	+	++	+	+ +	++	++	++	++	++	+ +	+++	+++	+ +	+ +		
Musculoskeletal System Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle Sarcoma	+ + +	+++++	++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + X	+++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	+++++	+ + +		
Nervous System Brain Brain, brain stem Brain, cerebellum Brain, cerebrum Peripheral nerve Spinal cord Spinal cord, thoracic	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +		

Individual Animal Tumor Patholo	ogy of Fe	ma	le l	Mi	ce i	n t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	ıdy	/ of	f L	euc	con	ıal	ac	hit	e G	Gree	n: 91 ppm	1
Number of Days on Study	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4		
Carcass ID Number	1 1 7	1 1 8	1 1 9	1 2 0	1 3 1	1 4 7	1 4 8	1 4 9	1 5 0	1 5 1	1 5 2	1 5 3	1 5 4	1 8 0	1 8 1	1 8 2	1 8 3	1 8 4	1 8 5	1 8 6	1 8 7	1 8 8	1 8 9		Total Tissues Tumors
Genital System Clitoral gland Ovary Uterus Hemangioma Histiocytic sarcoma Leiomyoma Vagina	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	+ + + +	++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + + X +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + + +	+++++	+++++	M + +		46 48 48 1 1 1 47
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Lymph node Mesenteric, histiocytic sarcoma Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + m	+ + + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +		48 48 1 47 48 48 45
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Skin Fibrous histiocytoma Mast cell tumor benign Sarcoma	+ +	++	++	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	+ + X	+++	+ X +	++	+++	++	++	+++	++	+ +	+ + X	++	++	+++	+ +		48 1 48 1 1
Musculoskeletal System Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle Sarcoma	+ + +	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	++++++		48 48 48 1
Nervous System Brain Brain, brain stem Brain, cerebellum Brain, cerebrum Peripheral nerve Spinal cord Spinal cord, thoracic	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + M + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +		48 48 48 48 47 48 48

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fe	ma	le I	Mie	ce i	in t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	udy	y of	f L	eu	con	nal	ac	hit	e G	Fre	en	91	l ppm
Number of Days on Study	4 9 8	5 9 0	6 7 5	6 9 0	7 0 8	7 0 9	7 2 9	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 4													
Carcass ID Number	0 1 6	0 2 4	0 3 1	0 3 4	0 3 6	0 3 7	1 7 3	0 5 6	0 5 7	0 5 8	0 5 9	0 6 0	0 8 0	0 8 1	0 8 2	0 8 3	0 8 4	0 8 5	0 8 7	0 8 8	0 8 9	0 9 0	1 0 4	1 1 5	1 1 6	
Respiratory System																										
Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Histiocytic sarcoma	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Sarcoma, metastatic, skeletal muscle									Х																	
Nose Trachea	+	+ +	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+	+	+ +	+ +	
Special Senses System																										
Eye	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Harderian gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ v	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Zymbal's gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Urinary System																										
Kidney	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Urinary bladder Histiocytic sarcoma	+	+	+	$^+$ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Systemic Lesions																										
Multiple organs	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Hemangiosarcoma Lymphoma malignant							Х			X				X							X					

TABLE C2b Individual Animal Tu

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fe	na	le I	Mic	e i	n t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fee	ed	Stu	ıdy	v of	ſL	euc	con	nal	acl	hite	e G	reen	: 91 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4																					
Carcass ID Number	1 1 7	1 1 8	1 1 9	1 2 0	1 3 1	1 4 7	1 4 8	1 4 9	1 5 0	1 5 1	1 5 2	1 5 3	1 5 4	1 8 0	1 8 1	1 8 2	1 8 3	1 8 4	1 8 5	1 8 6	1 8 7	1 8 8	1 8 9		Total Tissues Tumors
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Histiocytic sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		48 1 1
Sarcoma, metastatic, skeletal muscle Nose Trachea	+++	+ +	+++	+++	+ +	+++	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +		1 48 48													
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Adenoma Zymbal's gland	+++++++	++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+ + M	++++	+++++	+ + X +	+++++	+++++	+ + +		48 48 2 47
Urinary System Kidney Urinary bladder Histiocytic sarcoma	+ +	+++	++	+++	+ +	+++	+++	+ +	+++	+++	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+ +	+++	+++	++	+++	+ +		48 48 1
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Hemangiosarcoma Lymphoma malignant	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+		48 1 5

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	y of Fe	ma	le I	viic	e I	nτ	ne	2-	Yea	ar .	Fee	ed S	Stu	ay	10		euc	con	nai	ac	nite	e G	re	en:	204 ppm
	1	Δ	6	6	6	6	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Number of Days on Study	0	4	2	2	7	9	0	1	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	
rumor of Duys on Study	3	8	0	7	, 5	ó	0	4	3	3	3	3	2	3	3	3	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	
	5	0	0	/	5	0	0	т	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	7	-	т 	-	-	7	-	т	
	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	
Carcass ID Number	0	1	2	2	3	3	3	0	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
	6	4	6	8	2	5	8	7	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	1	2	3	4	6	8	5	6	
Alimentary System																									
Esophagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Gallbladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Intestine large, cecum	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	М	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Intestine large, rectum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Intestine small	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Intestine small. duodenum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Intestine small, ileum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Intestine small jejunum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Liver	- -	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Henatocellular carcinoma	т	1.	1.			1	1		v	1	1	1	1	'	'	1	'		1			1-	1.	'	
Hopatocollular adoption									л			\mathbf{v}				v									
nepatocellular adenoma												Л				л									
Hepatocellular adenoma, two																									
Mesentery																									
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Salivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Stomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Forestomach, squamous cell carcinoma																									
Forestomach, squamous cell papilloma														Х											
Stomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	
Stomach, glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Condition of the fourth of																									
Carolovascular System																									
Blood vessel	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Endocrine System																_				_		_			
Adronal gland		-	1	+	-	+	-	-	+	+	+	+	+	-	+	-	+	-	-	+	+	+	4	+	
Adrenal gland contex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	т	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Adrenal gland, medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Islets, pancreatic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Parathyroid gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	+	
Pituitary gland	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Pars distalis, adenoma																									
	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Thyroid gland																									

General Body System

														-										
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	
Number of Days on Study	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	
	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	
	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	
Caroass ID Number	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Tissues
Carcass ID Mulliber	2	3	4	5	6	2 7	8	5	6	7	8	9	0	1	9 0	1	2	3	9 4	5	9 6	9 7	8	Tumors
Alimontary System																								
Fsonhagus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Gallbladder	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Ń	+	+	+	+	+	Ń	44
Intestine large	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Intestine large cecum	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	M	+	+	+	47
Intestine large, colon	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	40
Intestine large, colon	, -	+	+	+	+	+		+					- -	+	- -		- -			+		- -		40
Intestine raige, rectuin	+ +	+	+ +	+ +	+	+	- -	+	+	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	+	+ +	- -	+	+	+ +	+ +	т _	47
Intestine small due denum	+	т 1	- T	- T	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	- -	т 1	- -	т 1	т 1	т 1	т	47							
Intestine small, duodenum	+ +	+	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	- -	+	+	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	+	+ +	- -	+	+	+ +	+ +	т _	47
Intestine small, neum		-	-	- -	-	- -	- -	-	-	- -	- -	- -	- -	- -	-	-	-	-	-	-	- -	+	- -	4/
Lizza	+	-	- -	- -	- -	- -	- -	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	- -	+	+	4/
Liver	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4/
Hepatocenular carcinoma				v										v										1
Hepatocellular adenoma				Х										Х										4
Hepatocellular adenoma, two										Х														l
Mesentery																				+				I
Pancreas	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Salivary glands	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Stomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Forestomach, squamous cell carcinoma																				Х				1
Forestomach, squamous cell papilloma																								1
Stomach, forestomach	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Stomach, glandular	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Tongue	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Cardiovascular System																								
Blood vessel	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	46
Heart	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Endocrine System																								
Adrenal gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Adrenal gland cortex	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Adrenal gland, medulla	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Islets paperentic	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Parathyroid gland	+	+	+	+	Ń	+	+	+	+	+	+	м	+	Ń	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
Dituitary gland	, -	+	+	+	111	+		+				111	- -	1V1	- -		- -		+	+	м	- -		41
Pars distalis adenoma	1			v		'											'				IVI			1
Thuroid aland	+	+	+	л +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	1
Follicular cell, adenoma	+	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ť	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	-	Ŧ	Ŧ	T	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	т	т	47

TABLE C2b

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of	Femal	le N	Aic	e ir	ı th	le 2	-Ye	ear	Fee	ed S	Stu	ıdy	' of	Ľ	euc	on	nal	acł	iite	G	ree	en:	204 ppm
Number of Days on Study	1 9 3	4 9 8	6 2 0	6 2 7	6 7 5	67 90 00	77) 1) 4	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4
Carcass ID Number	0 0 6	0 1 4	0 2 6	0 2 8	0 3 2	0 0 3 3 5 8) 1 5 0 3 7	0 6 1	0 6 2	0 6 3	0 6 4	0 6 5	0 6 6	0 6 7	0 6 8	0 9 1	0 9 2	0 9 3	0 9 4	0 9 6	0 9 8	1 0 5	1 0 6
Genital System Clitoral gland Ovary Choriocarcinoma Cystadenocarcinoma Uterus Hemangiosarcoma Vagina	+ + X +	M + +	+ + +	+++++++	+ + + +	+ + + + X + +	- + - + - +	· + · + · +	++++++	++++++	++++++	+++++++	+ + + +	+ + + +	++++++	+ + + +	++++++	+++++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	++++++	+ + +
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Hemangiosarcoma Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + 1	+ + + + + + + + M +	- + - + - + - +	· + · + · + · +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + M + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +
Integumentary System Mammary gland Adenoacanthoma Carcinoma Carcinoma, two Skin Tail, hemangioma	+	+ X +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	- +	· +	+++	++	+	++	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+ X +	++	+++	+ + X	+ +
Musculoskeletal System Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle	+++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	+ + + +	+ + + + + +	- + - +	+ + + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	+ + +
Nervous System Brain Brain, brain stem Brain, cerebellum Brain, cerebrum Peripheral nerve Spinal cord Spinal cord, thoracic	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	- + - + - + - + - +	· + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +

TABLE C2b Individual Anir

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	y of Fe	ma	le I	Mie	ce i	n t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Sti	udy	y o	f L	.eu	coi	na	lac	hit	te (Gree	n: 204 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4		
Carcass ID Number	1 2 2	1 2 3	1 2 4	1 2 5	1 2 6	1 2 7	1 2 8	1 5 5	1 5 6	1 5 7	1 5 8	1 5 9	1 6 0	1 6 1	1 9 0	1 9 1	1 9 2	1 9 3	1 9 4	1 9 5	1 9 6	1 9 7	1 9 8	To Tissu Tum	otal .1es/ 10rs
Genital System Clitoral gland Ovary Choriocarcinoma Cystadenocarcinoma	+ +	++	+ +	+++	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	M +	+++	+ +	+++	M +	+ +		44 47 1 1
Uterus Hemangiosarcoma Vagina	++	++	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	++	+	+	+	+	+	++	+ X +	+	+	+	+		47 1 47
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Hemangiosarcoma Lymph node Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + M +	+ + + + + + +	+ X + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + M		47 1 47 47 45 47 45
Integumentary System Mammary gland Adenoacanthoma Carcinoma Carcinoma, two Skin Tail, hemangioma	+ X +	++	++	++	+++	++	+	+	++	++	+	+++	++	+	++	++	++	++	++	++	++	+++	+		47 1 1 45 1
Musculoskeletal System Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle	++++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	++++	+ + +		47 47 47
Nervous System Brain Brain, brain stem Brain, cerebellum Brain, cerebrum Peripheral nerve Spinal cord Spinal cord, thoracic	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +		47 47 47 47 47 47 47 47

TABLE	C ₂ b
IADLL	~~~

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of I	Femal	e I	Aic	e i	n t	he	2-	Yea	ar	Fee	ed	Stu	ıdy	of		euc	on	ıal	acl	ite	e G	re	en:	204 ppm
Number of Days on Study	1 9 3	4 9 8	6 2 0	6 2 7	6 7 5	6 9 0	7 0 0	7 1 4	7 3 3	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4							
Carcass ID Number	0 0 6	0 1 4	0 2 6	0 2 8	0 3 2	0 3 5	0 3 8	1 0 7	0 6 1	0 6 2	0 6 3	0 6 4	0 6 5	0 6 6	0 6 7	0 6 8	0 9 1	0 9 2	0 9 3	0 9 4	0 9 6	0 9 8	1 0 5	1 0 6
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Nose Trachea	+ + +	+ X + +	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ X + +	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++	++++	+ + +
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Adenoma Zymbal's gland	+ + +	++++++	++++++	++++++	+ + X +	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++	+++++	++++++	+++++	++++++	+ + M	++++++	+ + +	++++++	++++++	+++++++	+ + X +	+ + X +	+++++	+++++	+++++
Urinary System Kidney Urinary bladder	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++++	+ +	++++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	++++	+ +	+++	+++	++++
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Hemangioma Hemangiosarcoma Lymphoma malignant	+	+	+ X	+ X	+ X	+	+ X	+ X	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+ X	+ X

TABLE C2b Individual Animal Tumor Pathol	ogy of Fe	na	le I	Mic	ce i	n t	he	2-1	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	ıdy	[,] of	Ĺ	euc	on	ıal	ac	hite	e G	ree	n: 204 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4									
Carcass ID Number	1 2 2	1 2 3	1 2 4	1 2 5	1 2 6	1 2 7	1 2 8	1 5 5	1 5 6	1 5 7	1 5 8	1 5 9	1 6 0	1 6 1	1 9 0	1 9 1	1 9 2	1 9 3	1 9 4	1 9 5	1 9 6	1 9 7	1 9 8	Tis: Tu:	Total sues/ mors
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Nose Trachea	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++		47 2 47 47
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Adenoma Zymbal's gland	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	+++++++	+ + X +	++++++	+++++	++++++	+++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	++++++	+++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++++		47 47 4 46
Urinary System Kidney Urinary bladder	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	++++		47 47
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Hemangioma Hemangiosarcoma Lymphoma malignant	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+ X	+	+	+		47 1 1 12

4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4		$5 \\ 5 \\ 3 \\ 0 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ + A \\ + \\ + A \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ +$	5 8 4 0 2 5 + + + M A + +	$ \begin{array}{c} 6 \\ 4 \\ 7 \\ 0 \\ 2 \\ 7 \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ +$	7 1 8 0 4 2 +++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	7 1 8 1 3 7 + + + + + + +	7 2 3 0 4 4 + + + + A +	7 2 4 0 4 3 + + + + +	$7 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 0 \\ 6 \\ 9 \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ +$	$7 \\ 3 \\ 3 \\ 0 \\ 7 \\ 0 \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ +$	7 3 3 0 7 1 ++++++++	7 3 3 0 7 2 ++++++	7 3 3 0 7 3 +++++	$ \begin{array}{r} 7 \\ 3 \\ 4 \end{array} $ $ \begin{array}{r} 0 \\ 9 \\ 9 \end{array} $ $ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	$7 \\ 3 \\ 4$ 1 0 0 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	7 3 4 1 0 1 + +	7 3 4 1 0 2 + +	$7 \\ 3 \\ 4 \\ 1 \\ 0 \\ 3 \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ +$	7 3 4 1 2 9 + + +	7 3 4 1 3 0 + + +	7 3 4 1 3 1 + + +	7 3 4 1 3 2 + +	7 3 4 1 3 3 + +	7 3 4 1 3 4 + +	
4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4		5 3 0 2 3 + A + + + A + + + + + + + + + + + + +	8 4 0 2 5 + + + M A + +	$ \begin{array}{c} 4 \\ 7 \\ 0 \\ 2 \\ 7 \\ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +$	$ \begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 8 \\ 0 \\ 4 \\ 2 \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ \end{array} $	$1 \\ 8 \\ 1 \\ 3 \\ 7 \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ +$	2 3 0 4 4 + + + A +	2 4 0 4 3 + + + + + +	$3 \\ 3 \\ 0 \\ 6 \\ 9 \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ +$	$3 \\ 3 \\ 0 \\ 7 \\ 0 \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ +$	3 3 0 7 1 + + + +	3 3 0 7 2 + + + +	3 3 0 7 3 ++++++	$ \begin{array}{c} 3 \\ 4 \end{array} $ $ 0 \\ 9 \\ 9 \\ + \\ + \\ + \end{array} $	$3 \\ 4 \\ 1 \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ +$	3 4 1 0 1 + +	3 4 1 0 2 + +	$3 \\ 4 \\ 1 \\ 0 \\ 3 \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ +$	3 4 1 2 9 + + + +	$3 \\ 4 \\ 1 \\ 3 \\ 0 \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ +$	3 4 1 3 1 + + +	3 4 1 3 2 + +	3 4 1 3 3 + +	3 4 1 3 4 + +	
4 00 1 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4		$ \begin{array}{c} 3 \\ 0 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ + \\ A \\ + \\ $	4 0 2 5 + + + + + M A + +	7 0 2 7 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	8 0 4 2 + + + + + + + + +	8 1 3 7 + + + + + + + +	3 0 4 4 + + + + A +	4 0 4 3 +++++++	3 0 6 9 + + + + +	3 0 7 0 + + + + +	3 0 7 1 + + + +	3 0 7 2 + + + +	3 0 7 3 + + + +	4 0 9 9 +++++	4 1 0 0 + + +	4 1 0 1 + +	4 1 0 2 + +	4 1 0 3 + + +	4 1 2 9 + + +	4 1 3 0 + + + +	4 1 3 1 + + + + +	4 1 3 2 + +	4 1 3 3 + + +	4 1 3 4 + +	
0 1 2 + + + A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A		$ \begin{array}{c} 0 \\ 2 \\ 3 \end{array} $ + A + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	0 2 5 + + + + A + + +	0 2 7 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	0 4 2 + + + + + + + + +	1 3 7 + + + + + + + +	0 4 4 + + + A +	0 4 3 + + + + +	0 6 9 + + + + + +	0 7 0 + + + +	0 7 1 + + +	0 7 2 + +	0 7 3 + + +	0 9 9 +++++	1 0 + +	1 0 1 +	1 0 2 + +	1 0 3 + + +	1 9 + + +	1 3 0 + + +	1 3 1 + +	1 3 2 + +	1 3 3 +	1 3 4 + +	
1 2 ++ + A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A		$2 \\ 3 \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ + \\ +$	2 5 + + + + M A + +	2 7 + + + + + + + + +	4 2 + + + + + + + + + +	3 7 + + + + + + +	4 4 + + + + A +	4 3 + + + + +	6 9 + + + +	7 0 + + + +	7 1 + + +	7 2 + +	7 3 + + +	9 9 + + +	0 0 + + +	0 1 + +	0 2 + +	0 3 + + +	2 9 + + +	3 0 + + +	3 1 + + +	3 2 + +	3 3 + +	3 4 + +	
+ + A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A		$\frac{1}{3}$ + A + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + M A + +		2 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	7 + + + + + +	4 + + + + A +	3 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	9 + + + +	0 + + + + +	1 + + +	2 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	3 + + +	9 + + +	0 + + +	1 + +	2 + +	3 + + +	9 + + +	0 + + +	1 + + +	2 + +	3 + +	4 + +	
+ + A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A		+ A + + A + + + +	+ + + M A + +	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + A +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + +	+++++++	+++++++	+++++	+++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++	+++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	++	+++	+++++	
+ + A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A		+ A + + A + + + +	+ + M A + +	+ + + + + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + A +	+ + + +	+ + +	+++++++	+++++++	++++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ +	+ +	+ + +	+ + +	++++++	+ + +	+ +	++	+ +	
A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	-	A + + A + + + + +	+ + M A + +	+ + + + + + + + + +	+ + + + + +	+ + + + +	+ + A +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+	+ +	+ +	+++	+++	+	+	+	
A A A A A A A A A A A A A A		A + + + A + + + A	+ M A + +	+ + + + + + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ A +	+ +	+ +	++++	+	+	+	+	+			+	+	+	+				
A A A A A A A A +		+ + + + +	M A + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + +	A +	+	+	+	, +					+	+			-		+	+	+	
A A A A A A A +		A + + +	A + +	+ + +	+ +	+	+					+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
A A A A A A A +	\ \ \ \	A + + + +	A + +	+ +	+	+	Ŧ			÷	T	T I	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	T	T	т 1	
A A A A A +	\ \ \ \	+++	+	+	Ŧ			т 1	T	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	т 1	T	T	т 1	
A A A +	\ \ \	++	+	+		т	T .	-	-	-	-	+	- -	-	-	-	- -	-	-	- -	-	- -	-	- -	
A A A +	1	+			+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
A A +	1	+	٦.4			,			,	,									,				<u>л</u>		
A A +	\ \ -	~	M	+	+	+	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
A +	-	A	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
+	-	+	Α	+	+	+	Α	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
		+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
											Х								Х						
														Х											
Х	C	Х																							
															+										
А	١	А	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	
								Х																	
+	-	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	
А	ſ	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	
											Х														
								Х																	
А	1	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
А	`	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
+	-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
N	л	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
IV.	-	+	r +	г +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	г +	+	+	т +	+	+	
I			'	'	1		1	X	1		'	'	1	'	'	'		'			'	1	1		
+	-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
+	-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
+	-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
А	1	А	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
+	-	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	М	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	Μ	$^+$	+	
+	-	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	+	
																		Х							
+	-	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	
	A + A A A A A + + + + + + + + + + + + +	A + A A + A + + + + + + + + + + + +	A A + + A + A + A + + + + + + + A A + + + +	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c} A \ A \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \$	$\begin{array}{c} A \ A \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \$	$\begin{array}{c} A \ A \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \$	$\begin{array}{c} A \ A \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \$	$\begin{array}{c} A \ A \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \$	$\begin{array}{c} A \ A \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \$	$\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\$	$\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}\end{array}\\ \\ \end{array}\end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}\end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}\end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}\end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}\end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}$ \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}\end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}\end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}\end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}\end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}\end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array}\end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \end{array} \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \\ \end{array} \\ \\ \\ \\	$\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\$	$\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\$	$\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\$	$\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\$	$\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\$	$\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\$	$\begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} & & \\ & \\ A & A & + & + & + & + & + & + & + & + &$

of Fer	na	le r			n u	ne	Z- :	r ea	ar	ree	ea :	รเน	luy	01		euc	on	181	aci	niu	e G	reen:	408 ppm
7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	7 3	
4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	
1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	Total
3 5	3 6	6 2	6 3	6 4	6 5	6 6	6 7	6 8	6 9	7 0	7 1	7 2	9 9	0 0	0 1	0 2	0 3	0 4	0 5	0 6	0 7	0 8	Tissues/ Tumors
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
																							1
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	45
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
														x	x								2
x	x			x					x						11	x						x	28
									11													21	1
																							2
							+	+															2
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	45
1	'			'	'		'		'		'		'			'			'				1
+	+	+	+	+	-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-	-	+	+	+	1
+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+	т _	47
Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	т	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	Ŧ	т	т	Ŧ	40
																							1
																							1
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	+	+	$^+$	$^+$	+	$^+$	+	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	$^+$	+	+	+	46
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47 1
							,				,					,							4 77
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4/
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	4/
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	45
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	44
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	М	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46
		Х					,									,							2
+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	47
	7 3 4 1 3 5 5 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c} 7 & 7 & 7 & 7 \\ 3 & 3 & 3 \\ 4 & 4 & 4 \\ \hline 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 \\ 3 & 3 & 6 \\ 5 & 6 & 2 \\ \hline \\ + & + & + \\ + & + & + \\ + & + & + \\ + & + &$	7 7 7 7 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 1 1 1 1 1 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 1 1 1 1 3 3 6 6 2 3 + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + X X X X X + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 3 4	7 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	7 3 4 4	7 7	7 8 4	7 8 9 +	7 7	7 or remark virce in the 2-rear reed i 7	Note that is virted in the 2-real read state 7 <td>A of Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study 7</td> <td>A of remare vince in the 2-stear freed Study of 7 9 0 3 3 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 9 0 1 2 9 0 5 6 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 1 2 9 0 5 6 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 1 2 9 0 4 +</td> <td>A is remarker whice in the 2-4 tear recet study of 1x 7 9 0 0 5 6 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 1 2 9 0 1 +</td> <td>O I Penale vince in the 2-1 ear recension y of Letter 7 9 0 1 2 2 2</td> <td>7 01 Female vice in the 2-rear feed study of Ledeon 7 9 0 1 2</td> <td>A of remark vice in the 2-rear free study of Lettoman 7</td> <td>7 01 Permare wheen in the 2-1 year Feed Study of Ledomarker 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7</td> <td>7 01 Pennale vince in the 2-1 car preed study of Leuconalactuation 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7</td> <td>7 0 Female vice in the 2-fear freed study of Lettomatachite G 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7</td> <td>7 0 Female Fince in the 2-fear feed study of Lectomarachite Green: 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7</td>	A of Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study 7	A of remare vince in the 2-stear freed Study of 7 9 0 3 3 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 9 0 1 2 9 0 5 6 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 1 2 9 0 5 6 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 1 2 9 0 4 +	A is remarker whice in the 2-4 tear recet study of 1x 7 9 0 0 5 6 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 1 2 9 0 1 +	O I Penale vince in the 2-1 ear recension y of Letter 7 9 0 1 2 2 2	7 01 Female vice in the 2-rear feed study of Ledeon 7 9 0 1 2	A of remark vice in the 2-rear free study of Lettoman 7	7 01 Permare wheen in the 2-1 year Feed Study of Ledomarker 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	7 01 Pennale vince in the 2-1 car preed study of Leuconalactuation 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	7 0 Female vice in the 2-fear freed study of Lettomatachite G 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	7 0 Female Fince in the 2-fear feed study of Lectomarachite Green: 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7

General Body System

TABLE C2b

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology of	Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green: 408 ppm	1
Number of Days on Study	4 5 5 6 7	
Carcass ID Number	0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1	
Genital System Clitoral gland Ovary Cystadenoma Granulosa cell tumor malignant Uterus Vagina Sarcoma, metastatic, skin	M + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Histiocytic sarcoma Lymph node Mesenteric, sarcoma, metastatic, skin Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen Thymus Histiocytic sarcoma	$\begin{array}{c} + & A & + & + & + & + & + & + & + & + &$	
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Skin Sarcoma	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	
Musculoskeletal System Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle	$\begin{array}{c} + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + \ + $	
Nervous System Brain Brain, brain stem Brain, cerebellum Brain, cerebrum Peripheral nerve Spinal cord Spinal cord, thoracic	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	

Individual Animal Tumor Patholog	gy of Fei	na	le I	Mio	ce i	n t	he	2-`	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stı	udy	y ot	f L	eu	con	nal	ac	hit	e G	reen	: 408 ppm
Number of Days on Study	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	
Carcass ID Number	1 3 5	1 3 6	1 6 2	1 6 3	1 6 4	1 6 5	1 6 6	1 6 7	1 6 8	1 6 9	1 7 0	1 7 1	1 7 2	1 9 9	2 0 0	2 0 1	2 0 2	2 0 3	2 0 4	2 0 5	2 0 6	2 0 7	2 0 8	Total Tissues/ Tumors
Genital System Clitoral gland Ovary Cystadenoma	+++	+++	+ +	+++	+++	+++	++++	++++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+ + X	+++	+ +	+++	45 44 1
Granulosa cell tumor malignant Uterus Vagina Sarcoma, metastatic, skin	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	1 46 46 1
Hematopoietic System Bone marrow Histiocytic sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	46 1
Lymph node Mesenteric, sarcoma, metastatic, skin Lymph node, mandibular Lymph node, mesenteric Spleen	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + +	++++++	+ + +	+ + + +	++++++	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + + +	+ + + +	+ + +	+ + + +	47 2 47 45 45
Thymus Histiocytic sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	M	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	43
Integumentary System Mammary gland Carcinoma Skin Sarcoma	+ +	++	+ +	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X +	++	++	+ +	++	++	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ +	+	45 4 45 2
Musculoskeletal System Bone Bone, femur Skeletal muscle	+ + +	+ + +	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	++++++	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	++++	+ + +	+++++	+++++	++++	+++++	+++++	+++++	+ + +	+++++	+ + +	47 47 46
Nervous System Brain Brain, brain stem Brain, cerebellum Brain, cerebrum Peripheral nerve	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + +	+++++++	+ + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++	+ + + + + +	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + + + +	+++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	+ + + +	47 47 47 47 47 46
Spinal cord Spinal cord, thoracic	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+ +	++	++	+ +	++	++	+++	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	+++	+ +	+ +	47 47

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology o	f Fema	le	Mi	ce i	in (the	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	ıdy	/ 01	f L	eu	con	nal	ac	hit	e C	Fre	en	: 4	08 ppm
Number of Days on Study	4 4 4	5 5 3	5 8 4	6 4 7	7 1 8	7 1 8	7 2 3	7 2 4	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 3	7 3 4											
Carcass ID Number	0 1 2	0 2 3	0 2 5	0 2 7	0 4 2	1 3 7	0 4 4	0 4 3	0 6 9	0 7 0	0 7 1	0 7 2	0 7 3	0 9 9	1 0 0	1 0 1	1 0 2	1 0 3	1 2 9	1 3 0	1 3 1	1 3 2	1 3 3	1 3 4	
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Hepatocellular carcinoma, metastatic, inaninary giand Hepatocellular carcinoma, metastatic, liver Histiocytic sarcoma Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Nose Trachea	X + +	+++	+++	+++	X + +	+++	+++	X + +	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	++	+++	+++	л + +	+++	+++	+++	
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Adenocarcinoma Adenoma	+ +	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+ + X	+ + X	+ + X	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	+++	
Zymbal's gland	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	
Urinary System Kidney Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Urinary bladder Sarcoma, metastatic, skin	+ A	+ A	+	+ +	+ + X	+ +	+ A	+ X +	++	+ +	+ +	+	+	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	++	++	+ +	+ +	
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Lymphoma malignant	+	+	+ X	+	+	+ X	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	

TABLE C2b Individual Anin

Individual Animal Tumor Pathology	of Fe	ma	le 1	Mi	ce i	in t	the	2-	Ye	ar	Fe	ed	Stu	udy	y 0 :	f L	eu	con	nal	ac	hit	e G	reen	: 408 ppm	
Number of Days on Study	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4	7 3 4								
Carcass ID Number	1 3 5	1 3 6	1 6 2	1 6 3	1 6 4	1 6 5	1 6 6	1 6 7	1 6 8	1 6 9	1 7 0	1 7 1	1 7 2	1 9 9	2 0 0	2 0 1	2 0 2	2 0 3	2 0 4	2 0 5	2 0 6	2 0 7	2 0 8	To Tissu Tumo	otal .es/ ors
Respiratory System Lung Alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma Carcinoma, metastatic, mammary gland Hepatocellular carcinoma, metastatic, liver Histiocytic sarcoma	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+		47 1 1 1
Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Nose Trachea	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +	+ +		2 47 47						
Special Senses System Eye Harderian gland Adenocarcinoma Adenoma Bilateral, adenoma Zymbal's gland	++++	+ + +	+ + +	+ + +	++++	++++	+ + X +	++++	+ + X +	++++	++++	++++	+ + +	+ + X +	+ + +	++++	+ + +	++++	+++++	+ + +	++++	++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++		47 47 1 4 1 47
Urinary System Kidney Sarcoma, metastatic, skin Urinary bladder Sarcoma, metastatic, skin	+ +	+ +	++	++	+ +	++	+ +	+ +	++	+	+	+ +	+ +	++	++	+ +	++	++	+	++	++	+ +	+ +		47 1 44 1
Systemic Lesions Multiple organs Lymphoma malignant	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+ X	+	+	+	+	+		47 6

TABLE	C3a
-------	-----

Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

	0 ppm	100 ppm	225 ppm	450 ppm
Harderian Gland: Adenoma				
Overall rate ^a .	3/48 (6%)	0/48 (0%)	2/48 (4%)	3/48 (6%)
Adjusted rate ^b	6.7%	0.0%	4.6%	6.7%
Terminal rate ^c	3/40 (8%)	0/44 (0%)	2/40 (5%)	3/41 (7%)
First incidence (days)	727 (T)	e	727 (T)	727 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.370	P=0.112N	P=0.516N	P=0.662
Liver: Hepatocellular Adenoma				
Overall rate	3/48 (6%)	2/48 (4%)	2/46 (4%)	2/48 (4%)
Adjusted rate	6.7%	4.3%	4.6%	4.4%
Terminal rate	3/40 (8%)	2/44 (5%)	2/40 (5%)	2/41 (5%)
First incidence (days)	727 (T)	727 (T)	727 (T)	727 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.446N	P=0.482N	P=0.519N	P=0.501N
Liver: Hepatocellular Adenoma or Carcinoma				
Overall rate	3/48 (6%)	4/48 (8%)	2/46 (4%)	3/48 (6%)
Adjusted rate	6.7%	8.5%	4.6%	6.7%
Terminal rate	3/40 (8%)	3/44 (7%)	2/40 (5%)	3/41 (7%)
First incidence (days)	727 (T)	644	727 (T)	727 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.501N	P=0.525	P=0.519N	P=0.662
Lung: Alveolar/bronchiolar Adenoma				
Overall rate	2/48 (4%)	4/48 (8%)	3/48 (6%)	0/48 (0%)
Adjusted rate	4.4%	8.5%	6.9%	0.0%
Terminal rate	2/40 (5%)	4/44 (9%)	3/40 (8%)	0/41(0%)
First incidence (days)	727 (T)	727 (T)	727 (T)	_
Poly-3 test	P=0.132N	P=0.355	P=0.484	P=0.237N
Lung: Alveolar/bronchiolar Adenoma or Carcinoma				
Overall rate	2/48 (4%)	5/48 (10%)	4/48 (8%)	0/48 (0%)
Adjusted rate	4.4%	10.7%	9.2%	0.0%
Terminal rate	2/40 (5%)	5/44 (11%)	4/40 (10%)	0/41 (0%)
First incidence (days)	727 (T)	727 (T)	727 (T)	_
Poly-3 test	P=0.128N	P=0.232	P=0.321	P=0.237N
Mammary Gland: Carcinoma				
Overall rate	2/48 (4%)	1/48 (2%)	1/48 (2%)	4/48 (8%)
A diusted rate	2/10 (1/0) 4 4%	2.1%	2 3%	8 7%
Terminal rate	2/40 (5%)	$\frac{1}{44}(2\%)$	$\frac{1}{40}(3\%)$	2/41 (5%)
First incidence (days)	2710 (370) 727 (T)	727 (T)	727 (T)	626
Poly-3 test	P=0.157	P=0.486N	P=0.512N	P=0.344
All Organs: Histiocytic Sarcoma				
Overall rate	3/48 (6%)	0/48 (0%)	1/48 (2%)	1/48 (2%)
Adjusted rate	6.5%	0.0%	2 3%	2 2%
Terminal rate	0/40 (0%)	0/44 (0%)	0/40(0%)	1/41(2%)
First incidence (days)	562	0/44 (0/0)	694	727 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.323N	 P=0.115N	P=0.324N	P=0.313N
All Organs: Malignant Lymphoma				
Overall rate	7/48 (15%)	10/48 (21%)	6/48 (13%)	13/48 (27%)
Adjusted rate	15 404	21 00/40 (2170)	13 /0/	1 J/ 40 (2 / 70) 27 50/
Terminal rate	5/40 (120/)	21.070	3/10 (90/)	27.370 0/11(220/1)
First incidence (days)	672	506	252	7/ 4 1 (2270) 161
Doly 2 test	D-0 117	D=0 324	232 D-0 512N	D-0 120
1 01y-5 1051	1-0.11/	1-0.534	1-0.512IN	1-0.120

	0 ppm	100 ppm	225 ppm	450 ppm
All Organs: Benign Neoplasms				
Overall rate	12/48 (25%)	11/48 (23%)	11/48 (23%)	8/48 (17%)
Adjusted rate	26.1%	23.4%	25.2%	17.8%
Terminal rate	10/40 (25%)	11/44 (25%)	11/40 (28%)	8/41 (20%)
First incidence (days)	562	727 (T)	727 (T)	727 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.215N	P=0.477N	P=0.559N	P=0.240N
All Organs: Malignant Neoplasms				
Overall rate	18/48 (38%)	15/48 (31%)	12/48 (25%)	20/48 (42%)
Adjusted rate	37.9%	31.3%	26.7%	41.7%
Terminal rate	11/40 (28%)	11/44 (25%)	8/40 (20%)	13/41 (32%)
First incidence (days)	378	596	252	161
Poly-3 test	P=0.322	P=0.323N	P=0.178N	P=0.432
All Organs: Benign or Malignant Neoplasms				
Overall rate	25/48 (52%)	23/48 (48%)	20/48 (42%)	25/48 (52%)
Adjusted rate	52.6%	47.9%	44.5%	52.1%
Terminal rate	18/40 (45%)	19/44 (43%)	16/40 (40%)	18/41 (44%)
First incidence (days)	378	596	252	161
Poly-3 test	P=0.524	P=0.402N	P=0.285N	P=0.562N

TABLE C3a

Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

(T)Terminal sacrifice

^a Number of neoplasm-bearing animals/number of animals examined. Denominator is number of animals examined microscopically for liver and lung; for other tissues, denominator is number of animals necropsied.
 ^b Determinator is number of animals necropsied.

Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality
 Channel incidence at terminal bill

^c Observed incidence at terminal kill

^a Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice. A negative trend or a lower incidence in an exposure group is indicated by N.

e Not applicable; no neoplasms in animal group

TABLE	C _{3b}
-------	-----------------

Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

	0 ppm	91 ppm	204 ppm	408 ppm
Harderian Gland: Adenoma				
Overall rate ^a	2/48 (4%)	2/48 (4%)	4/48 (8%)	5/48 (10%)
Adjusted rate	4.6%	4.3%	9.0%	11.1%
Terminal rate ^c	2/37 (5%)	2/41 (5%)	3/39 (8%)	5/39 (13%)
First incidence (days)	733 (T)	733 (T)	675	733 (T)
Poly-3 test ^d	P=0.114	P=0.672N	P=0.348	P=0.231
Harderian Gland: Adenoma or Carcinoma				
Overall rate	3/48 (6%)	2/48 (4%)	4/48 (8%)	6/48 (13%)
Adjusted rate	6.9%	4.3%	9.0%	13.3%
Terminal rate	2/37 (5%)	2/41 (5%)	3/39 (8%)	6/39 (15%)
First incidence (days)	695	733 (T)	675	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.107	P=0.474N	P=0.511	P=0.258
Liver: Hepatocellular Adenoma				
Overall rate	3/47 (6%)	6/48 (13%)	5/47 (11%)	9/47 (19%)
Adjusted rate	6.9%	12.8%	11.4%	20.2%
Terminal rate	2/37 (5%)	5/41 (12%)	5/39 (13%)	9/39 (23%)
First incidence (days)	682	498	733 (T)	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.055	P=0.282	P=0.363	P=0.065
Liver: Hepatocellular Adenoma or Carcinoma				
Overall rate	3/47 (6%)	6/48 (13%)	6/47 (13%)	11/47 (23%)
Adjusted rate	6.9%	12.8%	13.6%	24.6%
Terminal rate	2/37 (5%)	5/41 (12%)	6/39 (15%)	11/39 (28%)
First incidence (days)	682	498	733 (T)	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.013	P=0.282	P=0.248	P=0.022
Lung: Alveolar/bronchiolar Adenoma				
Overall rate	3/47 (6%)	1/48 (2%)	2/47 (4%)	1/47 (2%)
Adjusted rate	6.9%	2.2%	4.5%	2.2%
Terminal rate	3/37 (8%)	1/41 (2%)	1/39 (3%)	1/39 (3%)
First incidence (days)	733 (T)	733 (T)	498	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.290N	P=0.281N	P=0.485N	P=0.294N
Lung: Alveolar/bronchiolar Adenoma or Carcinoma				
Overall rate	5/47 (11%)	1/48 (2%)	2/47 (4%)	1/47 (2%)
Adjusted rate	11.6%	2.2%	4.5%	2.2%
Terminal rate	5/37 (14%)	1/41 (2%)	1/39 (3%)	1/39 (3%)
First incidence (days)	733 (1)	733 (1)	498	733 (1)
Poly-3 test	P=0.100N	P=0.086N	P=0.203N	P=0.094N
Mammary Gland: Carcinoma				
Overall rate	1/48 (2%)	1/48 (2%)	2/48 (4%)	4/48 (8%)
Adjusted rate	2.3%	2.2%	4.5%	8.9%
Terminal rate	1/37 (3%)	1/41 (2%)	2/39 (5%)	3/39 (8%)
First incidence (days)	733 (1)	733 (1)	733 (1)	718
Poly-3 test	P=0.072	P=0.747N	P=0.507	P=0.190
Pituitary Gland (Pars Distalis): Adenoma				
Overall rate	3/41 (7%)	0/45 (0%)	1/44 (2%)	2/46 (4%)
Adjusted rate	7.8%	0.0%	2.4%	4.6%
Terminal rate	2/32 (6%)	$0/38_{e}(0\%)$	1/37 (3%)	2/38 (5%)
First incidence (days)	639		733 (T)	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.545N	P=0.098N	P=0.281N	P=0.443N

	0 ppm	91 ppm	204 ppm	408 ppm
All Organs: Malignant I ymphoma				
Overall rate	6/19 (120/)	5/48 (109/)	12/48 (250/)	6/49 (120/)
Adjusted rate	0/40 (1570)	5/48 (10%) 10.8%	12/48 (2370) 26 4%	0/48 (1570)
Terminal rate	4/37 (11%)	5/41 (12%)	7/30 (18%)	3/30 (8%)
First incidence (days)	225	733 (T)	620	584
Poly-3 test	P=0.431	P=0.475N	P=0.101	P=0.604N
All Organs: Benign Neoplasms				
Overall rate	16/48 (33%)	14/48 (29%)	13/48 (27%)	19/48 (40%)
Adjusted rate	34.8%	29.8%	28.7%	42.1%
Terminal rate	10/37 (27%)	12/41 (29%)	11/39 (28%)	19/39 (49%)
First incidence (days)	122	498	498	733 (T)
Poly-3 test	P=0.212	P=0.386N	P=0.346N	P=0.308
All Organs: Malignant Neoplasms				
Overall rate	16/48 (33%)	11/48 (23%)	18/48 (38%)	17/48 (35%)
Adjusted rate	35.3%	23.7%	38.0%	36.1%
Terminal rate	10/37 (27%)	8/41 (20%)	10/39 (26%)	10/39 (26%)
First incidence (days)	225	690	193	444
Poly-3 test	P=0.308	P=0.159N	P=0.480	P=0.557
All Organs: Benign or Malignant Neoplasms				
Overall rate	28/48 (58%)	22/48 (46%)	26/48 (54%)	32/48 (67%)
Adjusted rate	59.4%	46.6%	54.9%	67.9%
Terminal rate	19/37 (51%)	18/41 (44%)	18/39 (46%)	25/39 (64%)
First incidence (days)	122	498	193	444
Poly-3 test	P=0.107	P=0.148N	P=0.407N	P=0.261

TABLE C3b

Statistical Analysis of Primary Neoplasms in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

(T)Terminal sacrifice

^a Number of neoplasm-bearing animals/number of animals examined. Denominator is number of animals examined microscopically for liver, lung, and pituitary gland; for other tissues, denominator is number of animals necropsied.

Poly-3 estimated neoplasm incidence after adjustment for intercurrent mortality

^c Observed incidence at terminal kill ^d Beneath the control incidence is the

^d Beneath the control incidence is the P value associated with the trend test. Beneath the exposed group incidence are the P values corresponding to pairwise comparisons between the controls and that exposed group. The Poly-3 test accounts for the differential mortality in animals that do not reach terminal sacrifice. A negative trend or a lower incidence in exposure group is indicated by N.

e Not applicable; no neoplasms in animal group

	Incidence in Controls			
Study	Adenoma	Carcinoma	Adenoma or Carcinoma	
Chloral hydrate	5/144	4/144	9/144	
Doxylamine	0/46	0/46	0/46	
Fumonisin B ₁	5/47	0/47	5/47	
Pyrilamine	1/47	0/47	1/47	
Sulfamethazine	8/184	2/184	10/184	
Triprolidine	2/47	2/47	4/47	
Urethane/ethanol	5/48	0/48	5/48	
Total (%)	26/563 (4.6%)	8/563 (1.4%)	34/563 (6.0%)	
Range	0%-11%	0%-4%	0%-11%	

TABLE C4 Historical Incidence of Hepatocellular Neoplasms in Control Female B6C3F1 Mice^a

^a Data as of April 30, 2003. Studies were performed at the National Center for Toxicological Research in animals given NIH-31 feed.
TABLE C5aSummary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Female Micein the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride^a

	0	ppm	100 ppm		22	5 ppm	450) ppm
Disposition Summary								
Animals initially in study		48		48		48		48
Early deaths								
Accidental death						1		
Moribund		4		3		3		4
Natural deaths		4		1		4		3
Survivors								
Terminal sacrifice		40		44		40		41
Animals examined microscopically		48		48		48		48
Alimentary System								
Intestine large, cecum	(46)		(47)		(45)		(46)	
Hyperplasia, lymphoid							1	(2%)
Intestine small, jejunum	(46)		(47)		(44)		(47)	. /
Hyperplasia, lymphoid							1	(2%)
Liver	(48)		(48)		(46)		(48)	
Basophilic focus	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	3	(7%)		
Fatty change, focal					1	(2%)		
Hematopoietic cell proliferation	2	(4%)	1	(2%)			2	(4%)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte	4	(8%)	6	(13%)	8	(17%)	12	(25%)
Infiltration cellular, histiocyte			1	(2%)				
Inflammation, chronic active, focal	5	(10%)	9	(19%)	8	(17%)	4	(8%)
Necrosis			_				2	(4%)
Tension lipidosis	10	(21%)	7	(15%)	8	(17%)	6	(13%)
Bile duct, cyst	(\mathbf{a})		(5)		(1)		1	(2%)
Mesentery	(2)		(5)	(200/)	(1)			
East magnesis facel	2	(1009/)	1	(20%)	1	(1009/)		
Pat, fictions, focal	(47)	(100%)	(47)	(00%)	(44)	(100%)	(47)	
Cyst	(47)		(47)		(44)		(47)	(2%)
Cytoplasmic alteration			1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Infiltration cellular lymphocyte	6	(13%)	4	(9%)	2	(5%)	3	(270)
Necrosis focal	0	(1570)	1	(2%)	2	(370)	5	(070)
Acinus, atrophy	2	(4%)		(270)				
Salivary glands	(48)	(1))	(48)		(48)		(48)	
Infiltration cellular, mononuclear cell	. ,		1	(2%)				
Parotid gland, infiltration cellular, lymphocyte	5	(10%)	12	(25%)	4	(8%)	5	(10%)
Sublingual gland, infiltration cellular, lymphocyte			1	(2%)				
Submandibular gland, infiltration cellular, lymphocyte	35	(73%)	28	(58%)	28	(58%)	28	(58%)
Stomach, forestomach	(47)		(47)		(46)		(48)	
Hyperkeratosis, focal	1	(2%)						
Infiltration cellular, mast cell							1	(2%)
Inflammation, chronic active	2	(4%)	3	(6%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)
Ulcer							1	(2%)
Epithelium, hyperplasia, diffuse	2	(4%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)		
Epithelium, hyperplasia, focal	11	(23%)	8	(17%)	4	(9%)	7	(15%)
Stomach, glandular	(47)		(47)		(46)		(48)	(20)
Erosion			1	(2%)			1	(2%)
Ulcer	1	(2%)	(10)		1	(2%)	1	(2%)
longue	(48)	(40/)	(48)		(48)		(48)	
Artery, inflammation, chronic	2	(4%)						

^a Number of animals examined microscopically at the site and the number of animals with lesion

TABLE C5aSummary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Female Micein the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

	0	ppm	100	ppm	22:	5 ppm	450) ppm
Cardiovascular System								
Heart	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte					2	(4%)		
Artery, inflammation, chronic	1	(2%)					1	(2%)
Endocrine System								
Adrenal cortex	(47)		(47)		(45)		(47)	
Accessory adrenal cortical nodule			1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Hematopoietic cell proliferation	1	(2%)						
Hyperplasia, focal	1	(2%)			1	(2%)		
Hypertrophy, focal					1	(2%)	2	(4%)
Mineralization, focal					1	(2%)		
Vacuolization cytoplasmic	1	(2%)						
Bilateral, hypertrophy, focal		(0.00.())				(2.2.2.1)	1	(2%)
Subcapsular, hyperplasia	46	(98%)	46	(98%)	44	(98%)	45	(96%)
Adrenal medulla	(47)		(46)	(20)	(44)	(20)	(46)	
Hyperplasia, focal	(40)		1	(2%)	1	(2%)	(45)	
Pituitary gland	(48)	(20/)	(47)	(40/)	(46)	(110/)	(45)	
Pars distalis, hyperplasia, focal	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	5	(11%)		
Thuroid gland	(47)		(46)	(2%)	(46)		(19)	
Hyperplasia focal	(47)		(40)		(40)	(2%)	(48)	
Infiltration cellular lymphocyte	1	(2%)			1	(2%)		
Illtimobranchial cyst	1	(270)			2	(270)	2	(4%)
Follicular cell, cyst	2	(4%)	2	(4%)	3	(7%)	1	(2%)
General Body System								
Tissue NOS	(1)				(1)			
Hemorrhage	(1)				1	(100%)		
Genital System								
Clitoral gland	(48)		(47)		(46)		(44)	
Inflammation, chronic	()		()		1	(2%)	()	
Duct, cyst	44	(92%)	47	(100%)	45	(98%)	44	(100%)
Ovary	(48)		(46)	`	(46)		(45)	· /
Angiectasis	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)		
Atrophy	28	(58%)	33	(72%)	36	(78%)	36	(80%)
Cyst	15	(31%)	18	(39%)	11	(24%)	11	(24%)
Hemorrhage	3	(6%)			1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Inflammation, acute			1	(2%)				
Inflammation, chronic active					1	(2%)		
Mineralization	1	(2%)						
Thrombosis			1	(2%)				
Bilateral, cyst	4	(8%)	3	(7%)	3	(7%)	2	(4%)
Germinal epithelium, hyperplasia			1.00		2	(4%)	110	
Uterus	(48)	(20)	(48)		(47)		(48)	(20)
Angiectasis	1	(2%)		(0(0))		(0.40/)	1	(2%)
Hyperplasia, cystic	42	(88%)	46	(96%)	44	(94%)	42	(88%)
Thrombosis	1	(29/)			1	(2%)		
	1	(270)						

TABLE C5aSummary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Female Micein the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

	0) ppm	100) ppm	22	5 ppm	45	0 ppm
Genital System (continued)	(10)							
Vagina	(48)	(20/)	(48)		(46)		(48)	
Artery inflammation, chronic	1	(2%)			1	(2%)		
Epithelium, hyperplasia					1	(2%)		
Hematopoietic System								
Bone marrow	(47)		(47)		(47)		(48)	
Fibrosis					1	(2%)		
Lymph node	(13)		(13)		(6)		(9)	
Inguinal, hyperplasia, lymphoid					1	(17%)		
Lumbar, hyperplasia, lymphoid	4	(31%)	4	(31%)	2	(33%)	1	(11%)
Mediastinal, hemorrhage			2	(15%)				
Pancreatic, infiltration cellular, mononuclear cell		(00.())	1	(8%) (8%)				
Renal, hemorrhage	1	(8%)		(00)	2	(228())		(110/)
Renal, hyperplasia, lymphoid	2	(15%)	1	(8%)	2	(33%)	(49)	(11%)
Lymph node, mandrouar Hemorrhage	(48)		(48)		(47)	(2%)	(48)	
Hyperplasia lymphoid	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	2	(270) (4%)	1	(2%)
Infiltration cellular, mast cell	-	(170)	1	(270)	-	(1/0)	1	(2%)
Lymph node, mesenteric	(45)		(46)		(44)		(46)	
Hemorrhage	· · ·		í	(2%)	()		· · · ·	
Hyperplasia, lymphoid	8	(18%)	8	(17%)	5	(11%)	5	(11%)
Spleen	(47)		(47)		(45)		(47)	
Angiectasis	1	(2%)					1	(2%)
Depletion cellular				// - / · ·	1	(2%)	_	
Hematopoietic cell proliferation	9	(19%)	8	(17%)	3	(7%)	5	(11%)
Hyperplasia, lymphoid	6	(13%)	6	(13%)	1	(16%)	2	(4%)
Necrosis focal			1	(2%)				
Thymus	(43)		(44)	(270)	(43)		(47)	
Angiectasis	(45)		(++)		(43)		(47)	(2%)
Cvst	4	(9%)	2	(5%)	3	(7%)	3	(6%)
Ectopic parathyroid gland	3	(7%)	1	(2%)	2	(5%)	3	(6%)
Hyperplasia, lymphoid	3	(7%)	5	(11%)	6	(14%)	2	(4%)
Infiltration cellular, mononuclear cell			1	(2%)				
Integumentary System								
Mammary gland	(46)		(48)		(45)		(46)	
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte	· · /		í	(2%)				
Skin	(48)		(48)		(46)		(48)	
Fibrosis			1	(2%)				
Hyperplasia							1	(2%)
Musculoskeletal System								
Bone	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Hyperostosis	1	(2%)						
Cranium, fibrous osteodystrophy	1	(2%)						
Femur, fibrous osteodystrophy	4	(8%)	5	(10%)	2	(4%)	2	(4%)
Sternum, degeneration, cystic	10	(250/)	2	(4%)	4	(8%)	3	(6%)
Sternum, norous osteodystropny	12	(25%)	14	(29%)	5	(10%)	5	(10%)

TABLE C5aSummary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Female Micein the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

	0 ppm		100 ppm		225 ppm		45) ppm
Nervous System								
Brain	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte	1	(2%)			()		~ /	
Cerebrum, mineralization	25	(52%)	18	(38%)	17	(35%)	17	(35%)
Spinal cord	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Thoracic, axon, degeneration	13	(27%)	14	(29%)	19	(40%)	19	(40%)
Respiratory System								
Lung	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Hemorrhage, focal							1	(2%)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte	6	(13%)	6	(13%)	6	(13%)	2	(4%)
Infiltration cellular, histiocyte	2	(4%)	3	(6%)	2	(4%)		
Inflammation, chronic, focal	1	(2%)						
Pigmentation			1	(2%)				
Proteinosis	3	(6%)						
Thrombosis					1	(2%)		
Alveolar epithelium, hyperplasia	1	(2%)	3	(6%)			1	(2%)
Special Senses System								
Eye	(48)		(48)		(47)		(48)	
Bilateral, lens, cataract	4	(8%)	2	(4%)	5	(11%)	2	(4%)
Cornea, mineralization	1	(2%)						
Lens, cataract	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	6	(13%)
Harderian gland	(48)		(48)		(48)		(48)	
Atrophy			1	(2%)				
Hyperplasia					1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte	4	(8%)	5	(10%)	5	(10%)	4	(8%)
Zymbal's gland	(48)		(48)		(47)		(47)	
Atrophy Inflammation, chronic			1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Urinary System			<i></i>					
Kidney	(48)	(40/)	(47)	(1.50.())	(48)	((0))	(47)	(10/)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocyte	2	(4%)	1	(15%)	3	(6%)	2	(4%)
Metaplasia, focal			1	(2%)	1	(20/)	1	(20/)
Reproparny					1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Giomerulus, amyloid deposition	1	(20/)	1	(20/)			Z	(4%)
Glomerulus, casis protein	1	(270)	1	(270)			1	(204)
Glomerulus, inflammation, acute							1	(270)
Pelvis dilatation	2	(4%)					1	(270)
Renal tubule accumulation by a fine dronlet	2 1	(8%)			1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Renal tubule, hyperplasia	4	(2%)			1	(2/0)	1	(270)
Urinary hladder	(47)	(2/0)	(46)		(45)		(48)	
Inclusion body intracytoplasmic	7	(15%)	(-0)	(33%)	34	(76%)	(0+) 20	(81%)
Infiltration cellular lymphocyte	36	(77%)	34	(74%)	34	(73%)	25	(52%)
initiation contain, rymphocyte	50	(110)	57	(110)	55	(13/0)	23	(52/0)

Summary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green^a

	() ppm	91	ppm	20	94 ppm	40	8 ppm
Disposition Summary								
Animals initially in study		48		48		48		48
Farly deaths		-0		-10		-10		-10
Moribund		4		5		7		4
Natural deaths		7		2		2		5
Survivors		,		2		2		5
Terminal sacrifice		37		41		39		39
Animals examined microscopically		47		48		47		47
Alimentary System								
Gallbladder	(44)		(47)		(44)		(46)	
Infiltration cellular lymphocytic	(11)		(17)	(2%)	(11)		(10)	
Inflammation acute			1	(270)			1	(2%)
Polvarteritis	1	(2%)					1	(270)
Mucosa hyperplasia focal	1	(270)					2	(4%)
Intestine large	(46)		(48)		(47)		(46)	(1/0)
Cecum polyarteritis	(10)		(10)		1	(2%)	(10)	
Colon. angiectasis					1	(2%)		
Colon, proliferation connective tissue					-	(_,,,)	1	(2%)
Rectum, inflammation, chronic	1	(2%)	1	(2%)				(_,,,)
Rectum, polvarteritis					1	(2%)		
Intestine small	(44)		(47)		(47)	(_,,,)	(46)	
Ileum, hyperplasia, lymphoid	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	3	(6%)	1	(2%)
Jejunum, hyperplasia, lymphoid					2	(4%)	1	(2%)
Liver	(47)		(48)		(47)		(47)	
Basophilic focus	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	· · · ·		2	(4%)
Basophilic focus, two							1	(2%)
Clear cell focus			1	(2%)	1	(2%)		· /
Eosinophilic focus, single					1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Hematopoietic cell proliferation	2	(4%)	2	(4%)	3	(6%)	3	(6%)
Infarct					1	(2%)		
Infiltration cellular, lymphocytic	8	(17%)	2	(4%)	2	(4%)	8	(17%)
Inflammation, chronic active, focal	15	(32%)	13	(27%)	16	(34%)	11	(23%)
Leukocytosis							1	(2%)
Mineralization, focal	1	(2%)						
Necrosis	1	(2%)						
Tension lipidosis	10	(21%)	12	(25%)	9	(19%)	9	(19%)
Vacuolization cytoplasmic	2	(4%)	1	(2%)				
Bile duct, cyst	3	(6%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Oval cell, hyperplasia	1	(2%)						
Serosa, fibrosis							1	(2%)
Mesentery	(1)		(2)		(1)		(3)	
Fat, necrosis, focal	1	(100%)	2	(100%)	1	(100%)	3	(100%)
Pancreas	(45)		(48)		(47)		(45)	
Cyst			2	(4%)				
Cytoplasmic alteration	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocytic	7	(16%)	9	(19%)	4	(9%)	6	(13%)
Polyarteritis					1	(2%)		
Acinus, atrophy	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)

^a Number of animals examined microscopically at the site and the number of animals with lesion

Summary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

	0	ррт	91	ppm	20	4 ppm	408	8 ppm
Alimantary System (continued)								
Salivary glands	(47)		(48)		(47)		(47)	
Acinus paratid gland atrophy	(47)	(2%)	(40)	(6%)	(47)		(47)	(20/2)
Acinus, parotid gland, autophy	1	(270)	5	(070)	3	(6%)	1	(270)
Acinus, parotia giana, necrosis, rocar	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	5	(070)	2	(470)
Parotid gland infiltration cellular lymphocytic	0	(270)	0	(270)	8	(17%)	11	(23%)
Parotid gland, vacualization extendar, hymphocytic	2	$(1)^{(1)}$,	(1)/0)	1	(1770)	11	(2370)
Sublingual gland infiltration cellular lymphocytic	2	(170)			2	(2%)	1	(2%)
Submandibular gland, infiltration cellular, lymphocytic	33	(70%)	30	(63%)	35	(74%)	31	(66%)
Stomach	(46)	(,,,,,)	(48)	(00/0)	(47)	(, , , , ,)	(46)	(00/0)
Forestomach, foreign body	()		()		1	(2%)	(10)	
Forestomach, hyperkeratosis, focal	1	(2%)				(_,,,)		
Forestomach, infiltration cellular, lymphocytic	1	(2%)						
Forestomach, inflammation, chronic active					2	(4%)		
Forestomach, epithelium, hyperplasia, diffuse	1	(2%)						
Forestomach, epithelium, hyperplasia, focal	3	(7%)	4	(8%)	8	(17%)	6	(13%)
Glandular, infiltration cellular, lymphocytic	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)		
Glandular, polyarteritis		. ,		× /	1	(2%)		
Glandular, ulcer	1	(2%)						
Tongue	(47)	. ,	(48)		(47)		(47)	
Foreign body			3	(6%)	1	(2%)	3	(6%)
Artery, inflammation, chronic	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	2	(4%)		
Cardiovascular System								
Blood vessel	(47)		(48)		(46)		(46)	
Aorta embolus bacterial	(47)		(48)	(2%)	(40)		(40)	
Heart	(47)		(48)	(270)	(47)		(47)	
Cardiomyonathy	(17)		(10)	(2%)	(17)		(17)	
Inflammation acute focal			1	(2%)			1	(2%)
Mineralization				(270)			1	(2%)
Polvarteritis	1	(2%)					-	(=, •)
Atrium left, thrombosis	1	(2%)						
Endocrine System								
Adrenal gland	(46)		(48)		(47)		(47)	
Bilateral cortex hypertrophy focal	(40)		(40)		(1)	(2%)	(47)	
Cortex, accessory adrenal cortical nodule	3	(7%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Cortex, accessory adjoint content housing	1	(2%)	1	(270)	1	(270)	1	(270)
Cortex, hematopoietic cell proliferation	-	(270)			1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Cortex, hyperplasia, focal	2	(4%)			2	(4%)	-	(=, •)
Cortex, hypertrophy, focal	2	(4%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)		
Cortex, polyarteritis					1	(2%)		
Cortex, subcapsular, hyperplasia	42	(91%)	47	(98%)	46	(98%)	47	(100%)
Medulla, hyperplasia, focal		(, , , ,)	1	(2%)		(,,,,,)		()
Parathyroid gland	(42)		(42)		(41)		(44)	
Infiltration cellular, lymphocytic			1	(2%)	()		()	
Pituitary gland	(41)		(45)		(44)		(46)	
Pars distalis, hyperplasia, focal	3	(7%)	1	(2%)	3	(7%)	2	(4%)
Thyroid gland	(46)	· /	(48)	· /	(47)	× /	(47)	. /
Ectopic thymus	. ,						1	(2%)
Polyarteritis					1	(2%)		. /
Ultimobranchial cyst			2	(4%)	2	(4%)		
Follicular cell, cyst	7	(15%)	10	(21%)	6	(13%)	9	(19%)

	0 ppm		91 ppm		204 ppm		408 ppm	
General Body System None								
Genital System								
Clitoral gland	(45)		(46)		(44)		(45)	
Inflammation, chronic			1	(2%)				
Inflammation, subacute					1	(2%)		
Duct, cyst	44	(98%)	46	(100%)	41	(93%)	45	(100%)
Ovary	(46)		(48)		(47)		(44)	
Abscess		(20)	1	(2%)		(10)		
Angiectasis	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	2	(4%)		(020())
Atrophy	42	(91%)	45	(94%)	44	(94%)	41	(93%)
Cyst	14	(30%)	16	(33%)	1/	(36%)	10	(23%)
Minoralization	4	(9%)	2	(4%)	2	(4%)	2	(5%)
Thrombosic	2	(794)			1	(270)		
Bilateral cyst	5	(15%)	3	(6%)	2	(4%)	3	(7%)
Literus	(46)	(1570)	(48)	(070)	(47)	(470)	(46)	(770)
Adenomyosis focal	()	(2%)	(10)		()		()	
Angiectasis	-	()	4	(8%)	3	(6%)	1	(2%)
Hyperplasia, cystic	42	(91%)	46	(96%)	47	(100%)	43	(93%)
Inflammation, acute		· /					1	(2%)
Polyarteritis					1	(2%)		
Thrombosis			1	(2%)	3	(6%)		
Endometrium, metaplasia			1	(2%)				
Stroma, fibrosis					1	(2%)		
Stroma, hyperplasia					1	(2%)		
Vagina	(45)		(47)		(47)		(46)	
Epithelium, hyperplasia	1	(2%)					3	(7%)
Hematopoietic System								
Bone marrow	(46)		(48)		(47)		(46)	
Angiectasis, focal	1	(2%)						
Fibrosis			1	(2%)	1	(2%)		
Femoral, infarct	1	(2%)						
Myeloid cell, hyperplasia	4	(9%)	1	(2%)	4	(9%)	6	(13%)
Lymph node	(47)		(48)	(20)	(47)		(47)	
Inguinal, hyperplasia, lymphoid	1	(20/)	1	(2%)				
Lumbar, cyst	1	(2%)						
Lumbar, hematopoietic cell promeration	1	(2%)						
Lumbar, hyperplasia, hymphola	1	(270)					1	(20/2)
Mandibular, hyperplasia, plasma cen	1	(2%)	3	(6%)	8	(17%)	1	(270) (4%)
Mediastinal, hyperplasia, lymphoid	1	(2%)	5	(070)	0	(1770)	2	(470)
Mesenteric, hematopojetic cell proliferation	1	(2%)			1	(2%)		
Mesenteric, hemorrhage	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Mesenteric, hyperplasia, lymphoid	5	(11%)	2	(4%)	3	(6%)	6	(13%)
Mesenteric, infiltration cellular, plasma cell		× /		× /	2	(4%)	1	(2%)
Renal, hyperplasia, lymphoid	2	(4%)						
Thoracic, hyperplasia, plasma cell							1	(2%)

Summary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

TABLE	C5b
-------	-----

Summary of the	e Incidence of	Nonneoplastic	Lesions in	Female N	Aice in the	2-Year	Feed Stud	v of Leucoma	alachite G	reen
								J		

	0	ррт	91	ppm	204	4 ppm	408	ррт
Hematopoietic System (continued)								
Spleen	(45)		(48)		(47)		(45)	
Angiectasis			1	(2%)				
Hematopoietic cell proliferation	11	(24%)	9	(19%)	17	(36%)	17	(38%)
Hyperplasia, lymphoid	14	(31%)	4	(8%)	8	(17%)	9	(20%)
Infiltration cellular, plasma cell	1	(20/)	1	(2%)			1	(2%)
Thymus	(43)	(2%)	(45)		(45)		(43)	
Atrophy	(43)	(5%)	(43)	(4%)	(43)	(2%)	(43)	
Cvst	2	(5%)	1	(1/0)	2	(4%)	2	(5%)
Ectopic parathyroid gland	4	(9%)	7	(16%)	4	(9%)	7	(16%)
Hyperplasia, lymphoid	2	(5%)	3	(7%)	5	(11%)	6	(14%)
Integumentary System								
Mammary gland	(46)		(48)		(47)		(45)	
Infiltration cellular, lymphocytic							1	(2%)
Skin	(46)		(48)		(45)		(45)	
Face, ulcer	1	(2%)						
Musculoskeletal System								
Bone	(47)		(48)		(47)		(47)	
Femur, fibrous osteodystrophy	8	(17%)	2	(4%)	5	(11%)	3	(6%)
Sternum, degeneration, cystic	1	(2%)	3	(6%)	1	(2%)	5	(11%)
Sternum, fibrous osteodystrophy	26	(55%)	21	(44%)	19	(40%)	21	(45%)
Mineralization	(47)		(48)		(47)		(46)	(4%)
Namana Sustan								
Droin	(47)		(19)		(47)		(47)	
Cerebellum infiltration cellular lymphocytic	(47)		(48)		(47)		(47)	(2%)
Cerebrum mineralization	15	(32%)	18	(38%)	21	(45%)	21	(270) (45%)
Cerebrum, polyarteritis		()		(20,0)	1	(2%)		(,)
Spinal cord	(47)		(48)		(47)		(47)	
Thoracic, infiltration cellular, lymphocytic							1	(2%)
Thoracic, axon, degeneration	12	(26%)	11	(23%)	9	(19%)	14	(30%)
Respiratory System								
Lung	(47)		(48)		(47)		(47)	
Crystals			1	(2%)			1	(2%)
Hemorrhage, focal	1	(2%)						
Infarct		(20)	2	(40/)			1	(2%)
Infiltration cellular, histocytic	12	(2%)	2	(4%)	0	(109/)	12	(4%)
Inflammation chronic focal	13	(28%)	/	(13%)	9	(19%)	12	(20%)
Inflammation, granulomatous	1	(2/0)	1	(270)			1	(2%)
Leukocytosis			2	(4%)			1	(2%)
Alveolar epithelium, hyperplasia	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Artery, mineralization		. /				. /	1	(2%)
Vein, thrombosis	1	(2%)						

	0 ppm		91 ppm		204 ppm		408 ppm	
Special Senses System								
Eye	(47)		(48)		(47)		(47)	
Phthisis bulbi	Ì,						ĺ	(2%)
Bilateral, lens, cataract	4	(9%)	5	(10%)	3	(6%)	7	(15%)
Conjunctiva, polyarteritis				. ,			1	(2%)
Cornea, inflammation, chronic	1	(2%)						
Lens, cataract	5	(11%)	4	(8%)	4	(9%)	4	(9%)
Harderian gland	(47)		(48)		(47)		(47)	
Atrophy			1	(2%)				
Hyperplasia			1	(2%)	1	(2%)	3	(6%)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocytic	4	(9%)	9	(19%)	8	(17%)	5	(11%)
Acinus, dilatation			1	(2%)				
Zymbal's gland	(47)		(47)		(46)		(47)	
Atrophy			1	(2%)			1	(2%)
Urinary System								
Kidney	(47)		(48)		(47)		(47)	
Glomerulosclerosis	1	(2%)	()		()		1	(2%)
Hematopoietic cell proliferation	-	(_,,)	1	(2%)			-	(_, ,)
Infarct	2	(4%)			1	(2%)	1	(2%)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocytic	9	(19%)	5	(10%)	15	(32%)	11	(23%)
Nephropathy	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	3	(6%)	1	(2%)
Polvarteritis					1	(2%)		
Glomerulus, casts protein			1	(2%)			1	(2%)
Papilla, casts protein	1	(2%)						
Pelvis, dilatation	2	(4%)	1	(2%)				
Renal tubule, accumulation, hyaline droplet	1	(2%)	2	(4%)	1	(2%)	3	(6%)
Renal tubule, hyperplasia			1	(2%)				
Renal tubule, hypertrophy			1	(2%)				
Renal tubule, necrosis					1	(2%)		
Renal tubule, pigmentation					1	(2%)		
Urinary bladder	(46)		(48)		(47)		(44)	
Inclusion body intracytoplasmic	14	(30%)	33	(69%)	44	(94%)	44	(100%)
Infiltration cellular, lymphocytic	29	(63%)	22	(46%)	24	(51%)	26	(59%)
Polyarteritis					1	(2%)		
Submucosa, edema					1	(2%)		

Summary of the Incidence of Nonneoplastic Lesions in Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

APPENDIX D ORGAN WEIGHTS AND ORGAN-WEIGHT-TO-BODY-WEIGHT RATIOS

TABLE D1	Organ Weights and Organ-Weight-to-Body-Weight Ratios for Female Rats	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride	262
TABLE D2	Organ Weights and Organ-Weight-to-Body-Weight Ratios for Rats	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	263
TABLE D3	Organ Weights and Organ-Weight-to-Body-Weight Ratios for Female Mice	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride	264
TABLE D4	Organ Weights and Organ-Weight-to-Body-Weight Ratios for Female Mice	
	in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	264

	0 ppm	100 ppm	300 ppm	600 ppm
n	28	23	32	25
Necropsy body wt	315 ± 7	312 ± 10	287 ± 9**	$277 \pm 10 \texttt{***}$
R. Kidney				
Absolute	1.215 ± 0.023	1.195 ± 0.034	$1.133 \pm 0.031*$	1.155 ± 0.033
Relative	3.90 ± 0.10	3.86 ± 0.14	3.99 ± 0.13	4.20 ± 0.14
L. Kidney				
Absolute	1.214 ± 0.019	1.225 ± 0.033	1.168 ± 0.030	1.170 ± 0.032
Relative	3.91 ± 0.10	3.96 ± 0.14	4.11 ± 0.13	$4.25 \pm 0.14*$
Liver				
Absolute	11.087 ± 0.346	10.732 ± 0.544	11.002 ± 0.501	11.352 ± 0.532
Relative	35.70 ± 1.48	34.72 ± 2.21	38.90 ± 2.03	$41.06 \pm 2.16*$
Thyroid gland				
Absolute	0.036 ± 0.002	0.035 ± 0.005	0.037 ± 0.004	0.035 ± 0.004
Relative	0.11 ± 0.01	0.11 ± 0.01	0.13 ± 0.01	0.13 ± 0.01

TABLE D1Organ Weights and Organ-Weight-to-Body-Weight Ratios for Female Ratsin the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride^a

* Significantly different (P≤0.05) from the control group by Dunnett's test

** P≤0.01

^{***} $P \le 0.001$

^a Organ weights (absolute weights) and body weights are given in grams; organ-weight-to-body-weight ratios (relative weights) are given as mg organ weight/g body weight (mean ± standard error). Statistical tests were performed on unrounded data.

	0 ppm	91 ppm	272 ppm	543 ppm
Males				
n	23	29	34	29
Necropsy body wt	432 ± 8	424 ± 10	$397 \pm 10**$	$377 \pm 10^{***}$
R. Kidney				
Absolute	1.651 ± 0.037	1.625 ± 0.057	1.692 ± 0.055	1.706 ± 0.057
Relative	3.84 ± 0.10	3.84 ± 0.16	$4.30 \pm 0.16*$	$4.57 \pm 0.16^{***}$
L. Kidney				
Absolute	1.634 ± 0.033	1.604 ± 0.056	1.648 ± 0.054	1.669 ± 0.056
Relative	3.80 ± 0.09	3.79 ± 0.16	$4.18 \pm 0.16*$	4.48 ± 0.16 ***
Liver				
Absolute	14.727 ± 0.523	14.815 ± 0.691	$17.182 \pm 0.668 **$	$19.288 \pm 0.691 ***$
Relative	34.30 ± 1.38	34.99 ± 1.86	43.55 ± 1.80 ***	$51.69 \pm 1.86^{***}$
Thyroid gland				
Absolute	0.038 ± 0.002	0.042 ± 0.003	0.036 ± 0.002^{b}	$0.042 \pm 0.003^{\circ}$
Relative	0.10 ± 0.00	0.10 ± 0.01	$0.09 \pm 0.01^{ m b}$	$0.11 \pm 0.01^{**}{}^{c}$
Females				
n	33	36	35	33
Necropsy body wt	312 ± 7	299 ± 7	277 ± 7***	$240\pm7^{\boldsymbol{\ast\ast\ast}}$
R. Kidney				
Absolute	1.138 ± 0.026	$1.052 \pm 0.028 **$	$1.067 \pm 0.028*$	1.022 ± 0.029 ***
Relative	3.72 ± 0.15	3.54 ± 0.14	3.88 ± 0.14	4.26 ± 0.14 ***
L. Kidney				
Absolute	1.154 ± 0.025^{d}	$1.068 \pm 0.026^{**}$	$1.064 \pm 0.026^{**}$	$1.029 \pm 0.027 ***$
Relative	3.73 ± 0.14^{d}	3.59 ± 0.13	3.87 ± 0.13	$4.29 \pm 0.13 ***$
Liver				
Absolute	10.344 ± 0.368	9.865 ± 0.365	10.433 ± 0.367	11.162 ± 0.373
Relative	33.76 ± 1.58	33.09 ± 1.45	$37.87 \pm 1.46*$	$46.57 \pm 1.48 ***$
Thyroid gland				
Absolute	0.033 ± 0.002	0.032 ± 0.002^{e}	0.032 ± 0.002^{d}	0.033 ± 0.002^{d}
D-1-4	0.11 ± 0.01	$0.11 + 0.01\overline{e}$	0.12 + 0.01	0.14 + 0.01***d

TABLE D2	
Organ Weights and Organ-Weight-to-Body-Weight Ratios for Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Gro	een ^a

* Significantly different (P \le 0.05) from the control group by Dunnett's test

** P≤0.01

 $a P \le 0.001$

^a Organ weights (absolute weights) and body weights are given in grams; organ-weight-to-body-weight ratios (relative weights) are given as

mg organ weight/g body weight (mean \pm standard error). Statistical tests were performed on unrounded data.

 $rac{n=33}{c}$ n=28

d n=28

 $e^{n=32}$

	0 ppm	100 ppm	225 ppm	450 ppm
n	40	44	40	41
Necropsy body wt	33.8 ± 0.9	35.8 ± 1.0	34.7 ± 1.0	32.4 ± 1.0
R. Kidney				
Absolute	0.224 ± 0.004	0.217 ± 0.005	$0.210 \pm 0.005 **$	$0.206 \pm 0.005^{***}$
Relative	6.74 ± 0.14	6.12 ± 0.18 **	6.08 ± 0.18 **	6.42 ± 0.18
L. Kidney				
Absolute	$0.209 \pm 0.003^{\rm b}$	0.208 ± 0.004	0.201 ± 0.005	$0.188 \pm 0.005^{\ast\ast\ast}$
Relative	6.26 ± 0.15^{b}	5.87 ± 0.17	$5.83 \pm 0.18*$	5.86 ± 0.18
Liver				
Absolute	1.403 ± 0.042	$1.403 \pm 0.054^{ m c}$	1.336 ± 0.055	1.393 ± 0.055^{d}
Relative	42.17 ± 1.38	$39.31 \pm 1.91^{\circ}$	38.70 ± 1.94	43.16 ± 1.94^{d}

TABLE D3Organ Weights and Organ-Weight-to-Body-Weight Ratios for Female Micein the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride^a

* Significantly different ($P \le 0.05$) from the control group by Dunnett's test

** P≤0.01

*** P≤0.001

^a Organ weights (absolute weights) and body weights are given in grams; organ-weight-to-body-weight ratios (relative weights) are given as

b mg organ weight/g body weight (mean \pm standard error). Statistical tests were performed on unrounded data.

^o n=39

 $\begin{array}{c} c \\ d \end{array}$ n=43

a n=40

TABLE D4Organ Weights and Organ-Weight-to-Body-Weight Ratios for Female Micein the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green^a

	0 ppm	91 ppm	204 ppm	408 ppm
n	37	41	39	39
Necropsy body wt	32.7 ± 0.6	34.0 ± 1.0	37.6 ± 1.0***	34.5 ± 1.0
R. Kidney				
Absolute	0.227 ± 0.005	0.216 ± 0.005	0.227 ± 0.005	0.217 ± 0.005
Relative	7.03 ± 0.21	$6.43 \pm 0.20*$	6.12 ± 0.21 ***	6.34 ± 0.21 **
L. Kidney				
Absolute	0.216 ± 0.004	$0.202 \pm 0.005*$	0.216 ± 0.005	0.204 ± 0.005
Relative	6.69 ± 0.20	6.00 ± 0.20 **	5.83 ± 0.20 ***	$5.96 \pm 0.20 **$
Liver				
Absolute	1.412 ± 0.084	1.365 ± 0.106	1.579 ± 0.108	1.542 ± 0.108
Relative	43.75 ± 2.81	40.28 ± 3.25	42.37 ± 3.29	45.25 ± 3.29

* Significantly different ($P \le 0.05$) from the control group by Dunnett's test

** P≤0.01

*** P≤0.001

^a Organ weights (absolute weights) and body weights are given in grams; organ-weight-to-body-weight ratios (relative weights) are given as mg organ weight/g body weight (mean ± standard error). Statistical tests were performed on unrounded data.

APPENDIX E CHEMICAL CHARACTERIZATION AND DOSE FORMULATION STUDIES

PROCUREME	ent and Characterization	266
PREPARATIO	ON AND ANALYSIS OF DOSE FORMULATIONS	267
TABLE E1	High-Performance Liquid Chromatography Systems Used	
	in the 2-Year Feed Studies of Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green	268
FIGURE E1	¹ H-Nuclear Magnetic Resonance Spectrum of Malachite Green Chloride	269
FIGURE E2	¹³ C-Nuclear Magnetic Resonance Spectrum of Malachite Green Chloride	270
FIGURE E3	Infrared Spectrum of Leucomalachite Green	271
FIGURE E4	¹ H-Nuclear Magnetic Resonance Spectrum of Leucomalachite Green	272
FIGURE E5	¹³ C-Nuclear Magnetic Resonance Spectrum of Leucomalachite Green	273
TABLE E2	Preparation and Storage of Dose Formulations	
	in the 2-Year Feed Studies of Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green	274
TABLE E3	Results of Analyses of Dose Formulations Administered to Rats and Mice	
	in the 2-Year Feed Studies of Malachite Green Chloride	275
TABLE E4	Results of Analyses of Dose Formulations Administered to Rats and Mice	
	in the 2-Year Feed Studies of Leucomalachite Green	279

CHEMICAL CHARACTERIZATION AND DOSE FORMULATION STUDIES

PROCUREMENT AND CHARACTERIZATION

Malachite Green Chloride

Malachite green chloride was obtained from Chemsyn Science Laboratories (Lenexa, KS) in one lot (CSL-98-808-08-04). Identity, purity, and stability analyses were conducted by the study laboratory. Reports on analyses performed in support of the malachite green chloride studies are on file at the National Center for Toxicological Research (NCTR).

Lot CSL-98-808-08-04, a dark green solid, was identified as malachite green chloride by the study laboratory using ¹H- and ¹³C-nuclear magnetic resonance (NMR) spectroscopy, direct exposure probe electron impact mass spectrometry (DEP/EI/MS), and high-performance liquid chromatography (HPLC)/EI/MS by system A (Table E1) All spectra were consistent with the structure of malachite green chloride. The ¹H- and ¹³C- NMR spectra are presented in Figures E1 and E2.

The purity of malachite green chloride was determined by the study laboratory using HPLC by system A, gas chromatography (GC), and inductively coupled plasma (ICP) spectrometry. Gas chromatography was performed with a Hewlett-Packard gas chromatograph using a flame ionization detector with a helium carrier gas at 24 psi. A Carbopak B packed column with 5% Carbowax 20M (6 ft \times 2 mm, Supelco) was used with an isocratic oven temperature of 80° C.

HPLC analysis by system A indicated a purity of approximately 88% and four impurity peaks with a combined area of approximately 12.1% of the total peak area. GC indicated that malachite green chloride contained 1.4% methanol by weight. Heavy metal analysis by ICP spectrometry indicated the presence of less than 4 ppm lead. The overall purity of lot CSL-98-808-08-04 was determined to be approximately 87%.

The bulk chemical was stored in the original amber bottle inside a plastic bag in the original cardboard box at -70° C. The stability of bulk lot CSL-98-808-08-04 was monitored at 0, 12, 18, 21, and 24 months during the studies with HPLC by system A. Analysis indicated a 3.1% degradation of the compound during the course of the 2-year studies.

Leucomalachite Green

Leucomalachite green was obtained from Chemsyn Science Laboratories in one lot (CSL-97-718-77-10). Identity, purity, and stability analyses were conducted by the study laboratory. Reports on analyses performed in support of the leucomalachite green studies are on file at the NCTR.

Lot CSL-97-718-77-10, a faint green solid, was identified as leucomalachite green by the supplier using ¹H-NMR and infrared spectroscopy and by the study laboratory using DEP/EI/MS and ¹H- and ¹³C-NMR. All spectra were consistent with the structure of leucomalachite green. The infrared, ¹H-, and ¹³C-NMR spectra are presented in Figures E3, E4, and E5, respectively.

The purity of leucomalachite green was determined by elemental and heavy metal analysis (performed by Galbraith Laboratories, Inc., Knoxville, TN), HPLC performed by the chemical supplier (system B) and the study laboratory (using systems similar to systems C and D), ¹H-NMR and gas chromatography coupled with mass spectrometry (performed by the study laboratory).

Elemental analysis for carbon, hydrogen, and nitrogen were in agreement with the theoretical values for leucomalachite green. Heavy metal analysis indicated 0.4 ppm lead. Consideration of all analyses indicated a leucomalachite green purity of approximately 99%.

The bulk chemical was stored at -70° C in the original amber glass container. The stability of leucomalachite green was monitored at 0, 13, 19, and 24 months during the studies using HPLC by systems similar to system C. Analysis indicated a 0.6% degradation of the compound during the course of the 2-year studies the impurity was identified as malachite green.

PREPARATION AND ANALYSIS OF DOSE FORMULATIONS

The dose formulations for malachite green chloride were prepared approximately every 2 months by dissolving the chemical in water and then mixing it with feed (Table E2). The solution was blended with feed in a Patterson-Kelly V-shell blender using an intensifier bar and a heater under a vacuum of at least 15 mm mercury for approximately 20 minutes. The dose formulations for leucomalachite green, were prepared approximately every 2 months by mixing the chemical with feed (Table E2). A premix was prepared by hand then blended with additional feed in a Patterson-Kelly V-shell blender using an intensifier bar for approximately 20 minutes. Dose formulations were stored in stainless steel feed cans at $4^{\circ} \pm 2^{\circ}$ C for up to 92 days (malachite green chloride) or 95 days (leucomalachite green).

For malachite green chloride, a homogeneity study of a 100 ppm dose formulation and a stability study of a 25 ppm dose formulation were performed by the study laboratory using HPLC by system C. Homogeneity was confirmed, and stability was confirmed for at least 10 days for dose formulations stored at room temperature exposed to light and for at least 92 days for formulations stored at up to 6° C protected from light. For leucomalachite green, homogeneity studies of 96 and 91 ppm dose formulations were performed by the study laboratory using HPLC by system D. Stability studies of a 96 ppm dose formulation were also performed by the study laboratory using HPLC by system C. Homogeneity was confirmed, and stability was confirmed for at least 32 days for dose formulations stored at room temperature exposed to light and for at least 95 days for formulations stored at up to 6° C protected from light.

For malachite green chloride, periodic analyses of the dose formulations were conducted by the study laboratory using HPLC by system C. The dose formulations were analyzed approximately every 7 weeks (Table E3). Of the dose formulations analyzed and used, 96% (65/68) of the dose formulations for rats and 97% (33/34) of the dose formulations for mice were within 10% of the target concentrations. For leucomalachite green, periodic analyses of the dose formulations were conducted by the study laboratory using HPLC by system D. The dose formulations were analyzed approximately every 7 weeks; animal room samples were also analyzed (Table E4). Of the dose formulations analyzed and used, all of the dose formulations for rats (90/90) and mice (50/50) were within 10% of the target concentrations. Of the animal room samples analyzed, 56% (5/9) of the samples for rats and 78% (7/9) of the samples for mice were within 10% of the target concentrations.

Detection System	Column	Solvent System
System A		
Ultraviolet/visible photodiode array (scanning from 220 to 800 nm) with monitoring at 618 nm	Spherisorb Cyano, 250 mm × 4.6 mm, 5-µm particle size (Waters, Corp., Milford, MA) with 20 mm × 2.0 mm PbO ₂ post column	 A) 20% acetonitrile and 80% 0.05 M ammonium acetate, pH 4.5 and B) 80% acetonitrile and 20% 0.05 M ammonium acetate, pH 4.5; 100% A for 5 minutes then 10 minutes to 100% B, flow rate 1.5 mL/minute
System B	Interstil 5 ODS 2, 250 mm × 4.6 mm,	A) 95% acetonitrile and B) 20 mM
Ultraviolet (254 nm)	5-µm particle size (Varian, Palo Alto, CA)	H ₃ PO ₄ , pH 3.0, flow rate 1 mL/minute
System C		
Ultraviolet/visible photodiode array (scanning from 220 nm to 800 nm) with monitoring at 267 and 618 nm	Cyano, 250 mm × 4.6 mm, 5-µm particle size (Supelco, Inc. Bellefonte, PA)	A) 60% acetonitrile and 40% 0.05 M ammonium acetate buffer, pH 4.5, flow rate 1.0 mL/minute
System D		
Evaporative light scattering with polychromatic source in visible range	Prodigy ODS, 250 mm \times 4.6 mm, 5- μ m particle size (Phenomenex, Torrance, CA)	A) 50% acetonitrile and 50% 0.05 M ammonium acetate buffer, pH 4.5 and B) acetonitrile; 100% A to 100% B in 10 minutes, flow rate 1.0 mL/minute

TABLE E1 High-Performance Liquid Chromatography Systems Used in the 2-Year Feed Studies of Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green^a

^a High-performance liquid chromatographs were manufactured by Waters Corp. (Milford, MA) (systems A and C) and Varian, Inc. (Palo Alto, CA) (systems B and D).



FIGURE E1 ¹H-Nuclear Magnetic Resonance Spectrum of Malachite Green Chloride



FIGURE E2 ¹³C-Nuclear Magnetic Resonance Spectrum of Malachite Green Chloride



FIGURE E3 Infrared Spectrum of Leucomalachite Green



FIGURE E4 ¹H-Nuclear Magnetic Resonance Spectrum of Leucomalachite Green



FIGURE E5 ¹³C-Nuclear Magnetic Resonance Spectrum of Leucomalachite Green

Malachite Green Chloride	Leucomalachite Green				
Preparation					
was prepared by stirring and sonication. Malachite green chloride solution was then directly injected into a Patterson-Kelly V-shell	feed in a Patterson-Kelly V-shell blender for approximately 20 minutes with the intensifier bar on. Dose formulations were				
blender mixing with the intensifier bar and heater on under a vacuum of at least 15 mm of mercury. Mixing was continued for	prepared approximately every 2 months.				
approximately 20 minutes, with the use of the intensifier bar. Dose					
formulations were prepared approximately every 2 months.					
Chemical Lot Number CSL-98-808-08-04	CSL-97-718-77-10				
Maximum Storage Time					
92 days	95 days				
Storage Conditions					
Stored at $4^{\circ} \pm 2^{\circ}$ C in stainless steel feed cans with lids secured by tie-downs.	Stored at $4^{\circ} \pm 2^{\circ}$ C in stainless steel feed cans with lids secured by tie-downs.				
Study Laboratory					
National Center for Toxicological Research (Jefferson, AR)	National Center for Toxicological Research (Jefferson, AR)				

TABLE E2Preparation and Storage of Dose Formulations in the 2-Year Feed Studiesof Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green

Date Prepared	Date Analyzed	Target Concentration (ppm)	Determined Concentration ^a (ppm)	Difference from Target (%)
Rats				
March 1, 1999	March 5, 1999	100 300	98 296	-2 -1
		600	616	+3
May 28, 1999	June 3, 1999	100	87	-13
July 9, 1999	July 20, 1999	100	99	-1
August 4, 2000	August 5, 2000	100	101	+1
August 18, 1999	August 19, 1999	100	102	+2
C ,	e ,	100	103	+3
		300	334	+11
		300	302	+1
		600	666	+11
		600	605	+1
October 20, 1999	October 22, 1999	100	97	_3
0000001 20, 1999	0000001 22, 1999	100	102	+2
		300	296	-1
		300	309	+3
		600	611	+2
		600	624	+4
December 29, 1999	January 11, 2000	100	93	-7
		100	99	-1
		100	102	+2
		300	297	-1
		300	305	+2
		600	608	+1
		600	620	+3
March 1, 2000	March 2, 2000	100	105	+5
		300	322	+7
		600	650	+8
April 19, 2000	April 21, 2000	100	98	-2
		100	106	+6
		300	308	+3
		300	317	+6
		600	655	+9
		600	640	+7
May 17, 2000	May 24, 2000	100	96	_4
June 28, 2000	June 30, 2000	100	106	+6
		100	101	+1
		300	299	0
		300	303	+1
		600	618	+3
		600	615	+3

Date Prepared	Date Analyzed	Target Concentration (ppm)	Determined Concentration (ppm)	Difference from Target (%)
Rats (continued)				
August 16, 2000	August 19, 2000	100	100	0
8	e ,	100	104	+4
		300	305	+2
		300	309	+3
		600	624	+4
		600	630	+5
0 / 1 11 2000	0 / 1 - 20 2000	100	o c b	15
October 11, 2000	October 20, 2000	100	85 82 ^c	-15
		100	83	-17
October 18, 2000	October 20, 2000	100	99	-1
		100	98,	-2
		300	627 ^b	+109
		300	631 ^b	+110
		300	294 ^d	-2
		300	300	0
		600	622	+4
		600	628	+5
October 26, 2000	November 2, 2000	100	119 ^e	+19
November 2, 2000	November 3, 2000	100	99	-1
December 12, 2000	December 20, 2000	100	90	-10
December 20, 2000	December 29, 2000	100	101	+1
,	and January 3, 2001	100	96	-4
	,	300	284	-5
		300	288	-4
		600	555	-8
		600	632	+5
February 28, 2001	March 7, 2001	100	107	+7
March 7, 2001	March 12, 2001	100	101	+1
		100	100	0
		300	319	+6
		300	321	+7
		600	627	+5
		600	645	+8

Date Prepared	Date Analyzed	Target Concentration (ppm)	Determined Concentration (ppm)	Difference from Target (%)
Mice				
March 1, 1999	March 5, 1999	100 225 450	98 223 456	-2 -1 +1
May 28, 1999	June 3, 1999	100	87	-13
August 4, 1999	August 5, 1999	100 225 450	101 233 471	+1 +4 +5
August 18, 1999	August 19, 1999	100	102	+2
October 13, 1999	October 14, 1999	100 225 450	102 231 474	+2 +3 +5
December 29, 1999	January 11, 2000	100 100 100 225 450	93 99 102 225 492	-7 -1 +2 0 +9
March 8, 2000	March 9, 2000	100 225 450	101 227 488	$^{+1}_{+1}_{+8}$
May 17, 2000	May 24, 2000	100 225 450	96 239 446	-4 +6 -1
August 2, 2000	August 4, 2000	100 225 450	109 230 472	+9 +2 +5
October 11, 2000	October 20, 2000	100 100 225 450	85 ^b 83 ^c 229 453	-15 -17 +2 +1
October 18, 2000	October 20, 2000	100	98	-2
October 26, 2000	November 3, 2000	100	119 ^e	+19
December 12, 2000	December 20, 2000	225 450	220 448	$^{-2}_{0}$
December 20, 2000	December 29, 2000	100	96	-4

Date Prepared	Date Analyzed	Target Concentration (ppm)	Determined Concentration (ppm)	Difference from Target (%)	
February 28, 2001	March 7, 2001	100	107,	+7	
•		225	249 ^b	+11	
		225	287 ^b	+28	
		450	493	+10	
March 8, 2001	March 12, 2001	225	224 ^f	-1	

a Results of triplicate analyses
 b Reassayed, not used in study
 c Results of reassay, not used in study; remixed
 d Results of reassay
 e Results of remix, not used in study

f

Results of remix

TABLE E4
Results of Analyses of Dose Formulations Administered to Rats and Mice
in the 2-Year Feed Studies of Leucomalachite Green

Date Prepared	Date Analyzed	Target Concentration (ppm)	Determined Concentration ^a (ppm)	Difference from Target (%)
Rats				
September 30, 1998	October 5, 1998	91 543	89 505	-2 -7
October 6, 1998	October 7, 1998	272	271	0
December 3, 1998	December 8, 1998	91	87	-4
December 18, 1998	December 18, 1998	91 272 543	87 261 503	-4 -4 -7
January 22, 1999	January 22, 1999	272 543	257 504	-6 -7
March 2, 1999	March 3, 1999	91	86	-5
March 26, 1999	March 29, 1999	272 543	257 500	$-6 \\ -8$
May 4, 1999	May 4, 1999	91 272 543	87 260 522	-4 -4 -4
July 7, 1999	July 13, 1999	91	91	0
August 2, 1999	August 2, 1999	272 272 272 543 543 543	262 251 255 512 517 517	$ \begin{array}{r} -4 \\ -8 \\ -6 \\ -6 \\ -5 \\ -5 \\ -5 \\ \end{array} $
August 30, 1999	August 30, 1999	91 91 91	86 90 87	-5 -1 -4
October 4, 1999	October 4, 1999	272 272 272 543 543 543	259 259 262 527 516 538	-5 -5 -4 -3 -5 -1
October 15, 1999	October 26-November 1, 1999	543 543	348 ^b 524 ^c	-36 -3
October 25, 1999 October 26, 1999		91 91 91	68 ^b 78 ^b 85	-25 -14 -7

Date Prepared	Date Analyzed	Target Concentration (ppm)	Determined Concentration (ppm)	Difference from Target (%)	
Rats (continued)					
October 29, 1999	November 1, 1999	91 91	92 ^c 90 ^c	$^{+1}_{-1}$	
December 6, 1999	December 7, 1999	272 272 272 272 543 543 543 543 543	280 275 276 270 545 523 529 536	+3 +1 +1 -1 0 -4 -3 -1	
December 20, 1999	December 20, 1999-January 13, 2	000 91 91 91 91 91	95 90 90 89 ^d	+4 -1 -1 -2	
February 14, 2000	February 14, 2000	91 91	88 88	-3 -3	
February 22, 2000	February 22, 2000	272 543	260 520	-4 -4	
March 13, 2000	March 13, 2000	272 272 543 543	266 270 546 541	$-2 \\ -1 \\ +1 \\ 0$	
March 20, 2000	March 20, 2000	91	91	0	
April 10, 2000	April 10, 2000	91 91 91	88 89 92	-3 -2 +1	
April 24, 2000	April 25, 2000	272 272 272 543 543 543	266 256 264 538 540 522	$ \begin{array}{r} -2 \\ -6 \\ -3 \\ -1 \\ -1 \\ -4 \end{array} $	
June 5, 2000	June 5, 2000	91 91 91	91 91 90	0 0 -1	
June 26, 2000	June 26, 2000	272 272 543 543	259 268 531 533	-5 -1 -2 -2	

TABLE E4 Results of Analyses of Dose Formulations Administered to Rats and Mice in the 2-Year Feed Studies of Leucomalachite Green

TABLE E4
Results of Analyses of Dose Formulations Administered to Rats and Mice
in the 2-Year Feed Studies of Leucomalachite Green

Date Prepared	Date Analyzed	Target Concentration (ppm)	Determined Concentration (ppm)	Difference from Target (%)	
Rats (continued)					
July 31, 2000	August 1, 2000	91 91 91	88 89 90	3 2 1	
August 7, 2000	August 8, 2000	272 272 272 543 543 543	257 257 256 515 508 515	-6 -6 -5 -6 -5	
September 25, 2000	September 25, 2000	91 91 91	88 88 89	-3 -3 -2	
October 10, 2000	October 12, 2000	272 272 272 543 543 543	263 275 268 540 526 549	$ \begin{array}{r} -3 \\ +1 \\ -1 \\ -1 \\ -3 \\ +1 \end{array} $	
Mice					
September 30, 1998	October 5-7, 1998	91 408	89 377	-2 -8	
October 6, 1998	October 7, 1998	204	206	+1	
December 3, 1998	December 8, 1998	91	87	-4	
December 18, 1998	December 18, 1998	91	87	-4	
March 2, 1999	March 3, 1999	91	86	-5	
March 3, 1999	March 3, 1999	204 408	197 393	-3 -4	
May 4, 1999	May 4, 1999	91	87	-4	
July 7, 1999	July 13, 1999	91 204 408	91 205 393	0 0 -4	
August 30, 1999	August 30, 1999	91 91 91	86 90 87	-5 -1 -4	

Date Prepared	Date Analyzed	Target Concentration (ppm)	Determined Concentration (ppm)	Difference from Target (%)	
Mice (continued)					
September 20, 1999	September 21, 1999	204 408	192 396	6 3	
October 25, 1999	October 26, 1999	91 91 91	68 ^b 78 ^b 85	-25 -14 -7	
October 29, 1999	November 1, 1999	91 91	92 ^c 90 ^c	$^{+1}_{-1}$	
November 29, 1999	November 29, 1999	204 408	194 389	-5 -5	
December 20, 1999	December 20, 1999	91 91 91 91	95 90 90 89 ^d	$^{+4}$ -1 -1 -2	
February 7, 2000	February 7, 2000	204 408	193 394	-5 -3	
February 14, 2000	February 14, 2000	91 91	88 88	-3 -3	
March 20, 2000	March 20, 2000	91 204 408	91 200 404	$0 \\ -2 \\ -1$	
April 10, 2000	April 10, 2000	91 91 91	88 89 92	3 2	
May 30, 2000	May 30, 2000	204 408	205 402	0 -1	
June 5, 2000	June 5, 2000	91 91 91	91 91 90	0 0 -1	
July 31, 2000	August 1, 2000	91 91 91	88 89 90	3 2 1	
August 7, 2000	August 8, 2000	204 408	201 394	-1 -3	
September 25, 2000	September 25, 2000	91 91 91	88 88 89	-3 -3 -2	

Date Prepared	Date Analyzed	TargetDeterminedConcentrationConcentration(ppm)(ppm)		Difference from Target (%)	
Mice (continued)					
October 16, 2000	October 23, 2000	204 408	196 401	-4 -2	

а b

Results of triplicate analyses Remixed, not used in study

c Results of reassay

APPENDIX F FEED AND COMPOUND CONSUMPTION IN THE 2-YEAR FEED STUDIES OF MALACHITE GREEN CHLORIDE AND LEUCOMALACHITE GREEN

Feed and Compound Consumption by Female Rats	
in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride	286
Feed and Compound Consumption by Male Rats	
in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	287
Feed and Compound Consumption by Female Rats	
in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	288
Feed and Compound Consumption by Female Mice	
in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride	289
Feed and Compound Consumption by Female Mice	
in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green	290
	Feed and Compound Consumption by Female Ratsin the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green ChlorideFeed and Compound Consumption by Male Ratsin the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite GreenFeed and Compound Consumption by Female Ratsin the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite GreenFeed and Compound Consumption by Female Ratsin the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite GreenFeed and Compound Consumption by Female Micein the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green ChlorideFeed and Compound Consumption by Female Micein the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green ChlorideFeed and Compound Consumption by Female Micein the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite GreenFeed and Compound Consumption by Female Mice

TABLE F1

Feed and Compound Consumption by Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

Weeks	0	ppm		100 ppm			300 ppm			600 ppm	
on Study	Feed (g) ^a	Body Weight (g)	Feed (g)	Body Weight (g)	Dose (mg/kg) ^b	Feed (g)	Body Weight (g)	Dose (mg/kg)	Feed (g)	Body Weight (g)	Dose (mg/kg)
1	16.3	105	16.3	105	15.5	15.7	103	45.5	15.9	103	92.0
2	15.8	123	16.0	122	13.1	15.5	121	38.5	14.8	121	73.2
3	15.5	138	15.5	137	11.3	14.6	135	32.6	14.4	135	64.0
4	15.1	149	15.1	148	10.2	13.9	144	29.1	14.0	145	58.0
5	14.3	157	14.8	154	9.6	14.0	152	27.5	13.5	152	53.2
6	13.6	163	15.2	163	9.4	13.8	159	26.1	13.4	158	50.9
7	13.2	170	14.7	170	8.7	12.9	165	23.4	12.7	163	46.6
8	13.3	175	15.1	175	8.7	13.5	170	23.7	12.4	168	44.1
9	13.1	180	14.4	179	8.0	13.1	175	22.4	11.9	172	41.5
10	12.8	184	14.4	184	7.8	12.8	179	21.4	12.3	176	41.8
11	12.9	189	13.8	188	7.3	12.7	183	20.8	12.0	179	40.1
12	12.6	193	13.1	192	6.8	12.2	187	19.6	11.3	182	37.3
16	13.3	206	12.3	203	6.1	11.8	196	18.1	11.1	191	35.0
20	13.8	217	13.1	211	6.2	12.4	203	18.4	11.8	199	35.6
24	13.8	224	13.2	219	6.0	13.1	213	18.5	12.4	205	36.3
28	13.9	230	13.6	225	6.0	13.5	218	18.6	13.8	211	39.1
32	14.4	233	14.9	233	6.4	14.4	225	19.3	14.5	216	40.2
36	14.8	241	14.9	240	6.2	14.2	230	18.5	14.6	222	39.4
40	15.1	249	15.8	248	6.4	14.9	237	18.9	14.2	226	37.8
44	15.7	261	17.3	258	6.7	14.5	244	17.8	15.7	231	40.7
48	15.4	272	16.6	269	6.2	14.8	250	17.8	16.9	238	42.6
52	16.1	282	16.6	277	6.0	15.8	260	18.2	16.5	244	40.5
56	16.6	292	15.7	284	5.5	16.3	267	18.4	17.5	251	41.7
60	17.9	305	15.9	292	5.5	15.6	276	16.9	16.9	259	39.2
64	16.3	315	18.4	302	6.1	17.0	283	18.1	18.4	266	41.6
68	15.9	320	20.4	310	6.6	18.1	288	18.9	21.5	276	46.8
72	15.1	325	17.2	315	5.5	15.3	295	15.5	17.7	279	37.9
76	16.7	330	18.3	317	5.8	16.9	301	16.9	16.9	281	36.0
80	18.2	335	18.9	326	5.8	16.9	303	16.8	16.5	281	35.1
84	18.5	337	17.3	322	5.4	16.7	301	16.6	17.7	288	36.8
88	16.9	335	16.8	328	5.1	16.9	302	16.8	18.1	291	37.3
92	16.1	340	17.8	326	5.5	15.5	298	15.6	19.0	295	38.7
96	17.5	343	19.8	327	6.1	16.0	297	16.2	17.3	298	34.8
100	18.8 c	335	17.5	322	5.4 e	18.1	298	18.2	19.7	295	40.1
103	10.6	332 d	17.0	326		10.6	300		10.2	293	
104	18.6	_	17.8	_	_	18.6		_	18.3		_
Mean for	weeks										
1-13	14.0	160	14.9	160	9.3	13.7	156	26.4	13.2	155	51.3
14-52	14.6	241	14.8	238	6.2	14.0	228	18.4	14.1	218	38.9
53-104	17.1	329	17.8	318	5.6	16.8	295	17.1	18.1	284	38.2

а

a Grams of feed consumed per animal per day
 b Milligrams of malachite green chloride consumed per kilogram body weight per day
 c Feed consumption was not measured during this week
 c Animals were not weighed during this week

e Value of statistic cannot be computed
Feed and Compound Consumption by Male Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

Weeks	0	ppm		91 ppm			272 ppm			543 ppm	
on Study	Feed (g) ^a	Body Weight (g)	Feed (g)	Body Weight (g)	Dose (mg/kg) ^b	Feed (g)	Body Weight (g)	Dose (mg/kg)	Feed (g)	Body Weight (g)	Dose (mg/kg)
1	17.8	131	17.0	127	12.2	16.9	129	35.5	17.1	126	73.5
2	16.1	162	16.2	153	9.6	15.9	156	27.6	16.0	152	57.0
3	17.4	190	17.4	182	8.7	17.1	186	25.0	17.0	180	51.1
4	17.9	214	17.8	208	7.8	17.7	211	22.9	17.1	205	45.4
5	17.4	235	17.2	228	6.9	16.9	231	19.9	16.6	223	40.4
6	17.5	253	17.6	246	6.5	17.4	248	19.1	17.4	241	39.2
7	17.9	268	17.6	260	6.2	17.1	261	17.8	16.6	254	35.6
8	17.5	282	17.5	275	5.8	17.3	273	17.2	16.6	267	33.8
9	18.3	296	18.1	287	5.7	18.4	287	17.5	17.5	280	33.9
10	18.6	305	19.0	298	5.8	17.6	297	16.2	17.8	288	33.6
11	19.3	316	19.3	309	5.7	18.1	307	16.1	18.1	299	33.0
12	20.5	343	19.6	333	5.3	18.0	312	15.7	18.6	316	32.0
16	19.9	362	19.8	351	5.1	18.8	348	14.7	18.4	339	29.6
20	19.8	386	19.0	376	4.6	19.1	371	14.0	18.2	360	27.4
24	19.6	408	20.3	400	4.6	19.3	392	13.4	18.3	378	26.2
28	18.9	423	18.8	413	4.2	18.4	405	12.4	17.4	389	24.2
32	18.6	433	18.1	425	3.9	18.2	417	11.9	17.4	397	23.8
36	16.9	440	18.8	436	3.9	17.2	422	11.1	16.5	404	22.1
40	18.1	452	18.7	446	3.8	17.4	432	10.9	17.8	412	23.4
44	18.5	458	17.7	446	3.6	18.4	439	11.4	17.6	417	22.9
48	19.0	462	18.3	454	3.7	18.7	443	11.5	18.2	422	23.5
52	18.6	467	19.1	456	3.8	19.3	449	11.7	18.1	424	23.2
56	20.2	476	19.7	462	3.9	19.1	452	11.5	17.9	432	22.5
60	19.1	476	20.7	472	4.0	18.1	449	11.0	17.6	430	22.2
64	19.2	476	21.3	475	4.1	18.9	452	11.4	18.9	428	24.0
68	20.1	485	18.5	477	3.5	17.9	453	10.7	16.3	428	20.7
72	18.5	489	19.6	478	3.7	18.3	452	11.0	18.6	431	23.5
76	18.1	486	19.0	474	3.6	17.5	447	10.6	16.3	428	20.7
80	18.5	488	19.2	475	3.7	17.2	446	10.5	15.6	425	19.9
84	18.8	479	19.2	465	3.8	19.0	440	11.7	18.3	422	23.5
88	21.2	479	20.6	462	4.1	19.5	436	12.1	20.0	419	25.9
92	20.0	475	19.6	458	3.9	19.1	434	11.9	18.4	411	24.3
96	19.1	475	20.5	453	4.1	20.2	431	12.7	17.8	403	24.0
100	21.3 c	459	22.6	445	4.6 e	22.4	427	14.3	20.6	399	28.0
103		446		440		10.0	416		10.5	395	_
104	19.3	_	18.2		_	19.2		_	18.5	_	
Mean for	weeks										
1-13	18.0	243	17.9	235	6.9	17.4	236	20.0	17.2	229	40.7
14-52	18.8	429	18.9	420	4.1	18.5	412	12.2	17.8	394	24.5
53-104	19.5	476	19.9	460	3.9	18.9	437	11.8	18.0	415	23.6

a Grams of feed consumed per animal per day
 b Milligrams of leucomalachite green consumed per kilogram body weight per day
 c Feed consumption was not measured during this week
 d Animals were not weighed during this week
 e Value of statistic cannot be computed

Feed and Compound Consumption by Female Rats in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

Weeks	0	ppm		91 ppm			272 ppm			543 ppm	
on Study	Feed (g) ^a	Body Weight (g)	Feed (g)	Body Weight (g)	Dose (mg/kg) ^b	Feed (g)	Body Weight (g)	Dose (mg/kg)	Feed (g)	Body Weight (g)	Dose (mg/kg)
1	13.8	110	13.6	107	11.5	13.7	106	35.3	13.6	107	68.7
2	11.3	124	12.1	121	9.1	13.1	122	29.0	11.0	119	50.1
3	12.4	136	12.9	133	8.8	13.4	134	27.2	11.4	130	47.7
4	12.1	145	12.2	142	7.8	12.5	142	23.9	11.3	137	44.7
5	12.1	155	12.4	151	7.5	11.9	151	21.5	10.7	143	40.4
6	11.8	161	12.3	156	7.2	11.5	156	20.1	10.8	148	39.7
7	12.3	167	12.5	162	7.0	10.7	160	18.3	10.8	152	38.5
8	12.0	171	12.8	168	6.9	11.4	164	18.9	10.8	156	37.7
9	12.8	176	13.0	172	6.9	11.6	167	18.8	10.8	159	36.8
10	12.4	179	13.1	175	6.8	12.2	170	19.4	11.1	161	37.5
11	12.9	182	13.5	179	6.9	12.0	172	18.9	11.0	164	36.4
12	13.3	186	14.2	178	7.3	13.0	173	20.4	11.4	164	37.7
16	12.9	196	13.2	189	6.4	12.4	183	18.4	13.4	173	42.2
20	13.2	205	13.5	198	6.2	12.3	190	17.7	11.6	178	35.2
24	12.3	214	12.8	207	5.6	12.1	198	16.6	11.1	185	32.4
28	12.0	220	12.6	212	5.4	11.6	202	15.6	10.7	190	30.6
32	12.6	227	12.3	219	5.1	11.8	208	15.5	10.3	192	29.0
36	11.8	234	12.5	225	5.0	11.2	212	14.4	10.4	197	28.8
40	12.1	242	12.4	233	4.8	11.6	218	14.5	11.4	201	30.8
44	13.4	250	12.6	241	4.8	12.5	223	15.2	11.8	205	31.2
48	13.9	257	13.4	245	5.0	13.2	229	15.7	12.6	208	32.8
52	13.7	268	13.3	253	4.8	13.1	234	15.2	11.9	214	30.2
56	14.2	277	14.1	258	5.0	13.1	240	14.8	12.8	217	32.2
60	12.8	284	13.7	271	4.6	12.2	244	13.6	12.0	219	29.6
64	14.8	291	14.6	278	4.8	14.2	250	15.4	13.9	223	33.8
68	15.4	302	14.7	287	4.7	13.6	259	14.3	13.0	230	30.7
72	15.0	311	15.2	294	4.7	14.6	264	15.0	14.7	235	33.9
76	15.5	319	14.3	299	4.4	14.1	269	14.2	12.9	239	29.2
80	15.4	326	15.1	306	4.5	14.3	276	14.1	13.1	243	29.3
84	15.0	328	14.8	308	4.4	14.7	279	14.4	14.8	244	33.0
88	15.3	327	15.9	312	4.6	15.0	281	14.5	15.2	247	33.3
92	16.4	334	15.0	314	4.4	14.5	284	13.8	15.6	252	33.6
96	16.7	332	14.7	312	4.3	14.2	286	13.5	14.4	249	31.4
100	17.3 c	326	15.4	312	4.5	16.5	288	15.6	15.8	251	34.0
103		326		310			294			251	_
104	14.2	_	14.1		_	14.6	_	_	13.8	_	_
Mean for	weeks										
1-13	12.4	156	12.9	152	7.7	12.2	150	22.2	11.2	144	41.9
14-52	12.8	231	12.9	222	5.3	12.2	210	15.8	11.5	194	32.2
53-100	15.2	320	14.7	303	4.4	14.3	275	14.1	14.0	242	31.3

a Grams of feed consumed per animal per day
 b Milligrams of leucomalachite green consumed per kilogram body weight per day
 c Feed consumption was not measured during this week
 Animals were not weighed during this week
 value of statistic cannot be computed

Feed and Compound Consumption by Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Malachite Green Chloride

Weeks	0 1	ppm		100 ppm			225 ppm			450 ppm	
on Study	Feed (g) ^a	Body Weight	Feed (g)	Body Weight	Dose (mg/kg) ^b	Feed (g)	Body Weight	Dose (mg/kg)	Feed (g)	Body Weight	Dose (mg/kg)
		(8)		(8)			(8)			(8)	
2	3.6	17.2	3.8	17.3	22.0	4.3	17.1	56.6	4.0	16.9	106.5
3	3.6	18.0	3.7	17.6	21.0	3.8	17.8	48.0	4.0	17.5	102.9
4	3.5	18.5	3.6	18.3	19.7	3.7	18.3	45.5	3.8	18.0	95.0
5	3.5	19.1	3.7	18.6	19.9	3.8	19.0	45.0	3.8	18.4	92.9
6	3.4	19.5	3.7	19.0	19.5	3.5	19.3	40.8	3.8	19.0	90.0
7	3.4	19.8	4.0	19.7	20.3	3.7	20.2	41.2	3.8	19.5	87.7
8	3.3	20.8	3.9	20.3	19.2	3.3	20.5	36.2	3.7	20.0	83.3
9	3.2	20.9	4.1	20.9	19.6	3.4	21.0	36.4	3.7	20.6	80.8
10	3.2	21.1	4.0	21.1	19.0	3.5	21.3	37.0	3.5	21.0	75.0
11	3.3	21.6	3.9	21.5	18.1	3.5	21.6	36.5	3.7	21.4	77.8
12	4.5	22.1	3.7	21.5	17.2	3.4	21.7	35.3	3.7	21.7	76.7
13	3.4	22.4	3.8	21.9	17.4	3.5	22.3	35.3	3.6	22.2	73.0
17	3.4	24.6	3.8	24.1	15.8	3.1	23.6	29.6	3.0	23.2	58.2
21	3.5	25.4	3.9	24.6	15.9	3.5	24.4	32.3	3.4	23.5	65.1
25	3.7	27.6	3.5	26.0	13.5	3.2	26.2	27.5	3.6	25.9	62.5
29	3.6	28.0	3.5	26.6	13.2	3.3	26.5	28.0	3.7	26.1	63.8
33	3.9	28.4	3.5	26.5	13.2	3.9	27.3	32.1	3.6	26.4	61.4
37	4.0	29.0	3.8	27.7	13.7	4.2	28.7	32.9	3.9	27.3	64.3
41	3.6	29.9	3.7	28.8	12.8	4.0	29.8	30.2	4.0	28.5	63.2
45	4.2	31.2	4.2	30.3	13.9	43	31.2	31.0	4 1	30.0	61.5
49	4.0	32.2	4.0	31.0	12.9	4.6	32.3	32.0	4.8	31.1	69.5
53	39	33.5	4 1	32.1	12.8	44	32.8	30.2	4.2	32.0	59.1
57	37	34.3	3.9	32.6	12.0	4.2	33.7	28.0	4 5	33.3	60.8
61	39	35.7	3.8	33.5	11.3	4.0	34.4	26.2	3.6	33.2	48.8
65	41	37.1	43	35.2	12.2	4.8	36.6	29.5	3 5	32.8	48.0
69	3 5	37.0	3.9	36.4	10.7	4 5	37.4	27.1	3 5	33.4	47.2
73	37	36.5	4 0	36.6	10.9	3.9	37.3	23.5	3.9	33.7	52.1
77	37	37.0	4.0	37.7	10.6	43	37.9	25.5	4.0	34.7	51.9
81	43	37.7	4.0	37.4	10.7	4.6	38.2	27.1	4.6	35.0	59.1
85	4.2	38.2	3.6	36.4	99	4 4	37.6	26.3	4 5	35.5	57.0
89	3 5	37.1	3.6	35.7	10.1	4.6	37.9	27.3	3 5	34.9	45.1
93	3.4	35.7	3.8	35.4	10.7	47	38.2	27.7	3.6	34.3	47.2
97	3.6	35.3	41	35.7	11.5	4.6	38.8	26.7	4.0	34.1	52.8
101	4.0	35.4	4.0	36.6	10.9	3.9	37.5	23.4	3.7	34.5	48.3
104	4.2	36.1	43	37.7	11.4	3.8	37.1	23.0	3.8	34.7	49.3
104	т.2	50.1	т.5	51.1	11.7	5.0	57.1	23.0	5.0	JT./	т <i>).5</i>
Mean for	weeks										
1-13	3.5	20.1	3.8	19.8	19.4	3.6	20.0	41.2	3.8	19.7	86.8
14-52	3.8	28.5	3.8	27.3	13.9	3.8	27.8	30.6	3.8	26.9	63.3
53-104	3.8	36.2	4.0	35.6	11.1	4.3	36.8	26.5	3.9	34.0	51.9

а b

Grams of feed consumed per animal per day Milligrams of malachite green chloride consumed per kilogram body weight per day

Feed and Compound Consumption by Female Mice in the 2-Year Feed Study of Leucomalachite Green

Weeks	0	ppm		91 ppm			204 ppm			408 ppm	
on Study	Feed (g) ^a	Body Weight (g)	Feed (g)	Body Weight (g)	Dose (mg/kg) ^b	Feed (g)	Body Weight (g)	Dose (mg/kg)	Feed (g)	Body Weight (g)	Dose (mg/kg)
1	3.5	16.5	3.1	16.5	17.1	4.4	16.8	53.4	3.5	17.0	84.0
2	3.4	16.9	3.5	17.0	18.7	3.6	17.3	42.5	3.7	17.3	87.3
3	3.3	17.7	3.1	17.3	16.3	3.5	18.0	39.7	3.7	18.1	83.4
4	3.3	18.2	3.0	17.7	15.4	3.8	18.3	42.4	3.6	18.4	79.8
5	3.4	18.5	3.2	18.3	15.9	3.4	18.6	37.3	3.6	18.5	79.4
6	3.4	18.7	3.1	18.7	15.1	3.5	18.8	38.0	3.6	19.1	76.9
7	3.4	19.4	3.0	19.2	14.2	4.1	19.4	43.1	3.7	19.6	77.0
8	3.6	19.8	3.0	19.4	14.1	3.2	19.7	33.1	3.2	19.4	67.3
9	3.7	20.2	3.1	19.6	14.4	3.3	19.9	33.8	3.5	19.7	72.5
10	3.6	20.2	3.3	20.1	14.9	3.4	20.0	34.7	3.8	19.9	77.9
11	3.7	20.4	3.6	20.5	16.0	3.4	20.2	34.3	3.5	20.2	70.7
16	3.6	22.0	3.6	21.5	15.2	4.1	21.5	38.9	4.0	21.4	76.3
20	3.6	22.1	3.9	22.2	16.0	3.7	22.3	33.8	3.6	21.9	67.1
24	3.6	23.8	3.5	23.1	13.8	3.6	23.2	31.7	3.8	23.3	66.5
28	3.7	23.8	3.7	24.1	14.0	3.7	24.2	31.2	4.0	24.2	67.4
32	3.8	25.4	3.8	25.4	13.6	3.5	25.0	28.6	4.2	25.7	66.7
36	3.3	25.6	3.4	25.6	12.1	3.2	25.4	25.7	3.8	25.8	60.1
40	3.8	26.5	3.7	26.5	12.7	3.4	26.2	26.5	3.7	26.6	56.8
44	3.7	27.7	3.5	27.5	11.6	3.5	27.3	26.2	3.6	27.5	53.4
48	3.5	28.6	3.5	28.8	11.1	3.3	28.0	24.0	3.6	27.8	52.8
52	3.7	28.5	3.2	29.3	9.9	3.5	27.2	26.3	3.9	28.3	56.2
56	3.3	28.8	3.1	28.6	9.9	3.4	29.0	23.9	4.0	29.6	55.1
60	3.5	29.8	3.4	29.8	10.4	3.8	29.8	26.0	3.5	30.6	46.7
64	4.0	30.9	3.7	30.6	11.0	4.3	30.7	28.6	3.8	30.6	50.7
68	3.8	31.0	3.9	31.9	11.1	4.2	32.1	26.7	3.5	30.9	46.2
72	3.9	32.2	4.1	33.4	11.2	4.2	33.6	25.5	3.6	31.5	46.6
76	4.1	34.1	4.3	34.7	11.3	4.2	35.0	24.5	3.7	31.7	47.6
80	4.2	34.4	3.9	34.7	10.2	4.3	34.9	25.1	4.1	32.2	52.0
84	3.7	34.5	3.5	34.7	9.2	3.8	35.2	22.0	3.8	32.8	47.3
88	3.7	35.2	3.9	35.4	10.0	4.0	35.9	22.7	3.7	33.0	45.7
92	3.8	35.1	3.7	36.2	9.3	4.6	37.1	25.3	3.9	33.7	47.2
96	3.8	34.6	3.8	35.3	9.8	4.5	37.5	24.5	4.1	34.2	48.9
100	3.9	35.1	3.7	35.5	9.5	4.8	39.3	24.9	4.4	35.5	50.6
104	4.7	34.3	4.4	35.6	11.2	5.0	39.4	25.9	5.0	36.2	56.4
Mean for	weeks										
1-13	3.5	18.8	32	18.6	15.6	36	18.8	39.3	36	18.8	77 8
14-52	3.6	25.4	3.6	25.4	13.0	3.6	25.0	29.3	3.8	25.3	62.3
53-104	3.9	33.1	3.8	33.6	10.3	4.2	34.6	25.0	3.9	32.5	49.3

a b

Grams of feed consumed per animal per day Milligrams of leucomalachite green consumed per kilogram body weight per day

APPENDIX G INGREDIENTS, NUTRIENT COMPOSITION, AND CONTAMINANT LEVELS IN NIH-31 RAT AND MOUSE RATION

TABLE G1	Ingredients of NIH-31 Rat and Mouse Ration	292
TABLE G2	Vitamins and Minerals in NIH-31 Rat and Mouse Ration	292
TABLE G3	Nutrient Composition of NIH-31 Rat and Mouse Ration	293
TABLE G4	Contaminant Levels in NIH-31 Rat and Mouse Ration	293

Ingredients ^a	Percent by Weight	
Ground #2 vellow shelled corn	21.0	
Ground whole hard wheat	35.5	
Ground whole oats	10.0	
Soybean meal (49% protein)	5.0	
Fish meal (60% protein)	9.0	
Wheat middlings	10.0	
Alfalfa meal (17% protein)	2.0	
Corn gluten meal (60% protein)	2.0	
Soy oil	1.5	
Dried brewer's yeast	1.0	
Dicalcium phosphate (food grade) ^b	1.5	
Ground limestone ^b	0.5	
Salt	0.5	
Premixes (vitamin and mineral)	0.5	

TABLE G1 Ingredients of NIH-31 Rat and Mouse Ration

^a Ingredients were ground to pass through a U.S. Standard Screen No. 16 before being mixed.
 Specific ingredient requirement for cadmium content not to exceed 1 mg/kg

TABLE G2 Vitamins and Minerals in NIH-31 Rat and Mouse Ration^a

	Amount	Source
Vitamins		
А	22,000,000 IU	Vitamin A palmitate or acetate
D ₂	3,800,000 IU	D-activated animal sterol
K ₂	20 g	Menadione activity
E	15 g	dl - α -Tocopheryl acetate
Choline	700 g	Choline chloride
Folic acid	1 g	
Niacin	20 g	
d-Pantothenic acid	25 g	d-Calcium pantothenate
Riboflavin	5 g	
Thiamine	65 g	Thiamine mononitrate
B ₁₂	14 g	
Pyridoxine	2 g	Pyridoxine hydrochloride
Biotin	0.12 g	<i>d</i> -Biotin
Minerals		
Iron	60 g	Iron sulfate
Magnesium	400 g	Magnesium oxide
Manganese	100 g	Manganous oxide
Zinc	10 g	Zinc oxide
Copper	4 g	Copper sulfate
Iodine	1.5 g	Calcium iodate
Cobalt	0.4 g	Cobalt carbonate

^a Per ton (2,000 lb) of finished product; after autoclaving

Nutrient	Mean ± Standard Deviation ^a	
Crude protein (% by weight)	18.8 ± 0.9	
Crude fat (% by weight)	5.13 ± 0.92	
Vitamins		
Vitamin A ($\mu g/g$)	10.7 ± 1.4	
Vitamin E (μ g/g)	58.4 ± 5.6	
Vitamin B_1 (mg/g)	0.092 ± 0.018	
Minerals		
Selenium (µg/g)	0.37 ± 0.08	

TABLE G3 Nutrient Composition of NIH-31 Rat and Mouse Ration

^a Average of 12 diet production lots; prior to autoclaving

TABLE G4 **Contaminant Levels in NIH-31 Rat and Mouse Ration**

	Mean ± Standard Deviation ^a	
Contaminants		
Arsenic $(\mu g/g)$	0.16 ± 0.05	
Cadmium $(\mu g/g)$	0.10 ± 0.03	
Lead $(\mu g/g)$	0.48 ± 0.21	
Aflatoxin B ₁ (ppb)	<0.25	
Aflatoxin $B_2^{(ppb)}$	<0.25	
Aflatoxin G_1 (ppb)	<0.25	
Aflatoxin G_2 (ppb)	<0.10	
Fumonisin \vec{B}_1 (ppb)	35.4 ± 11.0	
Total fumonisin (ppb)	52.6 ± 15.1	
Volatiles (%)	7.4 ± 1.8	
Pesticides (ppb)		
Heptachlor	<10	
DDT, total ^b	<5	
Dieldrin	<5	
PCB	19 ± 2	
Malathion	227 ± 23	
Lindane	<1	

а Average of 12 diet production lots; for values less than the limit of detection, the detection limit is given as the mean. DDE+DDT+DDD

b

APPENDIX H SENTINEL ANIMAL PROGRAM

Methods	296
RESULTS	297

SENTINEL ANIMAL PROGRAM

METHODS

Rodents used in the Carcinogenesis Program of the National Toxicology Program are produced in optimally clean facilities to eliminate potential pathogens that may affect study results. The Sentinel Animal Program is part of the periodic monitoring of animal health that occurs during the toxicologic evaluation of chemical compounds. Under this program, the disease state of the rodents is monitored via serology on sera from extra (sentinel) animals in the study rooms. These animals and the study animals are subject to identical environmental conditions. The sentinel animals come from the same production source and weanling groups as the animals used for the studies of chemical compounds.

Serum samples were collected from randomly selected rats and mice during the 2-year studies. Blood from each animal was collected and allowed to clot, and the serum was separated. Samples were processed appropriately at the National Center for Toxicological Research Division of Microbiology (Jefferson, AR), for determination of antibody titers. The laboratory serology methods and viral agents for which testing was performed are tabulated below; the times at which blood was collected during the studies are also listed.

MALACHITE GREEN CHLORIDE

Method and Test	Time of Analysis
RATS	-
ELISA	
H-1 (Toolan's H-1 virus)	6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
KRV (Kilham Rat Virus)	6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
Mycoplasma arthritidis	6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
Mycoplasma pulmonis	6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
PVM (pneumonia virus of mice)	6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
RCV/SDA (rat coronavirus/sialodacryoadentis virus)	6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
Sendai	6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
MICE	
ELISA	
Ectromelia virus	6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
GDVII (mouse encenhalomyelitis)	6 12 and 18 months study termination

GDVII (mouse encephalomyelitis) LCM (lymphocytic choriomeningitis virus) MVM (minute virus of mice) MHV (mouse hepatitis virus) M. arthritidis **PVM** Polyoma virus Reovirus 3 Sendai

6, 12, and 18 months, study termination 6, 12, and 18 months, study termination

LEUCOMALACHITE GREEN

Method and Test

RATS ELISA H-1 KRV *M. arthritidis M. pulmonis* PVM RCV/SDA Sendai

MICE

6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
6, 12, and 18 months, study termination
6, 12, and 18 months, study termination

RESULTS

For the 2-year studies in rats and mice, all serology tests were negative.

<u>Time of Analysis</u>

Ć	5,	12,	and	18	months,	study	termination
Ć	5,	12,	and	18	months,	study	termination
Ć	5,	12,	and	18	months,	study	termination
Ć	5,	12,	and	18	months,	study	termination
Ć	5,	12,	and	18	months,	study	termination
Ć	5,	12,	and	18	months,	study	termination
Ć	5,	12,	and	18	months,	study	termination

APPENDIX I GENOTOXICITY OF MALACHITE GREEN CHLORIDE AND LEUCOMALACHITE GREEN IN FEMALE BIG BLUE B6C3F₁ MICE

Roberta A. Mittelstaedt, Nan Mei, Peggy J. Webb, Beverly A. Montgomery, Joseph G. Shaddock, Vasily N. Dobrovolsky, Lynda J. McGarrity, Suzanne M. Morris, Lonnie R. Blankenship, Tao Chen, Robert R. Delongchamp, Frederick A. Beland, and Robert H. Heflich National Center for Toxicological Research, Food and Drug Administration Jefferson, Arkansas

Kevin J. Greenlees Center for Veterinary Medicine, Food and Drug Administration Rockville, MD

INTRODUCT	ION	300
MATERIALS	AND METHODS	301
RESULTS .		302
DISCUSSION		303
ACKNOWLE	DGEMENTS	304
Reference	S	304
FIGURE I1	³² P-Phosphorimages of DNA from Female Big Blue B6C3F, Mice Exposed	
	to Malachite Green Chloride or Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 28 Days	306
TABLE I1	³² P-Postlabeled DNA Adduct Formation in Female Big Blue B6C3F ₁ Mice Exposed	
	to Malachite Green Chloride or Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 28 Days	307
TABLE I2a	Frequency of Micronuclei in Peripheral Blood Erythrocytes of Female Big Blue B6C3F	
	Mice Exposed to Malachite Green Chloride or Leucomalachite Green in Feed	
	for 28 Days or 16 Weeks	308
TABLE I2b	Controls for Micronucleus Assay. Measurement of Micronuclei	
	in Peripheral Blood Erythrocytes of 9-Day-Old B6C3F ₁ Mice Treated with DMSO	
	or Dideoxycytidine on Days 1-8	308
Table I3	<i>Hprt</i> Lymphocyte Mutant Frequency in Female Big Blue B6C3F ₁ Mice Exposed	
	to Malachite Green Chloride or Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 28 Days or 16 Weeks.	309
Table I4	Liver <i>cII</i> Mutant and Mutation Frequencies in Female Big Blue B6C3F ₁ Mice Exposed	
	to Malachite Green Chloride or Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 16 Weeks	309
Table I5	Liver cII Mutant and Mutation Frequencies in Female Big Blue F344 Rats Exposed	
	to Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 16 Weeks	310
Table I6	Spectrum of Mutations in the <i>cII</i> Gene of Female Big Blue B6C3F ₁ Mice Exposed	
	to Malachite Green Chloride or Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 16 Weeks	310
Table I7	Spectrum of Mutations in the <i>cII</i> Gene of Female Big Blue F344 Rats Exposed	
	to Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 16 Weeks	311

INTRODUCTION

Malachite green is a triphenylmethane dye that is rapidly reduced *in vivo* to leucomalachite green (Culp and Beland, 1996). It is used commercially in dyestuffs and inks, and in aquaculture to control fungal infections. Besides the potential for worker exposure, chemical analyses found detectable levels of malachite green and leucomalachite green in the flesh of fish sold in Great Britain (VMD, 1996, 1999; Doerge *et al.*, 1998), indicating a potential for consumer exposure. Similar surveys have not been reported for fish sold in the United States. Malachite green presently is not authorized for use in aquaculture in the U.S.; however, given the ready availability of malachite green, its low cost, and its acknowledged efficacy in aquaculture, there is a strong suspicion that it is currently used in this country.

The structural similarity of malachite green to carcinogenic arylamine dyes (IARC, 1978; Littlefield *et al.*, 1985; Littlefield, 1988) and experimental evidence for tumor promoting activity (Fernandes *et al.*, 1991) suggest a potential for adverse health effects from exposure to malachite green and leucomalachite green. The possibility of consumer exposure, suggestive evidence for carcinogenic activity, and a lack of adequate toxicological data for risk assessment prompted the U.S. FDA Center for Veterinary Medicine to nominate malachite green for carcinogenicity evaluation by the National Toxicology Program (NTP). Leucomalachite green was also evaluated because it is the principal residue of malachite green found in edible tissue. As described in this Technical Report, there was equivocal evidence of carcinogenicity for malachite green in F344/N rats and some evidence of carcinogenicity for leucomalachite green in B6C3F₁ mice.

The mechanism for this tumorigenicity is unclear. Although there is some evidence for malachite green damaging DNA *in vitro* (Fessard *et al.*, 1999), the overwhelming majority of *in vitro* genotoxicity assays on malachite green and leucomalachite green have been negative (Culp and Beland, 1996; Fessard *et al.*, 1999; NTP, 2004), and efforts to metabolize these compounds to DNA binding species in cell-free systems have been unsuccessful (unpublished observations). A somewhat better case can be made for malachite green and leucomalachite green as *in vivo* genotoxins. Feeding leucomalachite green to mice for 28 days increased the frequency of micronucleated normochromogenic erythrocytes (NTP, 2004), and feeding both malachite green and leucomalachite green to rats and mice for 28 days resulted in dose-responsive increases in apparently identical DNA adducts (Culp *et al.*, 1999).

The significance of these DNA adducts is uncertain, however, since they have been detected only by ³²P-postlabeling and their structural identity is unknown. Also, their formation is negatively correlated to carcinogenicity. As described in this Technical Report, liver tumors were produced in female mice fed leucomalachite green; however, no increased liver tumor incidence was found in female mice fed malachite green chloride, an equivocal response was observed in female F344 rats fed malachite green chloride or leucomalachite green, and no increase was found in male F344 rats fed leucomalachite green. In contrast, liver DNA adducts were formed in both mice and rats fed malachite green chloride or leucomalachite green for 28 days, and adduct formation was lowest in female mice fed leucomalachite green (Culp *et al.*, 1999). The mutagenic activity associated with the adducts was examined in female transgenic Big Blue rats fed leucomalachite green for up to 32 weeks. Although dose responsive levels of liver DNA adducts were detected, there was no increase in bone marrow micronuclei, *Hprt* lymphocyte mutant frequency, or liver *lacI* mutation frequency (Culp *et al.*, 2002; Manjanatha *et al.*, 2003).

In order to further investigate whether or not leucomalachite green is acting as a genotoxic carcinogen, female Big Blue $B6C3F_1$ mice were fed malachite green chloride, a treatment that results in relatively high levels of adducts but not tumors, or leucomalachite green, a treatment that results in relatively low levels of DNA adducts but produces liver tumors. DNA adducts were measured by ³²P-postlabeling after 28 days and peripheral blood micronuclei, *Hprt* lymphocyte mutant frequency, and liver *cII* mutant frequency were measured at 28 days and 16 weeks. The results indicate that leucomalachite green is an *in vivo* mutagen, and that the *in vivo* mutagenicities of leucomalachite green and malachite green correlate with their tumorigenicities.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

Animal Treatments

Female Big Blue B6C3F₁ mice were obtained from Taconic Farms (Germantown, PA). Groups of 12, approximately 6-week-old mice were fed control diet (NIH-31) or diet containing 450 ppm malachite green chloride or 204 or 408 ppm leucomalachite green. Six mice from each group were killed after 28 days, with the remaining mice killed after 16 weeks of exposure. Approximately 0.1 mL of blood was removed from each mouse by cardiac puncture for micronucleus analysis, the spleens were aseptically removed for the lymphocyte *Hprt* assay, and the livers were removed and quickly frozen on dry ice for use in the *cII* mutant assay. At the 28-day sacrifice, the livers were divided approximately in half; one portion was used for the mutant assay and the other for the measurement of DNA adducts.

DNA Adduct Analysis

Liver DNA was extracted using slight modifications of the method described by Beland *et al.* (1984). Approximately 10 μ g of DNA from each liver were ³²P-postlabeled, with the resulting adducts resolved by thin layer chromatography and quantified as described by Culp *et al.* (2002).

Micronucleus Analysis

Peripheral blood was fixed, washed, and stained for flow cytometric analysis using components from the μ Flow Micronucleus Analysis Kit and the manufacturer's protocol (Litron Laboratories, Rochester, NY). Flow analysis was performed using a FACSort flow cytometer (Becton-Dickinson, San Jose, CA), with a total of 2×10^4 polychromatic erythrocytes (reticulocytes) being evaluated. Positive and negative controls supplied by the manufacturer, as well as blood from male and female 9-day-old neonatal B6C3F₁ mice that had been treated on days 1 to 8 with 5 μ L of dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO) or 5 μ L of DMSO containing 200 mg/kg dideoxycytidine (Von Tungeln *et al.*, 2003), were analyzed for micronucleus frequency at the same time as the test samples.

Lymphocyte Hprt Mutant Analysis

The methodology employed for the lymphocyte *Hprt* mutant analysis is described by Meng *et al.* (1998) and Dobrovolsky *et al.* (2003). In brief, lymphocytes were harvested from crushed spleens, stimulated by treatment for approximately 40 hours with concanavalin A, and processed for limiting-dilution cloning in 96-well dishes. Cloning efficiencies in the presence and absence of the mutant selective agent 6-thioguanine were estimated by Poisson statistics, and mutant frequencies were calculated.

Liver cII Mutant Frequency Analysis

High-molecular-weight DNA was extracted from the mouse livers using the RecoverEase DNA Extraction Kit (Stratagene, La Jolla, CA). Approximately 10 µg of DNA were packaged and processed for determining *cII* mutant frequency using the reagents and protocol supplied with the λ Select-*cII* Mutation Detection System (Stratagene). Assays were repeated until a minimum of approximately 2×10^5 plaque-forming units from each liver were examined for mutation. For comparison, liver *cII* mutant frequencies were also determined for Big Blue rats fed control diet or 543 ppm leucomalachite green for 16 weeks (Culp *et al.*, 2002; Manjanatha *et al.*, 2004).

Evaluation of Mutations in Liver cII Mutants

cII Mutants were cored from the mutant frequency assay plates and the mutant phenotype confirmed by replating under selective conditions. A 432-bp fragment containing the *cII* gene was amplified by PCR from well-isolated, confirmed mutant plaques as modified from the protocol for the λ Select-*cII* Mutation Detection System. Briefly, 5 µL plaque supernatant were combined with 15 µL 2X Ampligold Master Mix (Applied Biosystems, Foster City, CA) and 0.1 µM of each primer (Stratagene) in a 30 µL reaction. After 3 minutes at 95° C to activate the polymerase, the reactions progressed through 30 cycles of 95° C for 30 seconds, 60° C for 1 minute, 72° C for 1 minute, and ended with 72° C for 10 minutes in an ABI 9700 Thermal Cycler (Applied Biosystems). The PCR products were purified using QiaQuick columns (Qiagen, Carlsbad, CA) and used as the template in sequencing

reactions with ET-terminator chemistry (Pharmacia, Piscataway, NJ) and the primer, 5'-CCACACCTATGGTGTATG. Sequencing products were analyzed on an ABI 377 DNA sequencer (Applied Biosystems).

RESULTS

Female Big Blue B6C3F₁ mice were fed leucomalachite green and malachite green chloride for up to 16 weeks. ³²P-postlabeled DNA adduct analysis performed on DNA from livers of mice treated for 28 days indicated the formation of a single adduct or co-eluting adducts in animals treated with malachite green (Figure I1). Adduct formation in mice treated with leucomalachite green was similar to that in control animals (Figure I1; Table I1).

Feeding malachite green chloride or leucomalachite green did not increase the peripheral blood micronucleus frequency (Table I2a). Positive controls for the micronucleus assay were significantly elevated (Table I2b), and their frequencies consistent with previous observations (Von Tungeln *et al.*, 2003). Analysis of variance (ANOVA) on the lymphocyte *Hprt* mutant frequency data for mice treated for 28 days indicated a significant variation among the groups (Table I3). However, this appeared to be due to a relatively low mutant frequency in mice treated with 204 ppm leucomalachite green, and Dunnett's test indicated that there were no significant differences between the mutant frequencies in any of the treated groups and the control. *Hprt* lymphocyte mutant frequencies were not significantly different from the controls after 16 weeks of treatment with malachite green chloride or leucomalachite green (Table I3).

cII mutant frequency was determined in the livers of mice fed 450 ppm malachite green chloride or 408 ppm leucomalachite green for 16 weeks (Table I4). Statistical analysis by ANOVA, followed by Dunnett's test indicated that leucomalachite green increased the liver mutant frequency while malachite green chloride did not. Sequencing of mutant clones (see below) indicated that the degree of mutant independence for the control and treated mice was similar. In this analysis, different mutations isolated from the same mouse were assumed to be induced independently; if the same mutation was isolated more than once from the same mouse, it was assumed to be derived from an expanded mutant clone, and therefore not independent. The correction of *cII* mutant frequencies for independence to derive a mutation frequency indicated that leucomalachite green also increased liver *cII* mutant of frequency, while malachite green did not (Table I4). Female Big Blue rats fed 543 ppm leucomalachite green for 16 weeks were also evaluated for liver *cII* mutant frequency. There was no increase in *cII* mutant or mutation frequency in the treated rats (Table I5). This result was consistent with previous results on *lacI* mutant and mutation frequency performed with these same rat tissues (Culp *et al.*, 2002; Manjanatha *et al.*, 2004).

The liver *cII* mutants isolated from the mutant frequency assays were further analyzed for mutations in the *cII* gene (Tables I6 and I7). A high proportion of mutations from control mice (49%) contained transitions, with the most common mutation being $G \rightarrow A$. The spectrum of mutations from mice treated with malachite green chloride was similar to that for control mice, while the mutations from mice fed leucomalachite green had increased frequencies of $G \rightarrow T$ and $A \rightarrow T$ transversions. Statistical evaluation of these spectra using the test devised by Adams and Skopek (1987) indicated that the spectrum of mutations from leucomalachite green treated mice was significantly different from the control (P = 0.04), while the spectrum for malachite green chloride treated mice was not (P = 0.47). The spectrum of mutations from rats fed 543 ppm leucomalachite green did not differ from that of control rats (P = 0.54).

DISCUSSION

Previous observations on the genotoxicity and carcinogenicity of malachite green and leucomalachite green contain a number of contradictions. Results of the carcinogenicity bioassays performed on these compounds indicate the strongest tumorigenicity response is a dose-dependent induction of liver tumors in female mice fed leucomalachite green (this Technical Report). Culp *et al.* (1999) also found that leucomalachite green forms a relatively low level of DNA adducts in mouse liver. In the present study, adduct formation in mice fed leucomalachite green was similar to that in control mice; however, the doses of leucomalachite green used in the present study were lower than those used by Culp *et al.* (1999). We interpret these results to indicate that leucomalachite green may form DNA adducts in female mice at the doses administered in the present study, but the concentration of adducts formed is close to the limit of detection of the ³²P-postlabeling assay.

The observation of dose-responsive liver tumors and liver DNA adducts suggests that leucomalachite green is acting as a genotoxic carcinogen in mice. However, leucomalachite green is not genotoxic *in vitro* (Culp and Beland, 1996; Fessard *et al.*, 1999; NTP, 2004), and the most compelling result indicating that it is an *in vivo* genotoxin, a weak induction of micronucleated normochromogenic erythrocytes in female mice fed leucomalachite green for one month (NTP, 2004), was not replicated in the present study. Also, *in vivo* DNA adduct formation has been observed for malachite green and leucomalachite green in the absence of tumor induction. Liver DNA adduct formation for leucomalachite green is lower in mice than in rats and lower than that of malachite green, all of which are treatments that did not result in tumors. Previous efforts to demonstrate a mutagenic response by these adducts using *in vivo* mutagenicity assays were unsuccessful (Manjanatha *et al.*, 2004). Finally, it is not clear why the tumorigenicity responses for malachite green are dissimilar to those of leucomalachite green, since they are known to be readily interconvertible *in vivo* (Culp and Beland, 1996).

The results from the present study indicate that treatment of female mice with leucomalachite green, a treatment that results in liver tumors, also results in a significant increase in *cII* liver mutant frequency and a unique mutation spectrum. The mutation spectrum in leucomalachite green treated mice involves an increase of $G \rightarrow T$ and $A \rightarrow T$ mutations, the types of mutations typical of those produced by bulky arylamine carcinogens (Heflich and Neft, 1994; Chen *et al.*, 2002). Treatments that did not result in tumors or gave equivocal results did not produce increases in *cII* liver mutant frequencies and resulted in mutation spectra similar to that found in control animals. Thus, liver *cII* mutant induction is positively correlated with liver tumor induction, which is consistent with leucomalachite green acting as a genotoxic carcinogen in the liver of female mice. The lack of lymphocyte *Hprt* mutants and micronuclei in female mice treated with leucomalachite green indicates that the genotoxicity of leucomalachite green is targeted to the tissue at risk for tumor induction.

The lack of a correlation between the concentration of DNA adducts produced by leucomalachite green and malachite green chloride and the tumorigenicity and mutagenicity of these compounds remains an unsolved problem. As previously indicated (Manjanatha *et al.*, 2004), this result may indicate that these adducts have nothing to do with the genotoxicity and tumorigenicity of these compounds. Then the question becomes, where are the adducts responsible for the mutagenicity and carcinogenicity of leucomalachite green in mouse liver? Perhaps leucomalachite green produces additional DNA adducts that are not resolved by the ³²P-postlabeling method used in this study (best suited for detecting bulky, aromatic adducts). Alternatively, it may be that mutations and tumors are produced as a result of a processing step that occurs only in leucomalachite green treated mouse liver. Since the evaluation of *clI* mutant independence indicates that there is no excess clonal expansion of mutations in leucomalachite green treated mice, it does not appear that this treatment produces increased cell proliferation and consequent fixation of mutations. It may be significant that the leucomalachite green treatment of female mice resulted in the lowest adduct concentration among the treatments evaluated. This may indicate that an error-prone DNA-repair process is responsible for the mutations and liver tumors produced by leucomalachite green. This hypothesis could be tested by measuring DNA adduct formation in various strains of DNA repair-deficient mice.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The authors gratefully recognize the advice and technical support given by Sandra J. Culp, Cathy Blocker, Jim Carson, Andy Matson, Willie Mae Cooper, Tom Schmitt, Paul Siitonen, Michelle Vanlandingham, Sharon Shelton, and Mugimane G. Manjanatha.

REFERENCES

Adams, W.T., and Skopek, T.R. (1987). Statistical test for the comparison of samples from mutational spectra. *J. Mol. Biol.* **194**, 391-396.

Beland, F.A., Fullerton, N.F., and Heflich, R.H. (1984). Rapid isolation, hydrolysis and chromatography of formaldehyde-modified DNA. J. Chromatogr. 308, 121-131.

Chen, T., Mittelstaedt, R.A., Shelton, S.D., Dass, S.B., Manjanatha, M.G., Casciano, D.A., and Heflich, R.H. (2001). Gene- and tissue-specificity of mutation in Big Blue rats treated with the hepatocarcinogen N-hydroxy-2-acetylaminofluorene. *Environ. Mol. Mutagen.* **37**, 203-214.

Culp, S.J., and Beland, F.A. (1996). Malachite green: A toxicological review. J. Am. Coll. Toxicol. 15, 219-238.

Culp, S.J., Blankenship, L.R., Kusewitt, D.F., Doerge, D.R., Mulligan, L.T., and Beland, F.A. (1999). Toxicity and metabolism of malachite green and leucomalachite green during short-term feeding to Fischer 344 rats and B6C3F1 mice. *Chem. Biol. Interact.* **126**, 153-170.

Culp, S.J., Beland, F.A., Heflich, R.H., Benson, R.W., Blankenship, L.R., Webb, P.J., Mellick, P.W., Trotter, R.W., Shelton, S.D., Greenlees, K.J., and Manjanatha, M.G. (2002). Mutagenicity and carcinogenicity in relation to DNA adduct formation in rats fed leucomalachite green. *Mutat. Res.* **506-507**, 55-63.

Dobrovolsky, V.N., Shaddock, J.G., and Heflich, R.H. (2003). Analysis of *in vivo* mutation in the *Hprt* and *Tk* genes of mouse lymphocytes. In *Molecular Toxicology Protocols* (P. Keohavong and S. Grant, Eds.), Humana Press, Louisville, KY (in press).

Doerge, D.R., Churchwell, M.I., Gehring, T.A., Pu, Y.M., and Plakas, S.M. (1998). Analysis of malachite green and metabolites in fish using liquid chromatography atmospheric pressure chemical ionization mass spectrometry. *Rapid Commun. Mass Spectrom.* **12**, 1625-1634.

Fessard, V., Godard, T., Heut, S., Mourot, A., and Poul, J.M. (1999). Mutagenicity of malachite green and leucomalachite green in in vitro tests. *J. Appl. Toxicol.* **19**, 421-430.

Fernandes, C., Lalitha, V.S., and Rao, K.V.K. (1991). Enhancing effect of malachite green on the development of hepatic pre-neoplastic lesions induced by *N*-nitrosodiethylamine in rats. *Carcinogenesis* **12**, 839-845.

Heflich, R.H., and Neft, R.E. (1994). Genetic toxicity of 2-acetylaminofluorene, 2-aminofluorene and some of their metabolites and model metabolites. *Mutat. Res.* **318**, 73-174.

International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC) (1978). *IARC Monographs on the Evaluation of the Carcinogenic Risk of Chemicals to Man: Some Aromatic Amines and Related Nitro Compounds - Hair Dyes, Colouring Agents and Miscellaneous Industrial Chemicals*, Vol. 16, pp. 153-220. IARC, Lyon, France.

Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green, NTP TR 527

Littlefield, N.A. (1988). Chronic toxicity and carcinogenicity studies of gentian violet in Fischer 344 rats. NCTR Technical Report for Experiment No. 338, November 1988, National Center for Toxicological Research, Jefferson, AR.

Littlefield, N.A., Blackwell, B.-N., Hewitt, C.C., and Gaylor, D.W. (1985). Chronic toxicity and carcinogenicity studies of gentian violet in mice. *Fundam. Appl. Toxicol.* **5**, 902-912.

Manjanatha, M.G., S.D. Shelton, M. Bishop, J.G. Shaddock, V.N. Dobrovolsky, R.H. Heflich, P.J. Webb, L.R. Blankenship, F.A. Beland, K.J. Greenlees, and S.J. Culp (2004). Analysis of mutations and bone marrow micronuclei in Big Blue rats fed leucomalachite green. *Mutat. Res.* **547**, 5-18.

Meng, Q., Skopek, T.R., Walker, D.M., Hurley-Leslie, S., Chen, T., Zimmer, D.M., and Walker, V.E. (1998). Culture and propagation of *Hprt* mutant T-lymphocytes isolated from mouse spleen. *Environ. Mol. Mutagen.* **32**, 236-243.

National Toxicology Program (NTP) (2004). Toxicity Studies of Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green (CAS Nos. 569-64-2 and 129-73-7) Administered in Feed to F344/N Rats and B6C3F₁ Mice. Toxicity Report Series No. 71. U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Public Health Service, National Institutes of Health, Research Triangle Park, NC (in press).

Veterinary Medicines Directorate (VMD) (1996). Annual Report on Surveillance for Veterinary Residues in 1995. Surrey, UK.

Veterinary Medicines Directorate (VMD) (1999). Annual Report on Surveillance for Veterinary Residues in 1998. Surrey, UK.

Von Tungeln, L.S., Hamilton, L.P., Dobrovolsky, V.N., Shaddock, J.G., McGarrity, L.J., Morris, S.M., Heflich, R.H., and Beland, F.A. (2003). Induction of *Tk* and *Hprt* lymphocyte mutations and micronuclei in $B6C3F_1/Tk^{+/-}$ mice treated neonatally with the anti-retroviral drugs stavudine, zalcitabine, and nevirapine, Late-Breaking Abstract #261, *Environ. Mol. Mutagen.* **41**, 220.

- A. 0 ppm
- B. 408 ppm Leucomalachite Green
- C. 450 ppm Malachite Green Chloride



FIGURE I1 ³²P-Phosphorimages of DNA from Female Big Blue B6C3F₁ Mice Exposed to Malachite Green Chloride or Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 28 Days

	Malachite Green Chloride	Leucomalachite Green	
Control	450 ppm	204 ppm	408 ppm
0.5	2.0	0.6	0.5
0.7	2.4	0.4	0.9

TABLE I1 ³²P-Postlabeled DNA Adduct Formation in Female Big Blue B6C3F1 Mice Exposed to Malachite Green Chloride or Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 28 Days^a

^a Data are given as DNA adducts/ 10^8 nucleotides, n = 1

		Malachite Green Chloride	Leucomalac	hite Green
	Control	450 ppm	204 ppm	408 ppm
28-Day Exposure				
RETs (%) ^b	3.23 ± 0.17^{c}	3.67 ± 0.20	3.22 ± 0.25	3.15 ± 0.12
Micronucleated RETs (%)	0.32 ± 0.03	0.24 ± 0.01	0.23 ± 0.02	0.25 ± 0.03
Micronucleated NCEs (%)	0.11 ± 0.01	0.13 ± 0.00	0.11 ± 0.01	0.11 ± 0.00
16-Week Exposure				
RETs (%)	2.87 ± 0.23	3.31 ± 0.24	3.19 ± 0.20	3.25 ± 0.13
Micronucleated RETs (%)	0.33 ± 0.02	0.29 ± 0.02	0.29 ± 0.03	0.28 ± 0.04
Micronucleated NCEs (%)	0.11 ± 0.00	0.12 ± 0.00	0.12 ± 0.01	0.11 ± 0.00

TABLE I2a

Frequency of Micronuclei in Peripheral Blood Erythrocytes of Female Big Blue B6C3F₁ Mice Exposed to Malachite Green Chloride or Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 28 Days or 16 Weeks^a

n = 5 or 6, differences from the control group were not significant by ANOVA

NCE=normochromogenic erythrocyte; RET=reticulocyte

c Mean \pm standard error

TABLE I2b Controls for Micronucleus Assay. Measurement of Micronuclei in Peripheral Blood Erythrocytes of 9-Day-Old B6C3F1 Mice Treated with DMSO or Dideoxycytidine on Days 1-8ª

	DMSO	DMSO/ Dideoxycytidine
n	5	5
Male		
RETs (%) Micronucleated RETs (%) Micronucleated NCEs (%)	$\begin{array}{c} 35.7 \pm 2.20 \\ 0.34 \pm 0.06 \\ 0.28 \pm 0.03 \end{array}$	39.3 ± 2.92 $0.94 \pm 0.14**$ $1.65 \pm 0.22***$
Female		
RETs (%) Micronucleated RETs (%) Micronucleated NCEs (%)	37.9 ± 3.57 0.26 ± 0.05 0.22 ± 0.02	37.7 ± 3.00 0.66 ± 0.14 $0.85 \pm 0.14*$

* Significantly different (P≤0.05) from the DMSO group by Bonferroni's t-test

** $P \leq 0.01$

*** P≤0.001

⁴ NCE=normochromogenic erythrocyte, RET=reticulocyte, DMSO =dimethyl sulfoxide; data are presented as mean ± standard error. The detailed protocol for the animal treatment is presented in Von Tungeln *et al.*, 2003.

		Malachite Green Chloride	Leucomalachite Green	
	Control	450 ppm	204 ppm	408 ppm
28-Day Exposure*	0.9 ± 0.2	1.1 ± 0.3	0.3 ± 0.1	1.1 ± 0.2
16-Week Exposure	1.0 ± 0.3	1.7 ± 0.6	1.3 ± 0.4	1.2 ± 0.4

TABLE I3 *Hprt* Lymphocyte Mutant Frequency in Female Big Blue B6C3F₁ Mice Exposed to Malachite Green Chloride or Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 28 Days or 16 Weeks^a

* Significant difference (P<0.05) by ANOVA. No differences between treated groups and control by Dunnett's test.

^a Data are given as mutant frequency \times 10⁻⁶ (mean ± standard error); differences from the control group were not significant by Dunnett's test

TABLE I4 Liver *cII* Mutant and Mutation Frequencies in Female Big Blue B6C3F₁ Mice Exposed to Malachite Green Chloride or Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 16 Weeks

	Control	Malachite Green Chloride 450 ppm	Leucomalachite Green 408 ppm
n	6	6	6
Mutant frequency (× 10 ⁻⁶) Independent mutations (%) Mutation frequency (× 10 ⁻⁶)	$50.1 \pm 4.9 \\ 87.0 \pm 2.1 \\ 44.3 \pm 3.8$	66.1 ± 5.9 82.7 ± 3.1 55.0 ± 6.2	$86.2 \pm 14.1*$ 88.4 ± 1.9 $76.0 \pm 12.4*$

* Significantly different ($P \le 0.05$) from the control group by Dunnett's test

Data are given as mean \pm standard error

	Control	543 ppm	
n	6	6	
Mutant frequency (× 10^{-6}) Independent mutations (%) Mutation frequency (× 10^{-6})	55.1 ± 11.0 87.9 \pm 7.0 45.0 \pm 4.5	55.0 ± 6.8 85.0 ± 3.7 46.7 ± 5.9	

TABLE I5 Liver cII Mutant and Mutation Frequencies in Female Big Blue F344 Rats Exposed to Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 16 Weeks^a

a Data are given as mean ± standard error. The detailed protocol for the animal treatment is presented by Culp et al. (2002) and Manjanatha et al. (2004).

TABLE I6
Spectrum of Mutations in the <i>cII</i> Gene of Female Big Blue B6C3F ₁ Mice Exposed
to Malachite Green Chloride or Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 16 Weeks ^a

Sequence Alterations	Control	Malachite Green Chloride 450 ppm	Leucomalachite Green 408 ppm
Transitions			
G→A	26 (39%)	35 (43%)	32 (33%)
A→G	7 (10%)	3 (4%)	3 (3%)
Transversions			
G→T	12 (17%)	19 (23%)	28 (29%)
G→C	7 (10%)	10 (12%)	11 (11%)
A→T	1 (1%)	0	7 (7%)
A→C	4 (6%)	2 (2%)	2 (2%)
± G Frameshifts	8 (12%)	7 (9%)	9 (9%)
Others	2 (3%)	5 (6%)	4 (4%)
Total	67	81	97
		P=0.47 ^b	P=0.04

a b

Data presented as number of mutations (%) Comparison (Adams and Skopek, 1987) of the control group spectrum to the exposed group spectrum

	Control	543 ppm	
Transitions			
G→A	26 (49%)	38 (51%)	
A→G	1 (2%)	6 (8%)	
Transversions			
G→T	9 (17%)	10 (14%)	
G→C	4 (8%)	6 (8%)	
A→T	2 (4%)	3 (4%)	
A→C	1 (2%)	3 (4%)	
± G Frameshifts	8 (15%)	5 (7%)	
Others	0	3 (4%)	
Total	53	74	
		P=0.54 ^b	

TABLE I7 Spectrum of Mutations in the *cII* Gene of Female Big Blue F344 Rats Exposed to Leucomalachite Green in Feed for 16 Weeks^a

Data are presented as number of mutations (%). The detailed protocol for the animal treatments is presented by Culp *et al.* (2002) and Manjanatha *et al.* (2004). Comparison (Adams and Skopek, 1987) of the exposed group spectrum and the control group spectrum а b

National Toxicology Program Technical Reports Printed as of March 2005

Environmental Health Perspectives (EHP) maintains the library of NTP Technical Reports in electronic and print format. To gain access to these reports, contact EHP online at http://ehp.niehs.nih.gov or call 866-541-3841 or 919-653-2590.

Chemical	TR No.	Chemical	TR No.
Acetaminophen	394	C.I. Acid Orange 10	211
Acetonitrile	447	C.I. Acid Red 14	220
Acrylonitrile	506	C.I. Acid Red 114	405
Agar	230	C.I. Basic Red 9 Monohydrochloride	285
Allyl Glycidyl Ether	376	C.I. Direct Blue 15	397
Allyl Isothiocyanate	234	C.I. Direct Blue 218	430
Allyl Isovalerate	253	C.I. Disperse Blue 1	299
1-Amino-2,4-Dibromoanthraquinone	383	C.I. Disperse Yellow 3	222
2-Amino-4-Nitrophenol	339	C.I. Pigment Red 3	407
2-Amino-5-Nitrophenol	334	C.I. Pigment Red 23	411
11-Aminoundecanoic Acid	216	C.I. Solvent Yellow 14	226
dl-Amphetamine Sulfate	387	trans-Cinnamaldehyde	514
Ampicillin Trihydrate	318	Citral	505
Asbestos, Amosite (Hamsters)	249	Cobalt Sulfate Heptahydrate	471
Asbestos, Amosite (Rats)	279	Coconut Oil Acid Diethanolamine Condensate	479
Asbestos, Chrysotile (Hamsters)	246	Codeine	455
Asbestos, Chrysotile (Rats)	295	Comparative Initiation/Promotion Studies (Mouse Skin)	441
Asbestos, Crocidolite	280	Corn Oil, Safflower Oil, and Tricaprylin	426
Asbestos, Tremolite	277	Coumarin	422
L-Ascorbic Acid	247	CS2	377
AZT and AZT/α-Interferon A/D	469	Cytembena	207
Barium Chloride Dihydrate	432	D&C Red No. 9	225
Benzaldehyde	378	D&C Yellow No. 11	463
Benzene	289	Decalin	513
Benzethonium Chloride	438	Decabromodiphenyl Oxide	309
Benzoruran	370	Dialiyi Phthalate (Mice)	242
Benzyl Acetate (Gavage)	250	Dialiyi Phthalate (Rats) $4.4'$ D ² $1.2'$ $2.2'$ $3.1'$ $1.1'$	284
Benzyl Acetate (Feed)	431	4,4 -Diamino-2,2 -Stilbenedisulfonic Acid, Disodium Salt	412
a Bangui n Chlananhanal (Cayaga)	545 424	1.2 Dibroma 2 Chloromanana	401
o-Benzyl-p-Chlorophenol (Gavage)	424	1,2-Dibromo-5-Chloropropane	206
2 Pinhanylamina Hydrochlarida	222	2.2 Dibrome 1 Propagal	210
2.2 Dis(Dromomethyl) 1.2 Dromomedial	233	1.2 Diablerabanzana (a Diablerabanzana)	400
2,2-DIS(DIOIIIOIIICIIIy1)-1,3-PIOpaneuloi Bis(2 Chloro 1 Methylethyl) Ether	432	1.4 Dichlorobenzene (n Dichlorobenzene)	233
Bisphenol A	239	n n' Dichlorodinhenvl sulfone	501
Boric Acid	324	2 4-Dichloronhenol	353
Bromodichloromethane	321	2,4 Dichloro- <i>n</i> -Phenylenediamine	219
Bromoethane	363	1 2-Dichloropropage	263
1 3-Butadiene	288	1 3-Dichloropropene (Telone II)	269
1 3-Butadiene	434	Dichlorvos	342
t-Butyl Alcohol	436	Dietary Restriction	460
Butyl Benzyl Phthalate	213	Diethanolamine	478
Butyl Benzyl Phthalate	458	Di(2-Ethylhexyl) Adipate	212
<i>n</i> -Butyl Chloride	312	Di(2-Ethylhexyl) Phthalate	217
<i>t</i> -Butylhydroquinone	459	Diethyl Phthalate	429
y-Butyrolactone	406	Diglycidyl Resorcinol Ether	257
Caprolactam	214	3,4-Dihydrocoumarin	423
d-Carvone	381	1,2-Dihydro-2,2,4-Trimethylquinoline (Monomer)	456
Chloral Hydrate	502	Dimethoxane	354
Chloral Hydrate	503	3,3'-Dimethoxybenzidine Dihydrochloride	372
Chlorinated and Chloraminated Water	392	N,N-Dimethylaniline	360
Chlorendic Acid	304	3,3'-Dimethylbenzidine Dihydrochloride	390
Chlorinated Paraffins: C23, 43% Chlorine	305	Dimethyl Hydrogen Phosphite	287
Chlorinated Paraffins: C_{12}^{23} , 60% Chlorine	308	Dimethyl Methylphosphonate	323
Chlorinated Trisodium Phosphate	294	Dimethyl Morpholinophosphoramidate	298
2-Chloroacetophenone	379	Dimethylvinyl Chloride	316
p-Chloroaniline Hydrochloride	351	Diphenhydramine Hydrochloride	355
Chlorobenzene	261	5,5-Diphenylhydantoin	404
Chlorodibromomethane	282	Dipropylene Glycol	511
Chloroethane	346	Elmiron [®]	512
2-Chloroethanol	275	Emodin	493
3-Chloro-2-Methylpropene	300	Ephedrine Sulfate	307
Chloroprene	467	Epinephrine Hydrochloride	380
1-Chloro-2-Propanol	477	1,2-Epoxybutane	329
Chlorpheniramine Maleate	317	Erythromycin Stearate	338
C.I. Acid Orange 3	335	Ethyl Acrylate	259

Chemical	TR No.	Chemical	TR No.
Ethylbenzene	466	<i>p</i> -Nitroaniline	418
Ethylene Glycol	413	o-Nitroanisole	416
Ethylene Glycol Monobutyl Ether	484	p-Nitrobenzoic Acid	442
Ethylene Oxide	326	Nitrofurantoin	341
Ethylene Thiourea	388	Nitrofurazone	337
Eugenol	223	Nitromethane	461
FD&C Yellow No. 6	208	<i>p</i> -Nitrophenol	417
Fumonisin B ₁	496	<i>o</i> -Nitrotoluene	504
Furan	402	<i>p</i> -Nitrotoluene	498
Furfural	382	Ochratoxin A	358
Furfuryi Alconol	482	Oleic Acid Dietnanolamine Condensate	481
Furosemide	356	Oxazepam (Mice)	443
Gallium Arsenide	492	Oxazepam (Kais)	408
Glutaraldebyde	490	Oxymenoione Oxystetracycline Hydrochloride	405
Glycidol	374	Ozone and Ozone/NNK	440
Guar Gum	229	Penicillin VK	336
Gum Arabic	225	Pentachloroanisole	414
HC Blue 1	271	Pentachloroethane	232
HC Blue 2	293	Pentachloronitrobenzene	325
HC Red 3	281	Pentachlorophenol, Purified	483
HC Yellow 4	419	Pentachlorophenol, Technical Grade	349
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene	437	Pentaerythritol Tetranitrate	365
Hexachloroethane	361	Phenolphthalein	465
2,4-Hexadienal	509	Phenylbutazone	367
4-Hexylresorcinol	330	Phenylephrine Hydrochloride	322
Hydrochlorothiazide	357	N-Phenyl-2-Naphthylamine	333
Hydroquinone	366	o-Phenylphenol	301
8-Hydroxyquinoline	276	Polybrominated Biphenyl Mixture (Firemaster FF-1) (Gavage)	244
Indium Phosphide	499	Polybrominated Biphenyl Mixture (Firemaster FF-1) (Feed)	398
Iodinated Glycerol	340	Polysorbate 80 (Glycol)	415
Isobutene	487	Polyvinyl Alcohol	474
Isobutyl Nitrite	448	Primidone	476
Isobutyraldehyde	472	Probenecid	395
Isophorone	291	Promethazine Hydrochloride	425
Isoprene	486	Propylene	272
Lauric Acid Diethanolamine Condensate	480	Propylene Glycol Mono- <i>t</i> -butyl Ether	515
d-Limonene	347	1,2-Propylene Oxide	267
60 Hz Magnetic Fields	221	Propyr Ganate	240 470
Magnetic Field Promotion	400	Pyriaine Ouercetin	470
Malachite Green Chloride and Leucomalachite Green	527	Biddelliine	508
Malonaldehyde Sodium Salt	331	Resorcinol	403
Manganese Sulfate Monohydrate	428	Rhodamine 6G	364
D-Mannitol	236	Rotenone	320
Marine Diesel Fuel and JP-5 Navy Fuel	310	Roxarsone	345
Melamine	245	Salicylazosulfapyridine	457
2-Mercaptobenzothiazole	332	Scopolamine Hydrobromide Trihydrate	445
Mercuric Chloride	408	Sodium Azide	389
Methacrylonitrile	497	Sodium Fluoride	393
8-Methoxypsoralen	359	Sodium Nitrite	495
α-Methylbenzyl Alcohol	369	Sodium Xylenesulfonate	464
Methyl Bromide	385	Stannous Chloride	231
Methyl Carbamate	328	Stoddard Solvent IIC	519
Methyldopa Sesquihydrate	348	Succinic Anhydride	373
Methylene Chloride	306	Talc	421
4,4'-Methylenedianiline Dihydrochloride	248	Tara Gum	224
Methyleugenol	491	2,3,7,8-Tetrachlorodibenzo- <i>p</i> -Dioxin (Dermal)	201
2-Methylimidazole	516	2,3,7,8-Tetrachlorodibenzo- <i>p</i> -Dioxin (Gavage)	209
Methyl Methacrylate	314	1,1,1,2-1etrachloroethane	237
N-Methylolacrylamide	352	Tetrachioroethylene	311
Minor	439	Tetrafycine Hydrochloride	544 450
Milex Malubdanum Triavida	515	1 Trans Dolto ⁹ Tatrahydrogonnohinol	430
Monochloroacetic Acid	402	1-11ans-Denta - renanyurovannaonno Tetrahydrofuran	440
Monuron	290 266	Tetrakis(Hydroxymethyl)Phosphonium Sulfate	4/J 206
Nalidixic Acid	368	Tetrakis(Hydroxymethyl)Phosphonium Chloride	290
Nanhthalene (Mice)	410	Tetranitromethane	386
Naphthalene (Rats)	500	Theophylline	473
Nickel (II) Oxide	451	4.4-Thiobis(6-t-Butyl-m-Cresol)	435
Nickel Sulfate Hexahydrate	454	Titanocene Dichloride	399
Nickel Subsulfide	453	Toluene	371

Chemical	TR No.	Chemical	TR No.
2,4- & 2,6-Toluene Diisocyanate	251	Turmeric Oleoresin (Curcumin)	427
Triamterene	420	Urethane, Ethanol, and Urethane/Ethanol	510
Tribromomethane	350	Vanadium Pentoxide	507
Trichloroethylene	243	4-Vinylcyclohexene	303
Trichloroethylene	273	4-Vinyl-1-Cyclohexene Diepoxide	362
1,2,3-Trichloropropane	384	Vinylidene Chloride	228
Tricresyl Phosphate	433	Vinyl Toluene	375
Triethanolamine	449	Xylenes (Mixed)	327
Triethanolamine	518	2,6-Xylidine	278
Tris(2-Chloroethyl) Phosphate	391	Zearalenone	235
Tris(2-Ethylhexyl) Phosphate	274	Ziram	238